
  
 

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

3. ROLL CALL 

4. PRESENTATION 

A. MERS, Retiree Health Care and Township Pension Fund 2020 Valuation Reports 

 
5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

9. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Communications 

B. Minutes 

(1) May 18, 2021 Virtual Regular Board Meeting 

(2) June 1, 2021 Virtual Regular Board Meeting 

C. Bills 

D. Pathway Master Plan 5-year Update- Set Public Hearing 

E. Set a Date for Board Study Session-June 30, 2021 

F. Change Regular Board Meeting Date of August 5, 2021 

G. Charitable Gaming License-Ebersole Foundation 
 

10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY 

11. HEARINGS (CANARY) 

12. ACTION ITEMS (PINK)  
A. Rezoning #21020 (Martin Investment Properties, Inc.) rezone approximately six acres on the north 

side of Jolly Road and east of Kansas Road from I (Industrial) and RA (Single Family-Medium Density) 
to PO (Professional and Office) –Final Adoption 

B. Resolution in Recognition and Celebration of Juneteenth 
C. Resolution for a Traffic Speed Study 

D. Lake Lansing Advisory Committee Appointment 

E. Review of Meridian Township Investment Policy 

F. Amtrak Corridor Development Program Resolution 
 

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS (ORCHID) 
A. Rezoning #21040 (Okemos IL-AL Investors, LLC) rezone approximately 9.07 acres located at 1510 

and 1560 Grand River Avenue from C-2 (Commercial) to RA (Single Family-Medium Density) 
B. Downtown Development Authority Loan Forgiveness 
C. Citizen’s Survey Draft 

 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

16. ADJOURNMENT 
 

All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. 
Appointment of Supervisor Pro Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary. 

 

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting: 
Township Manager Frank L. Walsh, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required. 
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall (VIRTUAL MEETING)  

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN                                  
TOWNSHIP BOARD – VIRTUAL MEETING 

June 15, 2021 6:00 PM 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 

T O W N S H I P.,.,, 
~ 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
mertclcsl.mLua 



MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF MICHIGAN  
ANNUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORT DECEMBER 31, 2020  

MERIDIAN CHTR TWP (3315)

E _( ______ __ 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System 



MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 
FUNDING LEVEL HISTORY

Valuation Date December 31 Percent Funded
1999 54%
2013 60%
2014 59%
2015 57%
2016 58%
2017 61%
2018 63%
2019 62%
2020 64%



2020 THE HIGHEST % OF FUNDED 
RATIO SINCE 1999

12/31/1999 * 12/31/2020
Funded Ratio 54% 64%

* Reflects assets from Surplus divisions, if any.



MONTHLY CONTRIBUTIONS
2021=$250,300
2022=$271,613
$135,588

Percentage of Payroll Monthly$ Based on Projected Payroll 

Phase-in No Phase- in Phase-in No Phase-in Phase-in No Phase-in Phase-in No Phase-in 

Valuation Date: 12/31/2020 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 12/31/2019 

January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1, 

Fiscal Year Beginning: 20.22 2022 2021 2021 2022 2022 2021 2021 

Division 

01 - DPW - ~ - - $ 12,832 $ 14,140 $ 11,965 $ 13,093 ,-

02 = Polioe Patro l =· - 26.74% 28.95% 38,551 44,380 40,027 43,330 ,_ 

05 - Fire ighters - ~ - - 124,049 136,133 118,361 125,690 -
10 = Adm in Professional =· - = - 7,907 9,893 8,560 9,370 

11 - Teamst ers - ~ - - 1,516 1,882 1,267 1,516 

12 = Admin Prof on/af t 1/1/17 3 .. 78% 3.88% 2.40% 2.43% 1,055 1,082 481 487 

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17 3 .. 400/4 3.500/4 3.15% 3.19% 1,248 1,284 789 798 

20- Polioe Command -· - 72.16% 77.29% 55,625 61,220 51,765 55,443 
-

21- Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20 1 . .35% 1.35% - -· 316 316 0 0 
-

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17 2 .. 76% 3.24% 2.24% 2.18% 1,094 1,283 588 573 

Total Munic·p,al ity -

Est imated Monthly Contribution $ 244, l93 $ 271,613 $ 233,803 $, 250,300 

Total Munic·p,al ity -

Est imated Annual Contriburtion $ 2,930,316 $ 3,.25,9,356 $ 2,805,,636 $, 3,003, 600 



100% FUNDING IN 10 YEARS?

$434,788 X 12=$5,217,456
5.35% Rate of Return

MERS strongly encourages employers to contribute more than the 
minimum contribution shown above.



CAN WE RELY ON MERS 7.35 ROR?
NO.

WE ARE USING THE 5.35 MODEL
- -

I Lower Future Lower Future Valuation 

12/31/2020 Valuation Results Annual Returns Annual Returns Assumptions 

lnv,est1ment R,eturn Assu1mpt·on 5 .. 35% 6.35% 7.35% 

Accrued Li a bi llity $ 102,284, 770 $ 89,527,590 $ 79,103,874 

Valuat ion Asset s1 $ 50,849,504 $ 50,849,504 $ 50,849,504 

Unf unded Accrued Liab ili ty $ 51,435, 266 $ 38,678,086 $ 28,254,370 

Funded Ra1tio 50% 57% 64% 

Mont hly Normal Cost $ 106,054 $ 71,979 $ 46,952 

Mont hly Amortization Pay1ment $ 328,734 $ 274 964 J $ 224, 661 

Total Emp,l,oyer Contribution2 $ 434,788 $ 346,943 $ 271,613 



Retiree Health Care (OPEB)
December 31, 2020



99.74 %

Actuaria l Va luation Date 

Executive Summary 
as of December 31, 2,020 

Measurement Date of the Net OPEB Li a bi Ii ty 

Employer's Fiscal Year Ending Date (Reporti ng Date) 

Membership 

Number of 

- Retirees and Benefic iaries 

- Inactive, Nonreti red Members 

- Active Members 

-Total 

Covered Payroll @ 

Net OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB Liab ility 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Net OPEB Liab i lity 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 

of Tota l OPEB Liabi l i ty 

Net OPEB Liab i lity as a Percentage 

of Covered Payrol I 

$ 

$ 

December 31, 2018 

December 31, 2020 

December 31, 2020 

29 

34 

73 

136 

NA 

6,980,548 

6,962,087 

18,461 

NA 



OPEB Percent Funded
Fiscal 
Year 2020 2019 2018 2017

Percent
Funded 99.74 % 88.58 % 54.14 % 54.60 %



OPEB Liability

2020      $6,980,548     $6,962,087     $18,461     99.74%

To,tal Plan Net P1osit ion INiet: OPEB Liabiliit.y 

FY !Ending OPEIB Pllan Net INiet: OPElB as a'% of Tota l Cover1ed as,a % of 
Deoember 31, l i.abmt:y Posi1tion Liabili1ty OPEIB Liability Payr10II Covered P,ayroll 

20ll7 $ ,8,.'932,451 $ 4,,877 55ll $ 4,I054,'9IOO 54,.60 % NIA NIA 

20ll8, '9,.2ll4,871 4,'988,733 4,226,138 5414 % NA NIA 

2019 6.,800,809 6,024,276 776,533 ,88,58 % NA NA 
2020 6 ,.'98 0,54 8, 6,'962,08'7 18,461 '99.74 % NA NA 



OPEB Annual Contributions
Fiscal Year Actual Contribution

2017 $295,649
2018 $450,136
2019 $447,774
2020 $447,018
2021 $400,000
2022 $88,841



Meridian Employee 
Pension Plan

December 31, 2020



Net Pension Liability

$1,414,826 

$1,817,463 

$1,571,954 

$825,066 

$1,083,912 

$367,329 

($44,105)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Pension Liability



Funding Status

100.86%

Actuari al! Valuatfolil Da e 

Measurement Date of the Ne . IP•ension Liabi l ity 

Employ,er 's Fiscal Year Ending Date (Reporti ng Date} 

Membership 

Number of 

- Retii rees and Beneficiar ies 

- !nacf ve, INonr,efr,ed Members 

- .Actii ve Members 

-Tota II 

Covered Payro l l 

Nlet Pension L~a'bilit y 

Total Pension Liabillity 

Pllan Fiduciary Net IPo,s i tiion 

Net Pension IJabi lity 

Pllan Fiduciary Net IPo,si tiion as ,a Percentage 

of Tota l Pensi o,n Li ab "llity 

· et P,ension !Liabi lity as a P,ercentage 

of Covered Payroll 

Dec,ember 31, 2020 

Dec,ember 31, 2020 

Dec,ember 31, 2020 

.$ 

.$ 

.$ 

44 

15 

1 

6.0 

112,521 

5,138,314 

5,182,419 

(44,105) 

,(39.20)% 



Percent Funded

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Net Liability Position



Annual Required Contributions (ARC)

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

$450,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
ARC



2022 MERS Contribution
Minimum Required
7.35%

$2,930,316

Recommendation
5.35%

$5,217,456

$ 2,287,140 Additional



Not Fully Funded Scenario

MERS $5,217,456

OPEB $400,000

Township Plan $200,000

$5,817,456



2022 Actual Contribution
MERS $5,217,456

OPEB $88,841

Township Plan $125,000

$5,431,297



2021 vs 2022 Contributions
Fully Funded Not Fully Funded

2022 $5,431,297 $5,817,456

2021 $5,165,744 $5,165,744

$266,623 $651,712



Township Financial Picture



General Fund Balance

$5.20 
$5.50 

$5.90 
$6.40 

$6.80 
$7.10 

$7.90 

$10.20 

$0.00 

$2.00 

$4.00 

$6.00 

$8.00 

$10.00 

$12.00 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Million



  Annual Actuarial Valuation Report 
December 31, 2020 - Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) 

Municipal Employees’ Retirement 
System of Michigan

4. A

~ MERS 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System 

GRS 



 
 

 

 
 
Spring, 2021 
 
 
 
Meridian Chtr Twp 
 
In care of: 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Michigan  
1134 Municipal Way 
Lansing, Michigan 48917 
 
This report presents the results of the Annual Actuarial Valuation, prepared for Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) as of 
December 31, 2020. The report includes the determination of liabilities and contribution rates resulting from 
the participation in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan (“MERS”). This report contains 
the minimum actuarially determined contribution requirement, in alignment with the MERS Plan Document, 
Actuarial Policy, the Michigan Constitution, and governing statutes. Meridian Chtr Twp is responsible for the 
employer contributions needed to provide MERS benefits for its employees and former employees. 
 
The purposes of this valuation are to: 
 

• Measure funding progress as of December 31, 2020, 

• Establish contribution requirements for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2022, 

• Provide information regarding the identification and assessment of risk,  

• Provide actuarial information in connection with applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) statements, and 

• Provide information to assist the local unit of government with state reporting requirements. 
 
  
 
This valuation assumed the continuing ability of the plan sponsor to make the contributions necessary to fund 
this plan. A determination regarding whether or not the plan sponsor is actually able to do so is outside our 
scope of expertise and was not performed. 
 
The findings in this report are based on data and other information through December 31, 2020.  The valuation 
was based upon information furnished by MERS concerning Retirement System benefits, financial transactions, 
plan provisions and active members, terminated members, retirees and beneficiaries.  We checked for internal 
reasonability and year-to-year consistency, but did not audit the data.  We are not responsible for the accuracy 
or completeness of the information provided by MERS. 
 
 

800.521.0498 I P: 248.799.9000 I www.grsconsulting.com 

One Towne Square Suite 800 I Southfield, Michigan 48076-3723 



 
 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp 
Spring, 2021 
Page 2 
 
The Municipal Employees’ Retirement Act, PA 427 of 1984 and the MERS’ Plan Document Article VI sec. 71 
(1)(d), provides the MERS Board with the authority to set actuarial assumptions and methods after 
consultation with the actuary. As the fiduciary of the plan, MERS Retirement Board sets certain assumptions 
for funding and GASB purposes.  These assumptions are checked regularly through a comprehensive study, 
called an Experience Study. Studies were completed in 2018 and 2020, and are the basis of the economic and 
demographic assumptions and methods currently in place.  Updated economic assumptions were adopted by 
the MERS Retirement Board at the February 28, 2019 board meeting and were effective with the  
December 31, 2019 annual actuarial valuation.  At the February 27, 2020 board meeting, the MERS 
Retirement Board adopted demographic assumptions effective with the December 31, 2020 annual actuarial 
valuation, which will impact contributions beginning in 2022. 
 
The Michigan Department of Treasury provides required assumptions to be used for purposes of Public Act 
202 reporting.  These assumptions are for reporting purposes only and do not impact required contributions.  
Please refer to the State Reporting page found at the end of this report for information for this filing.  

 
For a full list of all the assumptions used, please refer to the division-specific assumptions described in table(s) 
in this report, and to the Appendix on the MERS website at: 
http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-
2020AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf 
 
The actuarial assumptions used for this valuation, including the assumed rate of investment return, are 
reasonable for purposes of the measurement. 
 
This report reflects the impact of COVID-19 experience through December 31, 2020.  It does not reflect the 
ongoing impact of COVID-19, which is likely to influence demographic and economic experience, at least in 
the short-term. We will continue to monitor these developments and their impact on the MERS Defined 
Benefit and Hybrid plans. Actual future experience will be reflected in each subsequent annual valuation, as 
experience emerges. 
 
This report has been prepared by actuaries who have substantial experience valuing public employee 
retirement systems. To the best of our knowledge the information contained in this report is accurate and 
fairly presents the actuarial position of Meridian Chtr Twp as of the valuation date. All calculations have been 
made in conformity with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices, with the Actuarial Standards of 
Practice issued by the Actuarial Standards Board, and with applicable statutes. 
 
David T. Kausch, Rebecca L. Stouffer, and Mark Buis are members of the American Academy of Actuaries.  
These actuaries meet the Academy’s Qualification Standards to render the actuarial opinions contained herein.   
The signing actuaries are independent of the plan sponsor. GRS maintains independent consulting agreements 
with certain local units of government for services unrelated to the actuarial consulting services provided in 
this report.  
 
The Retirement Board of the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Michigan confirms that the System 
provides for payment of the required employer contribution as described in Section 20m of Act No. 314 of 
1965 (MCL 38.1140m). 
 
 
  

http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-2020AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf
http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-2020AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf


 
 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp 
Spring, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 
This information is purely actuarial in nature. It is not intended to serve as a substitute for legal, accounting or 
investment advice. 
 
This report was prepared at the request of the MERS Retirement Board and may be provided only in its 
entirety by the municipality to other interested parties (MERS customarily provides the full report on request 
to associated third parties such as the auditor for the municipality). GRS is not responsible for the 
consequences of any unauthorized use. This report should not be relied on for any purpose other than the 
purposes described herein. Determinations of financial results, associated with the benefits described in this 
report, for purposes other than those identified above may be significantly different. 
 
If you have reason to believe that the plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important plan provisions 
relevant to this valuation are not described, that conditions have changed since the calculations were made, 
that the information provided in this report is inaccurate or is in anyway incomplete, or if you need further 
information in order to make an informed decision on the subject matter in this report, please contact your 
Regional Manager at 1.800.767.MERS (6377). 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 

 
David T. Kausch, FSA, FCA, EA, MAAA  
 

 
Rebecca L. Stouffer, ASA, FCA, MAAA  
 
 
 
 
Mark Buis, FSA, FCA, EA, MAAA 
 



 
 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Table 1: Employer Contribution Details for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2022 ....................................... 13 

Table 2: Benefit Provisions .................................................................................................................................... 15 

Table 3: Participant Summary ............................................................................................................................... 19 

Table 4: Reported Assets (Market Value) ............................................................................................................. 21 

Table 5: Flow of Valuation Assets ......................................................................................................................... 22 

Table 6: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities and Valuation Assets as of December 31, 2020 ........................................ 23 

Table 7: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule ............................................................................. 25 

Tables 8 and 9: Division-Based Comparative Schedules ....................................................................................... 26 

Table 10: Division-Based Layered Amortization Schedule .................................................................................... 38 

GASB Statement No. 68 Information .................................................................................................................... 48 

Benefit Provision History ....................................................................................................................................... 50 

Plan Provisions, Actuarial Assumptions, and Actuarial Funding Method ............................................................. 55 

Risk Commentary .................................................................................................................................................. 56 

State Reporting ..................................................................................................................................................... 58 

 



 

 

  Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -6- 

 

Executive Summary 

Funded Ratio 

The funded ratio of a plan is the percentage of the dollar value of the actuarial accrued liability that is covered 
by the actuarial value of assets. While funding ratio may be a useful plan measurement, understanding a plan’s 
funding trend may be more important than a particular point in time.  Refer to Table 7 to find a history of this 
information. 
 

12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Funded Ratio* 64% 62%
 

*  Reflects assets from Surplus divisions, if any. 

 
Throughout this report are references to valuation results generated prior to the 2018 valuation date.  Results 
prior to 2018 were received directly from the prior actuary or extracted from the previous valuation system by 
MERS’s technology service provider. 
 
   



 

 

  Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -7- 

 

Required Employer Contributions 

Your required employer contributions are shown in the following table. Employee contributions, if any, are in 
addition to the employer contributions. 
 
Effective for the December 31, 2020 valuation, the MERS Retirement Board has adopted updated demographic 
assumptions.  Changes to these assumptions are effective for contributions beginning in 2022.  Effective with 
the 2019 valuation, the MERS Retirement Board adopted updated economic assumptions.  The combined 
impact of these assumption changes may be phased in.  This valuation reflects the second year of phase-in for 
the economic assumption update and the first year of phase-in for the demographic assumption update.  The 
remaining combined phase-in period is four years for all assumption changes. 
 
By default, MERS will invoice you based on the amount in the “No Phase-in” columns.  This amount will be 
considered the minimum required contribution unless you request to be billed the “Phase-in” rates. If you wish 
to be billed using the phased-in rates, please contact MERS, at which point the alternate minimum required 
contribution will be the amount in the “Phase-in” columns. 
 

Phase-in No Phase-in Phase-in No Phase-in Phase-in No Phase-in Phase-in No Phase-in

Valuation Date: 12/31/2020 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 12/31/2019

January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1, January 1,

Fiscal Year Beginning: 2022 2022 2021 2021 2022 2022 2021 2021

Division

01 - DPW - - - - 12,832$              14,140$              11,965$              13,093$              

02 - Police Patrol - - 26.74% 28.95% 38,551                44,380                40,027                43,330                

05 - Firefighters - - - - 124,049              136,133              118,361              125,690              

10 - Admin Professional - - - - 7,907                  9,893                  8,560                  9,370                  

11 - Teamsters - - - - 1,516                  1,882                  1,267                  1,516                  

12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17 3.78% 3.88% 2.40% 2.43% 1,055                  1,082                  481                      487                      

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17 3.40% 3.50% 3.15% 3.19% 1,248                  1,284                  789                      798                      

20 - Police Command - - 72.16% 77.29% 55,625                61,220                51,765                55,443                

21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20 1.35% 1.35% - - 316                      316                      0                           0                           

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17 2.76% 3.24% 2.24% 2.18% 1,094                  1,283                  588                      573                      

Total Municipality - 

Estimated Monthly Contribution 244,193$           271,613$           233,803$           250,300$           

Total Municipality - 

Estimated Annual Contribution 2,930,316$        3,259,356$        2,805,636$        3,003,600$        

Percentage of Payroll Monthly $ Based on Projected Payroll

 
 

 

Employee contribution rates: 
 

Valuation Date: 12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Division

01 - DPW 5.00% 5.00%

02 - Police Patrol 8.29% 8.29%

05 - Firefighters 7.76% 7.76%

10 - Admin Professional 5.00% 5.00%

11 - Teamsters 5.00% 5.00%

12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17 5.00% 5.00%

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17 5.00% 5.00%

20 - Police Command 11.24% 11.24%

21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20 8.29% 0.00%

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17 7.76% 7.76%

Employee Contribution Rate

 
 
The employer may contribute more than the minimum required contributions, as these additional 
contributions will earn investment income and may result in lower future contribution requirements. 
Employers making contributions in excess of the minimum requirements may elect to apply the excess 
contribution immediately to a particular division, or segregate the excess into one or more of what MERS calls 
“Surplus” divisions. An election in the first case would immediately reduce any unfunded accrued liability and 



 

 

  Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -8- 

 

lower the amortization payments throughout the remaining amortization period. An election to set up Surplus 
divisions would not immediately lower future contributions, however the assets from the Surplus division 
could be transferred to an unfunded division in the future to reduce the unfunded liability in future years, or to 
be used to pay all or a portion of the minimum required contribution in a future year. For purposes of this 
report, the assets in any Surplus division have been included in the municipality’s total assets, unfunded 
accrued liability and funded status, however, these assets are not used in calculating the minimum required 
contribution. 
 
MERS strongly encourages employers to contribute more than the minimum contribution shown above. 
 

●  To accelerate to a 100% funding ratio in 10 years, estimated monthly employer contributions for
     the fiscal year beginning in 2022 for the entire employer would be $395,145, instead of $271,613.

Assuming that experience of the plan meets actuarial assumptions:

 
How and Why Do These Numbers Change? 
 
In a defined benefit plan, contributions vary from one annual actuarial valuation to the next as a result of the 
following: 
 

• Changes in benefit provisions (see Table 2), 

• Changes in actuarial assumptions and methods (see the Appendix), and 

• Experience of the plan (investment experience and demographic experience); this is the difference 
between actual experience of the plan and the actuarial assumptions. 

 
These impacts are reflected in various tables in the report.  For more information, please contact your Regional 
Manager. 

Comments on Investment Rate of Return Assumption 

A defined benefit plan is funded by employer contributions, participant contributions, and investment 
earnings. Investment earnings have historically provided a significant portion of the funding. The larger the 
share of benefits being provided from investment returns, the smaller the required contributions, and vice 
versa. Determining the contributions required to prefund the promised retirement benefits requires an 
assumption of what investment earnings are expected to add to the fund over a long period of time. This is 
called the Investment Return Assumption. 
 
The MERS Investment Return Assumption is 7.35% per year. This, along with all of our other actuarial 
assumptions, is reviewed at least every five years in an Experience Study that compares the assumptions used 
against actual experience and recommends adjustments if necessary. If your municipality would like to explore 
contributions at lower assumed investment return assumptions, please review the “what if” projection 
scenarios later in this report. 
 

Assumption Change in 2020 
 
A 5-year experience study analyzing historical experience from 2013 through 2018 was completed in February 
2020.  In addition to changes to the economic assumptions which took effect with the fiscal year 2021 
contribution rates, the experience study recommended updated demographic assumptions, including 
adjustments to the following actuarial assumptions: mortality, retirement, disability, and termination rates.  
Changes to the demographic assumptions resulting from the experience study have been approved by the 



 

 

  Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -9- 

 

MERS Retirement Board and are effective beginning with the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation, first 
impacting 2022 contributions.  A complete description of the assumptions may be found in the Appendix to 
the valuation. 

Comments on Asset Smoothing 

To avoid dramatic spikes and dips in annual contribution requirements due to short term fluctuations in asset 
markets, MERS applies a technique called asset smoothing. This spreads out each year’s investment gains or 
losses over the prior year and the following four years. This smoothing method is used to determine your 
actuarial value of assets (valuation assets), which is then used to determine both your funded ratio and your 
required contributions.  The (smoothed) actuarial rate of return for 2020 was 8.17%, while the actual market 
rate of return was 12.70%.  To see historical details of the market rate of return, compared to the smoothed 
actuarial rate of return, refer to this report’s Appendix, or view the “How Smoothing Works” video on the 
Defined Benefit resource page of the MERS website.   
 
As of December 31, 2020, the actuarial value of assets is 97% of market value due to asset smoothing. This 
means that the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets should exceed the actuarial assumption in the 
next few years provided that the annual market returns exceed the 7.35% investment return assumption.  
When all assumptions are met, contribution rates are expected to stay approximately level as a percent of 
payroll (dollar amounts are expected to increase with wage inflation of 3.0% each year). 
 
If the December 31, 2020 valuation results were based on market value instead of actuarial value: 
 

• The funded percent of your entire municipality would be 66% (instead of 64%); and  

• Your total employer contribution requirement for the fiscal year starting January 1, 2022 would be 
$3,148,668 (instead of $3,259,356). 

 

Alternate Scenarios to Estimate the Potential Volatility of Results  
("What If Scenarios") 

The calculations in this report are based on assumptions about long-term economic and demographic 
behavior. These assumptions will never materialize in a given year, except by coincidence. Therefore, the 
results will vary from one year to the next. The volatility of the results depends upon the characteristics of the 
plan. For example: 
 

• Open divisions that have substantial assets compared to their active employee payroll will have more 
volatile employer contribution rates due to investment return fluctuations. 

• Open divisions that have substantial accrued liability compared to their active employee payroll will 
have more volatile employer contribution rates due to demographic experience fluctuations. 

• Small divisions will have more volatile contribution patterns than larger divisions because statistical 
fluctuations are relatively larger among small populations. 

• Shorter amortization periods result in more volatile contribution patterns. 
 
Many assumptions are important in determining the required employer contributions. In the following table, 
we show the impact of varying the Investment Return assumption. Lower investment returns would result in 
higher required employer contributions, and vice-versa.  The three economic scenarios below provide a 
quantitative risk assessment for the impact of investment returns on the plan’s future financial condition for 
funding purposes. 
 

https://vimeo.com/mersofmich/review/290989403/5707240419
http://www.mersofmich.com/Employer/Programs/Defined-Benefit-Plan


 

 

  Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -10- 

 

The relative impact of the economic scenarios below will vary from year to year, as the participant 
demographics change. The impact of each scenario should be analyzed for a given year, not from year to year. 
The results in the table are based on the December 31, 2020 valuation, and are for the municipality in total, 
not by division. These results do not reflect a phase-in of the impact of the new actuarial assumptions. 
 
It is important to note that calculations in this report are mathematical estimates based upon assumptions 
regarding future events, which may or may not materialize. Actuarial calculations can and do vary from one 
valuation to the next, sometimes significantly depending on the group’s size.  Projections are not predictions.  
Future valuations will be based on actual future experience. 
 

Lower Future Lower Future Valuation

12/31/2020 Valuation Results Annual Returns Annual Returns Assumptions

Investment Return Assumption 5.35% 6.35% 7.35%

Accrued Liability 102,284,770$                       89,527,590$                         79,103,874$                         

Valuation Assets1 50,849,504$                         50,849,504$                         50,849,504$                         

Unfunded Accrued Liability 51,435,266$                         38,678,086$                         28,254,370$                         

Funded Ratio 50% 57% 64%

Monthly Normal Cost 106,054$                               71,979$                                  46,952$                                  

Monthly Amortization Payment 328,734$                               274,964$                               224,661$                               

Total Employer Contribution2
434,788$                               346,943$                               271,613$                               

 
 

1 The Valuation Assets include assets from Surplus divisions, if any. 
 

2 If assets exceed accrued liabilities for a division, the division may have an overfunding credit to reduce the division’s 
employer contribution requirement.  If the overfunding credit is larger than the normal cost, the division’s full credit is 
included in the municipality’s amortization payment above but the division’s total contribution requirement is zero. This 
can cause the displayed normal cost and amortization payment to not add up to the displayed total employer 
contribution. 

Projection Scenarios 

The next two pages show projections of the plan's funded ratio and computed employer contributions under 
the actuarial assumptions used in the valuation and alternate economic assumption scenarios. All three 
projections take into account the past investment experience that will continue to affect the actuarial rate of 
return in the short term.  
 
The 7.35% scenario provides an estimate of computed employer contributions based on current actuarial 
assumptions, and a projected 7.35% market return. The other two scenarios may be useful if the municipality 
chooses to budget more conservatively, and make contributions in addition to the minimum requirements. 
The 6.35% and 5.35% projection scenarios provide an indication of the potential required employer 
contribution if these assumptions were met over the long-term. 
 
Your municipality includes one or more Surplus divisions. The assets in a Surplus division may be used to 
reduce future employer contributions or to accelerate the date by which the municipality becomes 100% 
funded. The timing and use of these Surplus assets is discretionary. 
 
The Funded Percentage graph shows projections of funded status under the 7.35% investment return 
assumption, both including the Surplus assets (contributed as of the valuation date), and without the Surplus 
assets. The graph including the Surplus assets assumes these Surplus assets grow with interest and are not 
used to lower future employer contributions. We modeled the projections including the Surplus assets in this 



 

 

  Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -11- 

 

fashion because the use of these assets is discretionary by the employer and we do not know when and how 
the employer will use them. Once the employer uses these Surplus assets, any future employer contributions 
are expected to be lower than those shown in the projections. 
 

Valuation Fiscal Year Estimated Annual

Year Ending Beginning Actuarial Accrued Funded Employer

12/31 1/1 Liability Valuation Assets2 Percentage Contribution

     7.35%1 - NO PHASE-IN

2020 2022 79,103,874$           45,343,728$           57% 3,259,356$                

2021 2023 81,500,000$           48,000,000$           59% 3,320,000$                

2022 2024 84,100,000$           50,800,000$           60% 3,400,000$                

2023 2025 86,600,000$           54,600,000$           63% 3,390,000$                

2024 2026 89,100,000$           58,400,000$           65% 3,410,000$                

2025 2027 91,500,000$           61,500,000$           67% 3,490,000$                

     6.35%1 - NO PHASE-IN

2020 2022 89,527,590$           45,343,728$           51% 4,163,316$                

2021 2023 92,100,000$           47,600,000$           52% 4,270,000$                

2022 2024 94,900,000$           50,800,000$           53% 4,370,000$                

2023 2025 97,600,000$           55,100,000$           56% 4,390,000$                

2024 2026 100,300,000$        59,300,000$           59% 4,430,000$                

2025 2027 102,900,000$        62,900,000$           61% 4,530,000$                

     5.35%1 - NO PHASE-IN

2020 2022 102,284,770$        45,343,728$           44% 5,217,456$                

2021 2023 105,100,000$        47,100,000$           45% 5,370,000$                

2022 2024 108,100,000$        50,900,000$           47% 5,500,000$                

2023 2025 111,000,000$        55,800,000$           50% 5,540,000$                

2024 2026 113,900,000$        60,700,000$           53% 5,610,000$                

2025 2027 116,600,000$        65,000,000$           56% 5,740,000$                
 

 

1 Represents both the interest rate for discounting liabilities and the future investment return assumption on the Market 
Value of assets. 

2 Valuation Assets do not include assets from Surplus divisions, if any.  

 
 
  



 

 

  Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -12- 

 

 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

Calendar Year December 31,

Funded Percentage

7.35% - With Surplus 7.35% - No Surplus 6.35% 5.35%
 

Notes: 
All projected funded percentages are shown with no phase-in. 
Assumes assets from Surplus divisions will not be used to lower employer contributions during the projection period. 
The green indicator lines have been added at 60% funded and 20 years following the valuation date for PA 202 purposes. 

 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

Fiscal Year

Estimated Annual Employer Contribution

7.35% - No Surplus 6.35% 5.35%
 

Notes: 
All projected contributions are shown with no phase-in. 
Projected employer contributions do not reflect the use of any assets from the Surplus divisions. 

 
 

 
 

--
. 

---. . -

-. -
-- - -
-

- . -. 

----

... 

-

········· 

... ... .... 

. -. . -. - --- -

····· .. 
.. .. .. .. 

. ... - . -- . 
I . -- ,, - . - - _______,,, ,. 
I 

I . 
. 

··········· 

- . - . - . -- - - - - -



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -13- 

 

Table 1: Employer Contribution Details for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2022 

 

Payment of the Computed Computed Employee

Total Employee Employer Unfunded Employer Employer Blended ER Blended ER Contribut.

Normal Contribut. Normal Accrued Contribut. No Contribut. Rate No Rate With Conversion

Division Cost Rate Cost6 Liability4
Phase-In With Phase-In Phase-In5 Phase-In5 Factor2

Percentage of Payroll

01 - DPW 11.49% 5.00% - - - - 15.81% 14.44%

02 - Police Patrol 20.30% 8.29% - - - - 48.77% 43.51%

05 - Firefighters 17.83% 7.76% - - - - 68.66% 62.53%

10 - Admin Professional 10.51% 5.00% - - - - 17.70% 14.45%

11 - Teamsters 0.00% 5.00% - - - -

12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17 9.08% 5.00% 4.08% -0.20% 3.88% 3.78% 17.70% 14.45% 0.84%

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17 8.29% 5.00% 3.29% 0.21% 3.50% 3.40% 15.81% 14.44% 0.87%

20 - Police Command 19.95% 11.24% - - - - 48.77% 43.51%

21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20 9.63% 8.29% 1.34% 0.01% 1.35% 1.35% 48.77% 43.51% 0.77%

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17 10.91% 7.76% 3.15% 0.09% 3.24% 2.76% 68.66% 62.53% 0.86%

Estimated Monthly Contribution3

01 - DPW 3,950$                10,190$                 14,140$              12,832$              

02 - Police Patrol 15,208 29,172 44,380 38,551

05 - Firefighters 16,163 119,970 136,133 124,049

10 - Admin Professional 1,880 8,013 9,893 7,907

11 - Teamsters 0 1,882 1,882 1,516

12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17 1,138 (56) 1,082 1,055

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17 1,207 77 1,284 1,248

20 - Police Command 5,844 55,376 61,220 55,625

21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20 314 2 316 316

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17 1,248 35 1,283 1,094

Total Municipality 46,952$              224,661$               271,613$           244,193$           

Estimated Annual Contribution3
563,424$           2,695,932$           3,259,356$        2,930,316$        

Employer Contributions1

 
1 The above employer contribution requirements are in addition to the employee contributions, if any. 
2 If employee contributions are increased/decreased by 1.00% of pay, the employer contribution requirement will decrease/increase by the Employee Contribution 

Conversion Factor.  The conversion factor is usually under 1%, because employee contributions may be refunded at termination of employment, and not used to fund 

retirement pensions. Employer contributions will all be used to fund pensions. 
3 For divisions that are open to new hires, estimated contributions are based on projected fiscal year payroll. Actual contributions will be based on actual reported 

monthly pays, and will be different from the above amounts.  For divisions that will have no new hires (i.e., closed divisions), invoices will be based on the above dollar 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -14- 

 

amounts which are based on projected fiscal year payroll.  See description of Open Divisions and Closed Divisions in the Appendix. 
4 Note that if the overfunding credit is larger than the normal cost, the full credit is shown above but the total contribution requirement is zero. This will cause the 

displayed normal cost and unfunded accrued liability contributions to not add across. 
5 For linked divisions, the employer will be invoiced the Computed Employer Contribution No Phase-in rate shown above for each linked division (a contribution rate for 

the open division; a contribution dollar for the closed-but-linked division), unless the employer elects to contribute the Blended Employer Contribution rate shown 

above, by contacting MERS at 800-767-MERS (6377). 
6 For divisions with a negative employer normal cost, employee contributions cover the normal cost and a portion of the payment of any unfunded accrued liability. 

 
Please see the Comments on Asset Smoothing in the Executive Summary of this report.  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -15- 

 

Table 2: Benefit Provisions 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 2.25% Multiplier (80% max) 2.25% Multiplier (80% max)

Normal Retirement Age: 60 60

Vesting: 6 years 6 years

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/20 55/20

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25

55/15 55/15

Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years

Employee Contributions: 5.00% 5.00%

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001)

01 - DPW: Closed to new hires, linked to Division 13

 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 2.75% Multiplier (80% max) 2.75% Multiplier (80% max)

Normal Retirement Age: 60 60

Vesting: 10 years 10 years

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 50/25 50/25

Early Retirement (Reduced): 55/15 55/15

Final Average Compensation: 3 years 3 years

COLA for Future Retirees: 2.50% (Non-Compound) 2.50% (Non-Compound)

Employee Contributions: 8.29% 8.29%

D-2: D2 (25%) D2 (25%)

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001)

02 - Police Patrol: Closed to new hires, linked to Division 21

 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: Bridged Benefit: 2.75% Multiplier (80% 

max)-Termination FAC; 2.50% Multiplier 

(80% max)

Bridged Benefit: 2.75% Multiplier (80% 

max) Termination FAC; 2.50% Multiplier 

(80% max)

Bridged Benefit Date: 12/31/2016 12/31/2016

Normal Retirement Age: 60 60

Vesting: 10 years 10 years

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 50/25 50/25

Early Retirement (Reduced): 55/15 55/15

Final Average Compensation: 3 years 3 years

COLA for Future Retirees: 2.50% (Non-Compound) 2.50% (Non-Compound)

Employee Contributions: 7.76% 7.76%

D-2: D2 (25%) D2 (25%)

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001)

05 - Firefighters: Closed to new hires, linked to Division 50

 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -16- 

 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: Bridged Benefit: 2.50% Multiplier (80% 

max)-Termination FAC; 2.25% Multiplier 

(80% max)

Bridged Benefit: 2.50% Multiplier (80% 

max) Termination FAC; 2.25% Multiplier 

(80% max)

Bridged Benefit Date: 12/31/2016 12/31/2016

Normal Retirement Age: 60 60

Vesting: 10 years 10 years

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/25 55/25

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25

55/15 55/15

Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years

Employee Contributions: 5.00% 5.00%

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001)

10 - Admin Professional: Closed to new hires, linked to Division 12

 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 2.00% Multiplier (no max) 2.00% Multiplier (no max)

Normal Retirement Age: 60 60

Vesting: 6 years 6 years

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/20 55/20

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25

55/15 55/15

Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years

Employee Contributions: 5.00% 5.00%

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001)

11 - Teamsters: Open Division

 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 1.50% Multiplier (no max) 1.50% Multiplier (no max)

Normal Retirement Age: 60 60

Vesting: 10 years 10 years

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/25 55/25

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25

55/15 55/15

Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years

Employee Contributions: 5.00% 5.00%

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001)

12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17: Open Division, linked to Division 10

 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -17- 

 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 1.50% Multiplier (80% max) 1.50% Multiplier (80% max)

Normal Retirement Age: 60 60

Vesting: 6 years 6 years

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/20 55/20

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25

55/15 55/15

Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years

Employee Contributions: 5.00% 5.00%

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001)

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17: Open Division, linked to Division 01

 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 2.75% Multiplier (80% max) 2.75% Multiplier (80% max)

Normal Retirement Age: 60 60

Vesting: 10 years 10 years

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 50/25 50/25

Early Retirement (Reduced): 55/15 55/15

Final Average Compensation: 3 years 3 years

COLA for Future Retirees: 2.50% (Non-Compound) 2.50% (Non-Compound)

Employee Contributions: 11.24% 11.24%

D-2: D2 (25%) D2 (25%)

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001)

20 - Police Command: Closed to new hires, linked to Division 21

 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 1.75% Multiplier (no max) -

Normal Retirement Age: 60 -

Vesting: 10 years -

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/25 -

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 -

55/15 -

Final Average Compensation: 3 years -

Employee Contributions: 8.29% -

D-2: D2 (25%) -

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) -

21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20: Open Division, linked to Division 02, 20

 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -18- 

 

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 1.75% Multiplier (no max) 1.75% Multiplier (no max)

Normal Retirement Age: 60 60

Vesting: 10 years 10 years

Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/25 55/25

Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25

55/15 55/15

Final Average Compensation: 3 years 3 years

Employee Contributions: 7.76% 7.76%

D-2: D2 (25%) D2 (25%)

Act 88: Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001) Yes (Adopted 7/10/2001)

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17: Open Division, linked to Division 05

 

  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -19- 

 

Table 3: Participant Summary 

Average Average

Annual Annual Average Benefit Eligibility

Division Number Payroll1
Number Payroll1

Age Service2 Service2

01 - DPW

  Active Employees 14 741,003$          15 717,406$          45.3 10.3 10.7

  Vested Former Employees 4 52,056 3 41,447 40.8 10.5 10.5

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 23 409,247 23 409,247 68.5

  Pending Refunds 5 6

02 - Police Patrol

  Active Employees 23 1,487,021$      29 1,692,903$      33.2 7.2 8.3

  Vested Former Employees 12 224,457 11 181,673 47.8 10.6 15.1

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 17 745,718 15 641,441 59.1

  Pending Refunds 18 15

05 - Firefighters

  Active Employees 26 1,972,595$      30 2,128,554$      44.1 15.4 15.7

  Vested Former Employees 7 242,823 4 112,095 49.7 17.8 18.3

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 31 1,588,879 29 1,505,163 64.0

  Pending Refunds 5 5

10 - Admin Professional

  Active Employees 10 477,667$          13 556,959$          53.0 17.5 17.5

  Vested Former Employees 11 100,503 11 94,287 52.2 10.4 17.8

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 13 266,344 12 251,853 71.1

  Pending Refunds 12 11

11 - Teamsters

  Active Employees 0 0$                       0 0$                       0.0 0.0 0.0

  Vested Former Employees 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 6 163,830 6 161,932 71.8

  Pending Refunds 0 0

12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17

  Active Employees 5 223,836$          4 141,313$          48.2 1.0 3.5

  Vested Former Employees 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 1 1,682 1 1,682 67.2

  Pending Refunds 6 3

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17

  Active Employees 8 362,277$          7 247,142$          39.6 2.1 2.1

  Vested Former Employees 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 0 0 0 0 0.0

  Pending Refunds 2 2

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation 2020 Valuation

 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -20- 

 

Table 3 (continued)

Average Average

Annual Annual Average Benefit Eligibility

Division Number Payroll1
Number Payroll1

Age Service2 Service2

20 - Police Command

  Active Employees 10 867,021$          10 811,353$          44.4 18.7 18.9

  Vested Former Employees 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 15 803,880 15 788,114 61.1

  Pending Refunds 0 0

21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20

  Active Employees 3 102,595$          0 0$                       24.6 0.2 0.2

  Vested Former Employees 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 0 0 0 0 0.0

  Pending Refunds 0 0

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17

  Active Employees 6 291,070$          4 149,751$          34.0 1.4 6.0

  Vested Former Employees 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 0 0 0 0 0.0

  Pending Refunds 2 1

Total Municipality

  Active Employees 105 6,525,085$      112 6,445,381$      41.5 10.5 11.3

  Vested Former Employees 34 619,839 29 429,501 48.8 12.0 16.1

  Retirees and Beneficiaries 106 3,979,580 101 3,759,433 65.1

  Pending Refunds 50 43

Total Participants 295 285

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation 2020 Valuation

 

1 Annual payroll for active employees; annual deferred benefits payable for vested former employees; annual benefits 
being paid for retirees and beneficiaries. 

2 Descriptions can be found under Miscellaneous and Technical Assumptions in the Appendix.  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -21- 

 

Table 4: Reported Assets (Market Value) 
 

 

Employer and Employer and

Division Retiree1 Employee2 Retiree1 Employee2

01 - DPW 4,398,606$            275,930$                4,157,930$            241,565$                

02 - Police Patrol 10,471,052 1,467,558 9,255,268 1,444,120

05 - Firefighters 13,531,278 2,480,722 11,845,173 2,427,674

10 - Admin Professional 3,503,873 358,812 3,200,170 357,568

11 - Teamsters 1,306,330 0 1,310,331 0

12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17 42,653 17,575 29,343 8,216

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17 31,094 36,360 13,714 20,782

20 - Police Command 7,441,435 1,221,512 6,712,793 1,122,936

21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20 507 2,101 0 0

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17 13,449 31,952 4,494 15,231

S1 - Surplus Assoc Fire 2,831,150 0 1,618,455 0

S2 - Surplus Assoc Police 2,831,150 0 1,618,455 0

Municipality Total3
46,402,577$          5,892,521$            39,766,124$          5,638,093$            

Combined Assets3

2020 Valuation 2019 Valuation

$52,295,098 $45,404,217
 

1 Reserve for Employer Contributions and Benefit Payments. 
2 Reserve for Employee Contributions. 
3 Totals may not add due to rounding. 

 

The December 31, 2020 valuation assets (actuarial value of assets) are equal to 0.972357 times the reported 
market value of assets (compared to 1.013179 as of December 31, 2019). Refer to the Appendix for a 
description of the valuation asset derivation and a detailed calculation of valuation assets. 
 
Assets in the Surplus division(s) are employer assets that have been reserved separately and may be used 
within the plan at the employer's discretion at some point in the future.  These assets are not used in 
calculating the employer contribution for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2022. 
 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -22- 

 

Table 5: Flow of Valuation Assets 

Investment

Year Income Employee Valuation

Ended Employee (Valuation Benefit Contribution Net Asset

12/31 Required Additional Contributions Assets) Payments Refunds Transfers Balance

2010 1,587,121$         463,721$                1,569,522$         (1,730,326)$          (27,856)$          0$                         27,192,819$              

2011 1,443,888 0$                        447,636 1,497,200 (1,930,596) (15,477) 0 28,635,470

2012 1,502,982 0 440,059 1,394,558 (2,073,753) 0 0 29,899,316

2013 1,727,389 0 446,814 1,873,685 (2,184,485) (7,344) 0 31,755,375

2014 1,863,475 0 445,419 1,878,815 (2,457,430) (3,012) 106,873 33,589,515

2015 2,065,675 0 434,297 1,678,089 (2,837,027) 0 0 34,930,549

2016 1,835,443 999,999 442,227 2,065,803 (3,002,485) (62,383) 12,712 37,221,865

2017 2,318,478 1,141,890 473,016 2,351,814 (3,092,898) 0 46,837 40,461,002

2018 2,302,708 1,500,041 500,743 1,572,989 (3,319,579) (7,832) 0 43,010,072

2019 2,264,527 1,590,180 503,378 2,210,081 (3,573,024) (2,615) 0 46,002,599

2020 2,472,037 1,704,767 507,807 4,027,028 (3,852,948) (11,786) 0 50,849,504

Employer Contributions

 
 
Notes: 

Transfers in and out are usually related to the transfer of participants between municipalities, and to employer and employee payments for service credit purchases (if 
any) that the governing body has approved. 
 

Additional employer contributions, if any, are shown separately starting in 2011. Prior to 2011, additional contributions are combined with the required employer 
contributions. 
 

The investment income column reflects the recognized investment income based on Valuation Assets. It does not reflect the market value investment return in any 
given year. 
 

The Valuation Asset balance includes assets from Surplus divisions, if any. 
 

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values. 
  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -23- 

 

Table 6: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities and Valuation Assets 
as of December 31, 2020 

Unfunded

Vested (Overfunded)

Active Former Retirees and Pending Percent Accrued

Division Employees Employees Beneficiaries Refunds Total Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

01 - DPW 1,494,052$           153,663$                 4,419,519$         5,905$                     6,073,139$            4,545,318$            74.8% 1,527,821$            

02 - Police Patrol 3,497,624 1,333,323 11,040,362 122,265 15,993,574 11,608,591 72.6% 4,384,983

05 - Firefighters 10,209,350 2,327,023 21,028,758 50,703 33,615,834 15,569,380 46.3% 18,046,454

10 - Admin Professional 1,682,901 701,164 2,534,864 36,314 4,955,243 3,755,909 75.8% 1,199,334

11 - Teamsters 0 0 1,550,922 0 1,550,922 1,270,219 81.9% 280,703

12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17 24,625 0 20,008 7,247 51,880 58,563 112.9% (6,683)

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17 73,406 0 0 1,524 74,930 65,589 87.5% 9,341

20 - Police Command 5,600,167 0 11,137,002 0 16,737,169 8,423,476 50.3% 8,313,693

21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20 2,727 0 0 0 2,727 2,537 93.0% 190

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17 44,904 0 0 3,552 48,456 44,146 91.1% 4,310

S1 - Surplus Assoc Fire 0 0 0 0 0 2,752,888 (2,752,888)
S2 - Surplus Assoc Police 0 0 0 0 0 2,752,888 (2,752,888)

Total 22,629,756$         4,515,173$             51,731,435$       227,510$                79,103,874$          50,849,504$          64.3% 28,254,370$          

Actuarial Accrued Liability

 
 

 

  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -24- 

 

The following results show the combined accrued liabilities and assets for each set of linked divisions. These results are already shown in the table on the prior page(s).

Table 6 (continued)
Unfunded

Vested (Overfunded)

Active Former Retirees and Pending Percent Accrued

Division Employees Employees Beneficiaries Refunds Total Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

Linked Divisions 12, 10 1,707,526$           701,164$                 2,554,872$            43,561$                  5,007,123$            3,814,472$            76.2% 1,192,651$            

Linked Divisions 13, 01 1,567,458 153,663 4,419,519 7,429 6,148,069 4,610,907 75.0% 1,537,162

Linked Divisions 21, 02, 20 9,100,518 1,333,323 22,177,364 122,265 32,733,470 20,034,604 61.2% 12,698,866

Linked Divisions 50, 05 10,254,254 2,327,023 21,028,758 54,255 33,664,290 15,613,526 46.4% 18,050,764

Actuarial Accrued Liability

 
Please see the Comments on Asset Smoothing in the Executive Summary of this report. 
 

The December 31, 2020 valuation assets (actuarial value of assets) are equal to 0.972357 times the reported market value of assets. Refer to the Appendix 
for a description of the valuation asset derivation and a detailed calculation of valuation assets. 
  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -25- 

 

 
 

 

 

Table 7: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule 

Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2006 35,846,996$                 18,966,620$              53% 16,880,376$              

2007 38,924,237 21,360,928 55% 17,563,309

2008 42,180,888 23,244,719 55% 18,936,169

2009 43,641,255 25,330,637 58% 18,310,618

2010 45,576,292 27,192,819 60% 18,383,473

2011 48,645,859 28,635,470 59% 20,010,389

2012 50,274,592 29,899,316 60% 20,375,276

2013 53,345,909 31,755,375 60% 21,590,534

2014 56,783,968 33,589,515 59% 23,194,453

2015 61,743,003 34,930,549 57% 26,812,454

2016 64,160,503 37,221,865 58% 26,938,638

2017 65,850,156 40,461,002 61% 25,389,154

2018 68,549,666 43,010,072 63% 25,539,594

2019 74,014,966 46,002,599 62% 28,012,367

2020 79,103,874 50,849,504 64% 28,254,370  
Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial 
valuations. 
 

The Valuation Assets include assets from Surplus divisions, if any. 
  

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values. 

 
Throughout this report are references to valuation results generated prior to the 2018 valuation date.  
Results prior to 2018 were received directly from the prior actuary or extracted from the previous 
valuation system by MERS’s technology service provider. 
  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -26- 

 

Tables 8 and 9: Division-Based Comparative Schedules 

Division 01 - DPW

Table 8-01:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 4,005,919$             3,442,780$           86% 563,139$              

2011 4,234,114 3,605,216 85% 628,898

2012 4,028,810 3,732,886 93% 295,924

2013 4,289,392 3,964,718 92% 324,674

2014 4,594,329 4,144,956 90% 449,373

2015 5,065,997 4,235,234 84% 830,763

2016 5,135,243 4,351,046 85% 784,197

2017 5,244,386 4,462,325 85% 782,061

2018 5,384,787 4,459,467 83% 925,320

2019 5,810,793 4,457,476 77% 1,353,317

2020 6,073,139 4,545,318 75% 1,527,821

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-01:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 21                           950,103$              11.70%     2.30%

2011 19                           881,149                12.86%     2.30%

2012 19                           856,300                10.97%     2.30%

2013 20                           946,020                11.06%     2.30%

2014 20                           929,958                12.08%     2.30%

2015 20                           901,017                15.07%     2.30%

2016 19                           833,791                15.08%     2.30%

2017 18                           851,342                $ 9,180     5.00%

2018 18                           840,383                $ 10,172     5.00%

2019 15                           717,406                $ 13,093     5.00%

2020 14                           741,003                $ 14,140     5.00%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -27- 

 

Division 02 - Police Patrol

Table 8-02:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 8,103,472$             6,513,330$           80% 1,590,142$           

2011 9,045,395 7,155,998 79% 1,889,397

2012 9,936,249 7,733,715 78% 2,202,534

2013 10,905,480 8,360,322 77% 2,545,158

2014 11,449,292 8,871,931 78% 2,577,361

2015 12,319,976 9,279,287 75% 3,040,689

2016 12,838,642 10,013,827 78% 2,824,815

2017 13,859,271 10,769,157 78% 3,090,114

2018 14,165,177 10,641,630 75% 3,523,547

2019 14,919,602 10,840,396 73% 4,079,206

2020 15,993,574 11,608,591 73% 4,384,983

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-02:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 29                           1,806,921$           14.01%     8.29%

2011 28                           1,754,080             16.25%     8.29%

2012 27                           1,723,624             17.93%     8.29%

2013 28                           1,773,779             19.10%     8.29%

2014 25                           1,587,254             20.72%     8.29%

2015 27                           1,649,619             22.66%     8.29%

2016 27                           1,699,331             21.59%     8.29%

2017 28                           1,777,631             22.53%     8.29%

2018 29                           1,734,688             25.07%     8.29%

2019 29                           1,692,903             28.95%     8.29%

2020 23                           1,487,021             $ 44,380     8.29%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -28- 

 

Division 05 - Firefighters

Table 8-05:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 20,287,429$           9,632,575$           47% 10,654,854$         

2011 21,458,833 9,979,003 47% 11,479,830

2012 21,924,381 10,296,036 47% 11,628,345

2013 23,137,298 10,871,647 47% 12,265,651

2014 24,841,557 11,507,153 46% 13,334,404

2015 26,584,583 11,924,919 45% 14,659,664

2016 27,867,803 12,930,519 46% 14,937,284

2017 28,177,223 13,516,293 48% 14,660,930

2018 28,979,635 13,874,155 48% 15,105,480

2019 31,435,292 14,460,949 46% 16,974,343

2020 33,615,834 15,569,380 46% 18,046,454

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-05:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 33                           2,183,250$           35.34%     7.76%

2011 32                           2,115,390             39.70%     7.76%

2012 32                           2,070,575             43.48%     7.76%

2013 32                           2,123,299             44.85%     7.76%

2014 32                           2,061,494             49.38%     7.76%

2015 32                           2,037,634             55.69%     7.76%

2016 32                           2,086,805             56.20%     7.76%

2017 32                           2,033,490             $ 101,798     7.76%

2018 31                           2,019,738             $ 107,672     7.76%

2019 30                           2,128,554             $ 125,690     7.76%

2020 26                           1,972,595             $ 136,133     7.76%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -29- 

 

Division 10 - Admin Professional

Table 8-10:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 3,277,716$             2,449,430$           75% 828,286$              

2011 3,520,950 2,556,521 73% 964,429

2012 3,642,837 2,618,706 72% 1,024,131

2013 3,803,228 2,748,191 72% 1,055,037

2014 3,943,903 2,895,820 73% 1,048,083

2015 4,328,690 3,022,706 70% 1,305,984

2016 4,429,119 3,185,399 72% 1,243,720

2017 4,353,843 3,534,108 81% 819,735

2018 4,447,557 3,564,955 80% 882,602

2019 4,655,786 3,604,626 77% 1,051,160

2020 4,955,243 3,755,909 76% 1,199,334

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-10:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 18                           723,841$              14.20%     3.90%

2011 18                           704,419                15.99%     3.90%

2012 18                           696,170                17.13%     3.90%

2013 19                           770,061                16.56%     3.90%

2014 17                           699,196                17.51%     3.90%

2015 19                           756,724                19.68%     3.90%

2016 19                           783,370                18.67%     3.90%

2017 17                           673,625                $ 7,925     5.00%

2018 15                           617,920                $ 8,416     5.00%

2019 13                           556,959                $ 9,370     5.00%

2020 10                           477,667                $ 9,893     5.00%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -30- 

 

Division 11 - Teamsters

Table 8-11:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 1,597,765$             462,443$              29% 1,135,322$           

2011 1,580,710 451,619 29% 1,129,091

2012 1,584,636 439,610 28% 1,145,026

2013 1,593,999 436,926 27% 1,157,073

2014 1,605,233 442,491 28% 1,162,742

2015 1,737,395 355,421 21% 1,381,974

2016 1,724,994 270,628 16% 1,454,366

2017 1,549,888 1,381,962 89% 167,926

2018 1,488,750 1,396,438 94% 92,312

2019 1,553,728 1,327,599 85% 226,129

2020 1,550,922 1,270,219 82% 280,703

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-11:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 2                             129,971$              53.28%     2.00%

2011 2                             131,835                53.91%     2.00%

2012 2                             132,347                58.92%     2.00%

2013 2                             135,314                58.76%     2.00%

2014 2                             136,484                58.89%     2.00%

2015 1                             66,496                  352.21%     2.00%

2016 1                             74,010                  121.95%     2.00%

2017 1                             78,313                  13.62%     5.00%

2018 1                             81,544                  14.04%     5.00%

2019 0                             0                           $ 1,516     5.00%

2020 0                             0                           $ 1,882     5.00%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -31- 

 

Division 12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17

Table 8-12:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 0$                           0$                         0% 0$                         

2011 0 0 0% 0

2012 0 0 0% 0

2013 0 0 0% 0

2014 0 0 0% 0

2015 0 0 0% 0

2016 0 0 0% 0

2017 222 3,915 1764% (3,693)

2018 12,734 18,490 145% (5,756)

2019 31,654 38,054 120% (6,400)

2020 51,880 58,563 113% (6,683)

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-12:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 0                             0$                         $ 0     0.00%

2011 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2012 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2013 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2014 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2015 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2016 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2017 2                             77,819                  5.59%     5.00%

2018 4                             147,733                4.15%     5.00%

2019 4                             141,313                2.43%     5.00%

2020 5                             223,836                3.88%     5.00%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -32- 

 

Division 13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17

Table 8-13:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 0$                           0$                         0% 0$                         

2011 0 0 0% 0

2012 0 0 0% 0

2013 0 0 0% 0

2014 0 0 0% 0

2015 0 0 0% 0

2016 0 0 0% 0

2017 5,967 5,217 87% 750

2018 20,539 17,555 85% 2,984

2019 40,155 34,950 87% 5,205

2020 74,930 65,589 88% 9,341

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-13:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 0                             0$                         $ 0     0.00%

2011 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2012 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2013 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2014 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2015 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2016 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2017 3                             83,530                  2.87%     5.00%

2018 4                             152,299                2.97%     5.00%

2019 7                             247,142                3.19%     5.00%

2020 8                             362,277                3.50%     5.00%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -33- 

 

Division 20 - Police Command

Table 8-20:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 8,303,991$             4,692,261$           57% 3,611,730$           

2011 8,805,857 4,887,113 56% 3,918,744

2012 9,157,679 5,078,363 56% 4,079,316

2013 9,616,512 5,373,571 56% 4,242,941

2014 10,349,654 5,727,164 55% 4,622,490

2015 11,706,362 6,112,982 52% 5,593,380

2016 12,164,702 6,470,446 53% 5,694,256

2017 12,659,356 6,788,025 54% 5,871,331

2018 14,043,572 7,460,719 53% 6,582,853

2019 15,548,130 7,938,996 51% 7,609,134

2020 16,737,169 8,423,476 50% 8,313,693

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-20:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 9                             675,028$              35.90%     11.24%

2011 9                             681,394                39.51%     11.24%

2012 9                             687,414                43.46%     11.24%

2013 9                             695,724                45.30%     11.24%

2014 9                             685,804                49.49%     11.24%

2015 9                             710,674                58.51%     11.24%

2016 9                             720,662                59.49%     11.24%

2017 9                             748,325                60.62%     11.24%

2018 10                           822,149                63.21%     11.24%

2019 10                           811,353                77.29%     11.24%

2020 10                           867,021                $ 61,220     11.24%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -34- 

 

Division 21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20

Table 8-21:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 0$                           0$                         0% 0$                         

2011 0 0 0% 0

2012 0 0 0% 0

2013 0 0 0% 0

2014 0 0 0% 0

2015 0 0 0% 0

2016 0 0 0% 0

2017 0 0 0% 0

2018 0 0 0% 0

2019 0 0 0% 0

2020 2,727 2,537 93% 190

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-21:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 0                             0$                         $ 0     0.00%

2011 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2012 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2013 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2014 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2015 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2016 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2017 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2018 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2019 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2020 3                             102,595                1.35%     8.29%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -35- 

 

Division 50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17

Table 8-50:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 0$                           0$                         0% 0$                         

2011 0 0 0% 0

2012 0 0 0% 0

2013 0 0 0% 0

2014 0 0 0% 0

2015 0 0 0% 0

2016 0 0 0% 0

2017 0 0 0% 0

2018 6,915 7,943 115% (1,028)

2019 19,826 19,985 101% (159)

2020 48,456 44,146 91% 4,310

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-50:  Computed Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Computed Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution
1

Rate
2

2010 0                             0$                         $ 0     0.00%

2011 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2012 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2013 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2014 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2015 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2016 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2017 0                             0                           $ 0     0.00%

2018 2                             57,481                  1.63%     7.76%

2019 4                             149,751                2.18%     7.76%

2020 6                             291,070                3.24%     7.76%

  1  For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown.  For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

  2  For each valuation year, the computed employer contribution is based on the employee rate.  If the employee rate

      changes during the applicable fiscal year, the computed employer contribution will  be adjusted.

Note:  The contributions shown in Table 9 for the 12/31/2015 through 12/31/2020 valuations do not reflect the phase-in

of the change in contribution requirements associated with the new actuarial assumptions.  The full  contribution without

phase-in is shown in Table 9 above.

See the Benefit Provision History, later in this report, for past benefit provision changes.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.

Active Employees



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -36- 

 

Division S1 - Surplus Assoc Fire

Table 8-S1:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 0$                           0$                         0$                         

2011 0 0 0

2012 0 0 0

2013 0 0 0

2014 0 0 0

2015 0 0 0

2016 0 0 0

2017 0 0 0

2018 0 784,360 (784,360)

2019 0 1,639,784 (1,639,784)

2020 0 2,752,888 (2,752,888)

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.
 

  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -37- 

 

Division S2 - Surplus Assoc Police

Table 8-S2:  Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule
Unfunded

(Overfunded)

Valuation Date Actuarial Percent Accrued

December 31 Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Funded Liabilities

2010 0$                           0$                         0$                         

2011 0 0 0

2012 0 0 0

2013 0 0 0

2014 0 0 0

2015 0 0 0

2016 0 0 0

2017 0 0 0

2018 0 784,360 (784,360)

2019 0 1,639,784 (1,639,784)

2020 0 2,752,888 (2,752,888)

Notes:  Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2015, 2019 and 2020 actuarial valuations.

Years where historical information is not available will be displayed with zero values.  
  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -38- 

 

Table 10: Division-Based Layered Amortization Schedule 

Division 01 - DPW

Table 10-01:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance
1

Period
2

UAL Balance
3

Period
2

Payment

Initial 12/31/2015  $        830,763 23  $        880,282 18  $        70,368 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2016          (82,526) 22          (89,547) 18          (7,164)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2017          5,781 21          6,225 18          504 

Amendment 12/31/2017          (9,047) 21          (9,755) 18          (780)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2018          138,266 20          148,337 18          11,856 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2019          222,251 19          237,058 18          18,948 

Assumption 12/31/2019          192,311 19          200,634 18          16,044 

Experience 12/31/2020          145,727 18          156,438 18          12,504 

Total $         1,529,672 $         122,280
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 

 
  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -39- 

 

Division 02 - Police Patrol

Table 10-02:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance1 Period2 UAL Balance3 Period2
Payment

Initial 12/31/2015  $        3,040,689 23  $        3,153,351 18  $        252,096 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2016          (280,062) 22          (303,855) 18          (24,288)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2017          260,150 21          280,376 18          22,416 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2018          394,380 20          423,108 18          33,828 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2019          (70,906) 19          (75,632) 18          (6,048)

Assumption 12/31/2019          581,584 19          606,913 18          48,516 

Experience 12/31/2020          274,390 18          294,558 18          23,544 

Total $         4,378,819 $         350,064
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -40- 

 

Division 05 - Firefighters

Table 10-05:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance
1

Period
2

UAL Balance
3

Period
2

Payment

Initial 12/31/2015  $        14,659,664 23  $        15,175,926 18  $        1,213,212 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2016          (5,596) 22          (6,071) 18          (480)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2017          (236,519) 21          (254,888) 18          (20,376)

Amendment 12/31/2017          (168,365) 21          (181,444) 18          (14,508)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2018          375,305 20          402,660 18          32,196 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2019          654,589 19          698,190 18          55,812 

Assumption 12/31/2019          1,120,922 19          1,134,697 18          90,708 

Experience 12/31/2020          968,055 18          1,039,207 18          83,076 

Total $         18,008,277 $         1,439,640
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -41- 

 

Division 10 - Admin Professional

Table 10-10:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance
1

Period
2

UAL Balance
3

Period
2

Payment

Initial 12/31/2015  $        1,305,984 23  $        1,357,021 18  $        108,480 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2016          (92,486) 22          (100,335) 18          (8,016)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2017          (403,688) 21          (435,060) 18          (34,776)

Amendment 12/31/2017          (24,631) 21          (26,552) 18          (2,124)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2018          87,723 20          94,109 18          7,524 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2019          16,887 19          18,005 18          1,440 

Assumption 12/31/2019          141,332 19          147,260 18          11,772 

Experience 12/31/2020          138,093 18          148,243 18          11,856 

Total $         1,202,691 $         96,156
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -42- 

 

Division 11 - Teamsters

Table 10-11:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance
1

Period
2

UAL Balance
3

Period
2

Payment

Initial 12/31/2015  $        1,381,974 23  $        1,319,238 18  $        105,468 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2016          982 22          1,061 18          84 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2017          (1,143,013) 21          (1,231,851) 18          (98,484)

Amendment 12/31/2017          (907) 21          (976) 18          (84)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2018          4,855 20          5,200 18          420 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2019          89,079 19          95,007 18          7,596 

Assumption 12/31/2019          44,293 19          46,533 18          3,720 

Experience 12/31/2020          44,969 18          48,274 18          3,864 

Total $         282,486 $         22,584
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -43- 

 

Division 12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17

Table 10-12:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance1 Period2 UAL Balance3 Period2
Payment

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2017  $        (3,693) 15  $        (3,715) 12  $        (396)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2018          (1,776) 15          (1,840) 13          (192)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2019          (1,355) 15          (1,425) 14          (132)

Assumption 12/31/2019          778 15          839 14          84 

Experience 12/31/2020          (372) 15          (399) 15          (36)

Total $         (6,540) $         (672)
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -44- 

 

Division 13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17

Table 10-13:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance1 Period2 UAL Balance3 Period2
Payment

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2017  $        750 15  $        753 12  $        84 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2018          2,176 15          2,261 13          228 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2019          1,609 15          1,692 14          168 

Assumption 12/31/2019          461 15          462 14          48 

Experience 12/31/2020          4,040 15          4,337 15          396 

Total $         9,505 $         924
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -45- 

 

Division 20 - Police Command

Table 10-20:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance1 Period2 UAL Balance3 Period2
Payment

Initial 12/31/2015  $        5,593,380 23  $        5,805,919 18  $        464,148 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2016          (22,439) 22          (24,349) 18          (1,944)

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2017          129,426 21          139,492 18          11,148 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2018          663,143 20          711,466 18          56,880 

(Gain)/Loss 12/31/2019          374,994 19          399,972 18          31,980 

Assumption 12/31/2019          574,489 19          585,730 18          46,824 

Experience 12/31/2020          646,378 18          693,887 18          55,476 

Total $         8,312,117 $         664,512
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -46- 

 

Division 21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20

Table 10-21:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance1 Period2 UAL Balance3 Period2
Payment

Experience 12/31/2020          190 15          204 15          24 

Total $         204 $         24
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -47- 

 

Division 50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17

Table 10-50:  Layered Amortization Schedule

Original Remaining Annual

Date Original Amortization Outstanding Amortization Amortization

Type of UAL Established Balance1 Period2 UAL Balance3 Period2
Payment

Experience 12/31/2020          4,310 15          4,627 15          420 

Total $         4,627 $         420
1 For each type of UAL (layer), this is the original balance as of the date the layer was established. 

3 This is the remaining balance as of the valuation date, projected to the beginning of the fiscal year shown above.

The unfunded accrued liability (UAL) as of December 31, 2020 (see Table 6) is projected to the beginning of the fiscal 

appropriate period. Please see the Appendix on the MERS website for a detailed description of the amortization policy.

Note: The original balance and original amortization periods prior to 12/31/2018 were received from the prior actuary.

Amounts for Fiscal Year Beginning 1/1/2022

2 According to the MERS amortization policy, each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over a specific period (see Appendix on MERS website).

year for which the contributions are being calculated. This allows the 2020 valuation to take into account the 

expected future contributions that are based on past valuations. Each type of UAL (layer) is amortized over the 

  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -48- 

 

GASB Statement No. 68 Information 

The following information has been prepared to provide some of the information necessary to complete GASB 
Statement No. 68 disclosures. GASB Statement No. 68 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.  
Additional resources, including an Implementation Guide, are available at http://www.mersofmich.com/. 
 

Actuarial Valuation Date: 12/31/2020

Measurement Date of the Total Pension Liability (TPL): 12/31/2020

At 12/31/2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 106

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits (including refunds): 84

Active employees: 105

295

Total Pension Liability as of 12/31/2019 measurement date: 71,804,504$      

Total Pension Liability as of 12/31/2020 measurement date: 76,714,010$      

Service Cost for the year ending on the 12/31/2020 measurement date: 983,064$           

Change in the Total Pension Liability due to:

- Benefit changes1: 0$                      

- Differences between expected and actual experience2: 83,960$             

- Changes in assumptions
2
: 2,359,578$        

Average expected remaining service lives of all employees (active and inactive): 4

1 A change in l iabi l i ty due to benefi t changes  i s  immediately recognized when ca lculating pens ion expense for the year.
2
 Changes  in l iabi l i ty due to di fferences  between actual  and expected experience, and changes  in assumptions , are 

   recognized in pens ion expense over the average remaining service l ives  of a l l  employees .

Covered employee payroll (Needed for Required Supplementary Information): 6,525,085$        

Note:  Covered employee payroll may differ from the GASB Statement No. 68 definition.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase

(6.60%) Rate (7.60%) (8.60%)

Change in Net Pension Liability as of 12/31/2020: 9,885,231$        0$                      (8,144,056)$       

Note: The current discount rate shown for GASB Statement No. 68 purposes is higher than the MERS assumed rate of return.

This is because for GASB Statement No. 68 purposes, the discount rate must be gross of administrative expenses, whereas

for funding purposes it is net of administrative expenses.  
 

  
 

  

http://www.mersofmich.com/


 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -49- 

 

This page is for those municipalities who need to “roll-forward” their total pension liability due to the

timing of completion of the actuarial valuation in relation to their fiscal year-end.

The following information has been prepared to provide some of the information necessary to complete GASB

Statement No. 68 disclosures. GASB Statement No. 68 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.

Additional resources, including an Implementation Guide, are available at www.mersofmich.com.

Actuarial Valuation Date: 12/31/2020

Measurement Date of the Total Pension Liability (TPL): 12/31/2021

At 12/31/2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 106

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits (including refunds): 84

Active employees: 105

295

Total Pension Liability as of 12/31/2020 measurement date: 74,143,871$          

Total Pension Liability as of 12/31/2021 measurement date: 79,066,731$          

Service Cost for the year ending on the 12/31/2021 measurement date: 1,010,530$            

Change in the Total Pension Liability due to:

- Benefit changes
1
: 0$                          

- Differences between expected and actual experience2: 226,564$               

- Changes in assumptions2: 2,562,224$            

Average expected remaining service lives of all employees (active and inactive): 4

1 
A change in l iabi l i ty due to benefi t changes  i s  immediately recognized when ca lculating pens ion expense for the year.

2 Changes  in l iabi l i ty due to di fferences  between actual  and expected experience, and changes  in assumptions , are 

   recognized in pens ion expense over the average remaining service l ives  of a l l  employees .

Covered employee payroll (Needed for Required Supplementary Information): 6,525,085$            

Note:  Covered employee payroll may differ from the GASB Statement No. 68 definition.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase

(6.60%) Rate (7.60%) (8.60%)

Change in Net Pension Liability as of 12/31/2021: 10,079,377$      0$                      (8,311,639)$           

Note: The current discount rate shown for GASB Statement No. 68 purposes is higher than the MERS assumed rate of return.

This is because for GASB Statement No. 68 purposes, the discount rate must be gross of administrative expenses, whereas

for funding purposes it is net of administrative expenses.

GASB Statement No. 68 Information

 
 

  
 

  
  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -50- 

 

Benefit Provision History 

The following benefit provision history is provided by MERS. Any corrections to this history or discrepancies 
between this information and information displayed elsewhere in the valuation report should be reported to 
MERS. All provisions are listed by date of adoption. 

 

01 - DPW
1/1/2017 Day of Work defined as 10 8 hour days
1/1/2017 Non Standard Compensation Definition
1/1/2017 Participant Contribution Rate 5%

12/1/2016 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes
7/1/2005 Benefit B-3 (80% max)
7/1/2005 Member Contribution Rate 2.30%

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88
7/1/1997 Benefit B-2
7/1/1997 Benefit F55 (With 20 Years of Service)
7/1/1995 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)

7/1/1995 6 Year Vesting

7/1/1995 Benefit C-1 (New)

7/1/1995 Member Contribution Rate 0.00%

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

02 - Police Patrol
1/1/2019 Day of work defined as 80 Hours a Month for All employees.

12/1/2016 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

1/1/2007 Member Contribution Rate 8.29%

12/1/2005 Benefit D2 Plan

12/1/2005 Benefit FAC-3 (3 Year Final Average Compensation)

12/1/2005 2.75% Multiplier (80% max)

12/1/2005 Member Contribution Rate 8.79%

1/1/2002 Member Contribution Rate 4.50%

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88

1/1/2000 Benefit B-4 (80% max)

1/1/2000 Member Contribution Rate 6.50%

1/1/2000 E2 2.5% COLA for future retirees (01/01/2000)

1/1/1999 Member Contribution Rate 2.50%

7/1/1996 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)

7/1/1996 10 Year Vesting

7/1/1996 Benefit B-3 (80% max)

7/1/1996 Benefit F50 (With 25 Years of Service)

7/1/1996 Member Contribution Rate 3.50%

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

05 - Firefighters
1/1/2017 Day of work defined as 100.8 hours in a month

 



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -51- 

 

05 - Firefighters
1/1/2017 Non Standard Compensation Definition

1/1/2017 Benefit B-4 (80% max)

12/31/2016 Current FAC

12/1/2016 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

1/1/2005 Member Contribution Rate 7.76%

1/1/2004 2.75% Multiplier (80% max)

1/1/2004 Member Contribution Rate 8.07%

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88

7/1/1999 Benefit D2 Plan

7/1/1999 Benefit FAC-3 (3 Year Final Average Compensation)

7/1/1999 10 Year Vesting

7/1/1999 Benefit B-4 (80% max)

7/1/1999 Benefit F50 (With 25 Years of Service)

7/1/1999 Member Contribution Rate 4.19%

7/1/1999 E2 2.5% COLA for future retirees (07/01/1999)

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

10 - Admin Professional
4/1/2017 Participant Contribution Rate 5%

1/1/2017 Day of Work defined as 10 8 hour days

1/1/2017 Non Standard Compensation Definition

1/1/2017 Benefit B-3 (80% max)

12/31/2016 Current FAC

12/1/2016 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

1/1/2007 Benefit B-4 (80% max)

1/1/2007 Member Contribution Rate 3.90%

1/1/2004 Benefit B-3 (80% max)

1/1/2004 Member Contribution Rate 1.50%

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88

7/1/2000 Benefit B-2

7/1/2000 Member Contribution Rate 0.60%

1/1/1998 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)

1/1/1998 10 Year Vesting

1/1/1998 Benefit C-1 (New)

1/1/1998 Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service)

1/1/1998 Member Contribution Rate 0.00%

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

11 - Teamsters
1/1/2018 Participant Contribution Rate 5%

12/1/2016 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

1/1/2004 6 Year Vesting

1/1/2002 Member Contribution Rate 2.00%

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88

7/1/2000 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -52- 

 

11 - Teamsters
7/1/2000 10 Year Vesting

7/1/2000 Benefit B-2

7/1/2000 Benefit F55 (With 20 Years of Service)

7/1/2000 Member Contribution Rate 0.00%

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

12 - Admin Prof on/aft 1/1/17
1/1/2017 Day of Work defined as 10 8 hour days

1/1/2017 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)

1/1/2017 Non Standard Compensation Definition

1/1/2017 10 Year Vesting

1/1/2017 Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

1/1/2017 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

1/1/2017 Benefit C-1 (New)

1/1/2017 Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service)

1/1/2017 Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

1/1/2017 Participant Contribution Rate 5%

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

13 - DPW on/aft 01/1/17
1/1/2017 Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

1/1/2017 Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

1/1/2017 Participant Contribution Rate 5%

1/1/2017 Day of Work defined as 10 8 hour days

1/1/2017 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)

1/1/2017 Non Standard Compensation Definition

1/1/2017 6 Year Vesting

1/1/2017 Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

1/1/2017 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

1/1/2017 1.5% multiplier (80% max)

1/1/2017 Benefit F55 (With 20 Years of Service)

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

20 - Police Command
1/1/2020 Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

1/1/2019 Day of work defined as 80 Hours a Month for All employees.

7/1/2018 Non Standard Compensation Definition

12/1/2016 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

8/1/2005 2.75% Multiplier (80% max)

8/1/2005 Member Contribution Rate 11.24%

1/1/2005 Member Contribution Rate 5.50%

1/1/2003 Member Contribution Rate 8.00%

1/1/2002 Member Contribution Rate 7.00%

1/1/2002 E2 2.5% COLA for future retirees (07/01/2001)

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -53- 

 

20 - Police Command
7/1/2001 Benefit D2 Plan

7/1/2001 Benefit B-4 (80% max)

7/1/2001 Benefit F50 (With 25 Years of Service)

7/1/2001 Member Contribution Rate 6.00%

1/1/2001 Member Contribution Rate 4.50%

1/1/1998 Benefit FAC-3 (3 Year Final Average Compensation)

1/1/1998 10 Year Vesting

1/1/1998 Benefit B-3 (80% max)

1/1/1998 Benefit F55 (With 15 Years of Service)

1/1/1998 Eligible at Age 52 (With 25 Years of Service)

1/1/1998 Member Contribution Rate 5.50%

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

21 - Command/Patrol on/aft 1/1/20
1/1/2020 Day of work defined as 80 Hours a Month for All employees.

1/1/2020 Benefit D2 Plan

1/1/2020 Benefit FAC-3 (3 Year Final Average Compensation)

1/1/2020 Non Standard Compensation Definition

1/1/2020 10 Year Vesting

1/1/2020 Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

1/1/2020 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

1/1/2020 1.75% multiplier

1/1/2020 Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

1/1/2020 Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service)

1/1/2020 Participant Contribution Rate 8.29%

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

50 - Fire on/aft 1/1/17
1/1/2017 Day of work defined as 100.8 hours in a month

1/1/2017 Benefit D2 Plan

1/1/2017 Benefit FAC-3 (3 Year Final Average Compensation)

1/1/2017 Non Standard Compensation Definition

1/1/2017 10 Year Vesting

1/1/2017 Defined Benefit Normal Retirement Age - 60

1/1/2017 Service Credit Purchase Estimates - Yes

1/1/2017 1.75% multiplier

1/1/2017 Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service)

1/1/2017 Early Reduced (.5%) at Age 50 with 25 Years or Age 55 with 15 Years

1/1/2017 Participant Contribution Rate 7.76%

7/10/2001 Covered by Act 88

7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

S1 - Surplus Assoc Fire
7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -54- 

 

S2 - Surplus Assoc Police
7/1/1995 Fiscal Month - January

  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -55- 

 

 

Plan Provisions, Actuarial Assumptions, and 
Actuarial Funding Method 

Details on MERS plan provisions, actuarial assumptions, and actuarial methodology can be found in the 
Appendix. Some actuarial assumptions are specific to this municipality and its divisions.  These are listed 
below. 

FAC Increase

Assumption

1.00%

Division

All Divisions

Increase in Final Average Compensation

 

Miscellaneous and Technical Assumptions 

Loads – None. 
 
Amortization Policy for Closed Not Linked Divisions:  The default funding policy for closed not linked divisions, 
including open divisions with zero active members, is to follow a non-accelerated amortization, where each 
closed period decreases by one-year each year until the period is exhausted.  In select instances, closed not 
linked division(s) may follow an accelerated amortization policy.   

 

 
 

 

  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -56- 

 

Risk Commentary 

Determination of the accrued liability, the employer contribution, and the funded ratio requires the use of 
assumptions regarding future economic and demographic experience.  Risk measures, as illustrated in this 
report, are intended to aid in the understanding of the effects of future experience differing from the 
assumptions used in the course of the actuarial valuation. Risk measures may also help with illustrating the 
potential volatility in the accrued liability, the actuarially determined contribution and the funded ratio that 
result from the differences between actual experience and the actuarial assumptions. 
 
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this 
report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or 
demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions due to changing conditions; 
increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these 
measurements (such as the end of an amortization period, or additional cost or contribution requirements 
based on the Plan’s funded status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law.  The scope of an actuarial 
valuation does not include an analysis of the potential range of such future measurements. 
 
Examples of risk that may reasonably be anticipated to significantly affect the plan’s future financial condition 
include: 

 

• Investment Risk – actual investment returns may differ from the expected returns; 

• Asset/Liability Mismatch – changes in asset values may not match changes in liabilities, thereby altering 
the gap between the accrued liability and assets and consequently altering the funded status and 
contribution requirements; 

• Salary and Payroll Risk – actual salaries and total payroll may differ from expected, resulting in actual 
future accrued liability and contributions differing from expected; 

• Longevity Risk – members may live longer or shorter than expected and receive pensions for a period of 
time other than assumed; and 

• Other Demographic Risks – members may terminate, retire or become disabled at times or with benefits 
other than assumed resulting in actual future accrued liability and contributions differing from expected.  

 
The effects of certain trends in experience can generally be anticipated.  For example, if the investment 
return since the most recent actuarial valuation is less (or more) than the assumed rate, the cost of the 
plan can be expected to increase (or decrease).  Likewise, if longevity is improving (or worsening), 
increases (or decreases) in cost can be anticipated. 

  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -57- 

 

 
PLAN MATURITY MEASURES 
 
Risks facing a pension plan evolve over time.  A young plan with virtually no investments and paying few 
benefits may experience little investment risk.  An older plan with a large number of members in pay status 
and a significant trust may be much more exposed to investment risk.  Generally accepted plan maturity 
measures include the following: 
 

12/31/2020 12/31/2019 12/31/2018

1. Ratio of the market value of assets to total payroll 8.0 7.0 6.1

2. Ratio of actuarial accrued liability to payroll 12.1 11.5 10.6

3. Ratio of actives to retirees and beneficiaries 1.0 1.1 1.2

4. Ratio of market value of assets to benefit payments 13.5 12.7 11.8

5. Ratio of net cash flow to market value of assets (boy) 1.8% 2.0% 2.4%
 

 
RATIO OF MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS TO TOTAL PAYROLL  
The relationship between assets and payroll is a useful indicator of the potential volatility of contributions.  
For example, if the market value of assets is 2.0 times the payroll, a return on assets 5% different than 
assumed would equal 10% of payroll.  A higher (lower) or increasing (decreasing) level of this maturity 
measure generally indicates a higher (lower) or increasing (decreasing) volatility in plan sponsor 
contributions as a percentage of payroll.  
 
RATIO OF ACTUARIAL ACCRUED LIABILITY TO PAYROLL  
The relationship between actuarial accrued liability and payroll is a useful indicator of the potential volatility 
of contributions for a fully funded plan.  A funding policy that targets a funded ratio of 100% is expected to 
result in the ratio of assets to payroll and the ratio of liability to payroll converging over time. 
 
RATIO OF ACTIVES TO RETIREES AND BENEFICIARIES  
A young plan with many active members and few retirees will have a high ratio of actives to retirees.  A 
mature open plan may have close to the same number of actives to retirees resulting in a ratio near 1.0.  A 
super-mature or closed plan may have significantly more retirees than actives resulting in a ratio below 1.0. 
 
RATIO OF MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS TO BENEFIT PAYMENTS  
The MERS’ Actuarial Policy requires a total minimum contribution equal to the excess (if any) of three times 
the expected annual benefit payments over the projected market value of assets as of the participating 
municipality or court’s Fiscal Year for which the contribution applies.  The ratio of market value of assets to 
benefit payments as of the valuation date provides an indication of whether the division is at risk for 
triggering the minimum contribution rule in the near term.  If the division triggers this minimum contribution 
rule, the required employer contributions could increase dramatically relative to previous valuations. 
  
RATIO OF NET CASH FLOW TO MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS  
A positive net cash flow means contributions exceed benefits and expenses. A negative cash flow means 
existing funds are being used to make payments.  A certain amount of negative net cash flow is generally 
expected to occur when benefits are prefunded through a qualified trust.  Large negative net cash flows as a 
percent of assets may indicate a super-mature plan or a need for additional contributions. 

  



 

 

Meridian Chtr Twp (3315) - 2020 -58- 

 

State Reporting 

The following information has been prepared to provide some of the information necessary to complete 
the Public Act 202 pension reporting requirements for the State of Michigan’s Local Government 
Retirement System Annual Report (Form No. 5572).  Additional resources are available at 
www.mersofmich.com and on the State website. 

Form 5572

 Line Reference Result

10

11 105 

12 34 

13 106 

14

15 13.59%

16 9.35%

17 7.91%

18

19 7.35%

20 Level Percent

21 18 

22  No 

23 Uniform Assumptions

24 Enter retirement pension system's actuarial value of assets using uniform assumptions $50,493,949 

25 Enter retirement pension system's actuarial accrued liabilities using uniform assumptions5 $82,521,741 

27 Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) using uniform assumptions, Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021 $3,589,584 

Indicate number of inactive members (excluding pending refunds)

Description

Membership as of December 31, 2020

Indicate number of active members

Actuarial assumed rate of investment return2

Amortization method utilized for funding the system's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, if any

Amortization period utilized for funding the system's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, if any 3

Is each division within the system closed to new employees?4

Indicate number of retirees and beneficiaries

Investment Performance for Calendar Year Ending December 31, 20201

Enter actual rate of return - prior 1-year period

Enter actual rate of return - prior 5-year period

Enter actual rate of return - prior 10-year period

Actuarial Assumptions

 
 

1. The Municipal Employees’ Retirement System’s investment performance has been provided to GRS from MERS Investment Staff and 
is included here for reporting purposes.  The investment performance figures reported are net of investment expenses on a rolling 
calendar-year basis for the previous 1-, 5-, and 10-year periods as required under PA 530. 

2. Net of administrative and investment expenses. 
3. Populated with the longest amortization period remaining in the amortization schedule, across all divisions in the plan.  This is when 

each division and the plan in total is expected to reach 100% funded if all assumptions are met. 
4. If all divisions within the employer are closed, “yes.”  If at least one division is open (including shadow divisions) indicate “no.” 
5. Line 25 actuarial accrued liability is determined under PA 202 uniform assumptions which differ from the valuation assumptions.  In 

particular, the assumed rate of return for PA 202 purposes is 7.00%. 

 
 

http://www.mersofmich.com/
https://www.michigan.gov/treasury/0,4679,7-121-1751_51556_84499---,00.html


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Charter Township of Meridian 
Employee Pension Plan 
GASB Statement No. 68 Employer Reporting 
Accounting Schedules                                                
December 31, 2020 

GRS 



 

 

 
 
March 19, 2021 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Charter Township of Meridian 
     Employee Pension Plan 
Okemos, Michigan 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
This report provides the accounting and financial reporting information that is intended to comply with the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 for the Charter Township of Meridian 
Employee Pension Plan. These calculations have been made on a basis that is consistent with our 
understanding of this accounting standard. An excerpt of a portion of the reporting requirements under Public 
Act 202 of 2017 is included on pages 18-19. 
 
This information is presented in draft form for review by the Township’s auditor. Please let us know if there 
are items that the auditor changes so that we may maintain consistency with the Township’s financial 
statements. 
 
Our calculation of the liability associated with the benefits described in this report was performed for the 
purpose of assisting in the reporting and disclosure information that satisfies certain requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 68. The calculation of the Township’s liability for this report may not be applicable for funding 
purposes of the Pension Plan. A calculation of the Township’s liability for purposes other than satisfying the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 68 may produce significantly different results. This report may be 
provided to parties other than the Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan and the Board of 
Trustees only in its entirety and only with the permission of the Township and the Board. GRS is not 
responsible for the unauthorized use of this report. 
 
This report is based upon information, furnished to us by the Township, concerning retirement and ancillary 
benefits, active members, deferred vested members, retirees and beneficiaries, and financial data. If your 
understanding of this information is different, please let us know. This information was checked for internal 
consistency but was not audited. GRS is not responsible for the accuracy or completeness of such information. 
 
This report includes a measure of the Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percent of Total Pension Liability as of 
December 31, 2020. Unless otherwise indicated, with regard to any such measurements in this report: 
 

• This measurement is not intended to be a funded ratio or a measure of funded progress. 

• This measurement is inappropriate for assessing the sufficiency of Plan assets to cover the estimated 
cost of settling the Plan’s benefit obligations.  

• The measurement is inappropriate for assessing the need for or amount of future employer 
contributions.

800.521.0498 I P: 248.799.9000 I www.grsconsulting.com 

One Towne S9uare • Suite 800 I Southfield, Michigan 48076-3723 



Board of Trustees 
March 19, 2021 
Page 2 

 

 

 

This report was prepared using our proprietary valuation model and related software, which in our 
professional judgment, has the capability to provide results that are consistent with the purposes of the 
valuation and has no material limitations or known weaknesses. We performed tests to ensure that the model 
reasonably represents that which is intended to be modeled. 
 
This report complements the actuarial valuation report that was provided to the Charter Township of Meridian 
Employee Pension Plan and should be considered collectively as a combined report for the plan year ending 
December 31, 2020. Please refer to the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation report for additional discussion 
of the nature of actuarial calculations and more information related to participant data, economic and 
demographic assumptions, and benefit provisions. 
 
To the best of our knowledge, the information contained within this report is accurate and fairly represents 
the actuarial position of the Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan. All calculations have been 
made in conformity with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices as well as with the Actuarial 
Standards of Practice issued by the Actuarial Standards Board. 
 
The signing actuaries are independent of the plan sponsor.  
 
Brad Lee Armstrong, Jeffrey T. Tebeau and Kevin T. Noelke are Members of the American Academy of 
Actuaries (MAAA) and meet the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinions contained herein.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brad Lee Armstrong, ASA, EA, FCA, MAAA       
 
 
 
Jeffrey T. Tebeau, FSA, EA, MAAA 
 
 
 
Kevin T. Noelke, ASA, MAAA 
 
BLA/JTT/KTN:ah   

 

 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 1 

 

Summary of Disclosures 

 

Actuarial Valuation Date December 31, 2020

Measurement Date of the Net Pension Liability December 31, 2020

Employer's Fiscal Year Ending Date (Reporting Date) December 31, 2020

Membership

Number of

 - Retirees and Beneficiaries 44                            

 - Inactive, Nonretired Members 15                            

 - Active Members 1                               

 - Total 60                            

Covered Payroll 112,521$                

Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Liability 5,138,314$            

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 5,182,419               

Net Pension Liability (44,105)$                 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of Total Pension Liability 100.86%

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage 

of Covered Payroll (39.20)%

Development of the Single Discount Rate

Single Discount Rate 6.00%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Investment Return 6.00%

Long-Term Municipal Bond Rate* 2.00%

Last year ending December 31 in the 2021 to 2120 projection period

for which projected benefit payments are fully funded 2120

Total Pension Expense (41,919)$                 

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Source to be Recognized in Future Pension Expenses

Deferred Outflows

of Resources

Deferred Inflows

of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience -$                           -$                         

Changes in assumptions -                              -                           

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 193,922                     713,405                  

Total 193,922$                  713,405$                

*Source: Fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal 

bonds as reported in Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of December 31, 2020. In 

describing this index, Fidelity notes that the municipal curves are constructed using option-adjusted 

analytics of a diverse population of over 10,000 tax-exempt securities.  

  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 2 

 

Measurement of the Net Pension Liability 

 
The Net Pension Liability is measured as the Total Pension Liability, less the amount of the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position. In actuarial terms, this will be the Actuarial Accrued Liability less the market value of 
assets (not the smoothed actuarial value of assets that is often encountered in actuarial valuations performed 
to determine the employer’s contribution requirement).   
 
A Single Discount Rate of 6.00% was used to measure the Total Pension Liability. This Single Discount Rate was 
based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 6.00%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between 
actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension 
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability. 
 
Below is a table providing the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. In 
particular, the table presents the plan’s net pension liability, if it were calculated using a single discount rate 
that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the single discount rate: 
 

 

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability 
to the Single Discount Rate Assumption 

 

Current Single Discount 

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase

5.00% 6.00% 7.00%

$342,372 $(44,105) $(377,611)  
 

  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 3 

 

Statement of Pension Expense Under GASB Statement No. 68  
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 

A. Expense

1. Service Cost 8,064$                       

2. Interest on the Total Pension Liability 297,676                    

3. Current-Period Benefit Changes 0                                 

4. Employee Contributions (made negative for addition here) 0                                 

5. Projected Earnings on Plan Investments (made negative for addition here) (281,393)                   

6. Pension Plan Administrative Expense 50                               

7. Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 0                                 

8. Recognition of Outflow (Inflow) of Resources due to Liabilities 87,814                       

9. Recognition of Outflow (Inflow) of Resources due to Assets (154,130)                   

10. Total Pension Expense (41,919)$                    
 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 4 

 

Statement of Outflows and Inflows  
Arising from Current Reporting Period 
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 

A. Outflows (Inflows) of Resources due to Liabilities

1. Difference between expected and actual experience

          of the Total Pension Liability (gains) or losses 120,898$             

2. Assumption Changes (gains) or losses (33,084)$              

3. Recognition period for Liabilities: Average of the

          expected remaining service lives of all  employees {in years}, not less than one 1.0000                  

4. Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in the current pension expense for the

          difference between expected and actual experience

          of the Total Pension Liability 120,898$             

5. Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in the current pension expense for

          Assumption Changes (33,084)$              

6. Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in the current pension expense

          due to Liabilities 87,814$                

7. Deferred Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in future pension expenses for the

          difference between expected and actual experience

          of the Total Pension Liability -$                      

8. Deferred Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in future pension expenses for

          Assumption Changes -$                      

9. Deferred Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in future pension expenses 

          due to Liabilities -$                      

B. Outflows (Inflows) of Resources due to Assets

1. Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

          pension plan investments (gains) or losses (323,645)$            

2. Recognition period for Assets {in years} 5.0000                  

3. Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in the current pension expense

          due to Assets (64,729)$              

4. Deferred Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in future pension expenses 

          due to Assets (258,916)$             

  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 5 

 

Statement of Outflows and Inflows Arising from Current and Prior 
Reporting Periods 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 

 

Outflows Inflows Net Outflows

of Resources of Resources of Resources

1. Due to Liabilities 120,898$                             33,084$                               87,814$                               

2. Due to Assets 109,865                               263,995                               (154,130)                             

3. Total 230,763$                             297,079$                             (66,316)$                             

Outflows Inflows Net Outflows

of Resources of Resources of Resources

1. Differences between expected and actual experience 120,898$                             0$                                          120,898$                             

2. Assumption Changes -                                        33,084                                 (33,084)                                

3. Net Difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 109,865                               263,995                               (154,130)                             

4. Total 230,763$                             297,079$                             (66,316)$                             

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Net Deferred Outflows

of Resources of Resources of Resources

1. Differences between expected and actual experience -$                                      -$                                      -$                                      

2. Assumption Changes -                                        -                                        -                                        

3. Net Difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 193,922                               713,405                               (519,483)                             

4. Total 193,922$                             713,405$                             (519,483)$                           

Year Ending Net Deferred Outflows

December 31 of Resources

2021 (167,034)$                           

2022 (95,379)                                

2023 (192,341)                             

2024 (64,729)                                

2025 -                                        

Thereafter -                                        

Total (519,483)$                           

C. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Source to be Recognized in Future Pension Expenses

D. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Year to be Recognized in Future Pension Expenses

A. Outflows and Inflows of Resources due to Liabilities and Assets to be Recognized in Current Pension Expense

B. Outflows and Inflows of Resources by Source to be Recognized in Current Pension Expense

 

  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 6 

 

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 

Year 

Established Initial Amount

Initial 

Recognition 

Period

Current Year 

Recognition

Remaining 

Recognition

Remaining 

Recognition 

Period

Deferred Outflow (Inflow) due to Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience on Liabilities

2016 (22,387)$              1.0000 -$                           -$                           0.0000

2017 (86,411)                 1.0000 -                             -                             0.0000

2018 25,530                  1.0000 -                             -                             0.0000

2019 54,195                  1.0000 -                             -                             0.0000

2020 120,898                1.0000 120,898                -                             0.0000

Total 120,898$             -$                           

Deferred Outflow (Inflow) due to Assumption Changes

2016 -$                           1.0000 -$                           -$                           0.0000

2017 -                             1.0000 -                             -                             0.0000

2018 -                             1.0000 -                             -                             0.0000

2019 -                             1.0000 -                             -                             0.0000

2020 (33,084)                 1.0000 (33,084)                 -                             0.0000

Total (33,084)$              -$                           

Deferred Outflow (Inflow) due to Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments

2016 64,529$                5.0000 12,905$                -$                           0.0000

2017 (358,269)              5.0000 (71,654)                 (71,653)                 1.0000

2018 484,802                5.0000 96,960                  193,922                2.0000

2019 (638,060)              5.0000 (127,612)              (382,836)              3.0000

2020 (323,645)              5.0000 (64,729)                 (258,916)              4.0000

Total (154,130)$            (519,483)$            

According to paragraph 33 of GASB No. 68, differences between expected and actual experience and 

changes in assumptions are recognized in pension expense using a systematic and rational method 

over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service l ives of all  employees that 

are provided with pensions through the pension plan (active employees and inactive employees) 

determined as of the beginning of the measurement period.

At the beginning of the current measurement period, the expected remaining service l ives of all  active 

employees in the plan was approximately 0.5 years. Additionally, the total plan membership (active 

DB employees and inactive employees) was 60. As a result, the average of the expected remaining 

service l ives for purposes of recognizing the applicable deferred outflows and inflows of resources 

established in the current measurement period is 1.0000 years.

Additionally, differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments should 

be recognized in pension expense using a systematic and rational method over a closed five-year 

period. For this purpose, the deferred outflows and inflows of resources are recognized in the pension 

expense as a level dollar amount over the closed period identified above.



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 7 

 

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 
Current Period 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 
 

A. Total pension liability

1. Service Cost 8,064$                             

2. Interest on the Total Pension Liability 297,676                          

3. Changes of benefit terms -                                   

4. Difference between expected and actual experience

     of the Total Pension Liability 120,898                          

5. Changes of assumptions (33,084)                           

6. Benefit payments, including refunds

    of employee contributions (424,945)                         

7. Net change in Total Pension Liability (31,391)$                         

8. Total Pension Liability – Beginning 5,169,705                       

9. Total Pension Liability – Ending 5,138,314$                     

B. Plan fiduciary net position

1. Contributions – employer 200,000$                        

2. Contributions – employee -                                   

3. Net investment income 605,038                          

4. Benefit payments, including refunds

    of employee contributions (424,945)                         

5. Pension Plan Administrative Expense (50)                                   

6. Other -                                   

7. Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 380,043$                        

8. Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Beginning 4,802,376                       

9. Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Ending 5,182,419$                     

C. Net pension liability (44,105)$                         

D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

     of the Total Pension Liability 100.86%

E. Covered-employee payroll 112,521$                        

F. Net pension liability as a percentage

    of covered-employee payroll (39.20)%  
 

 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 8 

 

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios Multiyear 

Fiscal year ending December 31, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost 8,064$             7,933$             7,751$             14,978$           14,830$           12,993$           10,867$            

Interest on the Total Pension Liability 297,676           302,038           307,616           318,039           324,026           307,223           302,325            

Benefit Changes -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                     

Difference between Expected and

Actual Experience 120,898           54,195             25,530             (86,411)            (22,387)            (124,938)          131,492            

Assumption Changes (33,084)            -                    -                    -                    -                    474,087           -                     

Benefit Payments (424,945)          (448,911)          (418,997)          (414,434)          (418,211)          (362,253)          (365,991)           

Refunds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                     

Net Change in Total Pension Liability (31,391)            (84,745)            (78,100)            (167,828)          (101,742)          307,112           78,693              

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 5,169,705        5,254,450        5,332,550        5,500,378        5,602,120        5,295,008        5,216,315         

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 5,138,314$     5,169,705$     5,254,450$     5,332,550$     5,500,378$     5,602,120$     5,295,008$      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Employer Contributions 200,000$         200,000$         300,000$         400,000$         400,000$         250,000$         260,000$          

Employee Contributions -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                     

Pension Plan Net Investment Income 605,038           880,823           (217,924)          593,540           162,003           86,536             296,201            

Benefit Payments (424,945)          (448,911)          (418,997)          (414,434)          (418,211)          (362,253)          (365,991)           

Refunds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                     

Pension Plan Administrative Expense (50)                    (74)                    (25)                    (46)                    (25)                    (69,808)            (72,944)             

Other -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                     

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 380,043           631,838           (336,946)          579,060           143,767           (95,525)            117,266            

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 4,802,376        4,170,538        4,507,484        3,928,424        3,784,657        3,880,182        3,762,916         

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 5,182,419$     4,802,376$     4,170,538$     4,507,484$     3,928,424$     3,784,657$     3,880,182$      

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) (44,105)            367,329           1,083,912        825,066           1,571,954        1,817,463        1,414,826         

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of Total Pension Liability 100.86 % 92.89 % 79.37 % 84.53 % 71.42 % 67.56 % 73.28 %

Covered-Employee Payroll 112,521$         106,283$         104,560$         102,156$         100,153$         99,161$           97,050$            

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage

of Covered-Employee Payroll (39.20)% 345.61 % 1,036.64 % 807.65 % 1,569.55 % 1,832.84 % 1,457.83 %

Notes to Schedule: N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Ultimately 10 Years Will Be Displayed

 
 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 9 

 

 

Schedule of Contributions Multiyear 

 

Ultimately 10 Fiscal Years Will Be Displayed 

 

Actuarially Contribution Actual Contribution

FY Ending Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a % of

December 31, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll

2014 421,346$         260,000$         161,346$         97,050$           267.90%

2015 403,377           250,000           153,377           99,161             252.12

2016 430,449           400,000           30,449             100,153           399.39

2017 206,057           400,000           (193,943)          102,156           391.56

2018 151,469           300,000           (148,531)          104,560           286.92

2019 146,745           200,000           (53,255)            106,283           188.18

2020 127,718           200,000           (72,282)            112,521           177.74

 
  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 10 

 

Notes to Schedule of Contributions 

 

Valuation Date: December 31, 2019

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 

which is one day prior to the beginning of the  fiscal year in which 

contributions are reported.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates for the FY Ended December 31, 2020:

Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry-Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Dollar, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 7 years

Asset Valuation Method 4-Year smoothed market

Wage Inflation 4.50%

Salary Increases 4.50%

Investment Rate of Return 6.00%

Retirement Age The final active member is assumed to retire at age 67.

Mortality Fully generational RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Tables after adjustment to the 

base year 2006 for males and females with MP-2015 mortality improvement 

scales.

 
 

Notes to Net Pension Liability 

 

Valuation Date: December 31, 2020

Measurement Date: December 31, 2020

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Net Pension Liability:

Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry-Age Normal

Wage Inflation 4.50%

Salary Increases 4.50%

Investment Rate of Return 6.00%, net of administrative and investment expenses.

Municipal Bond Rate 2.00%

Retirement Age The final active member is assumed to retire at age 68.

Mortality Fully generational Pub-2010 amount-weighted General Mortality Tables for 

males and females with MP-2019 mortality improvement scales.

Other Information:

Notes There were no changes in benefit provisions reflected in the TPL as of 

December 31, 2020. The mortality assumption was updated to the tables 

indicated above.  
  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 11 

 

Calculation of the Single Discount Rate 

GASB Statement No. 68 includes a specific requirement for the discount rate that is used for the purpose of 
the measurement of the Total Pension Liability. This rate considers the ability of the fund to meet benefit 
obligations in the future. To make this determination, employer contributions, employee contributions, benefit 
payments, expenses and investment returns are projected into the future. The Plan Net Position (assets) in 
future years can then be determined and compared to its obligation to make benefit payments in those years. 
As long as assets are projected to be on hand in a future year, the assumed valuation discount rate is used. In 
years where assets are not projected to be sufficient to meet benefit payments, the use of a “risk-free” rate is 
required, as described in the following paragraph. 
 
The Single Discount Rate (SDR) is equivalent to applying these two rates to the benefits that are projected to 
be paid during the different time periods. The SDR reflects (1) the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments (during the period in which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to 
pay benefits) and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA 
Index” as of the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected 
rate of return are not met). 
 
For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.00%, the 
municipal bond rate is 2.00%, and the resulting single discount rate is 6.00%. 
 
The tables in this section provide background for the development of the single discount rate. Note that these 
projections are specifically used to determine the GASB SDR and should not be interpreted as a funding 
projection or recommendation. 
 
The Projection of Contributions table shows the development of expected contributions in future years. 
 
The Projection of Plan Fiduciary Net Position table shows the development of expected asset levels in future 
years. 
 
The Present Values of Projected Benefit Payments table shows the development of the SDR. It breaks down 
the benefit payments into present values for funded and unfunded portions and shows the equivalent total at 
the SDR. 

 
  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 12 

 

Single Discount Rate Development  
Projection of Contributions  

Ending December 31 for 2021 to 2070 

Payroll for Current 

Employees

Contributions from 

Current Employees

Service Cost

Contributions

UAAL

Contributions Total Contributions

0 112,521$                

1 59,655                    -$                         8,529$                    80,514$                  89,043$                  

2 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

3 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

4 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

5 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

6 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

7 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

8 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

9 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

10 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

11 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

12 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

13 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

14 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

15 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

16 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

17 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

18 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

19 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

20 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

21 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

22 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

23 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

24 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

25 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

26 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

27 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

28 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

29 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

30 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

31 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

32 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

33 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

34 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

35 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

36 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

37 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

38 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

39 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

40 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

41 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

42 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

43 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

44 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

45 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

46 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

47 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

48 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

49 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

50 -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Year

 

  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 13 

 

Single Discount Rate Development  
Projection of Plan Fiduciary Net Position  

Ending December 31 for 2021 to 2070 

Projected

Beginning

Plan Net Position

Projected

Total

Contributions

Projected

Benefit Payments

Projected

Administrative

Expenses

Projected Investment 

Earnings at 6.00%

Projected

Ending

Plan Net Position

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)=(a)+(b)-(c)-(d)+(e)

1 5,182,419$                   89,043$                       473,772$                    56$                               299,627$                       5,097,261$                        

2 5,097,261                      -                                521,981                       61                                 290,465                         4,865,685                          

3 4,865,685                      -                                512,320                       60                                 276,855                         4,630,160                          

4 4,630,160                      -                                503,635                       59                                 262,980                         4,389,446                          

5 4,389,446                      -                                492,909                       58                                 248,853                         4,145,331                          

6 4,145,331                      -                                480,081                       56                                 234,583                         3,899,777                          

7 3,899,777                      -                                466,291                       55                                 220,257                         3,653,688                          

8 3,653,688                      -                                451,231                       53                                 205,935                         3,408,339                          

9 3,408,339                      -                                435,362                       51                                 191,681                         3,164,607                          

10 3,164,607                      -                                418,756                       49                                 177,546                         2,923,347                          

11 2,923,347                      -                                391,510                       46                                 163,873                         2,695,664                          

12 2,695,664                      -                                360,438                       42                                 151,126                         2,486,310                          

13 2,486,310                      -                                339,001                       40                                 139,197                         2,286,466                          

14 2,286,466                      -                                316,971                       37                                 127,854                         2,097,312                          

15 2,097,312                      -                                294,761                       35                                 117,160                         1,919,676                          

16 1,919,676                      -                                272,514                       32                                 107,156                         1,754,286                          

17 1,754,286                      -                                250,348                       29                                 97,885                           1,601,794                          

18 1,601,794                      -                                228,483                       27                                 89,380                           1,462,664                          

19 1,462,664                      -                                207,048                       24                                 81,663                           1,337,255                          

20 1,337,255                      -                                186,215                       22                                 74,752                           1,225,770                          

21 1,225,770                      -                                166,156                       20                                 68,654                           1,128,248                          

22 1,128,248                      -                                147,032                       17                                 63,365                           1,044,564                          

23 1,044,564                      -                                128,986                       15                                 58,876                           974,439                              

24 974,439                         -                                112,132                       13                                 55,164                           917,459                              

25 917,459                         -                                96,563                         11                                 52,204                           873,089                              

26 873,089                         -                                82,350                         10                                 49,961                           840,690                              

27 840,690                         -                                69,529                         8                                   48,394                           819,547                              

28 819,547                         -                                58,101                         7                                   47,462                           808,901                              

29 808,901                         -                                48,034                         6                                   47,120                           807,982                              

30 807,982                         -                                39,261                         5                                   47,323                           816,039                              

31 816,039                         -                                31,709                         4                                   48,029                           832,355                              

32 832,355                         -                                25,297                         3                                   49,196                           856,252                              

33 856,252                         -                                19,931                         2                                   50,788                           887,107                              

34 887,107                         -                                15,503                         2                                   52,770                           924,373                              

35 924,373                         -                                11,899                         1                                   55,112                           967,584                              

36 967,584                         -                                9,008                           1                                   57,790                           1,016,365                          

37 1,016,365                      -                                6,721                           1                                   60,784                           1,070,427                          

38 1,070,427                      -                                4,942                           1                                   64,081                           1,129,565                          

39 1,129,565                      -                                3,577                           -                                67,668                           1,193,656                          

40 1,193,656                      -                                2,547                           -                                71,544                           1,262,653                          

41 1,262,653                      -                                1,782                           -                                75,706                           1,336,577                          

42 1,336,577                      -                                1,223                           -                                80,158                           1,415,513                          

43 1,415,513                      -                                823                               -                                84,906                           1,499,596                          

44 1,499,596                      -                                542                               -                                89,960                           1,589,013                          

45 1,589,013                      -                                349                               -                                95,330                           1,683,995                          

46 1,683,995                      -                                220                               -                                101,033                         1,784,808                          

47 1,784,808                      -                                134                               -                                107,085                         1,891,758                          

48 1,891,758                      -                                80                                 -                                113,503                         2,005,181                          

49 2,005,181                      -                                46                                 -                                120,310                         2,125,445                          

50 2,125,445                      -                                26                                 -                                127,526                         2,252,945                          

Year

  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 14 

 

Single Discount Rate Development  
Projection of Plan Fiduciary Net Position  

Ending December 31 for 2071 to 2120  

Projected

Beginning

Plan Net Position

Projected

Total

Contributions

Projected

Benefit Payments

Projected

Administrative

Expenses

Projected Investment 

Earnings at 6.00%

Projected

Ending

Plan Net Position

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)=(a)+(b)-(c)-(d)+(e)

51 2,252,945$                 -$                             14$                               -$                             135,176$                       2,388,107$                        

52 2,388,107                   -                                8                                   -                                143,286                         2,531,385                           

53 2,531,385                   -                                4                                   -                                151,883                         2,683,264                           

54 2,683,264                   -                                2                                   -                                160,996                         2,844,258                           

55 2,844,258                   -                                1                                   -                                170,655                         3,014,913                           

56 3,014,913                   -                                0                                   -                                180,895                         3,195,807                           

57 3,195,807                   -                                0                                   -                                191,748                         3,387,555                           

58 3,387,555                   -                                0                                   -                                203,253                         3,590,808                           

59 3,590,808                   -                                0                                   -                                215,449                         3,806,257                           

60 3,806,257                   -                                0                                   -                                228,375                         4,034,632                           

61 4,034,632                   -                                0                                   -                                242,078                         4,276,710                           

62 4,276,710                   -                                -                                -                                256,603                         4,533,313                           

63 4,533,313                   -                                -                                -                                271,999                         4,805,312                           

64 4,805,312                   -                                -                                -                                288,319                         5,093,630                           

65 5,093,630                   -                                -                                -                                305,618                         5,399,248                           

66 5,399,248                   -                                -                                -                                323,955                         5,723,203                           

67 5,723,203                   -                                -                                -                                343,392                         6,066,595                           

68 6,066,595                   -                                -                                -                                363,996                         6,430,591                           

69 6,430,591                   -                                -                                -                                385,835                         6,816,426                           

70 6,816,426                   -                                -                                -                                408,986                         7,225,412                           

71 7,225,412                   -                                -                                -                                433,525                         7,658,937                           

72 7,658,937                   -                                -                                -                                459,536                         8,118,473                           

73 8,118,473                   -                                -                                -                                487,108                         8,605,581                           

74 8,605,581                   -                                -                                -                                516,335                         9,121,916                           

75 9,121,916                   -                                -                                -                                547,315                         9,669,231                           

76 9,669,231                   -                                -                                -                                580,154                         10,249,385                        

77 10,249,385                 -                                -                                -                                614,963                         10,864,348                        

78 10,864,348                 -                                -                                -                                651,861                         11,516,209                        

79 11,516,209                 -                                -                                -                                690,973                         12,207,182                        

80 12,207,182                 -                                -                                -                                732,431                         12,939,612                        

81 12,939,612                 -                                -                                -                                776,377                         13,715,989                        

82 13,715,989                 -                                -                                -                                822,959                         14,538,949                        

83 14,538,949                 -                                -                                -                                872,337                         15,411,285                        

84 15,411,285                 -                                -                                -                                924,677                         16,335,963                        

85 16,335,963                 -                                -                                -                                980,158                         17,316,120                        

86 17,316,120                 -                                -                                -                                1,038,967                      18,355,088                        

87 18,355,088                 -                                -                                -                                1,101,305                      19,456,393                        

88 19,456,393                 -                                -                                -                                1,167,384                      20,623,776                        

89 20,623,776                 -                                -                                -                                1,237,427                      21,861,203                        

90 21,861,203                 -                                -                                -                                1,311,672                      23,172,875                        

91 23,172,875                 -                                -                                -                                1,390,373                      24,563,248                        

92 24,563,248                 -                                -                                -                                1,473,795                      26,037,043                        

93 26,037,043                 -                                -                                -                                1,562,223                      27,599,265                        

94 27,599,265                 -                                -                                -                                1,655,956                      29,255,221                        

95 29,255,221                 -                                -                                -                                1,755,313                      31,010,534                        

96 31,010,534                 -                                -                                -                                1,860,632                      32,871,166                        

97 32,871,166                 -                                -                                -                                1,972,270                      34,843,436                        

98 34,843,436                 -                                -                                -                                2,090,606                      36,934,043                        

99 36,934,043                 -                                -                                -                                2,216,043                      39,150,085                        

100 39,150,085                 -                                -                                -                                2,349,005                      41,499,090                        

Year

 
  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 15 

 

Single Discount Rate Development  
Present Values of Projected Benefits  

Ending December 31 for 2021 to 2070 

Projected

Beginning

Plan Net Position

Projected

Benefit Payments

Funded Portion of

Projected

Benefit Payments

Unfunded Portion of

Projected

Benefit Payments

Present Value of 

Funded Benefit 

Payments using 

Expected Return Rate 

(v)

Present Value of 

Unfunded Benefit 

Payments using 

Municipal Bond Rate

(vf)

Present Value of

All Benefit

Payments using

Single Discount Rate

(SDR)

(b) (c) (d) (e) (f)=(d)*v^((a)-.5) (g)=(e)*vf ^((a)-.5) (h)=(c)/(1+SDR)^(a-.5)

1 5,182,419$                 473,772$                    473,772$                    -$                             460,168$                       -$                                460,168$                       

2 5,097,261                   521,981                       521,981                       -                                478,295                         -                                  478,295                         

3 4,865,685                   512,320                       512,320                       -                                442,871                         -                                  442,871                         

4 4,630,160                   503,635                       503,635                       -                                410,719                         -                                  410,719                         

5 4,389,446                   492,909                       492,909                       -                                379,219                         -                                  379,219                         

6 4,145,331                   480,081                       480,081                       -                                348,444                         -                                  348,444                         

7 3,899,777                   466,291                       466,291                       -                                319,278                         -                                  319,278                         

8 3,653,688                   451,231                       451,231                       -                                291,477                         -                                  291,477                         

9 3,408,339                   435,362                       435,362                       -                                265,308                         -                                  265,308                         

10 3,164,607                   418,756                       418,756                       -                                240,744                         -                                  240,744                         

11 2,923,347                   391,510                       391,510                       -                                212,340                         -                                  212,340                         

12 2,695,664                   360,438                       360,438                       -                                184,422                         -                                  184,422                         

13 2,486,310                   339,001                       339,001                       -                                163,635                         -                                  163,635                         

14 2,286,466                   316,971                       316,971                       -                                144,341                         -                                  144,341                         

15 2,097,312                   294,761                       294,761                       -                                126,630                         -                                  126,630                         

16 1,919,676                   272,514                       272,514                       -                                110,446                         -                                  110,446                         

17 1,754,286                   250,348                       250,348                       -                                95,719                           -                                  95,719                           

18 1,601,794                   228,483                       228,483                       -                                82,414                           -                                  82,414                           

19 1,462,664                   207,048                       207,048                       -                                70,455                           -                                  70,455                           

20 1,337,255                   186,215                       186,215                       -                                59,779                           -                                  59,779                           

21 1,225,770                   166,156                       166,156                       -                                50,321                           -                                  50,321                           

22 1,128,248                   147,032                       147,032                       -                                42,008                           -                                  42,008                           

23 1,044,564                   128,986                       128,986                       -                                34,766                           -                                  34,766                           

24 974,439                       112,132                       112,132                       -                                28,513                           -                                  28,513                           

25 917,459                       96,563                         96,563                         -                                23,164                           -                                  23,164                           

26 873,089                       82,350                         82,350                         -                                18,637                           -                                  18,637                           

27 840,690                       69,529                         69,529                         -                                14,844                           -                                  14,844                           

28 819,547                       58,101                         58,101                         -                                11,702                           -                                  11,702                           

29 808,901                       48,034                         48,034                         -                                9,127                              -                                  9,127                              

30 807,982                       39,261                         39,261                         -                                7,038                              -                                  7,038                              

31 816,039                       31,709                         31,709                         -                                5,362                              -                                  5,362                              

32 832,355                       25,297                         25,297                         -                                4,036                              -                                  4,036                              

33 856,252                       19,931                         19,931                         -                                3,000                              -                                  3,000                              

34 887,107                       15,503                         15,503                         -                                2,201                              -                                  2,201                              

35 924,373                       11,899                         11,899                         -                                1,594                              -                                  1,594                              

36 967,584                       9,008                           9,008                           -                                1,138                              -                                  1,138                              

37 1,016,365                   6,721                           6,721                           -                                801                                 -                                  801                                 

38 1,070,427                   4,942                           4,942                           -                                556                                 -                                  556                                 

39 1,129,565                   3,577                           3,577                           -                                380                                 -                                  380                                 

40 1,193,656                   2,547                           2,547                           -                                255                                 -                                  255                                 

41 1,262,653                   1,782                           1,782                           -                                168                                 -                                  168                                 

42 1,336,577                   1,223                           1,223                           -                                109                                 -                                  109                                 

43 1,415,513                   823                               823                               -                                69                                   -                                  69                                   

44 1,499,596                   542                               542                               -                                43                                   -                                  43                                   

45 1,589,013                   349                               349                               -                                26                                   -                                  26                                   

46 1,683,995                   220                               220                               -                                15                                   -                                  15                                   

47 1,784,808                   134                               134                               -                                9                                      -                                  9                                      

48 1,891,758                   80                                 80                                 -                                5                                      -                                  5                                      

49 2,005,181                   46                                 46                                 -                                3                                      -                                  3                                      

50 2,125,445                   26                                 26                                 -                                1                                      -                                  1                                      

Year

(a)

 
  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 16 

 

Single Discount Rate Development  
Present Values of Projected Benefits  

Ending December 31 for 2071 to 2120 

Projected

Beginning

Plan Net Position

Projected

Benefit Payments

Funded Portion of

Projected

Benefit Payments

Unfunded Portion 

of

Projected

Benefit Payments

Present Value of 

Funded Benefit 

Payments using 

Expected Return Rate 

(v)

Present Value of 

Unfunded Benefit 

Payments using 

Municipal Bond Rate

(vf)

Present Value of

All Benefit

Payments using

Single Discount Rate

(SDR)

(b) (c) (d) (e) (f)=(d)*v^((a)-.5) (g)=(e)*vf ^((a)-.5) (h)=(c)/(1+SDR)^(a-.5)

51 2,252,945$          14$                        14$                        -$                           1$                                  -$                             1$                                  

52 2,388,107            8                             8                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

53 2,531,385            4                             4                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

54 2,683,264            2                             2                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

55 2,844,258            1                             1                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

56 3,014,913            0                             0                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

57 3,195,807            0                             0                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

58 3,387,555            0                             0                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

59 3,590,808            0                             0                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

60 3,806,257            0                             0                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

61 4,034,632            0                             0                             -                             0                                    -                               0                                    

62 4,276,710            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

63 4,533,313            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

64 4,805,312            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

65 5,093,630            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

66 5,399,248            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

67 5,723,203            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

68 6,066,595            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

69 6,430,591            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

70 6,816,426            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

71 7,225,412            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

72 7,658,937            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

73 8,118,473            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

74 8,605,581            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

75 9,121,916            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

76 9,669,231            -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

77 10,249,385          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

78 10,864,348          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

79 11,516,209          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

80 12,207,182          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

81 12,939,612          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

82 13,715,989          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

83 14,538,949          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

84 15,411,285          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

85 16,335,963          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

86 17,316,120          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

87 18,355,088          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

88 19,456,393          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

89 20,623,776          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

90 21,861,203          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

91 23,172,875          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

92 24,563,248          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

93 26,037,043          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

94 27,599,265          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

95 29,255,221          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

96 31,010,534          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

97 32,871,166          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

98 34,843,436          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

99 36,934,043          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

100 39,150,085          -                         -                         -                             -                                -                               -                                

Totals 5,146,598$                  -$                             5,146,598$                  

Year

(a)

 

 



 

 

  

MICHIGAN PUBLIC ACT 202 
 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 18 

 

State Reporting Assumptions 
as of December 31, 2020 

The Protecting Local Government Retirement and Benefits Act, Public Act 202 of 2017, was put into law 
effective December 20, 2017. One outcome of the law is the requirement for the local unit of government 
to provide select reporting disclosures to the State. Section 5(1) of the Act provides the State treasurer 
with the authority to annually establish uniform actuarial assumptions for purposes of developing the 
requisite disclosures. Below you will find information which may be used to assist the local unit of 
government with required reporting attributable to the Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension 
Plan. 
 
Uniform Assumptions, as applicable to the measurement and the required disclosures under uniform 
assumptions are denoted below. Additional discussion of the PA 202 and uniform assumptions may be 
found on the State website in the uniform assumption memo dated October 21, 2019. 
 

Uniform Assumption PA 202 
Valuation Assumption 

Used 
Uniform Assumption 

Used 

Investment Rate of Return 
 

Maximum of 7.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

       

Salary Increase 
 
  

Minimum of 3.50% 
or based on 

experience study 
within last 5 years 

4.50% 4.50% 

       

Mortality 
  

Version of Pub-
2010 or based on 
experience study 
within last 5 years 

A version of Pub-2010 
A version of Pub-

2010 

       

Amortization of the Unfunded 
Accrued Actuarial Liability: 

 

    
Period Maximum Period of 

19 Years 
7 years  7 years 

    

Method 
  

Closed Plans: Level 
Dollar 

Open Plans: Level 
Percent of Payroll 

or Level Dollar 

Level Dollar Level Dollar 

    

Type Closed Closed Closed 

       

 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan 19 

 

State Reporting as of December 31, 2020 

The following information attributable to the Charter Township of Meridian Employee Pension Plan has 
been prepared to provide some of the information necessary to complete the pension reporting 
requirements for the State of Michigan’s Local Government Retirement System Annual Report             
(Form No. 5572). Additional resources are available on the State website. 
 

Michigan Department of Treasury

Line

18

19 6.00%

20 Level Dollar

21 7 years

22  Yes 

23 Uniform Assumptions1

24 Enter retirement pension system's actuarial value of assets using uniform assumptions2 $                               4,730,695 

25 Enter retirement pension system's actuarial accrued liabilities using uniform assumptions 2 $                               5,162,873 

26 Funded ratio using uniform assumptions Auto3

27 Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) using uniform assumptions4 $                                   125,070 

28 All systems combined ADC/Governmental fund revenues Auto3

Actuarial assumed rate of investment return3

Amortization method utilized for funding the system's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, if any

Amortization period utilized for funding the system's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, if any

Is each division within the system closed to new employees?

Actuarial Assumptions2

Form 5572 (2-19)

The Protecting Local Government Retirement and Benefits Act (PA 202 of 2017)  & Public Act 530 of 2016 

Descriptive Information

 
1 Information on lines 24-28 is based on assumptions listed on the prior page. 
2 As of the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation date. 
3 Automatically calculated by State of Michigan Form No. 5572. 
4 Calculated as of December 31, 2019 applicable for fiscal year ending December 31, 2020.  

 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Charter Township of Meridian          
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 
GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 
December 31, 2020 

GRS 



 

 

 
 
March 19, 2021 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Charter Township of Meridian 
  Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 
Okemos, Michigan 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
This report provides information on behalf of the Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment 
Benefits Plan in connection with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Nos. 
74 and 75. GASB Statement No. 74 is the accounting standard, which applies to Other Postemployment 
Benefits (OPEB) plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. GASB Statement 
No. 75 establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for state and local government 
employers who provide their employees postemployment benefits other than pensions. An excerpt of a 
portion of reporting requirements under Public Act 202 of 2017 is included on pages 21-22 for 
convenience. 
 
The calculation of the liability associated with the benefits described in this report was performed for the 
purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75. The calculation of the plan’s 
liability for this report is not applicable for funding purposes of the plan. A calculation of the plan’s liability 
for purposes other than satisfying the requirements of GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75 may produce 
significantly different results. This report may be provided to parties other than the Charter Township of 
Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan only in its entirety and only with the permission of the 
Township. GRS is not responsible for unauthorized use of this report. 
 
The Total OPEB Liability, Net OPEB Liability, and certain sensitivity information shown in this report are 
based on an actuarial valuation performed as of December 31, 2018. The December 31, 2019 Total OPEB 
Liability was rolled-forward to the plan year ending December 31, 2020 by applying one year of Service 
Cost, expected benefit payments and refunds during the year, and an interest rate adjustment assuming 
the beginning of year Single Discount Rate of 4.96%. A full year of interest was applied to the beginning of 
year Total OPEB Liability and one-half year of interest was applied to the Service Cost and benefit 
payments. It is our opinion that the recommended assumptions are internally consistent, reasonable, and 
comply with the requirements under GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75. 
 
This report complements the actuarial valuation report prepared as of December 31, 2018, and 
information herein should be considered along with the information from that report, especially for 
additional discussions of the nature of actuarial calculations and for more information related to 
participant data, economic, demographic, health care trend, morbidity assumptions, and benefit 
provisions. 
 
 

800.521.0498 I P: 248.799.9000 I www.grsconsulting.com 

One Towne Square . Suite 800 I Southfield, Michigan 48076-3723 



Board of Trustees 
Charter Township of Meridian 
  Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 
March 19, 2021 
Page 2 

 

 
This report is based upon information, furnished to us by Meridian Township, concerning health benefits, 
retirees and beneficiaries, and financial data. This information was checked for internal consistency, but it 
was not audited. Based on the available data, the information contained in this report is accurate and 
fairly represents the actuarial position of the Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment 
Benefits Plan as of the reporting date. All calculations have been made in conformity with generally 
accepted actuarial principles and practices as well as the Actuarial Standards of Practice.   
 
This report was prepared using our proprietary valuation model and related software, which in our 
professional judgment, has the capability to provide results that are consistent with the purposes of the 
valuation and has no material limitations or known weaknesses. We performed tests to ensure that the 
model reasonably represents that which is intended to be modeled. 
 
This report does not fully reflect the recent and still developing impact of COVID‐19, which is likely to 
influence demographic experience and economic expectations, at least in the short term. We will 
continue to monitor these developments and their impact.  
 
If you have reason to believe that the information provided in this report is inaccurate, or is in any way 
incomplete, or if you need further information in order to make an informed decision on the subject 
matter of this report, please contact the authors of the report prior to making such decision. 
 
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this 
report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the 
economic or demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; increases or 
decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these measurements; 
and changes in plan provisions or applicable law.  
 
The signing actuaries are independent of the plan sponsor. Jeffrey T. Tebeau, Brad Lee Armstrong and 
Kevin T. Noelke are Members of the American Academy of Actuaries (MAAA) and meet the Qualification 
Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions contained herein.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Jeffrey T. Tebeau, FSA, EA, MAAA                                    Brad Lee Armstrong, ASA EA, FCA, MAAA 
 
 
 
Kevin T. Noelke, ASA, MAAA 
 
JTT/BLA/KTN:ah 
 
3426 

 
 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 1 

 

Executive Summary 
as of December 31, 2020 

Actuarial Valuation Date December 31, 2018

Measurement Date of the Net OPEB Liability December 31, 2020

Employer's Fiscal Year Ending Date (Reporting Date) December 31, 2020

Membership

Number of

 - Retirees and Beneficiaries 29                                      

 - Inactive, Nonretired Members 34                                      

 - Active Members 73                                      

 - Total 136                                   

Covered Payroll @ NA

Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability 6,980,548$                        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 6,962,087                        

Net OPEB Liability 18,461$                              

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of Total OPEB Liability 99.74 %

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage 

of Covered Payroll NA

Development of the Single Discount Rate

Single Discount Rate - Beginning of Fiscal Year 4.96 %

Single Discount Rate - End of Fiscal Year 4.99 %

Long-Term Expected Rate of Investment Return 5.00 %

Long-Term Municipal Bond Rate* 2.00 %

Last year ending December 31 in the 2021 to 2120 projection period

for which projected benefit payments are fully funded 2091

Total OPEB Expense (542,159)$                          

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Source to be recognized in Future OPEB Expenses

Deferred Outflows

of Resources

Deferred Inflows

of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 0$                                        2,004,850$                        

Changes in assumptions 132,405                           44,163                              

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on OPEB plan investments 185,919                           555,669                           

Total 318,324$                           2,604,682$                        

*Source:

@ Covered payroll was not provided for this valuation.

Fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt

municipal bonds as reported in Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of December 31, 2020.

In describing this index, Fidelity notes that the municipal curves are constructed using option-adjusted

analytics of a diverse population of over 10,000 tax exempt securities.

 
 

 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 2 

 

Statement of OPEB Expense Under GASB Statement No. 75 
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 

A. Expense

  1. Service Cost 109,467$                  

  2. Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 336,017                  

  3. Current-Period Benefit Changes 0                               

  4. Employee Contributions (made negative for addition here) 0                               

  5. Projected Earnings on Plan Investments (made negative for addition here) (308,339)                 

  6. OPEB Plan Administrative Expense 0                               

  7. Other Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 0                               

  8. Recognition of Outflow (Inflow) of Resources due to Liabilities (610,005)                 

  9. Recognition of Outflow (Inflow) of Resources due to Assets (69,299)                   

10. Total OPEB Expense (542,159)$                 

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions are recognized in OPEB 

expense using a systematic and rational method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected 

remaining service lives of all  employees that are provided with OPEB through the OPEB plan (active employees 

and inactive former employees) determined as of the beginning of the measurement period.

At the actuarial valuation date, the expected remaining service lives of all  active employees in the plan was 

approximately 692 years. Additionally, the total plan membership (active employees and inactive former 

employees) was 136. As a result, the average of the expected remaining service lives for purposes of recognizing 

the applicable deferred outflows and inflows of resources established in the current measurement period is 

5.0887 years.

Additionally, differences between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments should be recognized 

in OPEB expense using a systematic and rational method over a closed five-year period. For this purpose, the 

deferred outflows and inflows of resources are recognized in the OPEB expense as a level dollar amount over the 

closed period identified above.  
 
 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 3 

 

Statement of Outflows and Inflows Arising from 
Current Reporting Period 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 

A. Outflows (Inflows) of Resources due to Liabilities

1. Difference between expected and actual experience of the Total OPEB Liability

          (gains) or losses (74,110)$              

2. Assumption Changes (gains) or losses (29,617)$              

3. Recognition period for Liabilities: Average of the expected remaining service lives

          of all  employees {in years} 5.0887                  

4. Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in the current OPEB expense for the

          difference between expected and actual experience of the Total OPEB Liability (14,564)$              

5. Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in the current OPEB expense for

          assumption changes (5,820)$                 

6. Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in the current OPEB expense

          due to Liabilities (20,384)$              

7. Deferred Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in future OPEB expenses for the

          difference between expected and actual experience of the Total OPEB Liability (59,546)$              

8. Deferred Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in future OPEB expenses for

          assumption changes (23,797)$              

9. Deferred Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in future OPEB expenses 

          due to Liabilities (83,343)$              

B. Outflows (Inflows) of Resources due to Assets

1. Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments

          (gains) or losses (344,472)$            

2. Recognition period for Assets {in years} 5.0000                  

3. Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in the current OPEB expense

          due to Assets (68,894)$              

4. Deferred Outflow (Inflow) of Resources to be recognized in future OPEB expenses 

          due to Assets (275,578)$            



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 4 

 

Statement of Outflows and Inflows Arising from 
Current and Prior Reporting Periods 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 

Outflows Inflows Net Outflows

of Resources of Resources of Resources

1. Due to Liabilities 42,868$                                  652,873$                                (610,005)$                               

2. Due to Assets 92,959                                  162,258                                (69,299)                                 

3. Total 135,827$                                815,131$                                (679,304)$                               

Outflows Inflows Net Outflows

of Resources of Resources of Resources

1. Differences between expected and actual experience 0$                                             641,152$                                (641,152)$                               

2. Assumption Changes 42,868                                  11,721                                  31,147                                  

3. Net Difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments 92,959                                  162,258                                (69,299)                                 

4. Total 135,827$                                815,131$                                (679,304)$                               

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Net Deferred Outflows

of Resources of Resources of Resources

1. Differences between expected and actual experience 0$                                             2,004,850$                             (2,004,850)$                           

2. Assumption Changes 132,405                                44,163                                  88,242                                  

3. Net Difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments 185,919                                555,669                                (369,750)                               

4. Total 318,324$                                2,604,682$                             (2,286,358)$                           

Year Ending Net Deferred Outflows

December 31 of Resources

2021 (679,304)$                               

2022 (679,303)                               

2023 (772,262)                               

2024 (153,682)                               

2025 (1,807)                                   

Thereafter 0                                             

Total (2,286,358)$                           

See paragraph 44 of GASB 75 for single and agent employers with trusted plans.

Also, Question 4.32 of Implementation Guide No. 2017-1 provides additional guidance for trusted plans.

C. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Source to be Recognized in Future OPEB Expenses

D. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Year to be Recognized in Future OPEB Expenses

A. Outflows and Inflows of Resources due to Liabilities and Assets to be Recognized in Current OPEB Expense

B. Outflows and Inflows of Resources by Source to be Recognized in Current OPEB Expense

Employer contributions subsequest to the measurement date of the net OPEB liability and prior to the end of the employer's reporting period should be 

reported by the employer as a deferred outflow of resources related to OPEB. The information contained in this report does not incorporate any 

contributions made subsequent to the measurement date.



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 5 

 

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 

Year 

Established Initial Amount

Initial 

Recognition 

Period

Current Year 

Recognition

Remaining 

Recognition

Remaining 

Recognition 

Period

Deferred Outflow (Inflow) Due to Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience on Liabilities

2018 (177,273)$            6.4512 (27,479)$              (94,836)$              3.4512

2019 (3,048,686)           5.0887 (599,109)              (1,850,468)           3.0887

2020 (74,110)                 5.0887 (14,564)                 (59,546)                 4.0887

Total (641,152)$            (2,004,850)$         

Deferred Outflow (Inflow) Due to Assumption Changes

2018 (38,069)$              6.4512 (5,901)$                 (20,366)$              3.4512

2019 218,141                5.0887 42,868                  132,405                3.0887

2020 (29,617)                 5.0887 (5,820)                   (23,797)                 4.0887

Total 31,147$                88,242$                

Deferred Outflow (Inflow) Due to Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments

2018 464,796$             5.0000 92,959$                185,919$             2.0000

2019 (466,819)              5.0000 (93,364)                 (280,091)              3.0000

2020 (344,472)              5.0000 (68,894)                 (275,578)              4.0000

Total (69,299)$              (369,750)$            



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 6 

 

Measurement of the Net OPEB Liability 

The net OPEB liability is to be measured as the total OPEB liability, less the amount of the OPEB plan’s 
fiduciary net position.  In actuarial terms, this will be the accrued liability less the market value of assets 
(not the smoothed actuarial value of assets that is often encountered in actuarial valuations performed to 
determine the employer’s contribution requirement). The net OPEB liability should be measured as of the 
OPEB plan’s most recent fiscal year end. 
 
A Single Discount Rate of 4.99% was used to measure the total OPEB liability. This Single Discount Rate 
was based on an expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments of 5.00% and a municipal bond rate of 
2.00%. The projection of cash flows used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that employer 
contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on these 
assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position and future contributions were sufficient to finance 
the benefit payments through the year 2091. As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB 
plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through the year 2091, and the municipal 
bond rate was applied to all benefit payments after that date.  
 
Regarding the sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the Single Discount Rate, the following 
presents the plan’s net OPEB liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 4.99%, as well as what the 
plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is one percent 
lower or one percent higher:  

Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability 
to the Single Discount Rate Assumption 

Current Single Discount 

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase

3.99% 4.99% 5.99%

$ 1,124,839 $ 18,461 $ (919,800)  
 
Regarding the sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the health care cost trend rates, the 
following presents the plan’s net OPEB liability, calculated using the assumed trend rates as well as what 
the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that is one percent lower or 
one percent higher: 

Sensitivity of Net OPEB Liability 
to the Health Care Cost Trend Rate Assumption 

Current Healthcare Cost

1% Decrease Trend Rate Assumption 1% Increase

$ (945,827) $ 18,461 $ 1,160,638       



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 7 

 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
as of December 31, 2020 

Assets

Cash and Deposits -$                             

Receivables

Accounts Receivable -$                             

Total Receivables -$                             

Investments

Mutual Funds 6,962,087$            

Total Investments 6,962,087$            

Total Assets 6,962,087$            

Liabilities

Payables

Accounts Payable -$                             

Total Liabilities -$                             

Net Position Restricted for OPEB 6,962,087$            



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 8 

 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
for Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Additions

Contributions

Employer - advance funding 285,000$                

Employer - current benefits* 162,018                  

Employee -                                

Other -                                

Total Contributions 447,018$                

Investment Income

Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments 652,811$                

Interest and Dividends -                                

Less Investment Expense -                                

Net Investment Income 652,811$                

Other -$                             

Total Additions 1,099,829$            

Deductions

Benefit Payments Less Retiree Contributions* 162,018$                

OPEB Plan Administrative Expense -                                

Other -                                

Total Deductions 162,018$                

Net Increase in Net Position 937,811$                

Net Position Restricted for OPEB

Beginning of Year 6,024,276$            

End of Year 6,962,087$            

 
 

* Consistent with the guidance from GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75, the employer contribution and 
 benefit payment amounts shown above include benefit payments made by the employer as they came due. 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 9 

 

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
Current Reporting Period 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 

A. Total OPEB liability

  1. Service cost 109,467$                        

  2. Interest on the total OPEB liability 336,017                        

  3. Changes of benefit terms 0                                     

  4. Difference between expected and actual experience

            of the total OPEB liability (74,110)                         

  5. Changes of assumptions (29,617)                         

  6. Benefit payments, including refunds

           of employee contributions (162,018)                       

  7. Net change in total OPEB liability 179,739                        

  8. Total OPEB liability – beginning 6,800,809                     

  9. Total OPEB liability – ending 6,980,548$                     

B. Plan fiduciary net position

  1. Contributions – employer 285,000$                        

  2. Contributions – nonemployer contributing entities 162,018                        

  3. Contributions – employee 0                                     

  4. Net investment income 652,811                        

  5. Benefit payments, including refunds

           of employee contributions (162,018)                       

  6. OPEB plan administrative expense 0                                     

  7. Other 0                                     

  8. Net change in plan fiduciary net position 937,811                        

  9. Plan fiduciary net position – beginning 6,024,276                       

10. Plan fiduciary net position – ending 6,962,087$                     

C. Net OPEB liability 18,461$                          

D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

          of the total OPEB liability 99.74 %

E. Covered-employee payroll NA

F. Net OPEB liability as a percentage

         of covered-employee payroll NA  
 
 
  

 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 10 

 

 

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios Multiyear 

Fiscal year ending December 31, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total OPEB liability

Service cost 109,467$         101,169$         190,743$         184,032$         

Interest on the total OPEB liability 336,017         451,588         433,155         422,016         

Changes of benefit terms -                         -                         -                         -                         

Difference between expected and

actual experience (74,110)            (3,048,686)      (177,273)          (146,888)          

Changes of assumptions (29,617)            218,141           (38,069)            49,580             

Benefit payments, including refunds

of employee contributions (162,018)        (136,274)       (126,136)       (123,649)       

Net change in total OPEB liability 179,739         (2,414,062)    282,420         385,091         

Total OPEB liability - beginning 6,800,809      9,214,871     8,932,451     8,547,360     

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 6,980,548$      6,800,809$     9,214,871$     8,932,451$     

Plan fiduciary net position

Employer contributions - advance funding 285,000$         311,500$         324,000$         172,000$         

Employer contributions - current benefits 162,018         136,274         126,136         123,649         

Employee contributions -                         -                         -                         -                         

OPEB plan net investment income 652,811         724,043         (212,818)       395,193         

Benefit payments, including refunds

of employee contributions (162,018)        (136,274)       (126,136)       (123,649)       

OPEB plan administrative expense -                         -                         -                         -                         

Other -                         -                         -                         -                         

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 937,811         1,035,543     111,182         567,193         

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 6,024,276      4,988,733     4,877,551     4,310,358     

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 6,962,087$      6,024,276$     4,988,733$     4,877,551$     

Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 18,461$           776,533$         4,226,138$     4,054,900$     

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of total OPEB liability 99.74 % 88.58 % 54.14 % 54.60 %

Covered-employee payroll NA NA NA NA

Net OPEB liability as a percentage

of covered-employee payroll NA NA NA NA

Notes to Schedule:

Covered payroll was not provided to the actuary for the production of this report.

Last 10 Fiscal Years (which may be built prospectively)



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 11 

 

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of the Net OPEB Liability Multiyear 

Total Plan Net Position Net OPEB Liability

FY Ending OPEB Plan Net Net OPEB  as a % of Total Covered  as a % of

December 31, Liability Position Liability OPEB Liability Payroll Covered Payroll

2017 8,932,451$          4,877,551$          4,054,900$          54.60 % NA NA

2018 9,214,871          4,988,733          4,226,138          54.14 % NA NA

2019 6,800,809          6,024,276          776,533             88.58 % NA NA

2020 6,980,548          6,962,087          18,461                99.74 % NA NA

Last 10 Fiscal Years (which may be built prospectively)



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 12 

 

Schedule of Contributions Multiyear 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

Actuarially Contribution Actual Contribution

FY Ending Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a % of

December 31, Contribution Contribution* (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll

2017 453,565$         295,649$         157,916$         NA NA

2018 449,295           450,136           (841)                  NA NA

2019 207,005           447,774           (240,769)          NA NA

2020 205,355           447,018           (241,663)          NA NA  
 
* Consistent with the guidance from GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75, the employer contribution shown above includes 

benefit payments made by the employer as they came due. 

 
 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 13 

 

Notes to Schedule of Contributions 

Valuation Date: December 31, 2018

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 of even 

numbered years, which is 1 day prior to the beginning of the fiscal year biennium in 

which contributions are reported.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2020:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Dollar, Open

Remaining Amortization Period 30 years

Asset Valuation Method Market Value

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases NA

Investment Rate of Return 5.00%, including inflation, net of administrative and investment expenses

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibil ity condition.

Mortality Post-Retirement: RPH-2014 Health Annuitant Mortality Table for males and females, 

adjusted backward to 2006 with MP-2017. The provision for future mortality 

improvement is the fully generational projection table MP-2017, beginning in 2006.

Disabled Retirement: RPH-2014 Disabled Mortality Table for males and females is 

used, adjusted backward to 2006 with MP-2017. The provision for future mortality 

improvement is the fully generational projection table MP-2017, beginning in 2006.

Pre-Retirement: RPH-2014 Employee Mortality Table for males and females is used, 

adjusted backward to 2006 with MP-2017. The provision for future mortality 

improvement is the fully generational projection table MP-2017, beginning in 2006.

Health Care Trend Rates Non-Medicare: 8.50% in 2019, grading to 4.50% in 2035. Medicare: 7.00% in 2019, 

grading to 4.50% in 2029.

Aging Factors The tables used in developing the retiree premium are based on a recent Society of 

Actuaries study of health costs.



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 14 

 

Calculation of the Single Discount Rate 

GASB Statement No. 74 includes a specific requirement for the discount rate that is used for the purpose 
of the measurement of the Total OPEB Liability. This rate considers the ability of the fund to meet benefit 
obligations in the future. To make this determination, employer contributions, employee contributions, 
benefit payments, expenses and investment returns are projected into the future. The Plan Net Position 
(assets) in future years can then be determined and compared to its obligation to make benefit payments 
in those years. As long as assets are projected to be on hand in a future year, the assumed valuation 
discount rate is used.  In years where assets are not projected to be sufficient to meet benefit payments, 
the use of a municipal bond rate is required, as described in the following paragraph.  
 
The Single Discount Rate (SDR) is equivalent to applying these two rates to the benefits that are projected 
to be paid during the different time periods. The SDR reflects (1) the long-term expected rate of return on 
OPEB plan investments (during the period in which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient 
to pay benefits) and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation 
bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions 
for use with the long-term expected rate of return are not met). 
 
For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments is 5.00%; the 
municipal bond rate is 2.00%; and the resulting Single Discount Rate is 4.99%. 
 
The tables in this section provide background for the development of the Single Discount Rate. 
 
The Projection of Contributions table shows the development of expected contributions in future years.  
Normal Cost contributions for future hires are not included (nor are their liabilities). 
 
The Projection of Plan Fiduciary Net Position table shows the development of expected asset levels in 
future years. 
 
The Present Values of Projected Benefit Payments table shows the development of the Single Discount 
Rate (SDR).  It breaks down the benefit payments into present values for funded and unfunded portions 
and shows the equivalent total at the SDR. 
 
The projections in this report are strictly for the purpose of determining the GASB single discount rate and 
are different from a funding projection for the ongoing plan. 
 
 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 15 

 

Single Discount Rate Development 
Projection of Contributions Ending 

December 31 for 2021 to 2070 

Projected 

Contributions from 

Current Employees

Projected Service 

Cost and Expense

Contributions

Projected

UAL

Contributions

Projected

Total

Contributions

1 0$                                 89,866$                  (1,024)$                   88,841$                  

2 0                                 85,285                  (2,446)                   82,839                  

3 0                                 80,935                  (3,357)                   77,578                  

4 0                                 76,225                  (3,942)                   72,283                  

5 0                                 70,746                  (3,932)                   66,814                  

6 0                                 65,487                  (3,826)                   61,661                  

7 0                                 61,045                  (3,706)                   57,339                  

8 0                                 57,207                  (3,702)                   53,505                  

9 0                                 53,337                  (3,436)                   49,901                  

10 0                                 49,347                  (3,089)                   46,257                  

11 0                                 45,428                  (2,555)                   42,874                  

12 0                                 41,973                  (2,085)                   39,888                  

13 0                                 39,117                  (1,761)                   37,356                  

14 0                                 36,664                  (1,696)                   34,968                  

15 0                                 34,470                  (1,434)                   33,035                  

16 0                                 32,476                  (1,281)                   31,195                  

17 0                                 30,641                  (1,188)                   29,453                  

18 0                                 28,452                  (943)                      27,509                  

19 0                                 25,971                  (448)                      25,523                  

20 0                                 23,059                  278                        23,337                  

21 0                                 19,994                  1,047                    21,041                  

22 0                                 17,018                  1,899                    18,917                  

23 0                                 13,923                  2,891                    16,814                  

24 0                                 11,171                  3,766                    14,937                  

25 0                                 8,888                    4,522                    13,410                  

26 0                                 6,991                    5,216                    12,206                  

27 0                                 5,492                    5,723                    11,215                  

28 0                                 4,245                    6,181                    10,426                  

29 0                                 3,285                    6,518                    9,803                    

30 0                                 2,530                    6,748                    9,278                    

31 0                                 1,931                    6,939                    8,870                    

32 0                                 1,438                    7,067                    8,505                    

33 0                                 1,070                    7,151                    8,221                    

34 0                                 733                        7,245                    7,978                    

35 0                                 486                        7,242                    7,728                    

36 0                                 306                        7,253                    7,559                    

37 0                                 221                        7,189                    7,410                    

38 0                                 147                        7,124                    7,271                    

39 0                                 92                          7,054                    7,146                    

40 0                                 52                          6,968                    7,020                    

41 0                                 35                          6,874                    6,909                    

42 0                                 23                          6,777                    6,800                    

43 0                                 11                          6,688                    6,699                    

44 0                                 0                            6,592                    6,592                    

45 0                                 0                            6,493                    6,493                    

46 0                                 0                            6,395                    6,395                    

47 0                                 0                            6,299                    6,299                    

48 0                                 0                            6,204                    6,204                    

49 0                                 0                            6,111                    6,111                    

50 0                                 0                            6,019                    6,019                    

Year



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 16 

 

Single Discount Rate Development 
Projection of Plan Net Position Ending 

December 31 for 2021 to 2070 

Projected

Beginning

Plan Net Position

Projected

Total

Contributions

Projected

Benefit Payments

Projected

Administrative

Expenses

Projected Investment 

Earnings at 5.000%

Projected

Ending

Plan Net Position

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)=(a)+(b)-(c)-(d)+(e)

1 6,962,087$                   88,841$                       252,563$                    0$                                 344,061$                       7,142,427$                        

2 7,142,427                   82,839                       282,531                    0                                 352,190                       7,294,926                        

3 7,294,926                   77,578                       316,991                    0                                 358,834                       7,414,346                        

4 7,414,346                   72,283                       348,618                    0                                 363,893                       7,501,904                        

5 7,501,904                   66,814                       350,823                    0                                 368,082                       7,585,976                        

6 7,585,976                   61,661                       341,987                    0                                 372,376                       7,678,025                        

7 7,678,025                   57,339                       358,868                    0                                 376,455                       7,752,952                        

8 7,752,952                   53,505                       363,915                    0                                 379,982                       7,822,524                        

9 7,822,524                   49,901                       379,576                    0                                 382,985                       7,875,834                        

10 7,875,834                   46,257                       406,586                    0                                 384,893                       7,900,399                        

11 7,900,399                   42,874                       448,405                    0                                 385,005                       7,879,872                        

12 7,879,872                   39,888                       487,154                    0                                 382,948                       7,815,554                        

13 7,815,554                   37,356                       522,448                    0                                 378,798                       7,709,260                        

14 7,709,260                   34,968                       536,160                    0                                 373,086                       7,581,154                        

15 7,581,154                   33,035                       519,508                    0                                 367,044                       7,461,726                        

16 7,461,726                   31,195                       503,577                    0                                 361,421                       7,350,765                        

17 7,350,765                   29,453                       497,398                    0                                 355,982                       7,238,802                        

18 7,238,802                   27,509                       491,335                    0                                 350,486                       7,125,462                        

19 7,125,462                   25,523                       484,119                    0                                 344,948                       7,011,814                        

20 7,011,814                   23,337                       474,427                    0                                 339,451                       6,900,175                        

21 6,900,175                   21,041                       486,429                    0                                 333,516                       6,768,303                        

22 6,768,303                   18,917                       488,103                    0                                 326,829                       6,625,946                        

23 6,625,946                   16,814                       478,073                    0                                 319,906                       6,484,594                        

24 6,484,594                   14,937                       491,791                    0                                 312,454                       6,320,193                        

25 6,320,193                   13,410                       498,129                    0                                 304,039                       6,139,513                        

26 6,139,513                   12,206                       502,062                    0                                 294,879                       5,944,536                        

27 5,944,536                   11,215                       511,044                    0                                 284,883                       5,729,591                        

28 5,729,591                   10,426                       512,908                    0                                 274,071                       5,501,180                        

29 5,501,180                   9,803                         512,580                    0                                 262,643                       5,261,045                        

30 5,261,045                   9,278                         496,311                    0                                 251,025                       5,025,036                        

31 5,025,036                   8,870                         474,162                    0                                 239,761                       4,799,506                        

32 4,799,506                   8,505                         464,704                    0                                 228,709                       4,572,016                        

33 4,572,016                   8,221                         445,403                    0                                 217,805                       4,352,638                        

34 4,352,638                   7,978                         424,230                    0                                 207,353                       4,143,740                        

35 4,143,740                   7,728                         412,406                    0                                 197,193                       3,936,255                        

36 3,936,255                   7,559                         398,986                    0                                 187,146                       3,731,974                        

37 3,731,974                   7,410                         389,565                    0                                 177,161                       3,526,981                        

38 3,526,981                   7,271                         371,285                    0                                 167,360                       3,330,327                        

39 3,330,327                   7,146                         350,668                    0                                 158,033                       3,144,838                        

40 3,144,838                   7,020                         339,502                    0                                 149,031                       2,961,388                        

41 2,961,388                   6,909                         325,780                    0                                 140,195                       2,782,711                        

42 2,782,711                   6,800                         311,596                    0                                 131,609                       2,609,523                        

43 2,609,523                   6,699                         299,371                    0                                 123,249                       2,440,101                        

44 2,440,101                   6,592                         287,170                    0                                 115,076                       2,274,598                        

45 2,274,598                   6,493                         274,826                    0                                 107,103                       2,113,368                        

46 2,113,368                   6,395                         262,031                    0                                 99,355                         1,957,087                        

47 1,957,087                   6,299                         249,083                    0                                 91,859                         1,806,162                        

48 1,806,162                   6,204                         235,949                    0                                 84,635                         1,661,051                        

49 1,661,051                   6,111                         222,737                    0                                 77,703                         1,522,128                        

50 1,522,128                   6,019                         209,520                    0                                 71,081                         1,389,708                        

Year

  



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 17 

 

Single Discount Rate Development 
Projection of Plan Net Position Ending 

December 31 for 2071 to 2120 (Concluded) 

Projected

Beginning

Plan Net Position

Projected

Total

Contributions

Projected

Benefit Payments

Projected

Administrative

Expenses

Projected Investment 

Earnings at 5.000%

Projected

Ending

Plan Net Position

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)=(a)+(b)-(c)-(d)+(e)

51 1,389,708$                   5,928$                         196,459$                    0$                                 64,780$                         1,263,957$                        

52 1,263,957                   5,839                         183,794                    0                                 58,803                         1,144,805                        

53 1,144,805                   5,751                         171,591                    0                                 53,145                         1,032,110                        

54 1,032,110                   5,665                         159,809                    0                                 47,799                         925,765                           

55 925,765                       5,579                         148,311                    0                                 42,763                         825,797                           

56 825,797                       5,496                         137,100                    0                                 38,040                         732,232                           

57 732,232                       5,413                         126,318                    0                                 33,626                         644,952                           

58 644,952                       5,331                         115,869                    0                                 29,518                         563,932                           

59 563,932                       5,251                         105,879                    0                                 25,712                         489,016                           

60 489,016                       5,172                         96,390                       0                                 22,198                         419,997                           

61 419,997                       5,094                         87,279                       0                                 18,970                         356,783                           

62 356,783                       5,018                         78,551                       0                                 16,023                         299,273                           

63 299,273                       4,942                         70,119                       0                                 13,354                         247,450                           

64 247,450                       4,868                         62,067                       0                                 10,960                         201,211                           

65 201,211                       4,795                         54,489                       0                                 8,833                           160,350                           

66 160,350                       4,723                         47,401                       0                                 6,964                           124,635                           

67 124,635                       4,651                         41,000                       0                                 5,334                           93,621                              

68 93,621                         4,581                         35,282                       0                                 3,923                           66,844                              

69 66,844                         4,513                         30,030                       0                                 2,712                           44,038                              

70 44,038                         4,445                         25,248                       0                                 1,688                           24,923                              

71 24,923                         4,378                         20,938                       0                                 837                               9,200                                

72 9,200                           4,312                         17,183                       0                                 142                               0                                        

73 0                                   4,247                         13,988                       0                                 0                                   0                                        

74 0                                   4,183                         11,204                       0                                 0                                   0                                        

75 0                                   4,120                         8,865                         0                                 0                                   0                                        

76 0                                   4,058                         6,950                         0                                 0                                   0                                        

77 0                                   3,997                         5,378                         0                                 0                                   0                                        

78 0                                   3,937                         4,105                         0                                 0                                   0                                        

79 0                                   3,878                         3,085                         0                                 0                                   0                                        

80 0                                   3,819                         2,280                         0                                 0                                   0                                        

81 0                                   3,762                         1,655                         0                                 0                                   0                                        

82 0                                   3,705                         1,179                         0                                 0                                   0                                        

83 0                                   3,650                         824                            0                                 0                                   0                                        

84 0                                   3,595                         563                            0                                 0                                   0                                        

85 0                                   3,541                         376                            0                                 0                                   0                                        

86 0                                   3,487                         245                            0                                 0                                   0                                        

87 0                                   3,435                         155                            0                                 0                                   0                                        

88 0                                   3,383                         96                               0                                 0                                   0                                        

89 0                                   3,332                         58                               0                                 0                                   0                                        

90 0                                   3,282                         34                               0                                 0                                   0                                        

91 0                                   3,233                         19                               0                                 0                                   0                                        

92 0                                   3,184                         11                               0                                 0                                   0                                        

93 0                                   3,136                         6                                 0                                 0                                   0                                        

94 0                                   3,089                         3                                 0                                 0                                   0                                        

95 0                                   3,043                         1                                 0                                 0                                   0                                        

96 0                                   2,997                         1                                 0                                 0                                   0                                        

97 0                                   2,952                         0                                 0                                 0                                   0                                        

98 0                                   2,907                         0                                 0                                 0                                   0                                        

99 0                                   2,864                         0                                 0                                 0                                   0                                        

100 0                                   2,821                         0                                 0                                 0                                   0                                        

Year

 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 18 

 

Single Discount Rate Development 
Present Values of Projected Benefits Ending 

December 31 for 2021 to 2070 

Projected

Beginning

Plan Net Position

Projected

Benefit Payments

Funded Portion of

Projected

Benefit Payments

Unfunded Portion of

Projected

Benefit Payments

Present Value of 

Funded Benefit 

Payments using 

Expected Return Rate 

(v)

Present Value of 

Unfunded Benefit 

Payments using 

Municipal Bond Rate

(vf)

Present Value of

All Benefit

Payments using

Single Discount Rate

(SDR)

(b) (c) (d) (e) (f)=(d)*v^((a)-.5) (g)=(e)*vf ^((a)-.5) (h)=(c)/(1+SDR)^(a-.5)

1 6,962,087$                 252,563$                    252,563$                    0$                                 246,476$                       0$                                   246,489$                       

2 7,142,427                 282,531                    282,531                    0                                 262,592                       0                                   262,633                       

3 7,294,926                 316,991                    316,991                    0                                 280,591                       0                                   280,665                       

4 7,414,346                 348,618                    348,618                    0                                 293,892                       0                                   294,000                       

5 7,501,904                 350,823                    350,823                    0                                 281,667                       0                                   281,800                       

6 7,585,976                 341,987                    341,987                    0                                 261,498                       0                                   261,649                       

7 7,678,025                 358,868                    358,868                    0                                 261,339                       0                                   261,517                       

8 7,752,952                 363,915                    363,915                    0                                 252,395                       0                                   252,594                       

9 7,822,524                 379,576                    379,576                    0                                 250,720                       0                                   250,944                       

10 7,875,834                 406,586                    406,586                    0                                 255,772                       0                                   256,028                       

11 7,900,399                 448,405                    448,405                    0                                 268,648                       0                                   268,944                       

12 7,879,872                 487,154                    487,154                    0                                 277,965                       0                                   278,301                       

13 7,815,554                 522,448                    522,448                    0                                 283,907                       0                                   284,280                       

14 7,709,260                 536,160                    536,160                    0                                 277,485                       0                                   277,878                       

15 7,581,154                 519,508                    519,508                    0                                 256,064                       0                                   256,454                       

16 7,461,726                 503,577                    503,577                    0                                 236,391                       0                                   236,776                       

17 7,350,765                 497,398                    497,398                    0                                 222,372                       0                                   222,758                       

18 7,238,802                 491,335                    491,335                    0                                 209,202                       0                                   209,586                       

19 7,125,462                 484,119                    484,119                    0                                 196,314                       0                                   196,695                       

20 7,011,814                 474,427                    474,427                    0                                 183,222                       0                                   183,598                       

21 6,900,175                 486,429                    486,429                    0                                 178,912                       0                                   179,297                       

22 6,768,303                 488,103                    488,103                    0                                 170,978                       0                                   171,365                       

23 6,625,946                 478,073                    478,073                    0                                 159,490                       0                                   159,868                       

24 6,484,594                 491,791                    491,791                    0                                 156,254                       0                                   156,640                       

25 6,320,193                 498,129                    498,129                    0                                 150,732                       0                                   151,120                       

26 6,139,513                 502,062                    502,062                    0                                 144,687                       0                                   145,075                       

27 5,944,536                 511,044                    511,044                    0                                 140,263                       0                                   140,653                       

28 5,729,591                 512,908                    512,908                    0                                 134,071                       0                                   134,458                       

29 5,501,180                 512,580                    512,580                    0                                 127,605                       0                                   127,987                       

30 5,261,045                 496,311                    496,311                    0                                 117,671                       0                                   118,036                       

31 5,025,036                 474,162                    474,162                    0                                 107,066                       0                                   107,410                       

32 4,799,506                 464,704                    464,704                    0                                 99,934                         0                                   100,265                       

33 4,572,016                 445,403                    445,403                    0                                 91,222                         0                                   91,534                         

34 4,352,638                 424,230                    424,230                    0                                 82,748                         0                                   83,040                         

35 4,143,740                 412,406                    412,406                    0                                 76,612                         0                                   76,889                         

36 3,936,255                 398,986                    398,986                    0                                 70,589                         0                                   70,853                         

37 3,731,974                 389,565                    389,565                    0                                 65,640                         0                                   65,892                         

38 3,526,981                 371,285                    371,285                    0                                 59,581                         0                                   59,816                         

39 3,330,327                 350,668                    350,668                    0                                 53,593                         0                                   53,810                         

40 3,144,838                 339,502                    339,502                    0                                 49,416                         0                                   49,621                         

41 2,961,388                 325,780                    325,780                    0                                 45,160                         0                                   45,353                         

42 2,782,711                 311,596                    311,596                    0                                 41,137                         0                                   41,317                         

43 2,609,523                 299,371                    299,371                    0                                 37,641                         0                                   37,810                         

44 2,440,101                 287,170                    287,170                    0                                 34,388                         0                                   34,545                         

45 2,274,598                 274,826                    274,826                    0                                 31,343                         0                                   31,489                         

46 2,113,368                 262,031                    262,031                    0                                 28,460                         0                                   28,597                         

47 1,957,087                 249,083                    249,083                    0                                 25,766                         0                                   25,892                         

48 1,806,162                 235,949                    235,949                    0                                 23,245                         0                                   23,361                         

49 1,661,051                 222,737                    222,737                    0                                 20,898                         0                                   21,005                         

50 1,522,128                 209,520                    209,520                    0                                 18,722                         0                                   18,820                         

Year

(a)



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 19 

 

Single Discount Rate Development 
Present Values of Projected Benefits Ending 
December 31 for 2071 to 2120 (Concluded) 

Projected

Beginning

Plan Net Position

Projected

Benefit Payments

Funded Portion of

Projected

Benefit Payments

Unfunded Portion of

Projected

Benefit Payments

Present Value of 

Funded Benefit 

Payments using 

Expected Return Rate 

(v)

Present Value of 

Unfunded Benefit 

Payments using 

Municipal Bond Rate

(vf)

Present Value of

All Benefit

Payments using

Single Discount Rate

(SDR)

(b) (c) (d) (e) (f)=(d)*v^((a)-.5) (g)=(e)*vf ^((a)-.5) (h)=(c)/(1+SDR)^(a-.5)

51 1,389,708$                 196,459$                    196,459$                    0$                                 16,719$                         0$                                   16,808$                         

52 1,263,957                 183,794                    183,794                    0                                 14,896                         0                                   14,977                         

53 1,144,805                 171,591                    171,591                    0                                 13,245                         0                                   13,318                         

54 1,032,110                 159,809                    159,809                    0                                 11,748                         0                                   11,814                         

55 925,765                    148,311                    148,311                    0                                 10,384                         0                                   10,443                         

56 825,797                    137,100                    137,100                    0                                 9,142                           0                                   9,195                           

57 732,232                    126,318                    126,318                    0                                 8,022                           0                                   8,069                           

58 644,952                    115,869                    115,869                    0                                 7,008                           0                                   7,050                           

59 563,932                    105,879                    105,879                    0                                 6,099                           0                                   6,136                           

60 489,016                    96,390                       96,390                       0                                 5,288                           0                                   5,321                           

61 419,997                    87,279                       87,279                       0                                 4,560                           0                                   4,589                           

62 356,783                    78,551                       78,551                       0                                 3,908                           0                                   3,934                           

63 299,273                    70,119                       70,119                       0                                 3,323                           0                                   3,345                           

64 247,450                    62,067                       62,067                       0                                 2,801                           0                                   2,820                           

65 201,211                    54,489                       54,489                       0                                 2,342                           0                                   2,358                           

66 160,350                    47,401                       47,401                       0                                 1,940                           0                                   1,954                           

67 124,635                    41,000                       41,000                       0                                 1,598                           0                                   1,610                           

68 93,621                       35,282                       35,282                       0                                 1,310                           0                                   1,319                           

69 66,844                       30,030                       30,030                       0                                 1,062                           0                                   1,070                           

70 44,038                       25,248                       25,248                       0                                 850                               0                                   857                               

71 24,923                       20,938                       20,938                       0                                 672                               0                                   677                               

72 9,200                         17,183                       9,427                         7,757                         288                               1,883                           529                               

73 0                                 13,988                       0                                 13,988                       0                                   3,328                           410                               

74 0                                 11,204                       0                                 11,204                       0                                   2,614                           313                               

75 0                                 8,865                         0                                 8,865                         0                                   2,027                           236                               

76 0                                 6,950                         0                                 6,950                         0                                   1,558                           176                               

77 0                                 5,378                         0                                 5,378                         0                                   1,182                           130                               

78 0                                 4,105                         0                                 4,105                         0                                   885                               94                                 

79 0                                 3,085                         0                                 3,085                         0                                   652                               68                                 

80 0                                 2,280                         0                                 2,280                         0                                   472                               48                                 

81 0                                 1,655                         0                                 1,655                         0                                   336                               33                                 

82 0                                 1,179                         0                                 1,179                         0                                   235                               22                                 

83 0                                 824                            0                                 824                            0                                   161                               15                                 

84 0                                 563                            0                                 563                            0                                   108                               10                                 

85 0                                 376                            0                                 376                            0                                   70                                 6                                   

86 0                                 245                            0                                 245                            0                                   45                                 4                                   

87 0                                 155                            0                                 155                            0                                   28                                 2                                   

88 0                                 96                               0                                 96                               0                                   17                                 1                                   

89 0                                 58                               0                                 58                               0                                   10                                 1                                   

90 0                                 34                               0                                 34                               0                                   6                                   0                                   

91 0                                 19                               0                                 19                               0                                   3                                   0                                   

92 0                                 11                               0                                 11                               0                                   2                                   0                                   

93 0                                 6                                 0                                 6                                 0                                   1                                   0                                   

94 0                                 3                                 0                                 3                                 0                                   0                                   0                                   

95 0                                 1                                 0                                 1                                 0                                   0                                   0                                   

96 0                                 1                                 0                                 1                                 0                                   0                                   0                                   

97 0                                 0                                 0                                 0                                 0                                   0                                   0                                   

98 0                                 0                                 0                                 0                                 0                                   0                                   0                                   

99 0                                 0                                 0                                 0                                 0                                   0                                   0                                   

100 0                                 0                                 0                                 0                                 0                                   0                                   0                                   

Totals 7,729,543$                   15,624$                         7,745,167$                   

Year

(a)



 

 

  

MICHIGAN PUBLIC ACT 202 
 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 21 

 

State Reporting Assumptions 
as of December 31, 2020 

The Protecting Local Government Retirement and Benefits Act, Public Act 202 of 2017, was put into law 
effective December 20, 2017. One outcome of the law is the requirement for the local unit of government 
to provide select reporting disclosures to the State. Section 5(1) of the Act provides the State treasurer 
with the authority to annually establish uniform actuarial assumptions for purposes of developing the 
requisite disclosures. Below you will find information which may be used to assist the local unit of 
government with required reporting attributable to the Charter Township of Meridian Other 
Postemployment Benefits Plan. 
 
Uniform Assumptions, as applicable to the measurement and the required disclosures under uniform 
assumptions are denoted below. Additional discussion of the PA 202 and uniform assumptions may be 
found on the State website in the uniform assumption memo dated October 21, 2019. 
 

Uniform Assumption PA 202 
Valuation 

Assumption Used 
Uniform Assumption 

Used 

Investment Rate of Return Maximum of 7.00% 5.00% 5.00% 

       

Salary Increase 

Minimum of 3.50% or 
based on experience 

study within last 5 
years 

N/A N/A 

       

Mortality 

Version of Pub-2010 
or based on 

experience study 
within last 5 years 

A version of RP-2014   
A version of         

Pub-2010 

Amortization of the 
Unfunded Accrued 
Actuarial Liability 

 

   

Period 
 

Max. of 29 years  
  

30 years 29 years 
    

Method 

Closed Plans: Level 
Dollar; Open Plans: 

Level Percent of 
Payroll or Level Dollar 

Open Level Dollar Closed Level Dollar 

    

Health Care Inflation 

8.25% trending to 
4.50% for Non-

Medicare 
6.50% trending to 

4.50% for Medicare 

8.50% trending to 
4.50% for Non-

Medicare 
7.00% trending to 

4.50% for Medicare  

8.25% trending to 
4.50% for Non-

Medicare 
6.50% trending to 

4.50% for Medicare 
    

 



 

 

Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 22 

 

State Reporting as of December 31, 2020 

The following information attributable to the Charter Township of Meridian Other Postemployment 
Benefits has been prepared to provide some of the information necessary to complete the pension 
reporting requirements for the State of Michigan’s Local Government Retirement System Annual Report 
(Form No. 5572). Additional resources are available on the State website. 
 

Michigan Department of Treasury

CLOSED

19

20 5.00%

21 5.00%

22 Amortization method utilized for funding the system's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, if any Level Dollar

23  30 years 

24 Is each division within the system closed to new employees? No

25 8.25%

26 4.50%

27 Uniform Assumptions1

28 Enter retirement health care system's actuarial value of assets using uniform assumptions  $                          6,962,087 

29 Enter retirement health care system's actuarial accrued liabilities using uniform assumptions 2  $                          7,113,993 

30 Funded ratio using uniform assumptions Auto3

31 Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) using uniform assumptions4  $                              215,022 

32 All systems combined ADC/Governmental fund revenues Auto2

Actuarial assumed rate of investment return

Amortization period utilized for funding the system's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, if any

Enter discount rate

Health care inflation assumption for the next year

Health care inflation assumption - Long-Term Trend Rate

Actuarial Assumptions

Form 5572 (2-20)
The Protecting Local Government Retirement and Benefits Act (PA 202 of 2017)  Health Care (OPEB) Report

 
1 Information on lines 28-32 is based on assumptions listed on the prior page. 
2 Calculated as of December 31, 2018 and rolled-forward to December 31, 2020. 
3 Automatically calculated by State of Michigan Form 5572. 
4 Calculated as of December 31, 2018 applicable for fiscal year ending December 31, 2020.  

 

  



9A 

CONSENT AGENDA  
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 

JUNE 15, 2021 



From: Erin Mock
To: Township Board
Subject: Railroad Quiet Zones
Date: Tuesday, March 23, 2021 11:41:47 AM
Attachments: image.png

November212017TownshipBoar.pdf

Hello Board Members,

I moved to the area in 2019 and was recently made aware of an effort that was made
previously to make certain areas of Meridian "Quiet Zones" for the trains. I have heard from
many of my neighbors how disruptive the trains have been, including one family with 5
children who are struggling to sleep through noise at night. I included a map below so you can
see not only how close my neighborhood is to the train tracks, but how close we are to the
Okemos Road railroad crossing. 

I found a Facebook page (https://www.facebook.com/MeridianQZ/) that details some of the
efforts made in the past as well as the board meeting minutes from 11/21/2017 (attached) that
include a detailed study of what it would take to make changes to the major intersections. I
was hoping someone could provide an update on how these efforts concluded, or if there is
still a chance this could be pursued by the current board members. My family as well as many
others in Meridian township would find much value in the reduction of noise, since the train
comes through 20+ times each day including very late at night.

I appreciate your time and attention,

Erin Mock

mailto:ejmock55@gmail.com
mailto:Townshipboard@meridian.mi.us
https://www.facebook.com/MeridianQZ/

lancy
Moore Park







 
 


 
 
 
All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. 
Appointment of Supervisor Pro Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary.  
 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting:  
Township Manager Frank L. Walsh, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 
 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 
 


AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  


TOWNSHIP BOARD – REGULAR MEETING 
November 21, 2017 6PM 


 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
3. ROLL CALL 
4. PRESENTATION 


A. 2017 Review and 2018 Action Plan 
 


5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
9. CONSENT AGENDA (SALMON) 


A. Communications 
B. Minutes-November 9, 2017 Regular Meeting 
C. Bills 
D. Ratification of New Police Officer 


 
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY 
11. HEARINGS (CANARY) 
12. ACTION ITEMS (PINK) 


A. Commission Review #17093 2017 Master Plan Update 
B. Auditing Services Contract 
C. Sleepy Hollow SAD Resolution #3 


 
13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS (ORCHID) 


A.   Transportation Commission Recommendation:  Implement Railroad Quiet Zones 
B. Transportation Commission Recommendation:  Negotiate Formal Agreement with CATA    


Redi-Ride Service 
C. 2018 Township Goals 


 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
17. POSTSCRIPT- JULIE BRIXIE 


 
 
 
 
 







TOWNSHIP BOARD REGULAR MEETING COMMUNICATIONS NOVEMBER 21, 2017 


(1) Board Information (BI)


BI-1 William Conklin Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) RE: Public Meeting Notice 


for 2018 Jolly-Okemos Intersection and Jolly, Dobie-Meridian Rds., Resurfacing Project 


BI-2 Laura Liebler, 2343 Fieldstone Drive Okemos; RE: New Website  


BI-3 Donna Rose, 6207 Cobblers Drive, East Lansing; RE: Voting Issues 







! 


CLERK'S OFFICE 
BOARD COMMUNICATIONS 


November 21P 2017 


Board Information (BI) 


9.A 


I 







Maggie Rodgers-Sanders 


From: 
Sent: 
To: 


Brett Dreyfus 
Friday, November 03, 2017 6:22 PM 
Maggie Rodgers-Sanders 


Subject: FW: Public Meeting Notice for 2018 Jolly-Okemos Intersection and Jolly, Dobie­
Meridian Rds, Resurfacing Projects 


Attachments: Mail Notice for Jolly Meeting.doc; A TTOOOOl.htm; Okemos Jolly Mailer Maps.pdf; 
A TT00002.htm; Okemos Jolly Public Meeting Displays.pdf; A TT00003.htm 


Print for communications 


From: Frank Walsh 
Sent: Friday, November 03, 2017 6:00 PM 
To: Township Board 
Cc: MTeam 
Subject: Fwd: Public Meeting Notice for 2018 Jolly-Okemos Intersection and Jolly, Dobie-Meridian Rds, Resurfacing 
Projects 


FYI 


Sent from my iPhone 


Begin forwarded message: 


From: "Conklin, William" <WConklin@ingham.org> 
To: "Ronald Styka" <styka@meridian.mi.us>, "Frank Walsh" <walsh@meridian.mi.us>, "Derek Perry" 
<perry@meridian.mi.us>, "Mark Kieselbach" <Kieselbach@meridian.mi.us>, "David Hall" 
<hall@meridian.mi.us>, "Younes lshraidi" <ishraidi@meridian.mi.us>, "Nyal Nunn" 
<nunn@meridian.mi.us>, "Alaiedon Township" <alaiedontwp@gmail.com>, "Alaiedon" 
<Alaiedon@Alaiedontwp.com>, "alena.zachery-ross@okemosk12.net" <alena.zachery­
ross@okemosk12.net>, "steve.1athrop@okemosk12.net" <steve.1athrop@okemosk12.net>, "Todd 
Sharp" <todd.sharp@okemosk12.net>, "cathy.mckenna@okemosk12.net" 
<cathy.mckenna@okemosk12.net> 
Cc: "Peterson, Robert" <rpeterson@ingham.org>, "Troia, Dan" <DTroia@ingham.org> 
Subject: Public Meeting Notice for 2018 Jolly-Okemos Intersection and Jolly, Dobie-Meridian Rds, 
Resurfacing Projects 


As many of you may already be aware, two nearby road projects have been planned for 2018 on Jolly 
Road-at the Jolly-Okemos intersection to add right turn lanes and resurface, and on Jolly Road, Dobie 
to Meridian Roads, for recycling, resurfacing, and adding paved shoulders, both starting in early 2018, 
although some preliminary utility and signal work in preparation has already begun on Jolly-Okemos. 


The Ingham County Road Department will conduct a drop-in style public information meeting regarding 
both projects from 4-7 pm, Wed, Nov 29, at Chippewa School off Kinawa Road east of Okemos Road. 
The attached flier and mail version of the attached detour maps is being mailed out today to all property 
owners, businesses, and residents within the areas of these projects to inform them of the projects and 
invite them to the public meeting on Nov 29. All members of the public will also be invited by media 
release to be issued next week. 


1 







Please see the attached items for more information. The two pdf's are essentially the same aerial 
photo-detour maps, one in condensed format to be mailed out and the other as they will appear at the 
public meeting. 


If Meridian Township can further share this through their website and HOM-TV as discussed previously, 
that would be most helpful as well. 


Also, ICRD will take handfuls of the fliers into each of the businesses in the Jolly-Okemos area next week 
to place by their customer reception/cash register areas to further get the word out. 


Feel free to let us know if you have any questions, attend the Nov 29 public meeting as desired, and 
share this with others as may be necessary. 


Thank-you, 
Bill Conklin, Manager 
Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) 
517-676-9722 


2 







INGHAM COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT 
AUSTINE. CAVANAUGH ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
301 Bush Street, P.O. Box 38, Mason, MI 48854-0038 


November 3, 2017 William M. Conklin, P.E. 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETING 


What: Okemos Road and Jolly Road 2018 Construction: 
Okemos Road @ Jolly Road Intersection Improvements 
Jolly Road Resurfacing; Dobie Road to Meridian Road 


When: 4:00 PM to 7:00 PM on Wednesday, November 29, 2017 


Managing Director 


Where: Chippewa Middle School, off Kinawa Road, east of Okemos Road. 


The Ingham County Road Department plans the following two projects starting in early spring 2018: 


1. Jolly Road at Okemos Road Intersection Improvements: includes storm drain replacement, 
addition of right turn lanes on the northbound, southbound and eastbound approaches, 
signal upgrades, and concrete pavement resurfacing. 


2. Jolly Road Resurfacing - Dobie Road to Meridian Road: includes addition of 4 foot wide 
paved shoulders through-out, drainage upgrades, pavement recycling and resurfacing. 


A drop-in style Public Information Meeting regarding both projects will be held Wednesday, 
November 29, 2017, between 4:00 and 7:00 PM, at the Chippewa Middle School, 4000 
Okemos Road, Meridian Township, off Kinawa Road, east of Okemos Road. No formal 
presentation is planned. Information regarding the projects will be shared in an informal setting. 
Interested citizens may drop in to the meeting any time between 4:00 and 7:00 PM to meet project 
staff, view project plans, and ask questions about the projects. 


The following provides further detail on both projects: 


JOLLY ROAD AT OKEMOS ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 


Proposed Work: Replacement of aging storm drain under westbound Jolly Road and other 
drainage upgrades; i\ddition of right turn lanes for the north to east, south to west, and east to 
south right turn movements; Concrete pavement resurfacing; Replacement and modernization of 
traffic signal with updated pedestrian crossings. MOOT will be constructing a new traffic signal at 
the westbound 1-96 exit ramp at Okemos Road under a separate contract in spring 2018. 


Estimated Schedule: Utility relocation and traffic signal replacement currently underway to be 
done this fall; Drainage and road work to be started in spring 2018-further updates will be issued 
via media release in the spring; Completion expected by Labor Day, 2018, dependent on weather 
and other factors. 


(Continued on other side) 







SPRING 2018 - OKEMOS RD & JOLLY RD 
NO TURNS will be allowed at the intersection - ONE LANE open in each direction 


PLAN YOUR ROUTE AHEAD - Utilize ADVANCED DETOURS whenever possible 


EASTBOUND DETOUR ROUTES 
EB Jolly Rd to 1-96 Detour 


WESTBOUND DETOUR ROUTES 
WB Jolly Rd to 1-96 Detour 


- r. 


NORTHBOUND DETOUR ROUTE SOUTHBOUND DETOUR ROUTE 







SPRING 2018 - OKEMOS RD & JOLLY RD 
Access will be maintained for all local businesses with intermittent left turn restrictions 


TURN RIGHT at driveways or utilize SIGNAL at Alaiedon Parkway to reach destination 


Project Info & Updates: rc.ingham.org E-mail: roads@ingham.org Phone: (517) 676-9722 


INTERSECTION LEFT TURN ROUTES 







EASTBOUND DETOUR 


EB Jolly Rd to Okemos Rd Detour EB Jolly Rd to 1-96 Detour 


• Detour posted at Hagadorn Road • Detour posted at Woodlake Drive 
• Turn LEFT onto Hagadorn Road • Turn RIGHT onto and follow Woodlake Drive 
• Turn RIGHT onto Bennett Road • Turn RIGHT onto Okemos Road 
• Return to Okemos Road • Access 1-96 Interchange 







WESTBOUND DETOUR 


WB Jolly Rd to Okemos Rd Detour WB Jolly Rd to 1-96 Detour 


• Detour posted at Dobie Road • Detour posted at Jolly Oak Road 
• Turn RIGHT onto Dobie Road • Turn RIGHT onto and follow Jolly Oak Road 
• Turn LEFT on Kinawa Drive • Turn RIGHT onto Okemos Road 
• Return to Okemos Road • Access 1-96 Interchange 







NORTHBOUND DETOUR 


NB Okemos Rd to Jolly Rd Detour 


• Detour posted at University Park Drive 
• Turn RIGHT onto University Park Drive 
• Turn LEFT onto Alaiedon Parkway 
• Return to Jolly Road 


SOUTHBOUND DETOUR 


SB Okemos Rd to Jolly Rd Detour 


To Westbound Jolly Rd 
• Turn RIGHT onto Bennett Rd 
• Turn LEFT onto Hagadorn Rd 
• Turn RIGHT onto Jolly Road 


To Eastbound Jolly Rd 
• Turn LEFT onto Kinawa Drive 
• Follow posted Detour RIGHT or + LEFT at Dobie Rd to Jolly Road 


+ Coordinated with Jolly Rd (Dobie-Meridian) Project Detour 







INTERSECTION LEFT TURN ROUTES 


POSTED DETOUR routes for Left 
Turns to / from 1-96 


- NBtoWB WBtoSB 


LOCAL left turn routes shown 
Non-Local follow ADVANCED DETOUR 


- EBtoNB - SBtoEB 


Local Access Detour Routes 


• NO TURNS at Okemos Road & Jolly Road Intersection 
• NO LEFT TURNS (ALL Directions) Okemos Road at Woodlake Drive and University Park Drive 
• Local Access: Turn RIGHT on these routes or utilize SIGNAL at Alaiedon Pkwy to reach destination 







Brett Dreyfus 


From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 


Hello, 


Laura Liebler <fernfan@gmail.com > 


Wednesday, November 08, 2017 3:45 PM 
Township Board 
new website 


I am finding the new website very difficult to use. The organization seems incomprehensible, and much 
useful information seems to be missing 
-- or impossible to find. In the past, I've used the website mostly to get information about the parks and 
natural areas, but today it took me quite awhile just to find the list of parks, and I never did find anything 
about the natural areas. I was specifically looking for a trail map for Eastgate Park, but I wasn't able to 
find any trail maps for any of the parks. And why is information about parks listed under "Visitors"? I 
would guess that most of the people who use the parks are residents. 


Also, I could not identify whom to contact regarding the website, which is why all of you are receiving this 
email. 


I hope you will have your webmaster test the usability of the new website with members of the general 
public and make the necessary changes so that information is more complete and easier to find. 


Laura Liebler 
2343 Fieldstone Drive 
Okemos, MI 48864 
734-678-6685 


LlOZ ~ Z AON 
1 







Brett Dreyfus 


From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 


Dear Board Members, 


Donna Rose <wild-rose@sbcglobal.net> 
Wednesday, November 08, 2017 8:06 PM 
Board 
Voting Issues 


The voting issues several of us who are blind experienced yesterday here in Meridian Township due to 
the use of the Dominion Systems terminal were shared by voters across our State wherever this model 
was used. It actually was a choice which people who are blind rejected during our testing and review of 
different systems. We don't know how it wound up as one of the choices, but the fact is, it is the Michigan 
Secretary of State's office is responsible for allowing County Clerks to have the impression this model is 
ADA compliant. We will have to take this issue up with them. Brett Dreyfus is not responsible for doing 
anything but trying to be helpful in this matter, when actually our Township has little impact on what 
happens at the county or state level when it comes to choosing these machines. Our County Clerk wasn't 
even aware there was any testing or reviews done by people with disabilities. Again, we will have to 
pursue a solution through the State of Michigan. Those who tried to use this voting terminal meant to be 
accessible do not want to use it again since it is not really workable. 


Voting is possibly one of the most important transaction a citizen will ever have the right to act upon, and 
the secret ballot is sacred. Here in America I value, with other citizens, this freedom. Keep in mind it is 
very difficult to attempt to vote, and realize you are having difficulty simply because of who you are. No 
one who takes this right seriously would be only mildly affected if they were denied this right and 
couldn't vote a secret ballot they were at the polls for and prepared to vote. 
Sincerely, 
Donna Rose 
6207 Cobblers Drive 
East Lansing, MI 48823 


1 







9.B 


11 
PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES 


PROPOSED MOTION: 


Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the November 9, 2017 
Regular Meeting as submitted. 


ALTERNATE MOTION: 


Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the November 9, 2017 
Regular Meeting with the following amendment(s): [insert 
amendments]. 


November 21, 2017 
REGULAR MEETING 


II 







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT - 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 
853-4000, Town Hall Room 
THURSDAY, November 9, 2017, 6:00 P.M. 
 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus, Treasurer Brixie, Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, 


Opsommer, Sundland 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
STAFF: Township Manager Frank Walsh, Director of Public Works & Engineering Derek Perry, 


Director of Community Planning & Development Mark Kieselbach, Economic 
Development Director Christopher Buck, Senior Planner Peter Menser  


 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 


 
Supervisor Styka called the meeting to order at 6:03 P.M. 


 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 


 
Supervisor Styka led the Pledge of Allegiance. 


 
3. ROLL CALL 


 
The secretary called the roll of the Board. 


 
4. PRESENTATION 
  
 Supervisor Styka mentioned artwork showcased in the Townhall Room from Chippewa Middle 
 School  
 
5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS (None) 
 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
  
 Manager Walsh updated the board on discussion in the community about the relocation of the 
 Farmers Market next to Studio C. Met with owners of the Meridian Mall, LuAnn Maisner Director of 


Parks and Recreation is leading the project, and Dave Ledeburgh of the EDC working on this as 
well.  


 
 November 14th Goal setting Study Session at the Central Fire Station.  
 
 Mariam Mattison will be working on picking an Auditor for the Township and bringing a 


recommendation to the Board at the November 21, 2017 meeting.   
  
 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Clerk Dreyfus – Election Report: 
 


• Reported the results of the November 7, 2017 Election 
• 30,273 registered voters in Meridian Township  
• 4,734 voted: 15.6% voter turnout 
• 2,309  YES  votes,  2425  NO  votes:  Ballot proposal FAILED in Meridian Township 
• Ingham County millage proposal passed countywide 
• Absentee Voter ballots comprised almost 50% of the total ballots cast 







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 


 
PAGE 2 


 
Treasurer Brixie reported: 


• Attended MABA’s 20th-anniversary banquet commemorating the Townships involvement with 
MABA over the past 20 years.  


• Attended the October 26th joint meeting of Park Commission and Land Preservation, discussed 
park land as natural area and importance of continuity with other open space in order to be able 
to protect larger parcels of land. 


• Attended the November 8th Tri-County Regional Planning Commission (TCRPC), changing public 
input processes to encourage more input in the planning process.  


• Attended the neighborhood leader meeting, no significant issues in the Township reported.  
 
Trustee Deschaine reported:  


• Attended the TCRPC open house Moving Mid-Michigan, pavement conditions were a large 
concern; 57.3% of roads in poor condition in Tri-County region. Roads are hurting most likely 
due to State slashing funding for roads. 


• CATA 10.9 million riders a year, “great” mass transit helps keep businesses strong. 
• Attended Commission member recognition night, John Scott-Craig and Sue Elder were honored.  
• Attended the November 2, 2017, EDC meeting regarding the efficacy of a redevelopment fund, 


EDC looking for new members, 2 openings. 
• November 16th Transportation meeting will focus on a “road diet” (from two lanes to one lane) 


for Lake Lansing Road, from Saginaw Highway to Hagadorn, presented by Bill Conklin. 
 


Trustee Opsommer reported:  
• November 15, 2017, CATA meeting announcement on two final candidates for CEO, special 


 meeting to interview candidates and make final decision.  Contract negotiations will follow. 
• Search firm was used, approach respected confidentiality of applicants, now in final phase,   


  will update the Township Board on the special CATA meeting.  
• October CATA board meeting discussed Zone 2 fares in Delta Township, they decided not to 


 continue their Redi-Ride services. Discussed “double fares” for certain rider situations. 
 


Clerk Dreyfus reported: 
• Met with new MSU Museum Director. Discussed his previous experience, Clerk proposed   
      exhibit called “Voice of the People” featuring history of elections in Michigan,  issues of voter  
      suppression, third parties, campaigning.  Looking for ways to collaborate with MSU. 
• Attended tour of Old Okemos Cemetery, several citizens attended from families of early  
      Meridian settlers; sponsored by the Friends of Historic Meridian. 
• Attending Moving Mid-Michigan afternoon session of the TCRPC open house, great 
 networking and innovative, interactive methods of demonstrating transportation issues and  
      getting participant input. 


 
Trustee Jackson reported: 


• Attended the Neighborhood Leadership Meeting. 
• Attended the TCRPC open house, looked roads MDOT and Meridian Township were responsible 


for, and looking at ways on how to improve poor road conditions.  
• Please to note two new businesses – a bakery on Haslett Road and a restaurant on Central Park 


Drive – and Hampton Inn redeveloped their site, which is a good direction for the Township  
• Parks Commission dedicated a new mural in Hillbrook Park. 


 
Trustee Sundland Reported: 


• Attended the Costco opening. 
• Attended the Meridian Cares fundraiser at Old Chicago. 
• Saddleback BBQ opening day and support of their new business.  
• Attended the award ceremony for Boards and Commissioners.  


 
 
 
 
 







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 


 
PAGE 3 


Supervisor Styka Reported: 
• Along with Manager, Treasurer, and Economic Development Director, attended the Chamber of 


Commerce Meeting. 
• Attended a symposium with Van Martin Realty, economist discussed the area and the potential 


for development, real estate, and which areas look better than others; he predicted a small 
recession in 2019. 


• Attended the Costco ribbon cutting. 
• Meridian Downtown Development Authority (DDA) and Corridor Improvement Authority 


(CIA) both looking at increasing amenities in Meridian Township. 
• Attended the Meridian Cares event, which raised almost $4,000. 
• Attended Boards and Commissions awards. 


 
 
8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
Treasurer Brixie moved to approve the agenda as submitted.  Seconded by Trustee 
Opsommer. 
 


VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus, Trustees    
                     Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland 
    
         NAYS:  None  


              
                       Motion carried unanimously. 


 
9. CONSENT AGENDA (SALMON) 


 
Supervisor Styka reviewed the consent agenda. 


 
Opsommer moved to adopt the Consent Agenda.  Motion failed for lack of a second. 
Trustee Deschaine moved to amend Section H and approve the consent agenda. Seconded by 
Clerk Dreyfus.  
 


 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  


 
NAYS: None 
         


           Motion carried unanimously.  
A. Communications 


 
Trustee Deschaine moved that the communications be received and placed on file, and any 
communications not already assigned for disposition be referred to the Township Manager or 
Supervisor for follow-up.  Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 


ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  


 
NAYS: None 
         


           Motion carried unanimously.  







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 


 
PAGE 4 


 
B. Minutes  


 
Trustee Deschaine moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting as 
substituted.  Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 


ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  


 
NAYS: None 
         


           Motion carried unanimously.  
C. Bills 


 
Trustee Deschaine moved that the Township Board approve the Manager’s Bills as follows: 


 
Common Cash       $  965,241.85        
Public Works       $         663,786.34 
Trust & Agency       $            173,517.23 
        


Total Checks $        1,802,545.42 
   


Credit Card Transactions $             12,430.34       
  (Dec. 1 to Dec. 7, 2016) 
    


Total Purchases      $        1,814,975.76        
 


ACH Payments $         1,039,001.24        
 


Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus 
 


ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  


 
NAYS: None 
         


           Motion carried unanimously.  
 


 
D. Marriott Hotel Liquor License 


 
Trustee Deschaine moved to adopt the resolution approving the Resort B Hotel liquor license 
for PHG Land Development to sell beer, wine, and spirits at the proposed Marriott Courtyard 
Hotel at 3454 Meridian Crossing Drive. Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus.  
 


ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  


 
NAYS: None 
         


           Motion carried unanimously.  







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 


 
PAGE 5 


 
 


E. Charitable Gaming License- Okemos Central Elementary 
 
Trustee Deschaine moved to approve a request from the Central Elementary PTO of Meridian 
Township, Ingham County, asking that they be recognized as a non-profit organization operating 
in the community for the purposes of obtaining a gaming license for approval and further that the 
Township Clerk is authorized to execute the resolution from the State of Michigan. Seconded by 
Clerk Dreyfus. 
 


ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  


 
NAYS: None 
         


           Motion carried unanimously.  
 


 
F. Additions to the Tax Roll 


 
Trustee Deschaine moved to assess the charges identified in the staff memorandum with parcel 
identification available in the Treasurer’s Office dated November 3, 2017, for Delinquent Special 
Assessments, Utility Bills, False Alarms, Nuisance, Lot Mowing/Code Violation, and Misc. Fees as a 
tax lien against the subject properties as authorized by Michigan Compiled Laws (MCL) 41.727, 
41.728 and Meridian Township Ordinance Code Sections 58-32, 58-33, 78-98, 78-155, 46-5, 82-
27, 18-1 and 18-15. Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 


ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  


 
NAYS: None 
         


           Motion carried unanimously.  
 


G. Disposal of Surplus Equipment 
 
Trustee Deschaine moved to authorize the sale of the vehicles and equipment that have been 
declared surplus by the Department of Public Works; at public auction, internet auction, or by 
sealed bid.   Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 


ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  


 
NAYS: None 
         


           Motion carried unanimously.  







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 


 
PAGE 6 


 
 


H. 2018 Regular Board Meeting Schedule  
Supervisor Styka offered some changes to the schedule, along with other members of the board.   


 
Trustee Deschaine moved to amend the 2018 Board Meeting Schedule by striking the April 3, 
2018 Township Board Meeting from the schedule.  Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 


 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus, Trustees    
                     Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland 
    
       NAYS:  None  


              
                     Motion carried unanimously. 


  
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY (None) 
 
11. HEARINGS (None) 
 
12. ACTION ITEMS 
 
 A. Zoning Amendment #17030 Allow Golf Courses as Open Space in a Planned Unit Development 


(PUD) and in a Planned Residential Development (PRD) - Final Adoption 
 
Trustee Deschaine moved to approve the Resolution for Final Adoption of Zoning Amendment 
#17030 to amend section 86-378 and section 86-439 of the Code of Ordinances to allow a golf 
course to be counted as open space in a Planned Residential Development (PRD) and Planned 
Unit Development (PUD).  Seconded by Trustee Opsommer 
 


ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  


 
NAYS: None  
             


           Motion carried unanimously 7-0. 
 
  
 B. Donley Elementary School 
 
Treasurer Brixie moved to authorize the Township manager to submit a request to the Michigan 
Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs for the delegation of school plan review and 
inspection authority to The Charter Township of Meridian Building Department. Seconded by 
Trustee Opsommer. 
 


Board and staff discussion: 
• Board member belief local government collaboration with shared school districts and 


coming together helps the schools and East Lansing, while Meridian Township retains  
building permit fees 


• Manager stated that Meridian Township has to work with The State of Michigan, the City of 
East Lansing, and East Lansing Schools for this project 


 







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 


 
PAGE 7 


VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus, Trustees    
                     Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland 
    
       NAYS:  None  


              
                     Motion carried unanimously. 


 
 
  
 C. Section 61 Review- Land Preservation Purchases 
 
Trustee Jackson moved to refer the five properties on the Land Preservations Acquisitions 2017 
Map for purchase by the Land Preservation Advisory Board to the Planning Commission for a 
Section 61 Review in Compliance with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act. Seconded by 
Treasurer Brixie. 
 


Board and staff discussion: 
 


• Before the Board can approve, the Planning Commission reviews the proposal and options 
• Board member excited about these purchases, properties acquired take years to negotiate 


and work out details 
• Properties can be complete donations, purchased with grants, partial donation and partial 


purchases, and some are outright purchases 
• Land Preservation will total approximately 900 acres with these additions 
• Land Preservation is innovative, originated in 2000 and was the first of its kind in the state 
• Preserved land will be appreciated by citizens for years to come 
• Hope that Planning Commission can support requests for more land preservation projects 
• Board member suggested working with the Parks Department and with volunteers to keep 


the preserved land natural without being overrun with invasive species 
 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus, Trustees    
                  Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland 
    
              NAYS:  None  


              
                            Motion carried unanimously. 


 
13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 


A. Commission Review #17093 2017 Master Plan Update 
• Director Kieselbach introduces the 2017 Master Plan Update that the Planning Commission 


(PC) voted to approve with conditions, ready for the Township Board meeting on November 
21, 2017 


• Board approved the Climate Sustainability Plan and it will be referenced in the Master Plan  
• Board changes to the Master Plan requires another public hearing at the PC 
• Inquiry if the Greenspace Plan is referenced like the Climate Sustainability Plan  
• Master Plan does not provide clear vision on the direction Meridian wants to be moving in 
• Plan focuses on mainly on increasing density, developers are going to build out apartments 


and party/convenience stores which serve transient renters 
• Community members discussing redevelopment don’t want apartments, they want 


destinations  to go to, a park or a community interaction zone or a real grocery store 
• 89% of Meridian citizens surveyed stated they do not want more apartment complexes 
• Board member belief that condensing zoning categories is not a vision, it allows developers 


to make the decisions, and developers  benefit the most from the Master Plan 







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 


 
PAGE 8 


• Board member assertion that MUPUD is just a tool and the developer’s use of it is driving the 
vision, rather than citizens and the Township Board driving the vision 


• Board member belief that Meridian needs more walkable areas, create interaction zones,  
new citizen engagement , natural sustainability and innovative landscaping 


• Clerk presents examples of what Meridian could be aiming for in creating  “place” with 
examples of innovative pocket parks: squeezed in “tight areas,” can have art/murals, theater, 
community engagement, food carts, unique seating, waterfalls, fountains, lush greenery, a 
sanctuary/labyrinth, 3 dimensionality 


• Commercial zones can have town squares, add innovative landscaping, be more community 
friendly, add water features, create new interaction patterns between people and business 


• Board member belief the Master Plan does get into vision and incorporates some of these 
same ideas being mentioned , nothing prevents innovative ideas from being adopted 


• Inquiry about medical marijuana facilities and inclusion in the Master Plan 
• Ordinance has to be adopted for medical marijuana but Master Plan does not prohibit them 
• Questions  about several maps in the Master Plan addressing streets and pathway markings 
• Funding is an issue, Meridian Redevelopment Fund and form-based code could create green 


spaces 
 


B. Outdoor Assemblies 
 
• Director Kieselbach presents information regarding a resident who submitted an application 


for an outdoor assembly license 
• License is required under Chapter 38, Article V, Outdoor Assemblies 
• An applicant proposing to have 500 people at their residence for an event, raised issues with 


noise, parking, disturbing other residents, and how will the host handle these issues 
• Staff is willing to write an amendment to ordinances 
• Township would be able to give more direction for the issues of concern 
• Township will take into consideration  weddings, graduation parties, and large gatherings 


when writing the ordinances and ordinances amendments 
• Board members wonder why a need for an regulations regarding large gatherings since they 


are rare, questioned if there have been reports of problems in the past 
• Board member suggests a threshold for gathering sizes 


 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Supervisor Styka opened Public Remarks. 
 
Jack Vos, 5720 Lebaron Ct., East Lansing;  his primary concern is the Master Plan adding density to 
open spaces, and stated the township is struggling to have open spaces that aren’t designated as 
public parks. Masonic Temple had many problems with the Township in the past when trying to add 
parking, so how can there now be apartment buildings designated in that same flood area? He 
wondered if planners saw blank spaces on a map and decided to indiscriminately fill up spaces with 
apartments.   
 
James Hart, 5706 Lebaron Ct., East Lansing; President of Okemos Masonic Temple, one of the oldest 
entities in Meridian Township and zoned commercial,  feel they are being forced to consider selling 
and move out of the area. Wants the Board to understand their concerns and states that they have to 
adapt to the Master Plan.  They are worried about how they will fit into the plan.   
 
Supervisor Styka closed Public Remarks. 







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 


 
PAGE 9 


 
15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
  


Treasure Brixie stated that tickets are available to the Okemos Education Foundation Banquet held 
on November 16, 2017 to celebrate the people who contribute to the Okemos Public Schools, she 
noted the Supervisor is receiving a volunteer award.  


  
 Trustee Deschaine mentioned that The Friends of Historic Meridian Annual Meeting is November 12, 


2017 at 3:00P.M., he praised their volunteer work and fundraising for the Historical Village.  
  
 Township offices are closed for Veterans Day on Friday, November 10, 2017. 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Treasure Brixie moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee Opsommer 


 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus, Trustees    
                  Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland 
    
      NAYS:  None  


              
                    Motion carried unanimously. 


 
 
 
Supervisor Styka adjourned the meeting at 8:05P.M. 
 
 
 


___________________________    ________________________________ 
RONALD J. STYKA      BRETT DREYFUS, CMMC 
TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR     TOWNSHIP CLERK 
 
Maggie Rodgers-Sanders, Secretary 
 







To: 


From: 


Date: 


Miriam Mattison, Finance Director 


November 21, 2017 


Re: Board Bills 


MOVED THAT THE TOWNSHIP BOARD APPROVE THE MAN AG ER'S 


BILLS AS FOLLOWS: 


COMMON CASH 


PUBLIC WORKS 


TRUST & AGENCY 


CREDIT CARD TRANSACTIONS 


Nov 3rd through Nov 15th 


ACH PAYMENTS 


TOTAL CHECKS: 


TOTAL PURCHASES: 


Meridian Township exists to create a sustainable community through 
the most effective use of available resources that achieve the highest quality oflife. 


9.C 


$ 206,861.11 


$ 97,244.91 


$ 60.00 


$ 304,166.02 


$ 7,394.86 


$ 311,560.88 


$ 451,207.20 


A PRIME COMMUNITY 
rneridiun.tni,us 







11/16/2017 10:50 AM 
User: hudecek 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


DB: Meridian 


Vendor Name 


1. 2/42 COMMUNITY CHURCH 


2. TALA ABOLIBDEH 


3 . ABONMARCHE 


4. CATHERINE ADAMS 


JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF 


Description 


STIPEND FOR SPECIAL ELECTION 11/7 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


STREET ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN 17-0532 
MERIDIAN FACILITIES ASSESSMENT 


TOTAL 


REIMBURSEMENT FOR MILEAGE - SEPT & OCT 
5. RUTH A AEDER 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 
6. AIRGAS GREAT LAKES 


7. ALDINGER INC 


8. RUTH ALLEN 


STANDING PO - MEDICAL OXYGEN 
STANDING PO - MEDICAL OXYGEN 


UTILITY BILLING 10/13 
UTILITY BILLING 10/31 
#10 WINDOW ENVELOPES 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 
9. AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION 


2018 ZONING PRACTICE 
10, APPLEGATE INC 


TOTAL 


TOTAL 


REIMBUSREMENT PERMIT WAS CANCELED-ST MARTHA'S 
SCHOOL 


11. ASAP PRINTING 
FORMS AND PAMPHLET PRINTING 


12. AT & T 
MONTHLY SERVICE 


13. AT & T 
MONTHLY SERVICE 
MONTHLY SERVICE 
MONTHLY SERVICE 
MONTHLY SERVICE 
MONTHLY SERVICE 
MONTHLY SERVICE 
MONTHLY SERVICE 
MONTHLY SERVICE 
MONTHLY SERVICE 


TOTAL 


14. AT & T MOBILITY 
MONTHLY SERVICE 


15. AUTO VALUE OF EAST LANSING 
FLEET REPAIR PARTS 2017 
TIP CLEANER 
FLEET REPAIR PARTS 2017 
FLEET REPAIR PARTS 2017 
BATTERY 
FLEET REPAIR PARTS 2017 
FLEET REPAIR PARTS 2017 


TOTAL 


16. ROSE MARIE BAUMANN 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


17. RICHARD BEADERSTADT 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


18. BETH BECHTEL 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


Amount 


75.00 


77. 50 


1,377.50 
2,520.50 


3,898.00 


61.53 


175.00 


65.70 
477.15 


542.85 


514.10 
515.22 
145 .11 


1,174.43 


170. 00 


95.00 


320.00 


244.91 


30.22 


124.83 
121.80 
121. 80 
267.81 
125.88 
125.88 
374.64 


2,595.39 
2,775.39 


6,633.42 


91.07 


125.00 
6. 49 
7.09 
4.89 


124.99 
40.50 


369.55 


678.51 


210.00 


210.00 


175.00 


Check# 







11/16/2017 10:50 AM 
User: hudecek 
DB: Meridian 


Vendor Name 


19. ANN M BECK 


20. RUTH BECKER 


21. BEE'S PREP & ASPHALT 


22. PAULA BJORNSTAD 


23. BLACKBURN MFG co 


24. DELPHINE BOOS 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF 


Description Amount 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 140.00 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 200.00 


2017 CONCRETE REPAIRS 7,774.02 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 160.00 


FLAGS & MULTI COLOR FLO WATER 250.12 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 85.00 
25. BOYNTON FIRE SAFETY SERVICE 


26. JAMES BRAZIER 


27. MARILYN BRITTEN 


28. CONSTANCE M BRITZ 


29. SUZANNE BROUSE 


30. BS&A SOFTWARE 


31. CAPITAL CITY INTERNATIONAL 


32. GINNY CHEUNG 


33. CINTAS CORPORATION #725 


34. JAMES A CIOLEK 


35. CITY OF EAST LANSING 


36. CITY PULSE 


37. COMCAST CABLE 


38. SALLY CONLEY 


39. CONSUMERS ENERGY 


40. JERRE CORY 


41. COURTESY FORD 


42. ROSLYN COVEY 


4 3 . ANNE CRUCE 


44. CHERYL DAVIO 


FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTION ANNUAL 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ACCESS MY GOV ANNUAL SERVICE 
TRUCKS 
ANNUAL DOT INSPECTIONS ESTIMATE 
ANNUAL DOT INSPECTIONS ESTIMATE 
ANNUAL DOT INSPECTIONS ESTIMATE 
ANNUAL DOT INSPECTIONS ESTIMATE 


TOTAL 


PARTIAL REFUND RENTAL REGISTRATION FEE 2044 
HAMILTON RD #27 


MECHANIC'S UNIFORMS 
MECHANIC'S UNIFORMS 


TOTAL 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


SHARED ASSESSOR SERVICES 


TWP NOTICES 


MONTHLY SERVICE 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


MONTHLY SERVICE 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


FORD REPAIR PARTS 2017 
FORD REPAIR PARTS 2017 
FORD REPAIR PARTS 2017 
FORD REPAIR PARTS 2017 


TOTAL 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


225.00 


220.00 


195.00 


90.00 


190.00 


12,600.00 


1,821.26 
(353.10) 


1,218.05 
500.48 


3,186.69 


700.00 


34.37 
34.37 


68.74 


215.00 


6,620.55 


75.45 


149.85 


160.00 


8.78 


140.00 


18. 96 
107.34 


18.75 
468.48 


613.53 


162.50 


200.00 


165.00 


Check# 







11/16/2017 10:50 AM 
User: hudecek 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 


Vendor Name 
Description 


45. EVELYN DAVIS 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


46. VIRGINIA DAWSON 


47. DBI 


48. JAMES DETJEN 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


BINDERS 
DESK CALENDAR 
PLANNER 
PLANNER 
DESK CALENDARS 
WALL CALENDAR & CLIPS 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 
49. DEWOLF AND ASSOCIATES 


F.T.O. PROGRAM - OFFICER KING 
50. DIETZ JANITORIAL SERVICE INC 


BANK CODE: GF 


TOTAL 


JANITORIAL SERVICE PSB, MUN BUILD, HARRIS CENTER 
2017 
JANITORIAL SERVICE PSB, MUN BUILD, HARRIS CENTER 
2017 


51. KELSEY DILLON 
REIMBURSEMENT FOR MILEAGE - OCT 


52. CHRISTINE DUVAL 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


53. MARY EDGAR 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


54. CATHERINE EDGAR 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


55. ELECTION SOURCE 
KEYLESS SECURITY SEALS 


56. BERTICE L ELLIS 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


57. VERONICA ESTRELLA 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


58. ELIZABETH EVANGELISTA 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


59. FAHEY SCHULTZ BURZYCH RHODES PLC 


60. DEANNE FELDPAUSCH 


61. ALEXANDRA FINELLI 


62. FIRST COMMUNICATIONS 


63. MARY FLETCHER 


64. MARY ELIZABETH FLETCHER 


LEGAL FEES-NOV 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 
LEGAL FEES 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


MONTHLY SERVICE 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


TOTAL 


TOTAL 


Amount 


150.00 


210.00 


15.60 
6. 29 


17.84 
17.84 
62.90 
16.33 


136.80 


95.00 


745.00 


2,001.90 


343.00 


2,344.90 


26. 75 


207.50 


200.00 


225.00 


31.19 


207.50 


165.00 


140.00 


5,000.00 
120.00 
400.00 
900.00 
480.00 
440.00 


2,087.50 
1,000.00 


160.00 
100.00 


82.00 
3,000.00 
1,332.00 
1,110.40 


16,211.90 


50.00 


162.50 


908.22 


75.00 


75.00 


Check# 







11/16/2017 10:50 AM 
User: hudecek 
DB: Meridian 


Vendor Name ' 


65. NANCY FREEMAN 


66. FRIEDLAND INDUSTRIES INC 


67. BARBARA GARRARD 


68. JOHN GARRISON 


69. EDWARD GENT 


70. CAROL ANN GIACIN 


71. KATHRYN GILLISON 


72. GRANGER 


73, JOAN GRAY 


74. STEPHANEY GUILD 


75. H.C. BERGER COMPANY 


76. DIANNE HADDOCK 


77. ROGER HALLEY 


78. CHRISTINE HAMPTON 


79. JAYNE HARRIS 


8 0 . ANN HARVEY 


81 . MARLENE HARVITH 


82. HASLETT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 


83. HASLETT COMMUNITY CHURCH 


84. ELAINE HIGH 


85, B RAY HORN 


86. DAVID HORNER 


87. BETH HUBBELL 


88. DAWN HUDECEK 


89. JEROME HULL JR 


90, INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 


91. IRON MOUNTAIN 


92. PATRICIA JACKSON 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF 


Description 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


FALL CLEAN UP EVENT 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


5151 MARSH RD ACCT #1106100 
ACCT #1106200 
ACCT #1106300 
ACCT #2509750 
ACCT #2598840 
ACCT#l5896200 
ACCT #16021600 
ACCT #17334070 
ACCT #17349880 


2100 GAYLORD C SMITH 
3711 OKEMOS 
5000 OKEMOS 
2100 GAYLORD C SMITH 
MONTHLY SERVICE 


2140 HASLETT & 3711 OKEMOS 
5151 MARSH RD 
2100 GAYLORD C SMITH 


ELECTION INSPETOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


CONTRACT BILLING HNC 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


BUS TRANSPORTATION - LUGNUTS GAME 


STIPEND FOR SPECIAL ELECTION 11/7 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ICC MEMBERSHIP 2018 J, HECKAMAN 


RECORD SHREDDING SERVICE 


TOTAL 


REIMBURSEMENT HOTEL-CONFERENCE IN HOLLAND MI 


Amount 


162.50 


450.10 


202.50 


167.50 


152.50 


150.00 


205.00 


111. 00 
128.51 


67.40 
76. 00 
75.00 


270.30 
9.00 


87.00 
17.50 


841. 71 


202.50 


50.00 


29.27 


152.50 


205.00 


202.50 


207.50 


195.00 


140.00 


179.27 


75.00 


167.50 


202.50 


87.50 


157.50 


50.00 


162.50 


135.00 


49.35 


391.29 


Check# 







11/16/2017 10:50 AM 
User: hudecek 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 


Vendor Name 


93. JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 


94. ALEX JOHNSON 


Description 


FLEET FUEL 2017 
FLEET FUEL 2017 


ELECTION INSPETOR 
95. NANCY G KANISTANAUX 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 
96 . SANDRA KARNES 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 
97. JEAN KAUFMANN 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 
98. JAGJIT KHANUJA 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 
99. L3 COMM MOBILE VISION INC 


BANK CODE: GF 


TOTAL 


EXTENDED MAINTENANCE AGGREEMENT FOR MOBILE VISION 
SOFTWARE 


100 LAND'S END BUSINESS OUTFITTERS 


101 LANSING UNIFORM COMPANY 


102 REBECCA MAY LEEFERS 


103 IRMA JEAN LILLROSE 


104 KATHERINE NINA LINCOLN 


105 JANET LINCOLN 


10 6 TOM MARSHALL 


107 ROBIN MATTESON 


108 TOM MCRAE 


109 MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 


NEW BRAND - STAFF JACKETS 


STANDING PO - UNIFORMS 
STANDARD POLICE UNIFORM PURCHASE 
STANDING PO - UNIFORMS 
STANDING PO - UNIFORMS 
STANDING PO - UNIFORMS 
STANDING PO - UNIFORMS 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


TOTAL 


TRANSFER FOR FLEX CKING PAYROLL 11/10 
110 MEDICAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS OF 


COLLECTION FEE 
111 MICHIGAN.COM 


MONTHLY ADS 
112 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 


POLICY PREMIUM 
113 MID MICHIGAN EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT 


EMERGENCY LIGHTING REPLACEMENTS 2017 
114 CYNTHIA MIMS 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 
115 MOORE MEDICAL LLC 


STANDING PO FOR EMS SUPPLIES/EQUIPMENT 
STANDING PO FOR MEDICAL SUPPLIES 
STANDING PO FOR MEDICAL SUPPLIES 


116 MATT MORFORD 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


117 MUZZALL GRAPHICS 
TAX BILLS AND TAX NOTICES 


118 NAMI-LANSING 
CRISIS INTERVENTION TRAINING 


TOTAL 


Amount 


10,302.15 
3,901.27 


14,203.42 


62.50 


210.00 


195.00 


155.00 


177. 50 


3,730.00 


861.70 


64.95 
258.00 


85.90 
158.85 
109.90 
205.00 


882.60 


200.00 


192.50 


155.00 


92.50 


200.00 


92.50 


152.50 


1,151.89 


5,923.28 


552.44 


43,789.15 


352.00 


152.50 


175.89 
1,420.64 
2,506.02 


4,102.55 


62.50 


725. 25 


300.00 


Check# 


96700 
96700 







11/16/2017 10:50 AM 
User: hudecek 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


DB: Meridian 


Vendor Name 


119 NAPA 


120 NETWORKFLEET, INC 


121 NEW HOPE CHURCH 


122 OKEMOS COMMUNITY EDUCATION 


123 OVERHEAD DOOR OF LANSING 


124 CARRIE L OWENS 


125 ELLEN K PASSAGE 


126 AMANDA PATTON 


127 PECKHAM 


128 ANNE PERKINS 


129 MARY ANN PETERSON 


130 GINGER PETTY 


131 KEN PHINNEY 


132 THE POLACK CORPORATION 


133 POSTMASTER 


134 PRINTING SYSTEMS INC 


135 PRINT MAKERS SERVICE INC 


Description 


REPAIR PARTS 9/17-12/17 
TIP DRILL SET 
JUMP STARTER & TESTER 
HARMONIC BALANCER PULLERS 


JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF 


TOTAL 


VERIZON NETWORKFLEET MONTHLY SERVICES MAY THROUGH 
DECEMBER 2017 


STIPEND FOR SPECIAL ELECTION 11/7 


NOVEMBER ELECTION-WARDCLIFF ELEMENTARY GYM 


PARTS & LABOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


MUNICIPALBUILDING/CEN FIRE JANITORIAL 2017 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


REIMBURSEMENT FOR EYE GLASSES 


MONTHLY CONTRACT 


ANNUAL MAILING PERMIT #27 
ANNUAL MAILING PERMIT #28 
POSTAGE FOR UTILITY BILLS 11/15/17 


ELECTION SUPPLIES 
ELECTION SUPPLIES 


TOTAL 


TOTAL 


MONTHLY METER CHARGE 
136 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INDUSTRIES 


SOIL TESTING FOR TOWNER ROAD PARK PROJECT 
137 PRO-TECH MECHANICAL SERVICES 


138 RICHARD RADWAY 


139 JOAN RATLIFF 


14 0 EMMA REARDON 


141 REDWOOD LANDSCAPING 


142 STEVE RENKE 


NO A/C UPSTAIRS NORTH 
NO A/C PSB 
SERVICE CENTER - LABOR 
NO HEAT N. FIRE STATION 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING LABOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


PATHWAY MOWING AND TRIMMMING 2017 


PERMIT@ 6093 E LAKE RD CANCELED 


TOTAL 


Amount 


73.44 
16. 49 


349.98 
78.28 


518.19 


56. 85 


75.00 


200.00 


653.61 


205.00 


195.00 


80.00 


2,445.16 


80.00 


195.00 


192.50 


100.00 


3,045.36 


225.00 
225.00 
314.17 


764 .17 


44.13 
44.81 


88.94 


185.87 


5,272.00 


105.00 
1,100.00 


140.00 
621.90 


1,265.53 


3,232.43 


162.50 


92.50 


160.00 


4,500.00 


37.50 


Check# 


96698 







11/16/2017 10:50 AM 
User: hudecek 
DB: Meridian 


Vendor Name 


143 KIT RICH 


144 RM ELECTRIC INC 


145 SHIRLEY RUMMINGER 


146 SAFETY SERVICES INC 


147 SAFETY SYSTEMS INC 


14 8 MARGARET SANDERS 


149 JUDY SCHUSTER 


150 JOHN SCOTTCRAIG 


151 SHAHEEN CHEVROLET INC 


152 ADREANNA SHAW 


153 JOYCE SMITH 


154 SPARROW OCCUPATIONAL 


155 SPECIAL A'FARE CATERING 


156 STAMP RITE INC 


157 STATE OF MICHIGAN 


158 ST LUKE LUTHERAN CHURCH 


159 SWAGIT PRODUCTIONS, LLC 


160 JANET M SWISS 


161 JOSHUA SYMANZIK 


162 RACHEL SYMANZIK 


163 TRACY SYMANZIK 


164 JODIE SZALANKIEWICZ 


165 AXON ENTERPRISE, INC 


166 TRINA TAYLOR 


167 JANET THOMAS 


168 RENEE TIERNEY 


169 DONNA TIMOCK 


1 70 TITUS FARM LLC 


171 MARY TREBILCOCK 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF 


Description 


REIMBURSEMENT FOR MILEAGE SEPT & OCT 


CROSSWALK@ KINAWA STREET 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


SAFETY GLASSES & JACKET FOR STAFF 


ANNUAL ALARM SERVICE AGREEMENT 


REIMBURSEMENT FOR MILEAGE - OCT 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


EMERGENCY AMBULANCE REPAIR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


CATERING FOR INTERN APPRECIATION NIGHT 


REPLACEMENT PAD FOR STAMP 


FEE FOR NEW MEDIC LICENSE 
ASSESSOR CERTIFICATION RENEWAL-DAVID UPCHURCH 
SRMS FEES 10/1/17-9/30/18 
ANNUAL WELL WATER SUPPLY FEE 


TOTAL 


STIPEND FOR SPECIAL ELECTION 11/7 


VIDEO STREAMING SERVICES AND CLOSED CAPTIONING 
SERVICES 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 
ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


TOTAL 


REIMBURSEMENT FOR SENIOR BRUNCH FLORAL 
ARRANGEMENTS 


TASER CARTRIDGES 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


PUMPKINS FOR HALLOWEEN ADVENTURES@ HNC 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


Amount 


141. 78 


305.30 


215.00 


88.93 


420.00 


9.52 


167.50 


202.50 


802.80 


157.50 


167.50 


253.50 


636.19 


5.00 


25.00 
175.00 


7,800.00 
137. 22 


8,137.22 


75.00 


3,462.00 


95.00 


140.00 
200.00 


340.00 


140.00 


157.50 


30.76 


990.00 


220.00 


75.00 


105.00 


182.50 


100.00 


205.00 


Check# 


96699 







11/16/2017 10:50 AM 
User: hudecek 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


DB: Meridian 


Vendor Name 


1 72 MARY TURNER 


173 UNITED CHURCH OF CHRIST 


174 VERIZON WIRELESS 


175 VIRIDIS DESIGN GROUP 


176 PATRICIA A WALSH 


1 77 JUDY WENZEL 


1 78 WEST SHORE FIRE 


179 ELIZABETH WHISTON 


180 KAREN R WHITMYER 


181 DONNA WILSON 


182 DOREEN WOODWARD 


183 JUANITA WORD 


184 XFINITY 


185 JILL YARBROUGH 


186 ZOLL MEDICAL CORP 


TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 


FUND TOTALS: 
Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND 
Fund 203 - LOCAL ROADS 


JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: GF 


Description 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


STIPEND FOR SPECIAL ELECTION 11/7 


MONTHLY SERVICE 


BIDDING AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES -
CONT WORK PO 52172 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


SCBA REPAIRS - PARTS 
SCBA MASK AMPLIFIER REPAIR 
STANDING PO - ALERT SIREN MAINTENANCE 


TOTAL 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


MONTHLY SERVICE 


ELECTION INSPECTOR 


STANDING PO FOR HEART MONITOR SUPPLIES 


Fund 204 - PEDESTRIAN BIKEPATH MILLAGE 
Fund 208 - PARK MILLAGE 
Fund 209 - Land Preservation Millage 
Fund 211 - PARK RESTRICTED/DESIGNATED 
Fund 230 - CABLE TV 
Fund 246 - TIRF 
Fund 661 - MOTOR POOL 


Amount 


162.50 


75.00 


2,457.86 


3,880.00 


207.50 


140.00 


11.25 
135.00 


2,175.00 


2,321.25 


195.00 


172.50 


172. 50 


165.00 


155.00 


12.82 


107.50 


338.40 


206,861.11 


155,802.35 
1,598.00 
6,420.31 


11,602.36 
100.33 
143.22 


5,445.50 
4,516.58 


21,232.46 


Check# 







11/16/2017 10:50 AM 
User: hudecek 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


DB: Meridian JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 


Vendor Name 


1. BEE'S PREP & ASPHALT 


2. BLACKBURN MFG CO 


3. FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386 


Description 


2017 CONCRETE REPAIRS 


FLAGS & MULTI COLOR'FLO WATER 


T-10 MTR ECDR USG 
WATER REPAIR PARTS 2017 


4. FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER 


BANK CODE: PW 


TOTAL 


SAW - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES THROUGH 10/31/17 
5. GRAINGER 


CLEANING SUPPLIES 
6. MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 


POLICY PREMIUM 
7. MICHIGAN RECREATION & PARKS ASSOC. 


PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP TOM PARKS 
8. ONE WAY ASPHALT PAVING 


2017 ASPHALT REPAIRS 
9. PERCEPTIVE CONTROLS 


INDUCTIVE AUTOMATION BASIC CARE SCADA SOFTWARE 
2018 


10. PRO-TECH MECHANICAL SERVICES 
LABOR - MAIN LIFT STATION 


11. SAFETY SERVICES INC 
42" GRABBER SAFETY CONES 16# 
JACKETS & SAFETY GLASSES 


12. TRI-COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING 


TOTAL 


FAIR SHARE PLEDGE OF GROUNDWATER MGMT 2017/2018 
13. VERIZON WIRELESS 


TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 


FUND TOTALS: 
Fund 590 - SEWER FUND 
Fund 591 - WATER FUND 


MONTHLY SERVICE 


Amount 


4,511.63 


450.63 


1,931.47 
572. 00 


2,503.47 


63,840.58 


55.60 


5,015.85 


135. 00 


1,177.40 


3,526.80 


105.00 


1,950.74 
146.41 


2,097.15 


13,374.00 


451.80 


97,244.91 


74,616.81 
22,628.10 


Check# 







11/16/2017 10:51 AM 
User: hudecek 
DB: Meridian 


Vendor Name 


1. STATE OF MICHIGAN 


TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 


FUND TOTALS: 
Fund 701 - TRUST & AGENCY 


INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
EXP CHECK RUN DATES 11/21/2017 - 11/21/2017 


JOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID 
BANK CODE: TA 


Description 


ENDING SOR REGISTRATION DATE 10/31/17 


Amount 


60.00 


60.00 


60.00 


Check# 







Credit Card Charges from November 3rd through November 15th 


Date Merchant Name Amount Account Name 
2017/11/07 244 AUTO VALUE EAST LANSI $146.52 DAVID LESTER 
2017/11/13 AC&E RENTALS OKEMOS $23.50 TYLER KENNELL 
2017/11/06 AC&E RENTALS OKEMOS $152.50 MATIFOREMAN 
2017/11/09 ACORN NATURALISTS $223.91 CATHERINE ADAMS 
2017/11/03 AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS $419.30 KRISTI SCHAEDING 
2017/11/03 AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS $31.14 KRISTI SCHAEDING 
2017/11/04 AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS $37.90 MICHELLE PRINZ 
2017/11/05 AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS $115.65 MICHELLE PRINZ 
2017/11/14 AMAZON.COM $7.87 MICHELLE PRINZ 
2017/11/08 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL $175.18 CATHERINE ADAMS 
2017/11/03 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL $27.96 MICHELLE PRINZ 
2017/11/08 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL $11.32 MICHELLE PRINZ 
2017/11/10 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL $18.44 MICHELLE PRINZ 
2017/11/13 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL $267.40 MICHELLE PRINZ 
2017/11/09 APPLE STORE #R616 $107.95 STEPHEN GEBES 
2017/11/09 ASFPM MADISON WI $160.00 ANGELA RYAN 
2017/11/10 ATHENEUM SUITES $532.80 SCOTIDAWSON 
2017/11/07 BAKEN CAKES $57.99 SCOTIDAWSON 
2017/11/07 BELLE TIRE 044 $45.00 JIM HANSEN 
2017/11/07 BEST BUY 00004168 $228.92 KATHERINE RICH 
2017/11/09 BEST BUY 00004168 $57.98 STEPHEN GEBES 
2017/11/08 BIGGBY COFFEE #121 $20.13 ROBIN FAUST 
2017/11/09 BIGGBY COFFEE #121 $31.79 ROBIN FAUST 
2017/11/08 CHANNING BETE CO AHA $24.95 WILLIAM PRIESE 
2017/11/03 CORAL GABLES OF EAST LANS $419.45 FRANKL WALSH 
2017/11/03 DEQPWS NCOM $137.22 KATHERINE RICH 
2017/11/08 EBAY INC. $160.00 BENJAMIN MAKULSKI 
2017/11/10 EBAY INC. ($160.00) BENJAMIN MAKULSKI 
2017/11/14 FOSTER SMITH MAIL ORDR $158.94 CATHERINE ADAMS 
2017/11/08 GHB-OKEMOS $6.75 ROBIN FAUST 
2017/11/06 HAMMOND FARMSLANDS $72.50 ROBERT STACY 
2017/11/06 HAMMOND FARMSLANDS $30.75 DAVID LESTER 
2017/11/07 HAMMOND FARMSLANDS $100.00 KEITH HEWITI 
2017/11/06 HENRY'S PLACE ($40.00) MIRIAM MADISON 
2017/11/07 HINES PRODUCTS CORP. $175.00 KRISTI SCHAEDING 
2017/11/13 HOBBY LOBBY #360 $65.00 KRISTI SCHAEDING 
2017/11/07 I-TECH MANUFACTURING COMP $1,025.00 WILLIAM PRIESE 
2017/11/08 JETS PIZZA OF HASLETI $85.98 MICHELLE PRINZ 
2017/11/08 JETS PIZZA OF HASLETI $6.35 MICHELLE PRINZ 
2017/11/09 KROGER #793 $25.88 DARCIE WEIGAND 
2017/11/09 LOWES #00777* $11.94 DENNIS ANTONE 
2017/11/07 MEIJER INC #025 QOl $39.92 KATHERINE RICH 
2017/11/07 MEIJER INC #025 QOl $23.95 BRETI DREYFUS 
2017/11/09 MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF C $255.00 DAVID HALL 
2017/11/08 MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOP $100.00 CHRIS BUCK 
2017/11/14 MIDWEST POWER EQUIPMEN $68.90 MATIHEW WALTERS 
2017/11/06 NFPA NATL FIRE PROTECT $71.45 DEREK BURCHAM 
2017/11/07 OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPOT #61 $24.98 SCOTIDAWSON 







2017/11/06 OFFICEMAX/OFFICEDEPOT #61 $19.99 CATHERINE ADAMS 


2017/11/14 OKEMOS HOWE INC $5.59 MATIHEW WALTERS 


2017/11/08 OKEMOS HOWE INC $16.08 ROBERT STACY 


2017/11/07 OKEMOS HOWE INC $79.16 KATHERINE RICH 


2017/11/14 PETMOUNTAIN COM $94.86 CATHERINE ADAMS 


2017/11/06 SHAHEEN CHEVROLET $149.99 JIM HANSEN 


2017/11/03 SOLDANS FEEDS PETS $10.74 CATHERINE ADAMS 


2017/11/09 SQ *CHARLES FANTA $206.00 CATHERINE ADAMS 


2017/11/11 STAPLES DIRECT $110.43 KATHERINE RICH 
2017/11/07 SUBWAY 00043992 $68.52 BRED DREYFUS 


2017/11/13 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $62.16 ROBERT STACY 
2017/11/13 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $35.97 TYLER KENNELL 


2017/11/13 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $9.98 PETER VASILION 
2017/11/13 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $29.98 PETER VASILION 


2017/11/03 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $21.94 DAN PALACIOS 
2017/11/07 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $119.82 WILLIAM PRIESE 
2017/11/03 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $46.73 KEITH HEWITI 


2017/11/07 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $28.94 KEITH HEWITI 
2017/11/09 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 ($28.94) KEITH HEWITI 
2017/11/06 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $3.27 MATI FOREMAN 
2017/11/06 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $31.52 MATIFOREMAN 
2017/11/06 THE HOME DEPOT #2723 $39.91 MATIFOREMAN 
2017/11/08 TLF*SMITH FLORAL AND GREE $21.00 DARLA JACKSON 
2017/11/08 U-HAUL JOLLY CEDAR $140.81 KEITH HEWITI 
2017/11/08 U-HAUL JOLLY CEDAR $128.30 KEITH HEWITI 
2017/11/09 VERIZON WRLS M4806-01 $97.46 STEPHEN GEBES 
2017/11/09 WEST MARINE #184 $34.99 ROBERT MACKENZIE 
2017/11/06 WW GRAINGER $18.60 DAVID LESTER 


TOTAL $7,394.86 







ACH Transactions 


Date Payee Amount Purpose 


11/07/17 Blue Care Network 13,647.87 Employee Health Insurance 


11/07/17 Consumers Energy 51,811.85 Twp Electric & Gas 


11/08/17 ICMA 31,885.65 Payroll Deductions 11/10/17 Payroll 


11/08/17 IRS 96,786.09 Payroll Taxes 11/10/17 Payroll 


11/08/17 Various Financial Institutions 243,617.05 Direct Deposit 11/10/17 Payroll 


11/16/17 Blue Care Network 13,458.69 Employee Health Insurance 


Total ACH Payments 451,207.20 







~ 
MERIDIAN A 
~0~~~~1' 
~ 


To: Board Members 


From: 9tf"~ 
Joyce A. Marx, Human Resources Director 


Date: November 16, 2017 


Re: Ratification of New Police Officer Appointment 


9.D 


The Township has presented a conditional offer of employment to a qualified police officer 
candidate. The prospective hiring will bring the staffing level of the police department to thirty-eight 
(38) sworn personnel. 


Leri co White obtained his Associates Degree in Criminal Justice from Mott Community College and 
graduated from the Law Enforcement Regional Training Academy (LERTA) in Flint, MI. He is excited 
to serve Meridian Township. 


A motion is prepared for Board consideration: 


MOVE TO RATIFY THE APPOINTMENT OF LERI CO WHITE TO THE POSITION OF POLICE 
OFFICER CONTINGENT UPON SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION OF THOSE ITEMS 
STIPULATED IN THE CONDITIONAL OFFER OF EMPLOYMENT. 


~ -


Providing a safe and welcoming. sustainable, prime community. 
A PRIME COMMUNITY 


meridian.mi.us 







12.A 


TO: 


FROM: 


ship Board ' 


MarkK~ 
Director of Community Planning and Development 


~~ 
Peter Menser 
Senior Planner 


DATE: November 15, 2017 


RE: Commission Review #17093 - 2017 Master Plan 


The Township Board discussed the 2017 Master Plan at its November 9, 2017 regular meeting. No 
changes to the document were proposed by the Board. The three conditions identified by the 
Planning Commission as part of its approval of the Master Plan; revisions to the Community Facilities 
map, the Public Transit map, and the Acknowledgments page, have been completed. The two revised 
maps were included in the November 9, 2017 meeting packet and the updated Acknowledgments 
page is attached for the Board's review. Another previously discussed revision, the addition of a 
reference to the Climate Sustainability Plan, has also been completed. 


A majority vote of the Township Board is required to approve the Master Plan. If the Township 
Board approves the Master Plan, the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (the "MPEA," Public Act 33 of 
2008) requires the Secretary of the Planning Commission to distribute copies of the approved Plan 
to adjacent municipalities, utilities, and government agencies. It also requires statements 
recording Planning Commission and Township Board approvals to be added to the inside of the front 
or back cover of the document. A copy of the signed resolution approving the Plan will also be 
included. 


Township Board Options 


The Township Board has the option to approve or reject the 2017 Master Plan. Any changes 
proposed to the content of the plan ( other than typographical or formatting) will require the 
Planning Commission to hold a new public hearing. A resolution to approve the Plan is attached. 


• MOVE to adopt the resolution approving the 2017 Master Plan and to request the 
Secretary of the Planning Commission to distribute copies of the approved Plan to 
adjacent municipalities, utilities, and government agencies as required by the MPEA. 


Attachments 
1. Resolution to approve 
2. Acknowledgements page from the 2017 Master Plan 


G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\COMMISSION REVIEWS (CR)\2017\17093 (Master Plan)\CR 17093 memo.tbl.docx 


~ 
Providing a safe and welcoming. sustainable, prime community, 


A PRIME COMMUNITY 


meridian.mi.us 







RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 


RESOLUTION 


Commission Review #17093 
2017 Master Plan 


At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 21st day of 
November, 2017, at 6:00 p.m., Local Time. 


PRESENT: 


ABSENT: 


The following resolution was offered by and supported by 


WHEREAS, the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Public Act 33 of 2008) authorizes the 
Planning Commission to prepare a Master Plan for the use, development, and preservation of all 
lands in the Township and to amend the Plan as needed from time-to-time; and 


WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Meridian retained a professional planning consultant, 
McKenna Associates, to assist the Planning Commission with the technical studies necessary to 
draft the Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission prepared a proposed updated Master Plan and Future 
Land Use Map and submitted the plan to the Township Board for review and comment; and 


WHEREAS, at its regular meeting on Feb 21, 2017, the Township Board received and 
reviewed the proposed Master Plan prepared by the Planning Commission and authorized 
distribution of the Master Plan to the Notice Group entities identified in the Michigan Planning 
Enabling Act; and 


WHEREAS, notice was provided to the Notice Group entities as required in the Michigan 
Planning Enabling Act; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on October 
23, 2017 to consider public comment on the proposed updated Master Plan and to further review 
and comment on the proposed updated Master Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission voted 8-0 to approve the Master Plan, subject to the 
following conditions: revisions to the Community Facilities map, the Public Transit map, and the 
Acknowledgments page; and 


WHEREAS, the conditions established by the Planning Commission in its approval of the 
Master Plan have been completed; and 


WHEREAS, the Township Board discussed the Master Plan at its meeting on November 9, 
2017 and reviewed the material forwarded by stuff under a cover memorandum dated November 1, 
2017;and 


WHEREAS, the Township Board finds that the proposed Master Plan is desirable, proper, 
and reasonable and furthers the use, preservation, and development goals and strategies of the 
Township. 







Commission Review #17093 
2017 Master Plan 
Township Board (November 21, 2017) 
Page 2 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves the Master Plan for the Charter Township of Meridian, 
dated November 21, 2017, along with the text, maps, charts, graphs, and other descriptive materials 
contained in the Plan, including the Future Land Use Map. 


ADOPTED: YEAS: 


NAYS: 


STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 


COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
) ss 


I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 
21st day of November, 2017. 


Brett Dreyfus, CMMC 
Township Clerk 


G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\COMMlSSION REVIEWS (CR)\2017\17093 (Master Plan)\ CR 17093 Resolution.tbl.docx 







Acknowledgments 


Township Board 


Ronald J. Styka, Supervisor 


Brett Dreyfus, Clerk 


Julie Brixie, Treasurer 


Phil Deschaine, Trustee 


Patricia Herring Jackson, Trustee 


Dan Opsommer, Trustee 


Kathy Ann Sund land, Trustee 


Elizabeth LeGoff* 


Milton L. Scales* 


John R. Veenstra* 


Angela Wilson* 


*former member 


Township Manager 
Frank Walsh 


Community Planning 
and Development 
Department 
Mark Kieselbach, Director 


Peter Menser 


Gail Oranchak 


Prepared by the Meridian Township, Michigan Planning Commission 


With the assistance of 


235 East Main Street, Suite 105 
Northville, Ml 48072 
www.mcka.com 


Planning 
Commission 


Dante Ianni, Chair 


John Scott-Craig, Vice-Chair 


Holly Cordill, Secretary 


Christine Tenaglia 


Brett DeGroff* 


Ken Lane 


David Premoe 


Jerry Richards 


Samantha Baruah 


Patricia Herring Jackson* 


Richard Honicky* 


Dan Opsommer* 


Joyce Van Coevering* 


Wayne Beyea* 


Tom Deits* 


David Delind* 


Adrienne Goldsberry* 


Shane Goodale* 


Lynn Hildebrandt* 


Tamara Jorkasky* 


Ody Norkin* 


David Reicosky* 


James Salehi* 


Milton Scales* 


Carole Wilcox* 


*former member 







 
 


 


  


Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 


 


12. B 


To:  Board Members 


From:  _______________________________________________ 


Miriam Mattison, Finance Director 


 


Date:  November 16, 2017 


Re:  Auditing Services Contract 


 


In accordance with the purchasing policy of the Township, formal proposals were solicited and 


received for audit services for the years 2017, 2018 and 2019.  Contracts are normally initiated for 


three years with options to renew on a year-to-year basis for two additional years.  The bid process 


is used to assure a regular review of the services and pricing being offered to the Township.  There 


is no requirement to rotate auditors on any regular schedule. 


I have had discussions with Township Manager Frank Walsh, Director Marx and Treasurer Brixie 


(the Departments with primary responsibility for financial activity) to assist in the review process.  


After considering six written proposals, two oral presentations, and discussions of the strengths and 


weaknesses of the firms being considered, I am recommending the firm of Yeo & Yeo.  The 


determining factors in this recommendation include: 


 the reputation of the firm and its partners 


 the professionalism of staff during the proposal process 


 the anticipated level of communication during the transition process and audit 


 availability year-round for consultation 


 knowledge and participation in GFOA and GASB standards  


 lower costs 


The professional fees proposed by Yeo & Yeo are lower than the fees paid to and proposed by our 


current auditors, at $39,000, $40,500 and $42,000 for 2017, 2018 and 2019 respectively.  If this 


recommendation is approved the Township will save $31,500 over 3 years and $52,600 over 5 


years. 


A motion is prepared for Board consideration: 


MOVE THAT THE TOWNSHIP BOARD APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF YEO & YEO AS 


AUDITORS FOR MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP AND AUTHORIZE THE TOWNSHIP MANAGER 


TO SIGN A 3-5 YEAR CONTRACT WITH THEM AT A COST OF $39,000, $40,500 AND 


$42,000 FOR 2017, 2018 AND 2019. 


 


 







 
 


 
  


 
 


12. C.  


 


To:  Township Board Members 


From:  Derek N. Perry, Assistant Township Manager 
  Director of Public Works & Engineering 
 
Date:  November 21, 2017 


Re:  Sleepy Hollow Proposed SAD- Resolution #3 


 


In the summer of 2016, the Township received two separate valid petitions to provide 
public water and sewer into the Sleepy Hollow Neighborhood and adjacent area. Since that 
time, the Township Board has held discussions on the item in February 2017, and March 
2017. In addition, a neighborhood meeting was also held by Township staff with the 
residents on May 3, 2017 at the Central Fire Station. After careful consideration, the 
Township Board authorized the start the special assessment process on September 29, 
2017 by approving Resolution #1.  
 
On Tuesday, October 17, 2017, the Board approved Resolution #2, which formally 
determined that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Township to make the 
proposed public improvements and to prepare the necessary special assessment roll. A 
public hearing was also held on October 17, 2017 to receive comments in favor and/or 
objections to the proposed water and sewer improvements.  
 
As part of the special assessment process (SAD), competitive bids were submitted to the 
Township for the construction of the projects and were opened on October 31, 2017. Of 
the four bids received, Brico Excavating was the lowest with a cost of $1,006,581.00 for 
the sewer portion of the project and $316,400.00 for the water portion of the project. 
Unfortunately this was $470,877 over the original estimate for the project. Since that time, 
our team has been negotiating with the low bidder on ways to reduce the overall costs of 
the project. As of late Friday afternoon we were still negotiating with the contractor to 
reduce the costs of the assessments as much as possible. At this point the individual 
assessment amounts of $42,462.55 for sewer and water and $29,279.22 for sewer only 
per parcel are being used. These numbers are based upon the original low bid that we 
received. We expect to have the reduced costs by Tuesday night, and will be able to revise 
and replace Resolution #3 at that time.   
 
If the Township Board is ready to proceed with project, Resolution 3 is attached for your 
adoption. Resolution #3 approves the estimate of cost, declares that the public 
improvements shall be paid by special assessment, files the special assessment roll and  







 
 


 
  


 
 


12. C.  


 
sets a public hearing for December 5, 2017. A part of the public hearing process, two 
notices will be placed in the newspaper, and individual notices will be sent to the owner of 
record for all the parcels in the special assessment district.   
 
Proposed Motion: 
 
“Move to approve the Sleepy Hollow Special Assessment District Resolution #3, 
approving the estimate of cost; declaring that the Public Improvements shall be 
paid by special assessment; approving the filing of the special assessment roll; and 
setting the public hearing for December 5, 2017 at 6:00 p.m.” 
 
 
Attachments: 







Page 1 of 7 
GRAPIDS 9119-17 475431v2 


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
Ingham County, Michigan 


RESOLUTION NO. 3 


FILING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL; NOTICE OF HEARING 


Minutes of a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, 


Ingham County, Michigan, held in the Township Hall, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, on 


November 21, 2017, at 6:00 p.m., local time. 


PRESENT:  


ABSENT: 


The following resolution was offered by Member ____________ and supported by 


Member ______________: 


WHEREAS, the Township Board, pursuant to Act 188, Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as 
amended (the “Act”), has resolved its intent to make the public improvements described in Exhibit 
A attached hereto (the “Public Improvements”); and 


WHEREAS, the Township has received construction bids for the Public Improvements and 
the cost of the Public Improvements is higher than the estimated costs of the Public Improvements; 
and 


WHEREAS, the increase in cost exceeds the estimates previously approved by the 
Township Board by more than 10%; and 


WHEREAS, the Supervisor of the Township has prepared, certified, and reported to this 
Township Board a special assessment roll for the parcels of property benefited by certain Public 
Improvements located in the Sleepy Hollow Area Water and Sewer Special Assessment District 
(the “Special Assessment District”) based on the revised estimate of costs. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED as follows: 


1. The revised estimate of costs in the amount of $42,462.55 for parcels receiving


sewer and water benefit and $29,279.22 for sewer benefit only is approved. 


2. The total revised cost of the Public Improvements shall be paid by special


assessments assessed within the Special Assessment District against the property benefitted by the 


proposed Public Improvements. 


3. The special assessment roll for the Special Assessment District (the “Special


Assessment Roll”) as reported to the Township Board by the Supervisor; shall be filed in the office 







Page 2 of 7 
GRAPIDS 9119-17 475431v2 


of the Clerk; and shall be available for public inspection during the normal working hours of the 


Township office. 


4. The Township Board shall hold a public hearing on December 5, 2017, at 6:00 p.m., 


at the Township Hall in the Township to review and hear any objections to the revised estimate of 


costs and to review and hear any objections to the Special Assessment Roll. 


5. The Clerk shall cause to be published a notice of hearing and the filing of the special 


assessment roll in the Lansing State Journal, a newspaper of general circulation within the 


Township, at least two (2) times prior to the public hearing, with the first publication at least ten 


(10) days prior to the public hearing.  Proofs of publication of such notice shall be filed with the 


Clerk. 


6. The Clerk, at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the public hearing, shall send a 


notice of the public hearing by first class mail addressed to each record owner, or party in interest, 


of each parcel of property to be assessed, at the address shown for such owner or party in interest 


upon the last township tax assessment records, as supplemented by any subsequent changes in the 


names or addresses of the owners or parties listed therein, except in the case of railroad companies, 


which shall be mailed a notice of the hearing by registered mail within five (5) days after the first 


publication of the notice described in paragraph 3 above. 


7. The notice of the hearing to be mailed and published pursuant hereto shall be in 


substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto. 


8. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be and the same are 


here rescinded. 


YEAS:             


            


NAYS:             


ABSTAIN:             


RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 


        
 Brett Dreyfus, CMMC, Clerk 
 Charter Township of Meridian 







Page 3 of 7 
GRAPIDS 9119-17 475431v2 


CERTIFICATION 


I, Brett Dreyfus, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution 
adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on November 21, 2017, and that public 
notice of said meeting was given pursuant to Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, including, 
in the case of a special or rescheduled meeting, notice by publication or posting at least eighteen 
(18) hours prior to the time set for the meeting. 


        
 Brett Dreyfus, CMMC, Clerk 
Dated:  November 21, 2017 Charter Township of Meridian 







Page 4 of 7 
GRAPIDS 9119-17 475431v2 


EXHIBIT A 


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
Ingham County, Michigan 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 


Sleepy Hollow Area Water and Sewer Special Assessment District 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Township Board of the Charter Township of 
Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, has resolved its intention to make certain public 
improvements (the “Public Improvements”) consisting of the following: 


The extension of water main and water system improvements and the 
extension of sanitary sewer mains and sanitary sewer system improvements. 


The Public Improvements shall be located in the Township within or serving the Sleepy 
Hollow Area Water and Sewer Special Assessment District (the “Special Assessment District”) as 
shown on the map attached as Schedule A. 


The Township has made its final determination of the Special Assessment District to 
consist of the following described lots and parcels of land and against which the cost of the 
Improvements shall be specially assessed: 


Property located in the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, and 
described by the following parcel numbers: 


33-02-02-04-376-005 33-02-02-09-202-004 
33-02-02-04-376-009 33-02-02-09-202-005 
33-02-02-04-376-010 33-02-02-09-202-006 
33-02-02-04-400-003 33-02-02-09-202-007 
33-02-02-04-400-004 33-02-02-09-202-008 
33-02-02-09-127-001 33-02-02-09-202-011 
33-02-02-09-127-002 33-02-02-09-202-012 
33-02-02-09-127-005 33-02-02-09-202-013 
33-02-02-09-201-002 33-02-02-09-202-014 
33-02-02-09-201-003 33-02-02-09-202-015 
33-02-02-09-201-004 33-02-02-09-202-016 
33-02-02-09-201-005 33-02-02-09-203-003 
33-02-02-09-201-006 33-02-02-09-203-004 
33-02-02-09-201-007 33-02-02-09-203-005* 
33-02-02-09-201-008* 33-02-02-09-203-006* 
33-02-02-09-201-009* 33-02-02-09-203-007 
33-02-02-09-201-010 33-02-02-09-203-008 
33-02-02-09-201-013 33-02-02-09-203-021 
33-02-02-09-201-014 33-02-02-09-203-022 
33-02-02-09-202-001  
33-02-02-09-202-002  
33-02-02-09-202-003  







Page 5 of 7 
GRAPIDS 9119-17 475431v2 


A Map showing the boundaries of the proposed Special Assessment District is shown on Schedule 
A. 


NOTICE IF FURTHER GIVEN that construction bids for the Public Improvements have 
been received and due to unanticipated cost increases, the estimate of the cost of the Public 
Improvements has increased by more than 10% above the estimate of costs previously approved 
by the Township Board. 


NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the Supervisor of the Charter Township of Meridian 
has made and certified a special assessment roll for the Special Assessment District, which roll 
sets forth the relative portion of the cost of the Public Improvements that is to be levied in the form 
of special assessments against each benefit lot and parcel of land in the special assessment district 


HEARING ON REVISED ESTIMATE OF COST 
AND ON SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 


TAKE NOTICE that the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian will hold 
a public hearing on December 5, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. at the Township Hall located at 5151 Marsh 
Road, Okemos, Michigan, to review the revised estimate of cost of the Public Improvements and 
to hear and consider any objects thereto and to review the special assessment roll and to hear and 
consider any objections thereto. 


TAKE NOTICE that appearance and protest at the public hearing is required in order to 
appeal the amount of the special assessment to the state tax tribunal. 


TAKE NOTICE that an owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person 
at the hearing to protest the special assessment, or may file his or her appearance or protest by 
letter, on or before the close of the hearing.   


TAKE NOTICE that any person objecting to the revised estimates of costs or to the 
assessment roll is requested to file written objections thereto with the Township Clerk before the 
close of the hearing, or within such further time as the Township Board may grant. 


TAKE NOTICE that an owner or any person having an interest in the real property may 
file a written appeal of the special assessment with the State tax tribunal within thirty (30) days 
after the confirmation of the special assessment roll, if the owner or person having an interest in 
the real property protested the special assessment at the hearing held for the purpose of confirming 
the roll. 


Michigan Tax Tribunal 
1033 S. Washington Avenue 
P.O. Box 30232 
Lansing, Michigan 48909 


TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the revised estimate of costs and the special assessment 
roll as prepared has been reported to the Township Board and is on file with the Township Clerk 
for public examination. 







Page 6 of 7 
GRAPIDS 9119-17 475431v2 


Meridian Charter Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, 
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed material being considered at 
the hearing, to individuals with disabilities at the hearing upon seven (7) days’ notice to the 
Meridian Charter Township Clerk.  Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services 
should contact the Meridian Charter Township Clerk. 


This notice was authorized by the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian. 


FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACT: 


Township Manager 
Charter Township of Meridian 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, Michigan 48864-1198 
Telephone:  (517) 853-4000 


 Brett Dreyfuss, CMMC, Clerk 
 Charter Township of Meridian 
 







SCHEDULE A 
MAP OF PROPOSED SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 


Page 7 of 7 
GRAPIDS 9119-17 475431v2 


 


-N,(co,,~WHtb 
IIOtO'l •'Xt 
UQ!~ .. ~\ 


~~AUN 
Mf• .,,..,.(lltllt 
rur~••MU 


1_} .... 


' \ 
\ 


11., (I• 
1'' 


LAXE LM~ RO 


I 


i 
i 


.i 
I 


! 


t 


I 
I 
~ 


[EJ 


I 


"'"T" 
,_ I 


16',o)O\.mt i 
i~:,~·'-~'· 
1n uuGltJrf. .. fM» 


... - - -·· - - -
--~ 
1 1,0U. lltOIIA•JAi f -·" 1 l')N CafDl"f '*1ffv.lC ! r<U1Ur.A.._...,., __ 


& ·--1•oon,, ..... o~·-.~ , su.u,·""""""'* 
J fAJ.t ~illtMU 


I 


_________ !_j 







13. A


To: Supervisor Ronald J. Styka & Board Members 


From: Phil Deschaine, Township Trustee and Board Representative to the 


Transportation Commission 


Date: November 16, 2017 


Re: Railroad Quiet Zone Preliminary Study 


At a recent meeting of the Township Transportation Commission, representatives of Abonmarche 


engineering firm presented the findings of a study performed for the Township on the concept of 


implementing Railroad Quiet Zones to eliminate the need for trains to use their horn at crossings 


when they traverse our community.  A copy of their study is attached. 


By way of background, an interested citizen completed preliminary research and petitioned the 
Township to pursue this endeavor. According to MDOT, no Michigan regulations or state statutes 
are available pertaining to whistle blowing, so only the federal guidelines apply.  


Two rail lines cross through the township: CSX and CN as the Grand Western Trunk Railroad (GTW). 
The current CSX line runs for 5.5 miles from East Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road that carries 1 
day train, 2 night trains, and 1 switching train cross through the Township daily.  


The CN railroad travels as the GTW rail line for approximately 6.7 miles through the Township. The 
CN railroad has much heavier train traffic than the CSX railroad with 17 trains per day and 1 train 
each night.  These 21 trains per day create a significant amount of noise pollution to Township’s 
residents and businesses.  In particular, residents in the northern half of the township endure these 
extremely loud railroad crossing horns day and night. 


The costs associated with upgrading all 5.5 miles of CSX crossings $648,490. Over $600,000 of this 
is cost to upgrade the Meridian Road and Hulett Road crossings.   A limited option could be 
implemented to extend the quiet zone from the Okemos Road crossing to Van Atta Road crossing, a 
distance of 2.91 miles at a cost of $27,440.  The cost would be significantly reduced because of the 
elimination of the upgrade costs required at the Hulett Road and Meridian Road crossings. 


The CN railroad travels as the Grand Trunk Western Railroad (GTW) for approximately 6.7 miles. 
The cost of the minor tasks needed to meet the standards is $7,500.  This is summarized on page 17 
on the study.  Because Haslett Public Schools are in close proximity to the Haslett Road – CN railroad 
crossing, the Abonmarche study recommends implementation of Z-gates like the one on used on the 
Michigan State University campus to improve safety by making pedestrians more aware as they 
approach the crossing. The cost associated with these Z-Gates for the Haslett Road crossing is 
$30,000. 


At its August 24th meeting, the Transportation Commission unanimously recommends that the 


Township Board implement the Quiet Zone limited option for the CSX line and for the CN Line with  







Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 


Memo to Township Board 
November 16, 2017
Re: Railroad Quiet Zone Preliminary Study
Page 2 


the additional costs of Z-gates at Haslett Road. The commission made these recommendations in as 


a way to mitigate the significant noise pollution of the many rail crossings in our Township while 
still maintaining acceptable safety standards. 


Attachment: 
1. Railroad Quiet Zones Study







PRELIMINARY STUDY: RAILROAD QUIET 
ZONES 


Prepared for: 


The Charter Township of Meridian 
5151 Marsh Road 


Okemos, Michigan 48864 


Prepared by: 







 


O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


 


2 


 


Table of Contents 
Introduction .............................................................................................................................................................3 


Background ............................................................................................................................................................4 


Railroad Crossings of Interest .............................................................................................................................4 


CSX Rail Line Evaluation ..................................................................................................................................4 


CN Rail Line Evaluation ................................................................................................................................. 10 


Alternative options ............................................................................................................................................. 12 


Costs ....................................................................................................................................................................... 13 


CSX Quiet Zone ............................................................................................................................................... 13 


Option 1: E Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road ...................................................................... 13 


Option 2: Okemos Road to Van Atta Road ................................................................................ 15 


CN Quiet Zone ................................................................................................................................................ 17 


Hagadorn Road to Green Road ................................................................................................... 17 


Option 1: Additional Suggested Safety Improvements ............................................................. 17 


Next Steps ............................................................................................................................................................. 19 


CSX Quiet Zone ............................................................................................................................................... 19 


CN Quiet Zone ................................................................................................................................................ 19 


References ........................................................................................................................................................... 20 


Appendix A – U.S. DOT Crossing Inventory Forms for CSX Crossings .................................................... 21 


Appendix B – U.S. DOT Crossing Inventory Forms for CN Crossings ...................................................... 37 


 


  







 


O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


 


3 


Introduction 
The Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) requires trains to blow whistles for at least 15 seconds 
before every public grade crossing to maintain the safety of the crossing and reduce the 


potential for collisions.  This whistle blowing can impact the quality of life and home values for 
the environment near the tracks. 


 
One option for mitigating this noise pollution is for municipalities to establish quiet zones.  Quiet 
zones must extend for at least ½ mile of track and may include one or several crossings.  To be 


considered for a quiet zone, crossings must, at a minimum, have active warning devices such 
as flashing lights, gates, constant warning train detection systems and power out indicators.  


Once these basics are provided, the process of seeking a quiet zone can be pursued by 
improving the crossing to meet one of the following criteria: 
 


• The Quiet Zone Risk Index (QZRI) is less than or equal to the Risk Index with [Train] Horns 
Sounding (RIWH) 


• The QZRI is less than the National Significant Risk Threshold (NSRT) 
 
The NSRT is determined annually.  Crossings established as quiet zones based on being less 


than the NSRT require more frequent reevaluation.  It may be a more conservative practice to 
establish a quiet zone based on the RIWH.  The QZRI can be reduced through the 
implementation of one of many possible Supplementary Safety Measures (SSMs) as described 


in Figure 1. 


The QZRI can also be reduced through the use of other Alternative Safety Measures (ASMs), 
with written permission from the FRA.  Upgrading crossings to reduce the QZRI to an 
acceptable value can cost anywhere from $3,000 to over $1 million depending on what 


measures are necessary to improve safety.  [1]  The SSMs required to meet these criteria can 
be determined by utilizing the FRA Quiet Zone Calculator to implement SSMs and evaluate 


their reduction of risk.  If a quiet zone is implemented, the crossing warning signs must be 
upgraded to include a warning that horns are not being used at the crossing.  The FRA 
recommends a diagnostic team be created to evaluate the crossings in the proposed quiet 


zone.  A diagnostic team evaluation is required for proposed quiet zones which include 
private crossings.  Diagnostic teams consist of representatives from the public authority, 


 
Figure 1: Available SSM codes for use in reducing Quiet Zone Risk Index 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


4 


Figure 2: Aerial map depicting 5.5 miles of CSX railroad crossings in the 
Charter Township of Meridian 


railroad, State agency responsible for crossing safety and FRA grade crossing managers 


before a quiet zone is created. 


Background 
The Charter Township of Meridian requested an investigation into the requirements and 


feasibility of establishing a railroad quiet zone on the rail lines that stretch through the 


township.  An interested citizen completed preliminary research and petitioned the township 


to pursue this endeavor.  According to MDOT, no Michigan regulations or state statutes are 


available pertaining to whistle blowing, so only the federal guidelines apply. [3]  Michigan is in 


Region 4 of the FRA, based out of Chicago. [4]  Two rail lines cross through the township: CSX 


and CN as the Grand Western Trunk Railroad (GTW). 


Railroad Crossings of Interest 


CSX Rail Line Evaluation 
The current CSX line from East Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road in the Charter Township of 


Meridian is an approximately 5.5 mile stretch of track with 8 at-grade crossings including one 


private crossing, depicted in Figure 2.  1 day train, 2 night trains, and 1 switching train cross 


through the township daily. 







 


O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


 


5 


 
Figure 3: Private CSX crossing on Sylvan Glen Road 


Preliminary findings based on Google Earth street view and a field visit to each CSX crossing 
are summarized in the following table: 


 


At Grade 


Crossing 


Sidewalk 


Lights Bells Gates Signage 


Pavement 


Markings 


Existing SSMs 


(# from Fig. 1) W E 


Detectable 


Warnings 


E Mt Hope Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  


S Hagadorn Rd ☒ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  


Hulett Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ ☒  


Okemos Rd ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  


Dobie Rd ☒ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  


Sylvan Glen Rd ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐  


Van Atta Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☐  


Meridian Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ ☒  


 
The public crossings at Hulett Road and Meridian Road need to be upgraded to include gates 


before a quiet zone could be considered for the entire length.  MDOT would not financially 
contribute to these improvements as there is not a measureable safety benefit to 


implementing a quiet zone; therefore all the funding must come from the road authority.  The 
Michigan Department of Transportation’s Office of Rail advised that the cost of implementing 
new lights and gates systems at a crossing would depend on the complexity of the crossing 


such as its proximity to other crossings, but may be estimated to cost $300,000 per crossing. 
 


The private crossing at Sylvan Glen Road appears to serve two homes from a private drive and 
only has signs as a crossing warning, see Figure 3.  A private crossing’s risk index is not factored 
into the overall QZRI, but requires diagnostic team review during consideration of a quiet zone.  


At a minimum the FRA requires private crossings in a quiet zone to have a stop sign and a sign 
signifying “no horn”. 


 







 


O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


 


6 


The FRA conducts crossing inventories which include: crossing location, railroad information, 
traffic control device information, physical characteristics, and public highway information.  


The most recent inventory forms for the crossings within Meridian Township along the CSX 
railroad can be found in Appendix A.  To establish a quiet zone, these forms would need to be 


updated within a year preceding a request for a quiet zone. 
 
Assuming the minimum required updates could be completed by adding gates at the Hulett 


Road and Meridian Road crossings, the FRA’s Quiet Zone Calculator can be utilized to 
determine the current risk indices at each crossing as shown in Figure 4. 


The quiet zone calculator result indicates that additional safety measures beyond the 
implementation of gates would be required to improve the crossings to meet the qualifications 
of a quiet zone since the QZRI is higher than the NSRI and the RIWH. 


 
SSM 12 is defined as mountable medians with channelization devices and is the most cost 
effective SSM option; SSM 13 is a non-traversable curb median with or without channelization 


devices, as defined in Figure 1.  Each of these methods requires implementation for 100 feet 
along the roadway on either side of the crossing.  Driveway entrances are located within 100 


feet from the crossing at Hagadorn, Okemos, Dobie, and Meridian Roads making the 
implementation of SSMs 12 and 13 impossible without impeding access.  SSM 12 could be 
installed at the crossing on Mount Hope, Hulett, and Van Atta Roads with no impacts on 


driveways.  The result of constructing those improvements is shown in Figure 5. 


 
Figure 4: Quiet Zone Evaluation of the CSX Railroad in the Charter Township of 


Meridian including lights and gates at Hulett and Meridian Roads 







 


O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


 


7 


While installing SSM 12 at Mount Hope, Hulett, and Van Atta Roads does make the quiet zone 
technically acceptable by reducing the QZRI lower than the NSRI, it is advised that improving 


overall safety in the quiet zone should concentrate first on reducing risk at the highest-risk 
crossings.  The following two options were, therefore, also considered.  The driveways within 
100 feet of the crossing at Okemos Road appear to receive low volume use, so impeding 


access may not be very impactful.  Figure 6 shows that implementing SSM 13 at the Okemos 
Road crossing and SSM 12 at Van Atta Road would be adequate to reduce the risk within the 


zone to below NSRI. 


 


 
Figure 5: Risk calculation with installation of SSM 12 at CSX crossings 


on Mt. Hope, Hulett, and Van Atta Roads 


 
Figure 6: CSX Quiet Zone with SSM 13 at Okemos Road 


and SSM at Van Atta Road 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


8 


Figure 7: Aerial map depicting 2.91 miles of CSX railroad crossings in the 
Charter Township of Meridian 


Figure 8: Proposed 2.91 mile long CSX quiet zone 


Because a quiet zone only has to extend for a continuous 0.5 miles of track, a quiet zone 
could be implemented from the Okemos Road crossing to Van Atta Road crossing, a distance 


of 2.91 miles shown in Figure 7. 


The cost would be significantly reduced because of the elimination of the upgrade costs 
required at the Hulett Road and Meridian Road crossings.  Running the quiet zone calculator 


again yields the results shown in Figure 8.  Since the QZRI is greater than the NSRI and the RIWH, 
some additional improvements are necessary. 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


9 


If SSM 13 was implemented at the Okemos Road crossing as discussed previously, the risk 
would be reduced enough to implement a quiet zone from Okemos Road to Van Atta Road, 


see Figure 9. 


Figure 9: 2.91 mile long CSX Quiet Zone with SSM 13 at Okemos Road 







 


O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


 


10 


CN Rail Line Evaluation 
The CN railroad travels as the Grand Trunk Western Railroad (GTW) for approximately 6.7 miles 
through the Charter Township of Meridian.  Figure 10 shows the 5 public at-grade crossings. 


Preliminary findings utilizing Google Earth street view and a field visit to each CN crossing are 


summarized in the following table: 
 


At Grade 


Crossing 


Sidewalk 


Lights Bells Gates Signage 


Pavement 


Markings 


Other SSMs 


(# per 


Figure 1) W E 


Detectable 


Warnings 


Hagadorn Rd ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ 14, Z-gate 


Okemos Rd ☐ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  


Haslett Rd ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  


Carlton Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  


Green Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  


Figure 10: Aerial map depicting 6.7 miles of CN railroad crossings in the 
Charter Township of Meridian 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


11 


Hagadorn Road marks the division between the Charter Township of Meridian and the City of 
East Lansing, specifically Michigan State University’s campus.  At this railroad crossing there is a 


Z-gate, shown in Figure 11,  on the East Lansing side of the street, which acts as a passive
warning device to alert pedestrians to the fact they are about to cross the tracks.


The inventory forms for the crossings within Meridian Township along the CN railroad can be 


found in Appendix B.  The CN railroad has much heavier train traffic than the CSX railroad with 
17 trains daily and 1 train each night. 


Hagadorn Road acts as a divided road at this crossing, and the curb height is the required 6” 
to be considered a preexisting SSM 13.  The calculator shows, in Figure 12, that the QZRI is 


lower than the RIWH at the current conditions; therefore it is possible a quiet zone could be 
established without additional SSM installation. 


Figure 11: A z-gate used as a passive warning system to pedestrians of railroad 
crossing on East Lansing side of Hagadorn Road 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


12 


Figure 13: A wayside horn 


Figure 12: Current quiet zone evaluation of the CN railroad in the 
Charter Township of Meridian 


Alternative options 
As an alternative to quiet zones, communities may choose to silence locomotive horns 


through the installation of wayside horns, like the one in Figure 13, at each crossing as a one 
for one substitute for train horns.  Wayside horns are directed at the highway at their installed 


crossing so they confine the noise to a radius directly around the crossing as compared to a 
locomotive horn being sounded along the track before reaching the crossing. 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


13 


Costs 


CSX Quiet Zone 


Option 1: E Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road 
The costs associated with upgrading 5.5 miles of CSX crossings in the Township to Quiet Zone 
appropriate risk levels are summarized in the following table and shown in Figure 14. 


Cost Location Cost Description Price 


Every Public Crossing Update USDOT Inventory Forms (7) $7,000 


Hulett Road Upgrade to lights and gates $300,000 


Hulett Road New pavement marking on S side $305 


Okemos Road Implement SSM 13 $23,000 


Van Atta Road Implement SSM 12 $15,000 


Meridian Road Upgrade to lights and gates $300,000 


Meridian Road New pavement marking on N side $305 


Every Crossing Install “No Horn” Signs (16) $2,880 


Total $648,490 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


14 


Figure 14: Quiet zone implementation costs at each CSX crossing from Hagadorn Road to 
Green Road as described in Option 1 







 


O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


 


15 


Option 2: Okemos Road to Van Atta Road 
The costs associated with upgrading 2.91 miles of CSX crossings in the Township to Quiet Zone 


appropriate risk levels are summarized in the following table and shown in Figure 15. 
 


Cost Location Cost Description Price 


Every Public Crossing Update USDOT Inventory Forms (3) $3,000 


Okemos Road Implement SSM 13 $23,000 


Every Crossing Install “No Horn” Signs (8) $1,440 


Total $27,440 


 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


16 


Figure 15: Quiet zone implementation costs at each CSX crossing from Okemos Road to 
Van Atta Road as described in Option 2 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


17 


CN Quiet Zone 


Hagadorn Road to Green Road 
The preexisting SSM 13 at Hagadorn Road reduces the quiet zone’s risk index to an 
acceptable level without further safety measures being taken.  The cost of the minor tasks 
needed to meet the standards is summarized in the following table. 


Cost Location Cost Description Price 


Every Public Crossing Update USDOT Inventory Forms (5) $5,000 


Green Road Install pavement marking on S side $305 


Every Crossing Install “No Horn” Signs (10) $1,800 


Total $7,105 


Option 1: Additional Suggested Safety Improvements 
During the investigation it was discovered that the Haslett Public Schools are in close proximity 
to the Haslett Road – CN railroad crossing.  Due to school’s proximity, more, younger 


pedestrian traffic is prevalent at this crossing than others.  Implementation of Z-gates like the 
one on Michigan State University’s campus at the CN Hagadorn Road crossing would improve 
safety by making pedestrians more aware as they approach the crossing.  The cost associated 


with moving forward with this option is described in the following table and shown in Figure 16. 


Cost Location Cost Description Price 


Haslett Road Z-gates at each pedestrian approach $30,000 


Total $30,000 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


18 


Figure 16: Quiet zone implementation costs at each CN crossing including the Z-gate 
option at the Haslett Road 







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


19 


Next Steps 


CSX Quiet Zone 
If the Charter Township of Meridian decides to pursue a quiet zone on the CSX railroad from 


either Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road or Okemos Road to Van Atta Road, the following 
steps are recommended. [5] 


1. Upgrade all public crossings to include, at a minimum, lights and gates with constant


warning time devices and power out indicators before a quiet zone.  The crossings at
Hulett Road and Meridian Road both only have lights currently.


2. Update the U.S. DOT Crossing Inventory Forms for each crossing within the proposed
quiet zone within a year of the proposal as required by the FRA.


3. Provide a Notice of Intent (NOI) to: railroads who utilize the crossings, the State agency


responsible for highway safety and the State agency responsible for crossing safety with
the location of the proposed quiet zone and the tentative plan to improve safety to the
standards necessary.  Because the public authority of the roads in the Charter Township


of Meridian is Ingham County, the diagnostic team would likely include a representative
from the County.


4. Install the most cost-effective risk-abating solutions.  An application must be filed with
the FRA if any ASMs are being used.


5. Update the pavement markings at the Hulett and Meridian Road crossings if included in


the quiet zone and the signage for all private, public, and pedestrian crossings.
6. Establish a quiet zone by providing a Notice of Quiet Zone Establishment; the quiet zone


can take effect no sooner than 21 days after the Notice is mailed.


CN Quiet Zone 
If the Charter Township of Meridian decides to pursue a quiet zone on the CN railroad from 


Hagadorn Road to Green Road, the following steps are recommended. [5] 
1. Update the U.S. DOT Crossing Inventory Forms for each crossing within the proposed


quiet zone within a year of the proposal as required by the FRA.


2. Provide a Notice of Intent (NOI) to: railroads who utilize the crossings, the State agency
responsible for highway safety and the State agency responsible for crossing safety with


the location of the proposed quiet zone and the tentative plan to improve safety to the
standards necessary. Because the public authority of the roads in the Charter Township
of Meridian is Ingham County, the diagnostic team would likely include a representative


from the County.
3. Update the pavement markings at the Green Road crossing and the signage for all


private, public, and pedestrian crossings.


4. Establish a quiet zone by providing a Notice of Quiet Zone Establishment; the quiet zone
can take effect no sooner than 21 days after the Notice is mailed.







O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 


20 


References 
[1] https://www.csx.com/index.cfm/library/files/about-us/property/quiet-zones/
[2] http://safetydata.fra.dot.gov/quiet/index.aspx


[3] http://www.michigan.gov/mdot/0,4616,7-151-12967_22649-60220--,00.html
[4] https://www.fra.dot.gov/Page/P0244


[5] https://www.fra.dot.gov/eLib/Details/L04781







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
07 10 2014


234408V


CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM


EAST LANSING
MT HOPE ROAD


✘ CR


✘ ✘


SOO


CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0083.03


CH WILLIAMSTON CSX


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7078590 -84.4508510


800-232-0144 517-335-2592


1 2 1


40
35 40


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


07/10/2014 234408V


✘ 0 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


✘


2
2


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


4 ✘✘


✘


✘ ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


45


✘


✘


2004 013000 30 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION                          OMB No. 2130-0017 
 
Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency  C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit     Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State    Other    Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number    
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                                    |* (Block Number)    


6. Highway Type & No. 
 
_______________________________________ 


7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No   
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                              ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No     
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                                               ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


9. Railroad Division or Region 
 
 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 
 
 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 
 
 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost 
_______|____________|____________ 
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix) 


13. Line Segment 
      * 
_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _________________________________ 


17. Crossing Type 
 
 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position 
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing) 
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger 
 Commuter 


 
 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 
 
 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 
 
 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 


26.  HSR Corridor ID 
 
__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 
 
 Actual         Estimated    


30.A.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.A.  State Use   * 
 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.B.  State Use   * 
 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.C.  State Use   * 
 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.D.  State Use   * 
 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 
 


32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  * 
 


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted) 
 
_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
______________________________________ 


35.  State Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements 
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 
 
__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 
 
__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than  
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______ 


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 
 
__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing 
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________ 
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________ 


4. Type and Count of Tracks 
 
Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only) 
        Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 
6.  Is Track Signaled? 
        Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder 
        Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring 
        Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 1 OF  2  


✘ ✘
07 10 2014


234407N


CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM


EAST LANSING
HAGADORN RD✘


CR


✘ ✘


SOO


CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0082.76


CH TROWBRIDGE CSX


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘ ✘


42.7105440 -84.4620350 ✘


J75313 305521692-AID


800-232-0144 904-359-1048 517-335-2592


1 2 1


40
35 40


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 2 OF  2 


 
 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 


A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals? 
 
 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count) 
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count) 


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5) 
  Yes  (count_______)  
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians 


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed  
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs                              Yes     No    2.K. Private Crossing 
Signs (if private) 
 
 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 
 
 Specify Type  _______________ 


Specify Type _______________ 
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply) 
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 
 
Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count) 


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights  
(count of masts) _________ 


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 
 
Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 
 
 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current  
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________                    Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn   3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling 
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count) 


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________ 


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 
 
 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected 
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 
 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply) 
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection 
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic 
                                                 Two-way Traffic 
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic 


2.  Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No 


3.  Does Track Run Down a Street? 
 


 Yes          No 


4.  Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No 


5.  Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________ 
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal       
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________           


6.  Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet? 
 
  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7.  Smallest Crossing Angle 
 
  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°      


8.  Is Commercial Power Available? * 
 


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


 
  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing 
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  * 


6. LRS Milepost  * 


7.  Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________ 


8.  Estimated Percent Trucks 
___________________  % 


9.  Regularly Used by School Buses? 
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10.  Emergency Services Route 
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 
 
 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


07/10/2014 234407N


✘ 4 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


✘


2
2


0


0
10


✘ 2


0


3 ✘✘ ✘


✘


✘ 75 ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


50
✘


✘


2003 012600 25 ✘ 7



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION                          OMB No. 2130-0017 
 
Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency  C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit     Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State    Other    Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number    
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                                    |* (Block Number)    


6. Highway Type & No. 
 
_______________________________________ 


7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No   
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                              ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No     
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                                               ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


9. Railroad Division or Region 
 
 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 
 
 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 
 
 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost 
_______|____________|____________ 
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix) 


13. Line Segment 
      * 
_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _________________________________ 


17. Crossing Type 
 
 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position 
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing) 
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger 
 Commuter 


 
 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 
 
 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 
 
 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 


26.  HSR Corridor ID 
 
__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 
 
 Actual         Estimated    


30.A.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.A.  State Use   * 
 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.B.  State Use   * 
 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.C.  State Use   * 
 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.D.  State Use   * 
 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 
 


32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  * 
 


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted) 
 
_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
______________________________________ 


35.  State Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements 
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 
 
__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 
 
__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than  
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______ 


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 
 
__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing 
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________ 
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________ 


4. Type and Count of Tracks 
 
Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only) 
        Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 
6.  Is Track Signaled? 
        Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder 
        Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring 
        Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 1 OF  2  


✘ ✘
07 10 2014


234406G


CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM


OKEMOS
HULLETT ROAD


✘ CR


✘ ✘


SOO


CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0081.61


CH TROWBRIDGE CSX


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7055020 -84.4406970


800-232-0144 517-335-2592


1 2 1


40
35 40


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


07/10/2014 234406G


✘ 0 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


0
0


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


2 ✘✘


✘


✘ ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


25
✘


✘


2003 001600 15 ✘ 9



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
07 10 2014


234405A


CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM


OKEMOS
OKEMOS RD


✘ CR


✘ ✘


SOO


CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0081.18


CH TROWBRIDGE CSX


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7038000 -84.4324040


800-232-0144 517-335-2592


1 2 1


40
35 40


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


07/10/2014 234405A


✘ 0 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


2
2


0


0
0


✘ 2


0


4 ✘✘


✘


✘ 75 ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


40


✘


✘


2004 024893 10 ✘ 60



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
07 10 2014


234404T


CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM


OKEMOS
DOBIE RD


✘ CR


✘ ✘


SOO


CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0079.99


CH TROWBRIDGE CSX


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.6986010 -84.4105990


800-232-0144 517-335-2592


1 2 1


40
35 40


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 2 OF  2 


 
 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 


A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals? 
 
 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count) 
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count) 


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5) 
  Yes  (count_______)  
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians 


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed  
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs                              Yes     No    2.K. Private Crossing 
Signs (if private) 
 
 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 
 
 Specify Type  _______________ 


Specify Type _______________ 
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply) 
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 
 
Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count) 


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights  
(count of masts) _________ 


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 
 
Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 
 
 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current  
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________                    Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn   3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling 
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count) 


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________ 


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 
 
 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected 
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 
 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply) 
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection 
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic 
                                                 Two-way Traffic 
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic 


2.  Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No 


3.  Does Track Run Down a Street? 
 


 Yes          No 


4.  Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No 


5.  Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________ 
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal       
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________           


6.  Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet? 
 
  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7.  Smallest Crossing Angle 
 
  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°      


8.  Is Commercial Power Available? * 
 


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


 
  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing 
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  * 


6. LRS Milepost  * 


7.  Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________ 


8.  Estimated Percent Trucks 
___________________  % 


9.  Regularly Used by School Buses? 
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10.  Emergency Services Route 
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 
 
 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


07/10/2014 234404T


✘ 0 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


✘


2
0


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


2 ✘✘


✘


✘ 75 ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


35
✘


✘


2004 012300 15 ✘ 36



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No


If Yes, Specify RR 
          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
07 10 2014


234403L


CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM


OKEMOS
SYLVAN GLEN RD✘


PVT.


CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0079.57


CH TROWBRIDGE


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.6907460 -84.3729930


800-232-0144 517-335-2592


1 2 1


40
35 40


0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


07/10/2014 234403L


✘ 0 0


✘


✘


✘


0
0


0


0
0


✘ 0


0


1970 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
07 10 2014


234402E


CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM


OKEMOS
VANATTA ROAD


✘ CR


✘ ✘


SOO


CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0078.27


CH WILLIAMSTON CSX


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.6912000 -84.3786010


800-232-0144 517-335-2592


1 2 1


40
35 40


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


07/10/2014 234402E


✘ 0 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


2
0


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


2 ✘✘


✘


✘ ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


45
✘


✘


2004 001900 15 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
07 10 2014


234401X


CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM


EAST LANSING
MERIDIAN ROAD


✘ CR


✘ ✘


SOO


CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0077.53


CH WILLIAMSTON CSX


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.6899990 -84.3638000


800-232-0144 517-335-2592


1 2 1


40
35 40


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


07/10/2014 234401X


✘ 0 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


0
0


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


2 ✘✘


✘


✘ ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


55
✘ ✘


2004 003000 25 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix A







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
03 04 2013


283653G


Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM


EAST LANSING
HAGADORN ROAD✘


CITY


✘ ✘


ATK


MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0225.47


TROWBRIDGE CN GTW


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7212980 -84.4621960


800-617-6617 517-335-2592


17 1 0


65
60 65


2


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


03/04/2013 283653G


✘ 4 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


4
4


2
0


4


0
0


✘ 2


0


4 ✘✘


✘


✘ 75 ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


35


✘


✘


2004 021900 25 ✘ 8



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
03 04 2013


283655V


Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM


HASLETT
OKEMOS ROAD


✘ COUNTY


✘ ✘


ATK


MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0227.51


HASLETT CN GTW


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7528990 -84.5407030


800-617-6617 517-335-2592


17 1 0


65
60 65


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


03/04/2013 283655V


✘ 2 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


2
2


2
0


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


2 ✘✘


✘


✘ 75 ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


40
✘ ✘


2004 012200 25 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
03 04 2013


283658R


Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM


HASLETT
HASLETT ROAD


✘ COUNTY


✘ ✘


ATK


MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0229.01


HASLETT CN GTW


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7253990 -84.5822980


800-617-6617 517-335-2592


17 1 0


65
60 65


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


03/04/2013 283658R


✘ 2 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


2
2


2
2


2


0
0


✘ 2


1 SIDELITE


3 ✘✘


✘


✘ 75 ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


25


✘


✘


2002 012300 05 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION                          OMB No. 2130-0017 
 
Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency  C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit     Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State    Other    Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number    
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                                    |* (Block Number)    


6. Highway Type & No. 
 
_______________________________________ 


7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No   
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                              ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No     
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                                               ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


9. Railroad Division or Region 
 
 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 
 
 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 
 
 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost 
_______|____________|____________ 
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix) 


13. Line Segment 
      * 
_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _________________________________ 


17. Crossing Type 
 
 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position 
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing) 
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger 
 Commuter 


 
 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 
 
 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 
 
 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 


26.  HSR Corridor ID 
 
__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 
 
 Actual         Estimated    


30.A.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.A.  State Use   * 
 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.B.  State Use   * 
 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.C.  State Use   * 
 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.D.  State Use   * 
 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 
 


32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  * 
 


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted) 
 
_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
______________________________________ 


35.  State Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements 
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 
 
__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 
 
__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than  
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______ 


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 
 
__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing 
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________ 
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________ 


4. Type and Count of Tracks 
 
Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only) 
        Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 
6.  Is Track Signaled? 
        Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder 
        Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring 
        Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 1 OF  2  


✘ ✘
03 04 2013


283659X


Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM


HASLETT
CARLTON ROAD


✘ COUNTY


✘ ✘


ATK


MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0229.33


HASLETT CN GTW


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7490010 -84.3981020


800-617-6617 517-335-2592


17 1 0


65
60 65


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


03/04/2013 283659X


✘ 2 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


2
2


2
0


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


2 ✘✘


✘


✘ 75 ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


25
✘


✘


2003 001400 15 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
03 04 2013


283660S


Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM


HASLETT
GREEN ROAD


✘ COUNTY


✘ ✘


ATK


MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0231.08


HASLETT CN GTW


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7624020 -84.3691020


800-617-6617 517-335-2592


17 1 0


65
60 65


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


03/04/2013 283660S


✘ 2 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


2
2


2
0


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


2 ✘✘


✘


✘ ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


35
✘


✘


2003 001400 15 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION                          OMB No. 2130-0017 
 
Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency  C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit     Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State    Other    Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number    
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                                    |* (Block Number)    


6. Highway Type & No. 
 
_______________________________________ 


7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No   
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                              ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No     
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                                               ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


9. Railroad Division or Region 
 
 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 
 
 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 
 
 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost 
_______|____________|____________ 
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix) 


13. Line Segment 
      * 
_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _________________________________ 


17. Crossing Type 
 
 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position 
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing) 
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger 
 Commuter 


 
 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 
 
 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 
 
 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 


26.  HSR Corridor ID 
 
__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 
 
 Actual         Estimated    


30.A.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.A.  State Use   * 
 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.B.  State Use   * 
 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.C.  State Use   * 
 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 
 


31.D.  State Use   * 
 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 
 


32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  * 
 


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted) 
 
_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
______________________________________ 


35.  State Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements 
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 
 
__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 
 
__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than  
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______ 


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 
 
__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing 
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________ 
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________ 


4. Type and Count of Tracks 
 
Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only) 
        Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 
6.  Is Track Signaled? 
        Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder 
        Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring 
        Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 1 OF  2  


✘ ✘
03 04 2013


283661Y


Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM


HASLETT
BARRY ROAD


✘ CR


✘ ✘


ATK


MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0232.07


HASLETT CN GTW


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7695010 -84.3522030


800-617-6617 517-335-2592


17 1 0


65
60 65


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


03/04/2013 283661Y


✘ 2 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


2
2


2
0


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


2 ✘✘


✘


✘ 75 ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


55
✘


✘


2004 001000 15 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 


Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 


B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 


Data  
 New 
Crossing 


 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 


 Quiet 
Zone Update 


 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 


 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 


 Admin. 
Correction 


Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 


2. State 
________________________________ 


3. County 
____________________________________ 


4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 


5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   


6. Highway Type & No. 


_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 


          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 


8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 


             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 


 None        _______________________ 


10. Railroad Subdivision or District 


 None        _______________________ 


11. Branch or Line Name 


 None        _______________________ 


12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)


13. Line Segment 
* 


_________________________ 


14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 


15. Parent RR  (if applicable)


 N/A        _____________________________ 


16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)


 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 


 Public 
 Private 


18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 


19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 


20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 


21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 


 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 


22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 


23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 


 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 


25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 


 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 


__________________ N/A  


27. Latitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 


28. Longitude in decimal degrees 


(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 


29. Lat/Long Source 


 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 


30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 


30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 


30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 


32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *


33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)


_________________________________ 


34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 


______________________________________ 


35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)


_________________________________ 


Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 


1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 


1.C. Total Switching Trains 


__________ 


1.D. Total Transit Trains 


__________ 


1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______


2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 


__________ 


3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________


4. Type and Count of Tracks


Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 


6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 


7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 


7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 


FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 


✘ ✘
03 04 2013


283662F


Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM


HASLETT
SHOEMAN ROAD


✘ COUNTY


✘ ✘


ATK


MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0232.15


HASLETT CN GTW


✘


✘ ✘


0


✘


✘


42.7703020 -84.3500980


800-617-6617 517-335-2592


17 1 0


65
60 65


1


✘


✘



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 


U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 


Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?


 Yes     No 


2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 


2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 


2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)


2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 


2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 


2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 


2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians


2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 


2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 


 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 


Dynamic Envelope 
 None 


 All Approaches 
 One Approach 


 Median 
 None 


2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)


 Yes     No 


2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 


Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 


Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 


3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 


Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 


3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)


3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________


3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 


 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 


 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 


Over Traffic Lane        _____ 


Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 


 Incandescent 


 LED 


 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 


 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 


3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 


3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 


3.I. Bells 
(count)


  Yes  
  No 


Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 


3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 


3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________


4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 


 Yes     No 


4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 


4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 


6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 


  Simultaneous 
  Advance 


Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 


Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic


   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic


2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 


 Yes          No


3. Does Track Run Down a Street?


 Yes          No


4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No


5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        


6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?


  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 


7. Smallest Crossing Angle 


  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     


8. Is Commercial Power Available? *


 Yes          No 


Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 


  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 


2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 


  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 


3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 


4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 


5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *


6. LRS Milepost  *


7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________


8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 


9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 


10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 


Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 


Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 


03/04/2013 283662F


✘ 2 0
✘


✘


✘


✘


2
2


2
0


2


0
0


✘ 2


0


2 ✘✘


✘


✘ 75 ✘ ✘


✘


✘


✘


55
✘


✘


2002 003700 20 ✘ 0



rwhise

Text Box

Appendix B







Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 


13. B


To: Supervisor Ronald J. Styka and Board Members 


From: Phil Deschaine, Township Trustee and Board Representative to the 


Transportation Commission 


Date: November 16, 2017 


Re: Recommendations from the Transportation Committee regarding CATA 


At the October 19th meeting, the Meridian Township Transportation Commission, the 
Commission passed a motion that recommends the Township Board negotiate a formal 


agreement for with CATA for Redi-Ride service, replacing the 2000 letter of agreement. The new 
agreement would include regular reporting, data collection, on-going communications with the 


Township Board and Transportation Commission, service standards, updated technology tools 


for riders, investigation of options for cross border commerce centers, and pursuit of increased 


capacity and and/or hours of service.  


As background, I have attached draft a copy of the 2000 letter of agreement between Meridian 
Township and CATA. 


On a related issue, the Transportation Commission has not yet taken action on the proposal 


to expand Redi-Ride service hours into the evening by utilizing two funding sources CATA has 


obtained.  These funding sources are grants named Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC), and 


New Freedom Funds (NFF). Both are three-year grants, which could be used to fund a portion of 


expanded evening service from 2018-2020. 


 Attachment: 


1. 2000 Letter of Agreement







Capital Area Transportation Authority 


CATA 


T 
Amcri c:i 's 


Best 


Mr. William McCullough 
Township Supervisor 
Meridian Township 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, MI 48864 


Dear Mr. McCullough: 


May 19, 2000 


This letter is to confirm the basis for CATA's expansion of public transportation 
service In Meridian Township (the "Township") over a ten (10) year period through 
December 31, 2010. Initially, CATA will provide Redi-Rlde service, which is demand- response 
curb-to-curb service. As has been announced, this Redl-Ride service will be provided with 
two CATA small bus veh icles, Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. beginning 
June 12, 2000, and on Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. beginning November 25, 2000. 
CATA will provide the two small bus vehicles for the service and will Incur other capital and 


operating costs, such as for additional vehicles, labor, marketing, administration, and 
maintenance. 


The Redi-Ride service will be provided within two (2) service areas in the 
:rownshlp, one generally north and one south of Grand River, although each area will overlap 
the general business districts of Meridian Mall and Okemos Meijer. (See attached map). 
A transfer will be required to ride between the two service areas. CATA may reorganize the 
service areas within the Township for efficiency, ridership demand, or other customary public 
transportation considerations. 


CATA will schedule rides In accordance with its demand-response transportation 
practices, which currently permit rides to be reserved In advance by telephone during 
specified daily hours, currently 6:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. Reservations 
must be made at least four (4) hours prior to the ride. Fares for service will be CATA's 
customary fares, which are currently $1.00 for adults and one-half adult fare (i.e., 50¢) for 
students, seniors, and persons with disabilities. CATA fixed route passes are not accepted for 
demand- response service. 


4615 Tranter Avenue • Lansing, Michigan 48910 • (517) 394- 11 00 • FAX (517) 394.3733 


Jean Golden • Board ( h,1ir Sandy Draggoo • Executive Director 







Mr. William McCullough 
Township Supervisor 
Meridian Township 


May 19, 2000 
Page Two 


Meridian Township has a very good school transportation system. When that 
transportation is available to a student, school ~ransportatlon will not be provided by the Redi­
Ride service. Also, demand response service is not provided to those who could reasonably 
use fixed route service to reach their destinations, but service will be given to or from a fixed 
route when this Is practical. Customers may be required to transfer between demand­
response service and fixed route service to complete their trip. Service cannot be restricted 
to Township residents. 


CATA's marginal costs for the service expansion are to be funded by the 0.2 
transportation millage which was approved by Meridian Township voters in November 1999. 
The Township has levied and will pay over to CATA all such transportation millage funds 
collected for calendar years through December 31, 2010, less adjustments necessitated as a 
result of orders from the Michigan Tax Tribunal or boards of review. The Township will not be 
requ ired to pay any additional funds for service expansion. CATA will deposit Township 
millage funds received in CATA's general account to support expanded service within the 
Township. CATA will retain for Its own general purposes any fares, grants, or other funds 
received directly or indirectly in connection with the expanded services. 


CATA will maintain an accounting of expenses in a manner consistent with 
CATA's accounting practices, which wlll be made available at reasonable times to Meridian 
Township and which reflects Township millage funds received and costs incurred or paid for 
the Red l-Rlde service or other expanded service in the Township. The accounting of expenses 
wi[[ include reserves for capital purchases to support expanded service. 


We anticipate providing expanded services for ten (10) years through 
December 31, 2010, although It is not possible to commit at this time to the details of such 
expanded services other than the above Redi-Rlde service. For this reason, the initial 
commitment to provide Redi·Ride service will continue until the parties agree on other 
expanded services consistent with ridership demand, available millage receipts, costs, and 
public transportation factors. 


CATA has begun marketing the Redi-Rlde service to develop ridership demand. 
As ridership demand develops, CATA will review with the Township additional Redl-Ride 
service by increasing the number of vehicles and other expanded services which might be 
provided within the Township. Such expanded services and service changes will be 
considered and provided as appropriate within CATA's service plan procedures, after approval 
by the Township. 







Mr. William McCullough 
Township Supervisor 
Meridian Township 


May 19, 2000 
Page Three 


CATA has developed and shared with the Township multi-year estimates of 
costs, tax receipts, and ridership demand for fu.ture years. CATA wfll prepare a budget for 
expanded services In the Township which wlll be updated annually based on CATA's fiscal year 
(i.e., October 1 through September 30). Should CATA determine that transportation millage 
funds received from the Township are not or will not be sufficient to maintain expanded 
services, CATA and the Township will discuss service reductions and other alternatives. 
Should the parties fall to agree on such service reductions or alternatives, CATA may 
terminate expanded services upon sixty (60) days written notice to the Township, In which 
case CATA will refund to the Township millage funds received in excess of charges and costs 
paid or incurred by CATA for the expanded services, Including capital costs. 


We should also be clear that the expanded services are subject to the followlng: 


1. The expanded services are provided by CATA as a public transportation 
authority within its service area and Integrated Into the CATA system. 
Meridian Township shall not be responsible for providing any 
transportation services under this agreement. 


2. CATA and Meridian Township shall be available at reasonable times to 
meet and discuss the services provided, the budget for services, 
expenditures made for services, tax receipts, and other subjects of 
concern to the parties regarding this service. 


3. CATA and the Township shall provide each other with such reasonable 
reports and information regarding the services as each may request. 


4. The expanded services wlll be planned, budgeted, and forecast based on 
CATA's fiscal year beginning October 1 and ending September 30. 


5. Meridian Township is responsible for collecting the transportation millage 
and paying these funds to CATA the month following receipt. 


6. CATA is undertaking expanded services in anticipation of receiving, prior 
to June 12, 2000, at least $224,000 for Its actual operating and capital 
costs this year and to support the plan for service in future years. 


7. If service cannot be provided due to causes outside of the control of the 
parties, or because of war, declaration of state, national emergency, riot, 
acts of God or public enemy, strike, work stoppage, or slowdown, service 
may be limited or discontinued by CATA. If such event occurs, CATA will 
be available at the request of the Township to discuss a mutually 
acceptable resolution. 







- , . 


Mr. William McCullough 
Township Supervisor 
Meridian Township 


May 19, 2000 
Page Four 


If the foregoing Is satisfactory to Meridian Township, please Indicate acceptance 
by signing and returning to me the enclosed copy of this letter. 


/ejw 
Enclosure 


cc: With enclosure: 
Mary Helmbrecht, Township Clerk 
Gerald Richards, Township Manager 


ACCEPTED: 


MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 


By: U/ // ~ #r'C~4~,-y,L 
William McCullough 
Meridian Township Supervisor 


By: 
&«~c_[> 


Gerald Richards 
Meridian Township Manager 


Very truly yours, 


CAPITAL AREA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 


By: '~ggo,r~,~ 
Executive Director 


Dated :_ ..... ~ __ -_-""""'/_z _-_C---=()=-----


Dated :_e,-+/___._1_,h.._...,_' c.._·) ___ _ 
l 7 







~--------------------------~--------~----• I 
I 


IC1pslon, j I I 
Commons Apt! I I 


+ I 18,andywln•\ ~ I I 
I f" - • c,,,k Aptt • ;:•ng• Acres I 
ILi I 1 .. \ I 


L----~.._ __ ,...,1 1~~1:fp:•f,• .. l . : 
' ._e,n,on HIii• Apttl I 


.. ,.. -1 aw,--· . -·' I . l 
I J J 


1 


- ~ i 'H111t1ri HSI : 
',\J ·. '; I 


I •O 


(r,andor"9 


:·1 ..• --•. ~ 
•••••• .# ........ • ~ 


~ .. 
1 •• •• 


1
Mlchi91n S111• 1 • 
Un lwtn lty 


ITwycklogh1m Apts 1 


• 
; te~r~!~! .ipi,J 


' I 
' I 
,ciuii iiieiiciiin Ai,is 1 ' . . . 
t 
I 
I 
I 
I 
______ ..., ___ _ 


,~I!~~, c,-,~ !< i.J • 


~---..&-~------~-~----~ 


A 


Meridian Twp Service 
Map Layers 


r_-.,!HHlelt Redl Ride 
L: ,.!Okemoe Redl Ride 
~Redl Ride Overlap 


@ High School 
e College/University 
a MallfShopplng Center 


l!1 Store 
+ Housing 
0 .6 1 1.5 


MIies 


CATA Proposal 







Providing a safe and welcoming. sustainable, prime community 


13. C


To: Township Board 


From: 


Frank L. Walsh, Township Manager 


Date: November 16, 2017 


Re: 2018 Township Goals  


Based on our discussion Tuesday evening, we have compiled a 2018 Action Plan for your review.  


The 2018 departmental blue print and 2018 Action Plan are attached.  The list is not prioritized. 


Our TEAM is more than prepared to meet the challenges ahead of us. We look forward to the 


opportunity to continuing to serve Meridian’s residents in an exemplary manner.   


Attachments: 


1. 2018 Goals Action Plan
2. 2018 M-Team Department Work Plan







 
 


 
  


Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 


2018  


GOALS ACTION PLAN-DRAFT 
 


 


 
A. Create and adopt additional tools to assist in the redevelopment of our core 


commercial areas including the Four Corners of Okemos and the Downtown Haslett.  
 
 


B. Continue our efforts to lower our Fire Insurance Rating through the Insurance 
Services Organization (ISO) from a 4 to 3. 
 
 


C. Develop a comprehensive plan to fund our deteriorating local road system. 


 


D. Implement a Township sponsored solar array and foster enacting timely 
components of the recently adopted Climate Sustainability Plan. 


 


E. Determine the appropriate course of action regarding medical marijuana. 


 


F. Solidify our plans with the Meridian Mall for the construction of a new Farmers’ 
Market on Central Park Drive.  


 


G. Achieve Redevelopment Ready Community (RRC) Certification through the Michigan 
Department of Economic Development (MEDC). 
 
 


H. Continue to maximize recruiting and networking efforts to achieve increased 
diversity in our workforce.  
 


I. Implement a plan to provide a comprehensive emergency siren program throughout 
the Township.    


 


J. Enhance our recently developed website to maximize exposure and provide timely 
information.     


 
K. Develop a plan to continue to offer a curbside public transportation service beyond 


2019. 
 







1 


MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 
2018 M-TEAM DEPARTMENT PLAN 


ASSESSING 


 Defend Tax Appeals with Vigor
 Conduct Annual Assessment/Re-Inspection of Taxable Properties
 Fully participate in the Local Update of the Census Addresses (LUCA) program in


preparation of the 2020 Census


COMMUNICATIONS & MARKETING 


 Create/find additional revenue sources


 Develop video archive system & integrate into current system ($75,000 approved by board
in 2018 budget)


 Create visitor guide (sell ads to offset cost) and create feature videos for key components to
the guide


 Adopt social media policy


 Consider updating “Welcome to Meridian” signage in 2019


COMMUNITY, PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 


 Obtain Redevelopment Ready Community certification
 Redevelopment of Haslett and Downtown Okemos
 Adopt Form Based Code
 Begin Meridian 2020 Master Plan review/update
 Amend outdated/outmoded ordinances: MUPUD, Parking, Signs
 Further establish Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA)
 Optimize Community Planning/Development website
 Update all applications, making them easier to use
 Develop guides for all CP&D processes
 Develop intern training ground with MSU Planning interns
 Review and update Planning, Building and Rental Housing procedures/processes
 Adopt 2015 International Maintenance Code.
 Consider updating “Welcome to Meridian” signage in 2019


ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 


 Redevelopment Ready Community - certified via MEDC


 Redevelopment Fund - standard operating procedures, policies, applications developed and


approved by Township Board


 Revitalize the PICA districts referenced in the Master Plan – solicit developers, land owners,
commercial realtors and business owners and drive projects to the Planning Division


 Business Attraction & Retention Plan – develop standards and implement


 Modernize Zoning Ordinance – assist, where applicable, in the revision and implementation


of updated PUD, Overlay Districts & Form Based Code







2 


 Board Recruiting – develop plan for board member attraction, on-boarding, engagement


and retention for the EDC, DDA, CIA and BRA


 Website – Assist communications in making the Economic Development components of the
website more complete, robust and fluid to navigate


 Roads – work with ICRD, MDOT and Public Works to ensure all roadway work is conducive
to Economic Development


FINANCE 


 Work on the on line payment processing system


 Review and update Purchasing Policy


 Continue to seek opportunities to reduce overall operating expenses


 Continue to seek opportunities to reduce our MERS and Other Post-Employment Benefits


(OPEB) debt


 Support the efforts to raise $10,000 for Meridian Cares


FIRE DEPARTMENT 


 Install 1,250 combination smoke/CO alarms as part of the FEMA grant
 Continue training new acting officers on Blue Card
 Install additional outdoor warning sirens
 Complete review and update of all Standard Operating Guidelines
 Complete conversion to online daily and monthly vehicle checks
 Complete training of two new full-time firefighters
 Lower our current Insurance Safety Organization (ISO) fire rating of (4)


HUMAN RESOURCES 


 Continue to expand our diversity and inclusion initiatives including relationship with
LEAP diversity work group


 Implement new employee appreciation and recognition programs and events
 Continued development of Township-wide workplace safety initiatives
 Maintain the highest quality, cost effective healthcare, dental, vision, life and LTD


insurance coverages
 Update personnel policy manual to reflect needed additions and changes
 Continue to reduce potential grievances and address all issues in a timely manner
 Work with the Michigan Township Association (MTA) to perform a cost/benefit


analysis regarding the Township of Excellence Certification


INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 


 Continue to seek opportunities to reduce overall operating costs


 Create a Diversity and Inclusion Strategy supported by leadership and employee
involvement to maintain a well-rounded workforce


 Continue energy, water, and waste reduction efforts in Township buildings and other


facilities







3 


 Continue to respond to all citizen inquiries in a timely, professional, and efficient manner


 Replace 50 workstations to avoid issues with out of date hardware & operating systems


 Begin implementation of Point & Pay service with prioritization of Utility Billing Payments


 Review, plan, & rebid existing telephone & point to point service connection contracts


 Add high throughput data connection as primary Internet service at the Town Hall Building


 Provide expanded technology training opportunities


PARKS AND RECREATION 


 Engineer and bid new footbridge and bathroom building project in Meridian Historical
Village


 Engineer and bid Central Meridian Regional Trail Connector project
 Construct dog park in Central Park South
 Engineer and construct phase I of “Marketplace on the Green” at Meridian Mall
 Complete construction of Towner Road Park
 Expand parking lot at North Meridian Road Park
 Repave Eastgate Park
 Complete design and installation of trailhead and directional signage in parks
 Purchase and install new park signs utilizing new township logo
 Complete pathway bridge replacements and pathway repairs that are funded through the


Ingham County Parks and Trails Millage
 Construct patio/courtyard improvements at the Meridian Senior Center
 Successfully plan and implement the 2018 Celebrate Meridian event as well as other special


events throughout the year.
 Continue implementation of the Deer Management Program
 Continue implementation of recreation programs for youth, adults and seniors
 Investigate new software and web-based options to improve cemetery services


POLICE DEPARTMENT 


 Begin state accreditation through the Michigan Association of Chiefs of Police
 Continue efforts to reduce workers compensation and lawsuits claims
 Implement new state accreditation and training software
 Upgrade the in-car video camera system
 Migrate to cloud based digital evidence storage and management
 Upgrade evidence management and tracking hardware
 Work diligently toward full staffing (41)
 Continue collective efforts to foster an environment that is welcoming, diverse and inclusive
 Continue to seek opportunities to reduce overall operating costs
 Sponsor a candidate to the Mid-Michigan Police Academy
 Renew the contract for police services with Williamstown Township


PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING 


 Complete the replacement of the water main on Sirhal Drive and install the water main
extension on Grand River Drive







4 


 Complete the installation of water and sewer utilities and repave the road in the Sleepy
Hollow Neighborhood SAD


 Complete the SAW program identified repairs to the Grand River sanitary sewer interceptor
 Continue to actively participate and represent the Township with the ongoing and proposed


improvements at the East Lansing Wastewater Treatment Plant
 Continue construction design and finalize MDOT TAP funding for the MSU to Lake Lansing


Trail in anticipation of a 2019 construction of Phase 1
 Complete the Ingham County Trail Millage funded pedestrian bridge and pathway repairs
 Complete the 2018 Local Road program
 Seek 2019 funding to implement the RR quiet zone recommendations
 Complete the facility repairs and projects funded in the 2018 budget
 Conduct a comprehensive organizational review of the Public Works Department


operations and programs
 Fully participate in the Local Update of the Census Addresses (LUCA) program in


preparation of the 2020 Census





		November 21,2017 Township Board Final Agenda

		BI-1-2

		November 9, 2017 Draft Minutes 1

		November 21,2017 Packet

		9A

		9.C

		9D

		12B Auditing Services Contract

		RR Quiet Zone Study-Phil Memo

		Redi Ride -Phil Memo

		13D 2018 Township Goals



		12A

		12C GRAPIDS-#475431-v2-Meridian_--_RES_Filing_SAR;_Notice_of_Hearing Resolution_3.pdf

		1. The revised estimate of costs in the amount of $42,462.55 for parcels receiving sewer and water benefit and $29,279.22 for sewer benefit only is approved.

		2. The total revised cost of the Public Improvements shall be paid by special assessments assessed within the Special Assessment District against the property benefitted by the proposed Public Improvements.

		3. The special assessment roll for the Special Assessment District (the “Special Assessment Roll”) as reported to the Township Board by the Supervisor; shall be filed in the office of the Clerk; and shall be available for public inspection during the ...

		4. The Township Board shall hold a public hearing on December 5, 2017, at 6:00 p.m., at the Township Hall in the Township to review and hear any objections to the revised estimate of costs and to review and hear any objections to the Special Assessmen...

		5. The Clerk shall cause to be published a notice of hearing and the filing of the special assessment roll in the Lansing State Journal, a newspaper of general circulation within the Township, at least two (2) times prior to the public hearing, with t...

		6. The Clerk, at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the public hearing, shall send a notice of the public hearing by first class mail addressed to each record owner, or party in interest, of each parcel of property to be assessed, at the address...

		7. The notice of the hearing to be mailed and published pursuant hereto shall be in substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto.

		8. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be and the same are here rescinded.











9.B 

PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the November 9, 2017 
Regular Meeting as submitted. 

AL TERNA TE MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the November 9, 2017 
Regular Meeting with the following amendment(s): [insert 
amendments]. 

November 21, 2017 
REGULAR MEETING 

II 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT - 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 
853-4000, Town Hall Room 
THURSDAY, November 9, 2017, 6:00 P.M. 
 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Styka, Clerk Dreyfus, Treasurer Brixie, Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, 

Opsommer, Sundland 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
STAFF: Township Manager Frank Walsh, Director of Public Works & Engineering Derek Perry, 

Director of Community Planning & Development Mark Kieselbach, Economic 
Development Director Christopher Buck, Senior Planner Peter Menser  

 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 
Supervisor Styka called the meeting to order at 6:03 P.M. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

 
Supervisor Styka led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
The secretary called the roll of the Board. 

 
4. PRESENTATION 
  
 Supervisor Styka mentioned artwork showcased in the Townhall Room from Chippewa Middle 
 School  
 
5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS (None) 
 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
  
 Manager Walsh updated the board on discussion in the community about the relocation of the 
 Farmers Market next to Studio C. Met with owners of the Meridian Mall, LuAnn Maisner Director of 

Parks and Recreation is leading the project, and Dave Ledeburgh of the EDC working on this as 
well.  

 
 November 14th Goal setting Study Session at the Central Fire Station.  
 
 Mariam Mattison will be working on picking an Auditor for the Township and bringing a 

recommendation to the Board at the November 21, 2017 meeting.   
  
 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Clerk Dreyfus – Election Report: 
 

• Reported the results of the November 7, 2017 Election 
• 30,273 registered voters in Meridian Township  
• 4,734 voted: 15.6% voter turnout 
• 2,309  YES  votes,  2425  NO  votes:  Ballot proposal FAILED in Meridian Township 
• Ingham County millage proposal passed countywide 
• Absentee Voter ballots comprised almost 50% of the total ballots cast 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 

 
PAGE 2 

 
Treasurer Brixie reported: 

• Attended MABA’s 20th-anniversary banquet commemorating the Townships involvement with 
MABA over the past 20 years.  

• Attended the October 26th joint meeting of Park Commission and Land Preservation, discussed 
park land as natural area and importance of continuity with other open space in order to be able 
to protect larger parcels of land. 

• Attended the November 8th Tri-County Regional Planning Commission (TCRPC), changing public 
input processes to encourage more input in the planning process.  

• Attended the neighborhood leader meeting, no significant issues in the Township reported.  
 
Trustee Deschaine reported:  

• Attended the TCRPC open house Moving Mid-Michigan, pavement conditions were a large 
concern; 57.3% of roads in poor condition in Tri-County region. Roads are hurting most likely 
due to State slashing funding for roads. 

• CATA 10.9 million riders a year, “great” mass transit helps keep businesses strong. 
• Attended Commission member recognition night, John Scott-Craig and Sue Elder were honored.  
• Attended the November 2, 2017, EDC meeting regarding the efficacy of a redevelopment fund, 

EDC looking for new members, 2 openings. 
• November 16th Transportation meeting will focus on a “road diet” (from two lanes to one lane) 

for Lake Lansing Road, from Saginaw Highway to Hagadorn, presented by Bill Conklin. 
 

Trustee Opsommer reported:  
• November 15, 2017, CATA meeting announcement on two final candidates for CEO, special 

 meeting to interview candidates and make final decision.  Contract negotiations will follow. 
• Search firm was used, approach respected confidentiality of applicants, now in final phase,   

  will update the Township Board on the special CATA meeting.  
• October CATA board meeting discussed Zone 2 fares in Delta Township, they decided not to 

 continue their Redi-Ride services. Discussed “double fares” for certain rider situations. 
 

Clerk Dreyfus reported: 
• Met with new MSU Museum Director. Discussed his previous experience, Clerk proposed   
      exhibit called “Voice of the People” featuring history of elections in Michigan,  issues of voter  
      suppression, third parties, campaigning.  Looking for ways to collaborate with MSU. 
• Attended tour of Old Okemos Cemetery, several citizens attended from families of early  
      Meridian settlers; sponsored by the Friends of Historic Meridian. 
• Attending Moving Mid-Michigan afternoon session of the TCRPC open house, great 
 networking and innovative, interactive methods of demonstrating transportation issues and  
      getting participant input. 

 
Trustee Jackson reported: 

• Attended the Neighborhood Leadership Meeting. 
• Attended the TCRPC open house, looked roads MDOT and Meridian Township were responsible 

for, and looking at ways on how to improve poor road conditions.  
• Please to note two new businesses – a bakery on Haslett Road and a restaurant on Central Park 

Drive – and Hampton Inn redeveloped their site, which is a good direction for the Township  
• Parks Commission dedicated a new mural in Hillbrook Park. 

 
Trustee Sundland Reported: 

• Attended the Costco opening. 
• Attended the Meridian Cares fundraiser at Old Chicago. 
• Saddleback BBQ opening day and support of their new business.  
• Attended the award ceremony for Boards and Commissioners.  

 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 

 
PAGE 3 

Supervisor Styka Reported: 
• Along with Manager, Treasurer, and Economic Development Director, attended the Chamber of 

Commerce Meeting. 
• Attended a symposium with Van Martin Realty, economist discussed the area and the potential 

for development, real estate, and which areas look better than others; he predicted a small 
recession in 2019. 

• Attended the Costco ribbon cutting. 
• Meridian Downtown Development Authority (DDA) and Corridor Improvement Authority 

(CIA) both looking at increasing amenities in Meridian Township. 
• Attended the Meridian Cares event, which raised almost $4,000. 
• Attended Boards and Commissions awards. 

 
 
8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
Treasurer Brixie moved to approve the agenda as submitted.  Seconded by Trustee 
Opsommer. 
 

VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus, Trustees    
                     Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland 
    
         NAYS:  None  

              
                       Motion carried unanimously. 

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA (SALMON) 

 
Supervisor Styka reviewed the consent agenda. 

 
Opsommer moved to adopt the Consent Agenda.  Motion failed for lack of a second. 
Trustee Deschaine moved to amend Section H and approve the consent agenda. Seconded by 
Clerk Dreyfus.  
 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  

 
NAYS: None 
         

           Motion carried unanimously.  
A. Communications 

 
Trustee Deschaine moved that the communications be received and placed on file, and any 
communications not already assigned for disposition be referred to the Township Manager or 
Supervisor for follow-up.  Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  

 
NAYS: None 
         

           Motion carried unanimously.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 

 
PAGE 4 

 
B. Minutes  

 
Trustee Deschaine moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular Meeting as 
substituted.  Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  

 
NAYS: None 
         

           Motion carried unanimously.  
C. Bills 

 
Trustee Deschaine moved that the Township Board approve the Manager’s Bills as follows: 

 
Common Cash       $  965,241.85        
Public Works       $         663,786.34 
Trust & Agency       $            173,517.23 
        

Total Checks $        1,802,545.42 
   

Credit Card Transactions $             12,430.34       
  (Dec. 1 to Dec. 7, 2016) 
    

Total Purchases      $        1,814,975.76        
 

ACH Payments $         1,039,001.24        
 

Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  

 
NAYS: None 
         

           Motion carried unanimously.  
 

 
D. Marriott Hotel Liquor License 

 
Trustee Deschaine moved to adopt the resolution approving the Resort B Hotel liquor license 
for PHG Land Development to sell beer, wine, and spirits at the proposed Marriott Courtyard 
Hotel at 3454 Meridian Crossing Drive. Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus.  
 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  

 
NAYS: None 
         

           Motion carried unanimously.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 

 
PAGE 5 

 
 

E. Charitable Gaming License- Okemos Central Elementary 
 
Trustee Deschaine moved to approve a request from the Central Elementary PTO of Meridian 
Township, Ingham County, asking that they be recognized as a non-profit organization operating 
in the community for the purposes of obtaining a gaming license for approval and further that the 
Township Clerk is authorized to execute the resolution from the State of Michigan. Seconded by 
Clerk Dreyfus. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  

 
NAYS: None 
         

           Motion carried unanimously.  
 

 
F. Additions to the Tax Roll 

 
Trustee Deschaine moved to assess the charges identified in the staff memorandum with parcel 
identification available in the Treasurer’s Office dated November 3, 2017, for Delinquent Special 
Assessments, Utility Bills, False Alarms, Nuisance, Lot Mowing/Code Violation, and Misc. Fees as a 
tax lien against the subject properties as authorized by Michigan Compiled Laws (MCL) 41.727, 
41.728 and Meridian Township Ordinance Code Sections 58-32, 58-33, 78-98, 78-155, 46-5, 82-
27, 18-1 and 18-15. Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  

 
NAYS: None 
         

           Motion carried unanimously.  
 

G. Disposal of Surplus Equipment 
 
Trustee Deschaine moved to authorize the sale of the vehicles and equipment that have been 
declared surplus by the Department of Public Works; at public auction, internet auction, or by 
sealed bid.   Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  

 
NAYS: None 
         

           Motion carried unanimously.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 

 
PAGE 6 

 
 

H. 2018 Regular Board Meeting Schedule  
Supervisor Styka offered some changes to the schedule, along with other members of the board.   

 
Trustee Deschaine moved to amend the 2018 Board Meeting Schedule by striking the April 3, 
2018 Township Board Meeting from the schedule.  Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 

 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus, Trustees    
                     Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland 
    
       NAYS:  None  

              
                     Motion carried unanimously. 

  
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY (None) 
 
11. HEARINGS (None) 
 
12. ACTION ITEMS 
 
 A. Zoning Amendment #17030 Allow Golf Courses as Open Space in a Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) and in a Planned Residential Development (PRD) - Final Adoption 
 
Trustee Deschaine moved to approve the Resolution for Final Adoption of Zoning Amendment 
#17030 to amend section 86-378 and section 86-439 of the Code of Ordinances to allow a golf 
course to be counted as open space in a Planned Residential Development (PRD) and Planned 
Unit Development (PUD).  Seconded by Trustee Opsommer 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  YEAS: Trustees Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Supervisor Styka,  
                                                   Treasurer Brixie, and Clerk Dreyfus  

 
NAYS: None  
             

           Motion carried unanimously 7-0. 
 
  
 B. Donley Elementary School 
 
Treasurer Brixie moved to authorize the Township manager to submit a request to the Michigan 
Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs for the delegation of school plan review and 
inspection authority to The Charter Township of Meridian Building Department. Seconded by 
Trustee Opsommer. 
 

Board and staff discussion: 
• Board member belief local government collaboration with shared school districts and 

coming together helps the schools and East Lansing, while Meridian Township retains  
building permit fees 

• Manager stated that Meridian Township has to work with The State of Michigan, the City of 
East Lansing, and East Lansing Schools for this project 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 

 
PAGE 7 

VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus, Trustees    
                     Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland 
    
       NAYS:  None  

              
                     Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
  
 C. Section 61 Review- Land Preservation Purchases 
 
Trustee Jackson moved to refer the five properties on the Land Preservations Acquisitions 2017 
Map for purchase by the Land Preservation Advisory Board to the Planning Commission for a 
Section 61 Review in Compliance with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act. Seconded by 
Treasurer Brixie. 
 

Board and staff discussion: 
 

• Before the Board can approve, the Planning Commission reviews the proposal and options 
• Board member excited about these purchases, properties acquired take years to negotiate 

and work out details 
• Properties can be complete donations, purchased with grants, partial donation and partial 

purchases, and some are outright purchases 
• Land Preservation will total approximately 900 acres with these additions 
• Land Preservation is innovative, originated in 2000 and was the first of its kind in the state 
• Preserved land will be appreciated by citizens for years to come 
• Hope that Planning Commission can support requests for more land preservation projects 
• Board member suggested working with the Parks Department and with volunteers to keep 

the preserved land natural without being overrun with invasive species 
 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus, Trustees    
                  Deschaine, Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland 
    
              NAYS:  None  

              
                            Motion carried unanimously. 

 
13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. Commission Review #17093 2017 Master Plan Update 
• Director Kieselbach introduces the 2017 Master Plan Update that the Planning Commission 

(PC) voted to approve with conditions, ready for the Township Board meeting on November 
21, 2017 

• Board approved the Climate Sustainability Plan and it will be referenced in the Master Plan  
• Board changes to the Master Plan requires another public hearing at the PC 
• Inquiry if the Greenspace Plan is referenced like the Climate Sustainability Plan  
• Master Plan does not provide clear vision on the direction Meridian wants to be moving in 
• Plan focuses on mainly on increasing density, developers are going to build out apartments 

and party/convenience stores which serve transient renters 
• Community members discussing redevelopment don’t want apartments, they want 

destinations  to go to, a park or a community interaction zone or a real grocery store 
• 89% of Meridian citizens surveyed stated they do not want more apartment complexes 
• Board member belief that condensing zoning categories is not a vision, it allows developers 

to make the decisions, and developers  benefit the most from the Master Plan 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 REGULAR MEETING                  *DRAFT* 

 
PAGE 8 

• Board member assertion that MUPUD is just a tool and the developer’s use of it is driving the 
vision, rather than citizens and the Township Board driving the vision 

• Board member belief that Meridian needs more walkable areas, create interaction zones,  
new citizen engagement , natural sustainability and innovative landscaping 

• Clerk presents examples of what Meridian could be aiming for in creating  “place” with 
examples of innovative pocket parks: squeezed in “tight areas,” can have art/murals, theater, 
community engagement, food carts, unique seating, waterfalls, fountains, lush greenery, a 
sanctuary/labyrinth, 3 dimensionality 

• Commercial zones can have town squares, add innovative landscaping, be more community 
friendly, add water features, create new interaction patterns between people and business 

• Board member belief the Master Plan does get into vision and incorporates some of these 
same ideas being mentioned , nothing prevents innovative ideas from being adopted 

• Inquiry about medical marijuana facilities and inclusion in the Master Plan 
• Ordinance has to be adopted for medical marijuana but Master Plan does not prohibit them 
• Questions  about several maps in the Master Plan addressing streets and pathway markings 
• Funding is an issue, Meridian Redevelopment Fund and form-based code could create green 

spaces 
 

B. Outdoor Assemblies 
 
• Director Kieselbach presents information regarding a resident who submitted an application 

for an outdoor assembly license 
• License is required under Chapter 38, Article V, Outdoor Assemblies 
• An applicant proposing to have 500 people at their residence for an event, raised issues with 

noise, parking, disturbing other residents, and how will the host handle these issues 
• Staff is willing to write an amendment to ordinances 
• Township would be able to give more direction for the issues of concern 
• Township will take into consideration  weddings, graduation parties, and large gatherings 

when writing the ordinances and ordinances amendments 
• Board members wonder why a need for an regulations regarding large gatherings since they 

are rare, questioned if there have been reports of problems in the past 
• Board member suggests a threshold for gathering sizes 

 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Supervisor Styka opened Public Remarks. 
 
Jack Vos, 5720 Lebaron Ct., East Lansing;  his primary concern is the Master Plan adding density to 
open spaces, and stated the township is struggling to have open spaces that aren’t designated as 
public parks. Masonic Temple had many problems with the Township in the past when trying to add 
parking, so how can there now be apartment buildings designated in that same flood area? He 
wondered if planners saw blank spaces on a map and decided to indiscriminately fill up spaces with 
apartments.   
 
James Hart, 5706 Lebaron Ct., East Lansing; President of Okemos Masonic Temple, one of the oldest 
entities in Meridian Township and zoned commercial,  feel they are being forced to consider selling 
and move out of the area. Wants the Board to understand their concerns and states that they have to 
adapt to the Master Plan.  They are worried about how they will fit into the plan.   
 
Supervisor Styka closed Public Remarks. 



13. A

To: Supervisor Ronald J. Styka & Board Members 

From: Phil Deschaine, Township Trustee and Board Representative to the 

Transportation Commission 

Date: November 16, 2017 

Re: Railroad Quiet Zone Preliminary Study 

At a recent meeting of the Township Transportation Commission, representatives of Abonmarche 

engineering firm presented the findings of a study performed for the Township on the concept of 

implementing Railroad Quiet Zones to eliminate the need for trains to use their horn at crossings 

when they traverse our community.  A copy of their study is attached. 

By way of background, an interested citizen completed preliminary research and petitioned the 
Township to pursue this endeavor. According to MDOT, no Michigan regulations or state statutes 
are available pertaining to whistle blowing, so only the federal guidelines apply.  

Two rail lines cross through the township: CSX and CN as the Grand Western Trunk Railroad (GTW). 
The current CSX line runs for 5.5 miles from East Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road that carries 1 
day train, 2 night trains, and 1 switching train cross through the Township daily.  

The CN railroad travels as the GTW rail line for approximately 6.7 miles through the Township. The 
CN railroad has much heavier train traffic than the CSX railroad with 17 trains per day and 1 train 
each night.  These 21 trains per day create a significant amount of noise pollution to Township’s 
residents and businesses.  In particular, residents in the northern half of the township endure these 
extremely loud railroad crossing horns day and night. 

The costs associated with upgrading all 5.5 miles of CSX crossings $648,490. Over $600,000 of this 
is cost to upgrade the Meridian Road and Hulett Road crossings.   A limited option could be 
implemented to extend the quiet zone from the Okemos Road crossing to Van Atta Road crossing, a 
distance of 2.91 miles at a cost of $27,440.  The cost would be significantly reduced because of the 
elimination of the upgrade costs required at the Hulett Road and Meridian Road crossings. 

The CN railroad travels as the Grand Trunk Western Railroad (GTW) for approximately 6.7 miles. 
The cost of the minor tasks needed to meet the standards is $7,500.  This is summarized on page 17 
on the study.  Because Haslett Public Schools are in close proximity to the Haslett Road – CN railroad 
crossing, the Abonmarche study recommends implementation of Z-gates like the one on used on the 
Michigan State University campus to improve safety by making pedestrians more aware as they 
approach the crossing. The cost associated with these Z-Gates for the Haslett Road crossing is 
$30,000. 

At its August 24th meeting, the Transportation Commission unanimously recommends that the 

Township Board implement the Quiet Zone limited option for the CSX line and for the CN Line with  

~ 
MERIDIAN A 
"( 0 ~~~li 
~ 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

Memo to Township Board 
November 16, 2017
Re: Railroad Quiet Zone Preliminary Study
Page 2 

the additional costs of Z-gates at Haslett Road. The commission made these recommendations in as 

a way to mitigate the significant noise pollution of the many rail crossings in our Township while 
still maintaining acceptable safety standards. 

Attachment: 
1. Railroad Quiet Zones Study

A PRIME COMMUNITY 
meridian.ml.us ---



PRELIMINARY STUDY: RAILROAD QUIET 
ZONES 

Prepared for: 

The Charter Township of Meridian 
5151 Marsh Road 

Okemos, Michigan 48864 

Prepared by: 

MERIDIAN A 
\[ O~~S~~li 
~ 

A Prime Community 

;■ABONMARCHE 
95 West Main Street. Benion Harbor. Ml 49022 • 269.927.2295 

abonmorche.com 



 

O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

 

2 

 

Table of Contents 
Introduction .............................................................................................................................................................3 

Background ............................................................................................................................................................4 

Railroad Crossings of Interest .............................................................................................................................4 

CSX Rail Line Evaluation ..................................................................................................................................4 

CN Rail Line Evaluation ................................................................................................................................. 10 

Alternative options ............................................................................................................................................. 12 

Costs ....................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

CSX Quiet Zone ............................................................................................................................................... 13 

Option 1: E Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road ...................................................................... 13 

Option 2: Okemos Road to Van Atta Road ................................................................................ 15 

CN Quiet Zone ................................................................................................................................................ 17 

Hagadorn Road to Green Road ................................................................................................... 17 

Option 1: Additional Suggested Safety Improvements ............................................................. 17 

Next Steps ............................................................................................................................................................. 19 

CSX Quiet Zone ............................................................................................................................................... 19 

CN Quiet Zone ................................................................................................................................................ 19 

References ........................................................................................................................................................... 20 

Appendix A – U.S. DOT Crossing Inventory Forms for CSX Crossings .................................................... 21 

Appendix B – U.S. DOT Crossing Inventory Forms for CN Crossings ...................................................... 37 

 

  

II 



 

O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

 

3 

Introduction 
The Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) requires trains to blow whistles for at least 15 seconds 
before every public grade crossing to maintain the safety of the crossing and reduce the 

potential for collisions.  This whistle blowing can impact the quality of life and home values for 
the environment near the tracks. 

 
One option for mitigating this noise pollution is for municipalities to establish quiet zones.  Quiet 
zones must extend for at least ½ mile of track and may include one or several crossings.  To be 

considered for a quiet zone, crossings must, at a minimum, have active warning devices such 
as flashing lights, gates, constant warning train detection systems and power out indicators.  

Once these basics are provided, the process of seeking a quiet zone can be pursued by 
improving the crossing to meet one of the following criteria: 
 

• The Quiet Zone Risk Index (QZRI) is less than or equal to the Risk Index with [Train] Horns 
Sounding (RIWH) 

• The QZRI is less than the National Significant Risk Threshold (NSRT) 
 
The NSRT is determined annually.  Crossings established as quiet zones based on being less 

than the NSRT require more frequent reevaluation.  It may be a more conservative practice to 
establish a quiet zone based on the RIWH.  The QZRI can be reduced through the 
implementation of one of many possible Supplementary Safety Measures (SSMs) as described 

in Figure 1. 

The QZRI can also be reduced through the use of other Alternative Safety Measures (ASMs), 
with written permission from the FRA.  Upgrading crossings to reduce the QZRI to an 
acceptable value can cost anywhere from $3,000 to over $1 million depending on what 

measures are necessary to improve safety.  [1]  The SSMs required to meet these criteria can 
be determined by utilizing the FRA Quiet Zone Calculator to implement SSMs and evaluate 

their reduction of risk.  If a quiet zone is implemented, the crossing warning signs must be 
upgraded to include a warning that horns are not being used at the crossing.  The FRA 
recommends a diagnostic team be created to evaluate the crossings in the proposed quiet 

zone.  A diagnostic team evaluation is required for proposed quiet zones which include 
private crossings.  Diagnostic teams consist of representatives from the public authority, 

 
Figure 1: Available SSM codes for use in reducing Quiet Zone Risk Index 

II 

SSM CODES I other codes 
1 Temporary Closure of a Publ ic Highway- Rail Grade Crossing 
2Permanent Closure of a Public Highway-Rail Grade Crossin g 
3Grade Separation of a Public Highway-Rail Grade Crossing 
4Four-Quadrant Gates Upgrade from Two Quadrant gates, No Vehicle Presence Detection 
5Four-Quadrant Gates Upgrade from Two Quadrant Gates, with medians and no Vehicle Pr esence Detection 
6Four-Quadrant Gates Upgrade from Two Quadrant Gates, with Vehicle Presence Detection 
7Four- Quadrant Gates Upgrade from Tw o Quadrant Gates, with medians and Vehicle Presence Detection 
8 Four-Quadrant Gates New Installation, No Vehicle Presence Detection 
9Four-Quadrant Gates New Installation with medians and no Vehicle Presence Detection 

l0Four-Quadrant Gates New Installation with Vehicle Presence Detection 
llfour-Quadrant Gates New Installation with medians and Vehicle Presence Detection 
12Mo untable medians w ith Reflective Traffic Channelization Devices 
13Non- Traversable Curb Medians with or without Channelization Devices 
14On e -Way St reets with Gates 



O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

4 

Figure 2: Aerial map depicting 5.5 miles of CSX railroad crossings in the 
Charter Township of Meridian 

railroad, State agency responsible for crossing safety and FRA grade crossing managers 

before a quiet zone is created. 

Background 
The Charter Township of Meridian requested an investigation into the requirements and 

feasibility of establishing a railroad quiet zone on the rail lines that stretch through the 

township.  An interested citizen completed preliminary research and petitioned the township 

to pursue this endeavor.  According to MDOT, no Michigan regulations or state statutes are 

available pertaining to whistle blowing, so only the federal guidelines apply. [3]  Michigan is in 

Region 4 of the FRA, based out of Chicago. [4]  Two rail lines cross through the township: CSX 

and CN as the Grand Western Trunk Railroad (GTW). 

Railroad Crossings of Interest 

CSX Rail Line Evaluation 
The current CSX line from East Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road in the Charter Township of 

Meridian is an approximately 5.5 mile stretch of track with 8 at-grade crossings including one 

private crossing, depicted in Figure 2.  1 day train, 2 night trains, and 1 switching train cross 

through the township daily. 

II 



 

O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

 

5 

 
Figure 3: Private CSX crossing on Sylvan Glen Road 

Preliminary findings based on Google Earth street view and a field visit to each CSX crossing 
are summarized in the following table: 

 

At Grade 

Crossing 

Sidewalk 

Lights Bells Gates Signage 

Pavement 

Markings 

Existing SSMs 

(# from Fig. 1) W E 

Detectable 

Warnings 

E Mt Hope Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  

S Hagadorn Rd ☒ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  

Hulett Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ ☒  

Okemos Rd ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  

Dobie Rd ☒ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  

Sylvan Glen Rd ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐  

Van Atta Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☐  

Meridian Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ ☒  

 
The public crossings at Hulett Road and Meridian Road need to be upgraded to include gates 

before a quiet zone could be considered for the entire length.  MDOT would not financially 
contribute to these improvements as there is not a measureable safety benefit to 

implementing a quiet zone; therefore all the funding must come from the road authority.  The 
Michigan Department of Transportation’s Office of Rail advised that the cost of implementing 
new lights and gates systems at a crossing would depend on the complexity of the crossing 

such as its proximity to other crossings, but may be estimated to cost $300,000 per crossing. 
 

The private crossing at Sylvan Glen Road appears to serve two homes from a private drive and 
only has signs as a crossing warning, see Figure 3.  A private crossing’s risk index is not factored 
into the overall QZRI, but requires diagnostic team review during consideration of a quiet zone.  

At a minimum the FRA requires private crossings in a quiet zone to have a stop sign and a sign 
signifying “no horn”. 

 

II 



 

O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

 

6 

The FRA conducts crossing inventories which include: crossing location, railroad information, 
traffic control device information, physical characteristics, and public highway information.  

The most recent inventory forms for the crossings within Meridian Township along the CSX 
railroad can be found in Appendix A.  To establish a quiet zone, these forms would need to be 

updated within a year preceding a request for a quiet zone. 
 
Assuming the minimum required updates could be completed by adding gates at the Hulett 

Road and Meridian Road crossings, the FRA’s Quiet Zone Calculator can be utilized to 
determine the current risk indices at each crossing as shown in Figure 4. 

The quiet zone calculator result indicates that additional safety measures beyond the 
implementation of gates would be required to improve the crossings to meet the qualifications 
of a quiet zone since the QZRI is higher than the NSRI and the RIWH. 

 
SSM 12 is defined as mountable medians with channelization devices and is the most cost 
effective SSM option; SSM 13 is a non-traversable curb median with or without channelization 

devices, as defined in Figure 1.  Each of these methods requires implementation for 100 feet 
along the roadway on either side of the crossing.  Driveway entrances are located within 100 

feet from the crossing at Hagadorn, Okemos, Dobie, and Meridian Roads making the 
implementation of SSMs 12 and 13 impossible without impeding access.  SSM 12 could be 
installed at the crossing on Mount Hope, Hulett, and Van Atta Roads with no impacts on 

driveways.  The result of constructing those improvements is shown in Figure 5. 

 
Figure 4: Quiet Zone Evaluation of the CSX Railroad in the Charter Township of 

Meridian including lights and gates at Hulett and Meridian Roads 

II 

..,;:;r--
QUIET ZONE CALCULATOR 

...... I ~e.~ l co-MTtt 10111 ... , -. 

c:tt.te. N ewZone 

M;an,99e blstlng Zones: 

LoO Off 

sa., lty 51-.i lMtnoclioM: 

....,,,....., __ 
e=.c:o~.~ 
tf"-.-V.....-0,,tf-,1;~ didcon~ 
~'t;Ol)-1'--4~~G"'~ be 
uMd:for.ASM.~ 

$1:ep l~ ~ Soap {2) _.. die 
SB.ECT ~ .. ~ • N bccom 
n;~l!dt9'tti,,~"«tdlr.ttlt 
SB.K'Tbi..tt«<a~ONL.Y""-' 

:;::~;.o;.~~=l\t. 
~4: To uvttr-.~ •"'IO 
Cll"'Clf'ue. ddc"'4 S8.KT ~ 

< j'•U-,,~Otvlte 

D4401X NERJDLUI ltOAD 
..,.. .,.... 

ll4402E YANA.ffA ftOAO 1900 c.tu 

234404T OOBU: RO lllOOC:.... 

ll+tQlAOICfHOJM> , .......... 
ll4406C HULLllT ROAt> 1600 ~u 

ll-MOSV Ml HOPI ROAD 13000~8 

23440711\1 HACAOOR.H a,o ll:600c.tft 

•o,,.'Y:..b:.AtGra.:..CAa."";tlfttr".A>: 

clidt ~ SueQ[rmtntMY §tftty HtlWfN [~SM) 

CJid: N)l".AS,..,~ ~ •,.:... -.. • .-ti 
,..P'$ -.;..,;ru..-.-.c~ c:r .... ~-">Cl ~;)."Ow1'.~ ~ RtA 

SSM ~~ 
0 

• 

&muted Tobi Costi 

U.002..37 

=~• 

........ 
21.126.lJ 

2'~6'0-Sl 

CSX·MTtt09ETO 
Y9'JDW. 



 

O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

 

7 

While installing SSM 12 at Mount Hope, Hulett, and Van Atta Roads does make the quiet zone 
technically acceptable by reducing the QZRI lower than the NSRI, it is advised that improving 

overall safety in the quiet zone should concentrate first on reducing risk at the highest-risk 
crossings.  The following two options were, therefore, also considered.  The driveways within 
100 feet of the crossing at Okemos Road appear to receive low volume use, so impeding 

access may not be very impactful.  Figure 6 shows that implementing SSM 13 at the Okemos 
Road crossing and SSM 12 at Van Atta Road would be adequate to reduce the risk within the 

zone to below NSRI. 

 

 
Figure 5: Risk calculation with installation of SSM 12 at CSX crossings 

on Mt. Hope, Hulett, and Van Atta Roads 

 
Figure 6: CSX Quiet Zone with SSM 13 at Okemos Road 

and SSM at Van Atta Road 

=• 

QUIET ZONE CALCULATOR 

.., .,_ 
____ ere~ ~;::: :::::"R:::o 

Nanage Existing Zon~ n+I04T OOStE RO 

------''CCog:..O:.;,;.ff 23'M05A OKEMOS RO 

~ {l:,~~Q':.:·~On'v) 

l.34-408V MT HOPE RO,\D 

23-4-407N KAGAOOflN RD 

• o nyP.ib<ic .0.1Gr.-laCr<lu n11s ara l,ottd 
and/or SSM, dick IN !!!QQlE!. SUtton 

st-.pl: Se'.Ktp,cpc,ud wam""o 
Ok\ for Suoolt mentorv SAfd:v Mosurt s fSSMJ PrQPOHd Qu>et z-, csx - Mt"'~! 
~s: ::u:~::=:::~ ~=~=F~ ~:::::::::,:; ... ;:,t:::c,,<:-:_ ~:-;f-;t:~,: ;,,:_Tu,~~1;:".~e!w,~ 

IM valuHc,nd,il pag•, did:on ~ 
Ix.nan- Thi, o.pr.ii<!<l,-c..- ,._, l>o 
uHdfor ASMc.kul•tions. 

step3, ~putS:e9{2) ulltilthe 
SELECT button ii lhown at th,, bettor, 
r9"1: si1M of tti.a p~. No:a ,hM ,ti. 
SELECT l,,;m"" Is ohown ONLY when 
tl:• Quiet Zon•Rm:indnfa~st..!ow 
ffl<INSFrrortha R,slc lnc!uwit:hlbTI. 

st~a, ro .. ~ath.sc.,.,a""and 
Cot'ltil'IH, ckk thaSEUCTb.mon 

...a - -QUIET ZONE CALCULATOR 

-Create New Zone D 440l X MERIDIAN ROAD 

Hanaoe b:istlno zones 

Log Off 234405A CKEHOS RO 

St-, by Sup IMlrlKbons= 23<M06(; HULLETT ROAD 

234-407N HAGAOORH RO 

Nationvride ~~ 

Q<,iet zo- R;d, Index, 

Horne I Help I contect I k,ooff 

1900 C.tn 

12300C..lH 

2,.UJCatu 

1600 C.tn 

12600 C.tn 

• o,,-yPub!oc:M.GrMMCn>s1,,11;1aA "1ttd Survn..-v 

$ 39,000.00 

step l =Tos;:,eofvh-W•"""'SI 
O..,a{ForPra-JtiHQl,.« Z-Or,ty) 
Wtd/or SSM.did:the~Bucon 

Slep2l ~propoMdw-tflQ 
aa fot Suoolementarv Safety Measures [SSMJ Prorpowl QwiM z-. csx Mt,..i:;"~ 
CUdl forASMap,udSM«: ~ • ~n..u11of Type1 New2•-how- QZ =.i~.~~ 

do,v.-onltdP991,dick011 ~ 
but:of'-'TMI _...:1,hNt can tM!I bt 
\Md for ASM uk:ulat>OIIJ 

St tp 4: To I IYe N 1-t..,_ &.-.d 
~ . cick tht SEUCT ~ 

°'5.,.J _.,., al' r.1111.catlOI' CO 1-..:I 111>01'.,.,A' ~ cht FflA. f------S.C-,-_ ~_~. +-----cCS,c,-'-_~,.-c._~,Oc,2',ctO 

lltimat.d Tot.Ill Costi 

lbtionwide Significant R~ k 
Tht'tihold: 

Risck Jndu with Kot"M l 

S,28, 000.00 



O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

8 

Figure 7: Aerial map depicting 2.91 miles of CSX railroad crossings in the 
Charter Township of Meridian 

Figure 8: Proposed 2.91 mile long CSX quiet zone 

Because a quiet zone only has to extend for a continuous 0.5 miles of track, a quiet zone 
could be implemented from the Okemos Road crossing to Van Atta Road crossing, a distance 

of 2.91 miles shown in Figure 7. 

The cost would be significantly reduced because of the elimination of the upgrade costs 
required at the Hulett Road and Meridian Road crossings.  Running the quiet zone calculator 

again yields the results shown in Figure 8.  Since the QZRI is greater than the NSRI and the RIWH, 
some additional improvements are necessary. 

II 

,..;;Ji - -Q UIET ZONf CALCULATOR 

s~ Strffl no Wal'Tlfll9 O.Vlce Pre-SSM ~ Risk 

Cre a t e New Zon e 234402£ VANATTA ROAD 1900 G;,,t e,i; 

Hl!nage Ex isting Zone!' 
------~-- 234-405A OKEHOS RD 

LOO Off 

Step by Step Instructions: 

St~ 1, To spKify II.aw Warning 
DeVIClll {For Pre-Rule Quiat Zooe Orly) 
ar<:1/or SSM, d iclc the ~ Button 

St~ 2, S.l«t P'09Q~ w,rntn;i 

~;.To~~:"11=:h~ 
tMvafues ontilisp.age, dick01t~ 
bt;ttor,- ~is S?fHdshNt a n thei, be 
used fa< ASM cakulatiot1s . 

Stll>p 3: RepHI S~ep {2) uMi! the 
SELECT butt.or. is shown Al the botton 
nQn t :Side of d111. p,,ge. No.:e ~ dw 
SELECT button 11 shown ONLY WMn 
t t-.Qui.i Zo,,eRJ:dcindexf.Cs i..,.,..,, 
the ~SRT or the 11.tsS:: lndv: with Hon>. 

St-., 4: To w,ve tf-.. se<>Ma!>cO •n<I 
wntir>ue, didt th. SELECT b.ntOlt 

~ On v ~~ic At Gr.d.Cross.n-;sani, ! st.d. f'"'"---=""'----~~~~~---1 
Click fc, Suppleme ntary S afety Measures (SSM) Pl"o poud Qu>d Zone: Shor.er CSX· Ok;:,:o; ~ 

dick fw ASM s ~ d.Nt: ~ •Ncte:r>,..u.., of Type: Ntt124-hourQZ 

AS!lu ~u.,.,,s ao, a ;,p..cat.on to ill'ld • p~:,,,.,j m,.,, the FRA. Scenario: Sl+QRTER CS 5023:S 

Estimated Tobi Cost: 

N,11tionwide Signifiunt Risk 
Threshold: 

Risk Index with Hofns: 



O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

9 

If SSM 13 was implemented at the Okemos Road crossing as discussed previously, the risk 
would be reduced enough to implement a quiet zone from Okemos Road to Van Atta Road, 

see Figure 9. 

Figure 9: 2.91 mile long CSX Quiet Zone with SSM 13 at Okemos Road 

II 

,.;;;atiilQIMff,1nlltn1UQII 

QUIET ZONE CALCULATOR 

'--'C.~" .... '"-' _ _.( diange ScenfflO: I Shoner CS_502f,9 

sil'l9 s-

2 l 4402E VANATTA ROAD 

234404T DOBIE RD 

------------- 234405A OKEMOS RD 
Log Off 

• Only Pubic At Grad• Cross n9s . ,.. !,n ..d 

12300 Giotes 

24893 Giotes 

did ftY Suoatementary Safety Measures (SSM) 

Sunvn1ry 

Proposed Quie t Zone: Shan:•r CSX - OlcitmOS to 
Stotp hy Stotp Ins tructions: 

dick fot"ASM s.prudshNt: ~ * f'l:ite ,The unof Type: New24-hourQZ 

st~ 1, To specify MW \l,'l l'T'!n<;I 
Devi<:• { for PA-Rule Qi.,..,: ZOt"• Or-~ ) 
and/or 5-SM, d,dt th■ ~ 81.Jtton 

Step 3; Rlt~H t Step {2) \ll'til the 
SELECT button is shown ■t the bot::O!TI 
rio;lht S:de of th.., ~'1"- Note tti.t the 
SELECT IR.tton is shown ONLV-when 
tlw! Q~iet Zooe R,slc Index f■I s below 
the IISRT or die Rl5k Inda:,: with Korn. 

St•p 4 : To »~e th. sc_,,1no i nd 
COl'ltM'ue, dick th. SELECTtM.lttoo 

AS!'o!s r.qu ,..s I I' ■;>pl G t,o.-, to 1 '"td 1porow.al fro.i'I ch• FAA. Sce N1rio: Short.,. CS_50269 

1--,,--.,c-;~- ,..,....,.,T,...ou""'t""'c~- ,ci, -----,.,~,.ooo'"""".,cci, 
Nationwide Sign~:.~~ 14 723 ,00 

Risk I ndex w ith Horns: 

Quiet Zone Risk I ndex: 



 

O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

 

10 

CN Rail Line Evaluation 
The CN railroad travels as the Grand Trunk Western Railroad (GTW) for approximately 6.7 miles 
through the Charter Township of Meridian.  Figure 10 shows the 5 public at-grade crossings. 

Preliminary findings utilizing Google Earth street view and a field visit to each CN crossing are 

summarized in the following table: 
 

At Grade 

Crossing 

Sidewalk 

Lights Bells Gates Signage 

Pavement 

Markings 

Other SSMs 

(# per 

Figure 1) W E 

Detectable 

Warnings 

Hagadorn Rd ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ 14, Z-gate 

Okemos Rd ☐ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  

Haslett Rd ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  

Carlton Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  

Green Rd ☐ ☐ n/a ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒  

Figure 10: Aerial map depicting 6.7 miles of CN railroad crossings in the 
Charter Township of Meridian 

II 



O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

11 

Hagadorn Road marks the division between the Charter Township of Meridian and the City of 
East Lansing, specifically Michigan State University’s campus.  At this railroad crossing there is a 

Z-gate, shown in Figure 11,  on the East Lansing side of the street, which acts as a passive
warning device to alert pedestrians to the fact they are about to cross the tracks.

The inventory forms for the crossings within Meridian Township along the CN railroad can be 

found in Appendix B.  The CN railroad has much heavier train traffic than the CSX railroad with 
17 trains daily and 1 train each night. 

Hagadorn Road acts as a divided road at this crossing, and the curb height is the required 6” 
to be considered a preexisting SSM 13.  The calculator shows, in Figure 12, that the QZRI is 

lower than the RIWH at the current conditions; therefore it is possible a quiet zone could be 
established without additional SSM installation. 

Figure 11: A z-gate used as a passive warning system to pedestrians of railroad 
crossing on East Lansing side of Hagadorn Road 

II 



O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

12 

Figure 13: A wayside horn 

Figure 12: Current quiet zone evaluation of the CN railroad in the 
Charter Township of Meridian 

Alternative options 
As an alternative to quiet zones, communities may choose to silence locomotive horns 

through the installation of wayside horns, like the one in Figure 13, at each crossing as a one 
for one substitute for train horns.  Wayside horns are directed at the highway at their installed 

crossing so they confine the noise to a radius directly around the crossing as compared to a 
locomotive horn being sounded along the track before reaching the crossing. 

II 

Fe<kiT~Mf!'llnittntlM 

QUIET ZONE CALCULATOR 

,.---------- Crossing Strfft ~ 
create New zone 

1
2sJ6~ GIHAGAOORN ROAD 

Manage Existing Zones i283655V OKEMOS ROAD 

283658R HASLETT ROAD 

--------L• .. 0 .. 0_t1_ 283659X CARL TON ROAD 

283660S GREEN ROAD 

step by Step Instructicms: 

Traffic Warning Device 

21900 Gates 
~ 

12200 Gates 

12300IGates 

11400 Gates 

11400 Gates 

Summa ry 

Proposed Quiet Zone: CN - MERIDIAN ONLY 

step 1: To specify Nevi WamJng 
Device ( for Pre-Rule Qu'iet Zone Only) 
and/or SS M, click the MODIFY Button 

Step 2: Select propos.ed Wilmlng 

~:.~ ~~~:na~~C,:!i:~ 
the va l1,es on Uli:s pag-e, dick on ASM 
b.'t':or-- This spreadsheet c~ then be 
used fN ASM c.alcu!at ion.s. 

step 3: Repeat S1ep ( 2) unt il the 
SELECT button is shown at the bottom 
righ t si:de of th!S pa9e. No::e t hat t he 
SEl..ECT button is shown ONLY whe n 
the Quiet Zone Risk ll'ldex falls be!ow 
the NSRT or the Risk Index with Hom. 

Step 4 : To s.a\·e the soenilrio ilnd 
continue , elide the SELECT button 

ALERT: Quiet Zone qualifies bec::a use QZRI is less 
than Risk Index with Horns . Type: 

Click for S u pple m e nt ary Saf e ty Meas u res ( SSM ) Estimated Total Cost: 

New 24-hour QZ 

so.oo 

14723 .oo d ick ~ ASM spreadsheet : ~ * Note :The 11:ii' of Nationwide Sign~:::h~ild~ 

AS"f.5 '<!GUJ~ ..in a::ip cat:tor, to and ;ip:,rov.al frO'T1 thE FRA. 1----,----,---,----+--------i 
Risk Inde x with Homs: 

Quiet Zone Risk Index: 

Select 



O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

13 

Costs 

CSX Quiet Zone 

Option 1: E Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road 
The costs associated with upgrading 5.5 miles of CSX crossings in the Township to Quiet Zone 
appropriate risk levels are summarized in the following table and shown in Figure 14. 

Cost Location Cost Description Price 

Every Public Crossing Update USDOT Inventory Forms (7) $7,000 

Hulett Road Upgrade to lights and gates $300,000 

Hulett Road New pavement marking on S side $305 

Okemos Road Implement SSM 13 $23,000 

Van Atta Road Implement SSM 12 $15,000 

Meridian Road Upgrade to lights and gates $300,000 

Meridian Road New pavement marking on N side $305 

Every Crossing Install “No Horn” Signs (16) $2,880 

Total $648,490 

II 



O
:\

P
ro

je
c

ts\
2
0
1
7
\

1
7
-0

5
3
1
 M

e
rid

ia
n

 Tw
p

 - R
a

ilro
a

d
 Q

u
ie

t Zo
n

e
 S

tu
d

y
\

R
e

p
o

rts\
Q

u
ie

tZo
n

e
S
tu

d
y
.d

o
c

x 

1
4

 

Fig
u

re
 1

4
: Q

u
ie

t zo
n

e
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 c
o

sts a
t e

a
c

h
 C

S
X

 c
ro

ssin
g

 fro
m

 H
a

g
a

d
o

rn
 R

o
a

d
 to

 
G

re
e

n
 R

o
a

d
 a

s d
e

sc
rib

e
d

 in
 O

p
tio

n
 1

 

II • 



 

O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

 

15 

Option 2: Okemos Road to Van Atta Road 
The costs associated with upgrading 2.91 miles of CSX crossings in the Township to Quiet Zone 

appropriate risk levels are summarized in the following table and shown in Figure 15. 
 

Cost Location Cost Description Price 

Every Public Crossing Update USDOT Inventory Forms (3) $3,000 

Okemos Road Implement SSM 13 $23,000 

Every Crossing Install “No Horn” Signs (8) $1,440 

Total $27,440 

 

II 



O
:\

P
ro

je
c

ts\
2
0
1
7
\

1
7
-0

5
3
1
 M

e
rid

ia
n

 Tw
p

 - R
a

ilro
a

d
 Q

u
ie

t Zo
n

e
 S

tu
d

y
\

R
e

p
o

rts\
Q

u
ie

tZo
n

e
S
tu

d
y
.d

o
c

x 

1
6

 

Fig
u

re
 1

5
: Q

u
ie

t zo
n

e
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 c
o

sts a
t e

a
c

h
 C

S
X

 c
ro

ssin
g

 fro
m

 O
k

e
m

o
s R

o
a

d
 to

 
V

a
n

 A
tta

 R
o

a
d

 a
s d

e
sc

rib
e

d
 in

 O
p

tio
n

 2
 

II • 



O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

17 

CN Quiet Zone 

Hagadorn Road to Green Road 
The preexisting SSM 13 at Hagadorn Road reduces the quiet zone’s risk index to an 
acceptable level without further safety measures being taken.  The cost of the minor tasks 
needed to meet the standards is summarized in the following table. 

Cost Location Cost Description Price 

Every Public Crossing Update USDOT Inventory Forms (5) $5,000 

Green Road Install pavement marking on S side $305 

Every Crossing Install “No Horn” Signs (10) $1,800 

Total $7,105 

Option 1: Additional Suggested Safety Improvements 
During the investigation it was discovered that the Haslett Public Schools are in close proximity 
to the Haslett Road – CN railroad crossing.  Due to school’s proximity, more, younger 

pedestrian traffic is prevalent at this crossing than others.  Implementation of Z-gates like the 
one on Michigan State University’s campus at the CN Hagadorn Road crossing would improve 
safety by making pedestrians more aware as they approach the crossing.  The cost associated 

with moving forward with this option is described in the following table and shown in Figure 16. 

Cost Location Cost Description Price 

Haslett Road Z-gates at each pedestrian approach $30,000 

Total $30,000 

I 
I 

II 



O
:\

P
ro

je
c

ts\
2
0
1
7
\

1
7
-0

5
3
1
 M

e
rid

ia
n

 Tw
p

 - R
a

ilro
a

d
 Q

u
ie

t Zo
n

e
 S

tu
d

y
\

R
e

p
o

rts\
Q

u
ie

tZo
n

e
S
tu

d
y
.d

o
c

x 

1
8

 

Fig
u

re
 1

6
: Q

u
ie

t zo
n

e
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

 c
o

sts a
t e

a
c

h
 C

N
 c

ro
ssin

g
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 th

e
 Z

-g
a

te
 

o
p

tio
n

 a
t th

e
 H

a
sle

tt R
o

a
d

 

II • 



O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

19 

Next Steps 

CSX Quiet Zone 
If the Charter Township of Meridian decides to pursue a quiet zone on the CSX railroad from 

either Mount Hope Road to Meridian Road or Okemos Road to Van Atta Road, the following 
steps are recommended. [5] 

1. Upgrade all public crossings to include, at a minimum, lights and gates with constant

warning time devices and power out indicators before a quiet zone.  The crossings at
Hulett Road and Meridian Road both only have lights currently.

2. Update the U.S. DOT Crossing Inventory Forms for each crossing within the proposed
quiet zone within a year of the proposal as required by the FRA.

3. Provide a Notice of Intent (NOI) to: railroads who utilize the crossings, the State agency

responsible for highway safety and the State agency responsible for crossing safety with
the location of the proposed quiet zone and the tentative plan to improve safety to the
standards necessary.  Because the public authority of the roads in the Charter Township

of Meridian is Ingham County, the diagnostic team would likely include a representative
from the County.

4. Install the most cost-effective risk-abating solutions.  An application must be filed with
the FRA if any ASMs are being used.

5. Update the pavement markings at the Hulett and Meridian Road crossings if included in

the quiet zone and the signage for all private, public, and pedestrian crossings.
6. Establish a quiet zone by providing a Notice of Quiet Zone Establishment; the quiet zone

can take effect no sooner than 21 days after the Notice is mailed.

CN Quiet Zone 
If the Charter Township of Meridian decides to pursue a quiet zone on the CN railroad from 

Hagadorn Road to Green Road, the following steps are recommended. [5] 
1. Update the U.S. DOT Crossing Inventory Forms for each crossing within the proposed

quiet zone within a year of the proposal as required by the FRA.

2. Provide a Notice of Intent (NOI) to: railroads who utilize the crossings, the State agency
responsible for highway safety and the State agency responsible for crossing safety with

the location of the proposed quiet zone and the tentative plan to improve safety to the
standards necessary. Because the public authority of the roads in the Charter Township
of Meridian is Ingham County, the diagnostic team would likely include a representative

from the County.
3. Update the pavement markings at the Green Road crossing and the signage for all

private, public, and pedestrian crossings.

4. Establish a quiet zone by providing a Notice of Quiet Zone Establishment; the quiet zone
can take effect no sooner than 21 days after the Notice is mailed.

II 



O:\Projects\2017\17-0531 Meridian Twp - Railroad Quiet Zone Study\Reports\QuietZoneStudy.docx 

20 

References 
[1] https://www.csx.com/index.cfm/library/files/about-us/property/quiet-zones/
[2] http://safetydata.fra.dot.gov/quiet/index.aspx

[3] http://www.michigan.gov/mdot/0,4616,7-151-12967_22649-60220--,00.html
[4] https://www.fra.dot.gov/Page/P0244

[5] https://www.fra.dot.gov/eLib/Details/L04781

II 



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
07 10 2014

234408V

CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM

EAST LANSING
MT HOPE ROAD

✘ CR

✘ ✘

SOO

CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0083.03

CH WILLIAMSTON CSX

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7078590 -84.4508510

800-232-0144 517-335-2592

1 2 1

40
35 40

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

07/10/2014 234408V

✘ 0 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

✘

2
2

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

4 ✘✘

✘

✘ ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

45

✘

✘

2004 013000 30 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION                          OMB No. 2130-0017 
 
Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency  C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit     Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State    Other    Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number    
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                                    |* (Block Number)    

6. Highway Type & No. 
 
_______________________________________ 

7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No   
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                              ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No     
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                                               ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

9. Railroad Division or Region 
 
 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 
 
 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 
 
 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost 
_______|____________|____________ 
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix) 

13. Line Segment 
      * 
_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _________________________________ 

17. Crossing Type 
 
 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position 
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing) 
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger 
 Commuter 

 
 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 
 
 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 
 
 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 

26.  HSR Corridor ID 
 
__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 
 
 Actual         Estimated    

30.A.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.A.  State Use   * 
 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.B.  State Use   * 
 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.C.  State Use   * 
 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.D.  State Use   * 
 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 
 

32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  * 
 

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted) 
 
_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
______________________________________ 

35.  State Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements 
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 
 
__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 
 
__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than  
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______ 

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 
 
__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing 
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________ 
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________ 

4. Type and Count of Tracks 
 
Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only) 
        Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 
6.  Is Track Signaled? 
        Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder 
        Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring 
        Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 1 OF  2  

✘ ✘
07 10 2014

234407N

CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM

EAST LANSING
HAGADORN RD✘

CR

✘ ✘

SOO

CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0082.76

CH TROWBRIDGE CSX

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘ ✘

42.7105440 -84.4620350 ✘

J75313 305521692-AID

800-232-0144 904-359-1048 517-335-2592

1 2 1

40
35 40

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 2 OF  2 

 
 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 

A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals? 
 
 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count) 
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count) 

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5) 
  Yes  (count_______)  
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians 

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed  
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs                              Yes     No    2.K. Private Crossing 
Signs (if private) 
 
 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 
 
 Specify Type  _______________ 

Specify Type _______________ 
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply) 
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 
 
Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count) 

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights  
(count of masts) _________ 

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 
 
Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 
 
 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current  
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________                    Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn   3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling 
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count) 

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________ 

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 
 
 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected 
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 
 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply) 
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection 
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic 
                                                 Two-way Traffic 
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic 

2.  Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No 

3.  Does Track Run Down a Street? 
 

 Yes          No 

4.  Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No 

5.  Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________ 
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal       
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________           

6.  Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet? 
 
  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7.  Smallest Crossing Angle 
 
  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°      

8.  Is Commercial Power Available? * 
 

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

 
  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing 
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  * 

6. LRS Milepost  * 

7.  Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________ 

8.  Estimated Percent Trucks 
___________________  % 

9.  Regularly Used by School Buses? 
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10.  Emergency Services Route 
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 
 
 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

07/10/2014 234407N

✘ 4 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

✘

2
2

0

0
10

✘ 2

0

3 ✘✘ ✘

✘

✘ 75 ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

50
✘

✘

2003 012600 25 ✘ 7

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION                          OMB No. 2130-0017 
 
Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency  C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit     Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State    Other    Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number    
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                                    |* (Block Number)    

6. Highway Type & No. 
 
_______________________________________ 

7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No   
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                              ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No     
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                                               ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

9. Railroad Division or Region 
 
 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 
 
 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 
 
 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost 
_______|____________|____________ 
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix) 

13. Line Segment 
      * 
_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _________________________________ 

17. Crossing Type 
 
 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position 
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing) 
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger 
 Commuter 

 
 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 
 
 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 
 
 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 

26.  HSR Corridor ID 
 
__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 
 
 Actual         Estimated    

30.A.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.A.  State Use   * 
 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.B.  State Use   * 
 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.C.  State Use   * 
 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.D.  State Use   * 
 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 
 

32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  * 
 

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted) 
 
_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
______________________________________ 

35.  State Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements 
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 
 
__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 
 
__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than  
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______ 

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 
 
__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing 
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________ 
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________ 

4. Type and Count of Tracks 
 
Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only) 
        Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 
6.  Is Track Signaled? 
        Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder 
        Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring 
        Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 1 OF  2  

✘ ✘
07 10 2014

234406G

CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM

OKEMOS
HULLETT ROAD

✘ CR

✘ ✘

SOO

CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0081.61

CH TROWBRIDGE CSX

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7055020 -84.4406970

800-232-0144 517-335-2592

1 2 1

40
35 40

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

07/10/2014 234406G

✘ 0 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

0
0

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

2 ✘✘

✘

✘ ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

25
✘

✘

2003 001600 15 ✘ 9

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
07 10 2014

234405A

CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM

OKEMOS
OKEMOS RD

✘ CR

✘ ✘

SOO

CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0081.18

CH TROWBRIDGE CSX

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7038000 -84.4324040

800-232-0144 517-335-2592

1 2 1

40
35 40

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

07/10/2014 234405A

✘ 0 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

2
2

0

0
0

✘ 2

0

4 ✘✘

✘

✘ 75 ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

40

✘

✘

2004 024893 10 ✘ 60

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
07 10 2014

234404T

CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM

OKEMOS
DOBIE RD

✘ CR

✘ ✘

SOO

CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0079.99

CH TROWBRIDGE CSX

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.6986010 -84.4105990

800-232-0144 517-335-2592

1 2 1

40
35 40

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 2 OF  2 

 
 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 

A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals? 
 
 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count) 
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count) 

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5) 
  Yes  (count_______)  
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians 

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed  
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs                              Yes     No    2.K. Private Crossing 
Signs (if private) 
 
 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 
 
 Specify Type  _______________ 

Specify Type _______________ 
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply) 
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 
 
Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count) 

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights  
(count of masts) _________ 

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 
 
Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 
 
 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current  
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________                    Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn   3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling 
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count) 

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________ 

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 
 
 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected 
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 
 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply) 
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection 
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic 
                                                 Two-way Traffic 
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic 

2.  Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No 

3.  Does Track Run Down a Street? 
 

 Yes          No 

4.  Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No 

5.  Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________ 
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal       
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________           

6.  Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet? 
 
  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7.  Smallest Crossing Angle 
 
  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°      

8.  Is Commercial Power Available? * 
 

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

 
  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing 
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  * 

6. LRS Milepost  * 

7.  Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________ 

8.  Estimated Percent Trucks 
___________________  % 

9.  Regularly Used by School Buses? 
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10.  Emergency Services Route 
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 
 
 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

07/10/2014 234404T

✘ 0 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

✘

2
0

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

2 ✘✘

✘

✘ 75 ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

35
✘

✘

2004 012300 15 ✘ 36

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No

If Yes, Specify RR 
          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
07 10 2014

234403L

CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM

OKEMOS
SYLVAN GLEN RD✘

PVT.

CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0079.57

CH TROWBRIDGE

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.6907460 -84.3729930

800-232-0144 517-335-2592

1 2 1

40
35 40

0

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

07/10/2014 234403L

✘ 0 0

✘

✘

✘

0
0

0

0
0

✘ 0

0

1970 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
07 10 2014

234402E

CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM

OKEMOS
VANATTA ROAD

✘ CR

✘ ✘

SOO

CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0078.27

CH WILLIAMSTON CSX

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.6912000 -84.3786010

800-232-0144 517-335-2592

1 2 1

40
35 40

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

07/10/2014 234402E

✘ 0 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

2
0

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

2 ✘✘

✘

✘ ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

45
✘

✘

2004 001900 15 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
07 10 2014

234401X

CSX Transportation [CSX] MICHIGAN INGHAM

EAST LANSING
MERIDIAN ROAD

✘ CR

✘ ✘

SOO

CHICAGO PLYMOUTH
0077.53

CH WILLIAMSTON CSX

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.6899990 -84.3638000

800-232-0144 517-335-2592

1 2 1

40
35 40

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

07/10/2014 234401X

✘ 0 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

0
0

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

2 ✘✘

✘

✘ ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

55
✘ ✘

2004 003000 25 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix A



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
03 04 2013

283653G

Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM

EAST LANSING
HAGADORN ROAD✘

CITY

✘ ✘

ATK

MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0225.47

TROWBRIDGE CN GTW

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7212980 -84.4621960

800-617-6617 517-335-2592

17 1 0

65
60 65

2

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

03/04/2013 283653G

✘ 4 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

4
4

2
0

4

0
0

✘ 2

0

4 ✘✘

✘

✘ 75 ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

35

✘

✘

2004 021900 25 ✘ 8

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
03 04 2013

283655V

Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM

HASLETT
OKEMOS ROAD

✘ COUNTY

✘ ✘

ATK

MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0227.51

HASLETT CN GTW

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7528990 -84.5407030

800-617-6617 517-335-2592

17 1 0

65
60 65

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

03/04/2013 283655V

✘ 2 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

2
2

2
0

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

2 ✘✘

✘

✘ 75 ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

40
✘ ✘

2004 012200 25 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
03 04 2013

283658R

Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM

HASLETT
HASLETT ROAD

✘ COUNTY

✘ ✘

ATK

MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0229.01

HASLETT CN GTW

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7253990 -84.5822980

800-617-6617 517-335-2592

17 1 0

65
60 65

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

03/04/2013 283658R

✘ 2 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

2
2

2
2

2

0
0

✘ 2

1 SIDELITE

3 ✘✘

✘

✘ 75 ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

25

✘

✘

2002 012300 05 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION                          OMB No. 2130-0017 
 
Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency  C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit     Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State    Other    Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number    
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                                    |* (Block Number)    

6. Highway Type & No. 
 
_______________________________________ 

7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No   
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                              ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No     
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                                               ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

9. Railroad Division or Region 
 
 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 
 
 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 
 
 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost 
_______|____________|____________ 
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix) 

13. Line Segment 
      * 
_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _________________________________ 

17. Crossing Type 
 
 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position 
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing) 
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger 
 Commuter 

 
 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 
 
 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 
 
 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 

26.  HSR Corridor ID 
 
__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 
 
 Actual         Estimated    

30.A.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.A.  State Use   * 
 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.B.  State Use   * 
 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.C.  State Use   * 
 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.D.  State Use   * 
 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 
 

32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  * 
 

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted) 
 
_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
______________________________________ 

35.  State Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements 
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 
 
__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 
 
__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than  
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______ 

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 
 
__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing 
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________ 
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________ 

4. Type and Count of Tracks 
 
Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only) 
        Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 
6.  Is Track Signaled? 
        Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder 
        Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring 
        Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 1 OF  2  

✘ ✘
03 04 2013

283659X

Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM

HASLETT
CARLTON ROAD

✘ COUNTY

✘ ✘

ATK

MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0229.33

HASLETT CN GTW

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7490010 -84.3981020

800-617-6617 517-335-2592

17 1 0

65
60 65

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

03/04/2013 283659X

✘ 2 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

2
2

2
0

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

2 ✘✘

✘

✘ 75 ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

25
✘

✘

2003 001400 15 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
03 04 2013

283660S

Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM

HASLETT
GREEN ROAD

✘ COUNTY

✘ ✘

ATK

MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0231.08

HASLETT CN GTW

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7624020 -84.3691020

800-617-6617 517-335-2592

17 1 0

65
60 65

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

03/04/2013 283660S

✘ 2 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

2
2

2
0

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

2 ✘✘

✘

✘ ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

35
✘

✘

2003 001400 15 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION                          OMB No. 2130-0017 
 
Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency  C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit     Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State    Other    Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number    
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                                    |* (Block Number)    

6. Highway Type & No. 
 
_______________________________________ 

7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No   
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                              ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No     
    If Yes, Specify RR 
                                               ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

9. Railroad Division or Region 
 
 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 
 
 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 
 
 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost 
_______|____________|____________ 
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix) 

13. Line Segment 
      * 
_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable) 
 
 N/A        _________________________________ 

17. Crossing Type 
 
 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position 
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing) 
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger 
 Commuter 

 
 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 
 
 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 
 
 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 

26.  HSR Corridor ID 
 
__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 
 
(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 
 
 Actual         Estimated    

30.A.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.A.  State Use   * 
 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.B.  State Use   * 
 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.C.  State Use   * 
 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 
 

31.D.  State Use   * 
 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 
 

32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  * 
 

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted) 
 
_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
______________________________________ 

35.  State Contact  (Telephone No.) 
 
_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements 
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 
 
__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 
 
__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than  
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______ 

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 
 
__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing 
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________ 
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________ 

4. Type and Count of Tracks 
 
Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only) 
        Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 
6.  Is Track Signaled? 
        Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder 
        Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring 
        Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15)   OMB approval expires 3/31/2018                                                Page 1 OF  2  

✘ ✘
03 04 2013

283661Y

Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM

HASLETT
BARRY ROAD

✘ CR

✘ ✘

ATK

MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0232.07

HASLETT CN GTW

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7695010 -84.3522030

800-617-6617 517-335-2592

17 1 0

65
60 65

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                 (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

03/04/2013 283661Y

✘ 2 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

2
2

2
0

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

2 ✘✘

✘

✘ 75 ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

55
✘

✘

2004 001000 15 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION OMB No. 2130-0017 

Instructions for the initial reporting of the following types of new or previously unreported crossings: For public highway-rail grade crossings, complete the entire inventory 
Form. For private highway-rail grade crossings, complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For public pathway grade crossings (including 
pedestrian station grade crossings), complete the Header, Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For Private pathway grade crossings, complete the Header, 
Parts I and II, and the Submission Information section. For grade-separated highway-rail or pathway crossings (including pedestrian station crossings), complete the Header, Part 
I, and the Submission Information section. For changes to existing data, complete the Header, Part I Items 1-3, and the Submission Information section, in addition to the 
updated data fields. Note: For private crossings only, Part I Item 20 and Part III Item 2.K. are required unless otherwise noted.                     An asterisk * denotes an optional field. 
A. Revision Date 
(MM/DD/YYYY) 
_____/_____/_________ 

B. Reporting Agency C. Reason for Update (Select only one) D. DOT Crossing 
Inventory Number  Railroad   Transit    Change in 

Data  
 New 
Crossing 

 Closed  No Train 
Traffic 

 Quiet 
Zone Update 

 State   Other   Re-Open  Date 
Change Only 

 Change in Primary 
Operating RR 

 Admin. 
Correction 

Part I: Location and Classification Information 
1. Primary Operating Railroad 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. State 
________________________________ 

3. County 
____________________________________ 

4. City / Municipality 
 In 
 Near       __________________________ 

5. Street/Road Name & Block Number
  ________________________________|  __________________ 
  (Street/Road Name)                  |* (Block Number)   

6. Highway Type & No. 

_______________________________________ 
7. Do Other Railroads Operate a Separate Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
    If Yes, Specify RR 

          ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 

8. Do Other Railroads Operate Over Your Track at Crossing?    Yes     No
If Yes, Specify RR 

             ____________,  ____________,  ____________, _____________ 
9. Railroad Division or Region 

 None        _______________________ 

10. Railroad Subdivision or District 

 None        _______________________ 

11. Branch or Line Name 

 None        _______________________ 

12. RR Milepost
_______|____________|____________
(prefix)  |  (nnnn.nnn)       |  (suffix)

13. Line Segment 
* 

_________________________ 

14. Nearest RR Timetable 
Station        * 
__________________________ 

15. Parent RR  (if applicable)

 N/A        _____________________________ 

16. Crossing Owner (if applicable)

 N/A        _________________________________ 
17. Crossing Type 

 Public 
 Private 

18. Crossing Purpose 
 Highway 
 Pathway, Ped. 
 Station, Ped. 

19. Crossing Position
 At Grade 
 RR Under 
 RR Over 

20. Public Access 
(if Private Crossing)
 Yes 
 No 

21. Type of Train 
 Freight 
 Intercity Passenger
 Commuter 

 Transit 
 Shared Use Transit 
 Tourist/Other 

22. Average Passenger 
Train Count Per Day 
 Less Than One Per Day 
 Number Per Day_____ 

23. Type of Land Use 
 Open Space              Farm               Residential              Commercial              Industrial               Institutional              Recreational               RR Yard  
24. Is there an Adjacent Crossing with a Separate Number? 

 Yes      No        If Yes, Provide Crossing Number __________________ 

25. Quiet Zone   (FRA provided) 

 No      24 Hr      Partial       Chicago Excused              Date Established  _________________ 
26. HSR Corridor ID 

__________________ N/A  

27. Latitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   nn.nnnnnnn) 

28. Longitude in decimal degrees 

(WGS84 std:   -nnn.nnnnnnn) 

29. Lat/Long Source 

 Actual         Estimated   
30.A.  Railroad Use   * 31.A.  State Use   * 

30.B.  Railroad Use   * 31.B.  State Use   * 

30.C.  Railroad Use   * 31.C.  State Use   * 

30.D.  Railroad Use   * 31.D.  State Use   * 

32.A.  Narrative  (Railroad Use)  * 32.B.  Narrative (State Use)  *

33. Emergency Notification Telephone No. (posted)

_________________________________ 

34. Railroad Contact  (Telephone No.) 

______________________________________ 

35. State Contact  (Telephone No.)

_________________________________ 

Part II: Railroad Information 
1. Estimated Number of Daily Train Movements
1.A.  Total Day Thru Trains 
(6 AM to 6 PM) 
__________ 

1.B.  Total Night Thru Trains 
(6 PM to 6 AM) 
__________ 

1.C. Total Switching Trains 

__________ 

1.D. Total Transit Trains 

__________ 

1.E. Check if Less Than 
One Movement Per Day                  
How many trains per week?  ______

2. Year of Train Count Data (YYYY) 

__________ 

3. Speed of Train at Crossing
3.A. Maximum Timetable Speed (mph)  __________
3.B. Typical Speed Range Over Crossing (mph)   From __________ to __________

4. Type and Count of Tracks

Main __________     Siding __________     Yard __________     Transit __________     Industry __________ 
5. Train Detection (Main Track only)
  Constant Warning Time       Motion Detection     AFO     PTC       DC       Other       None 

6. Is Track Signaled? 
  Yes       No 

7.A.  Event Recorder
  Yes       No 

7.B.  Remote Health Monitoring
  Yes       No 

FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 1 OF  2 

✘ ✘
03 04 2013

283662F

Grand Trunk Western Railroad Incorporated [GTW] MICHIGAN INGHAM

HASLETT
SHOEMAN ROAD

✘ COUNTY

✘ ✘

ATK

MIDWEST FLINT MAIN LINE
0232.15

HASLETT CN GTW

✘

✘ ✘

0

✘

✘

42.7703020 -84.3500980

800-617-6617 517-335-2592

17 1 0

65
60 65

1

✘

✘

I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



FORM FRA F 6180.71 (Rev. 3/15) OMB approval expires 3/31/2018   Page 2 OF  2 

U. S. DOT CROSSING INVENTORY FORM
A. Revision Date (MM/DD/YYYY) PAGE 2 D. Crossing Inventory Number (7 char.) 

Part III: Highway or Pathway Traffic Control Device Information 
1. Are there 
Signs or Signals?

 Yes     No 

2. Types of Passive Traffic Control Devices associated with the Crossing 

2.A. Crossbuck 
Assemblies (count)
 

2.B. STOP Signs (R1-1) 
(count)

2.C. YIELD Signs (R1-2) 
(count) 

2.D. Advance Warning Signs (Check all that apply; include count)         None 
 W10-1 ________  W10-3 ________  W10-11 __________ 
 W10-2 ________  W10-4 ________  W10-12 __________ 

2.E. Low Ground Clearance Sign 
(W10-5)
  Yes  (count_______) 
  No 

2.F. Pavement Markings 2.G. Channelization 
Devices/Medians

2.H. EXEMPT Sign 
(R15-3) 
 Yes 
 No 

2.I. ENS Sign (I-13) 
Displayed 
 Yes 
 No 

 Stop Lines 
 RR Xing Symbols 

Dynamic Envelope 
 None 

 All Approaches 
 One Approach 

 Median 
 None 

2.J. Other MUTCD Signs      Yes     No   2.K. Private Crossing
Signs (if private)

 Yes     No 

2.L. LED Enhanced Signs (List types) 

Specify Type  _______________ 
Specify Type _______________
Specify Type _______________ 

Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 
Count  __________ 

3. Types of Train Activated Warning Devices at the Grade Crossing (specify count of each device for all that apply)
3.A. Gate Arms 
(count) 

Roadway   _____ 
Pedestrian _____ 

3.B. Gate Configuration 3.C. Cantilevered (or Bridged) Flashing Light 
Structures (count)

3.D. Mast Mounted Flashing Lights 
(count of masts) _________

3.E. Total Count of 
Flashing Light Pairs 

 2 Quad 
 3 Quad 
 4 Quad 

 Full (Barrier) 
Resistance 
 Median Gates 

Over Traffic Lane        _____ 

Not Over Traffic Lane _____ 

 Incandescent 

 LED 

 Incandescent 
 Back Lights Included 

 LED 
 Side Lights 
Included 

3.F. Installation Date of Current 
Active Warning Devices: (MM/YYYY) 
______/___________          Not Required 

3.G. Wayside Horn 3.H. Highway Traffic Signals Controlling
Crossing 
 Yes     No 

3.I. Bells 
(count)

  Yes  
  No 

Installed on (MM/YYYY) ______/__________ 

3.J. Non-Train Active Warning 
 Flagging/Flagman  Manually Operated Signals    Watchman   Floodlighting   None 

3.K. Other Flashing Lights or Warning Devices 
Count ___________     Specify type   ______________________

4.A. Does nearby Hwy 
Intersection have 
Traffic Signals? 

 Yes     No 

4.B. Hwy Traffic Signal 
Interconnection 
  Not Interconnected
  For Traffic Signals 
  For Warning Signs 

4.C. Hwy Traffic Signal Preemption 5. Highway Traffic Pre-Signals 
  Yes       No 

6. Highway Monitoring Devices 
(Check all that apply)
  Yes - Photo/Video Recording 
  Yes – Vehicle Presence Detection
  None 

  Simultaneous 
  Advance 

Storage Distance *     ____________ 
Stop Line Distance *  ____________ 

Part IV: Physical Characteristics 
1. Traffic Lanes Crossing Railroad      One-way Traffic

   Two-way Traffic
Number of Lanes   _______                 Divided Traffic

2. Is Roadway/Pathway 
Paved? 

 Yes          No

3. Does Track Run Down a Street?

 Yes          No

4. Is Crossing Illuminated?  (Street 
lights within approx. 50 feet from 
nearest rail)   Yes          No

5. Crossing Surface (on Main Track, multiple types allowed)     Installation Date * (MM/YYYY)  _______/__________     Width * ______________   Length * _______________
  1  Timber        2  Asphalt        3  Asphalt and Timber        4  Concrete        5  Concrete and Rubber        6  Rubber        7  Metal      
  8  Unconsolidated        9  Composite       10  Other (specify)  ________________________________________________________        

6. Intersecting Roadway within 500 feet?

  Yes        No      If Yes, Approximate Distance (feet) _________________ 

7. Smallest Crossing Angle 

  0° – 29°          30° – 59°             60° - 90°     

8. Is Commercial Power Available? *

 Yes          No 

Part V: Public Highway Information 
1. Highway System 

  (01) Interstate Highway System 
  (02) Other Nat Hwy System (NHS) 
  (03) Federal AID, Not NHS 
  (08) Non-Federal Aid 

2. Functional Classification of Road at Crossing
  (0)  Rural      (1)  Urban 

  (1) Interstate                               (5) Major Collector 
  (2) Other Freeways and Expressways 
  (3) Other Principal Arterial       (6) Minor Collector 
  (4) Minor Arterial                       (7) Local 

3. Is Crossing on State Highway 
System? 
  Yes        No 

4. Highway Speed Limit 
___________  MPH 
 Posted     Statutory 

5. Linear Referencing System (LRS Route ID)  *

6. LRS Milepost  *

7. Annual Average Daily Traffic  (AADT) 
Year  _______    AADT  _____________

8. Estimated Percent Trucks
___________________  % 

9. Regularly Used by School Buses?
 Yes          No   Average Number per Day  ___________ 

10. Emergency Services Route
 Yes          No 

Submission Information - This information is used for administrative purposes and is not available on the public website. 

Submitted by  __________________________________     Organization _______________________________________     Phone  _______________      Date  _____________ 
Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, a federal 
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to, nor shall a person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information unless it 
displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for information collection is 2130-0017.  Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any 
other aspect of this collection, including for reducing this burden to:  Information Collection Officer, Federal Railroad Administration, 1200 New Jersey Ave. SE, MS-25 
Washington, DC 20590. 

03/04/2013 283662F

✘ 2 0
✘

✘

✘

✘

2
2

2
0

2

0
0

✘ 2

0

2 ✘✘

✘

✘ 75 ✘ ✘

✘

✘

✘

55
✘

✘

2002 003700 20 ✘ 0

I I 

I I 

rwhise
Text Box
Appendix B



 

1 

This report presents important information 

on the quality of your drinking water. It also 

discusses where the water originates, and 

how it’s made consistently plentiful, reliable 

and pleasant, and then provided to your tap 

every day. 

While much of the content of this report is 

required by regulation, the East Lansing—

Meridian Water and Sewer Authority 

(“Authority”) has included other important 

information about this critical resource that 

may be of interest to you.   The Authority 

supports and encourages your understand-

ing about our water quality and, in this 

report, is attempting to convey this infor-

mation in a clear and useful format. We 

also want to enlist your help in protecting 

and preserving this resource, now and for 

the future. 

From a regulatory standpoint, the Michigan 

Department of Environment, Great Lakes, 

and Energy (EGLE) and US Environmental 

Protection Agency (EPA) oversee the quality 

and availability of the drinking water that is 

produced by the Authority. In calendar year 

2020, the drinking water produced by the 

Authority was in compliance with all State 

and Federal regulations.  There were no 

violations of water quality standards.   

To help ensure the water supply is reliable 

and adequate, the Authority employs opera-

tions and maintenance staff that maintain 

proficiency through continuous training and 

education programs and EGLE certification. 

Through this process, the staff stays current 

with the best practices and evolving regula-

tions governing your tap water. 

 

We encourage public interest and participa-

tion in decisions affecting your drinking 

water. Regular Authority Board meetings 

normally occur at 11:00 a.m. on the third 

Thursday of each month. These meetings 

are normally held at the Water Conditioning 

Plant at 2470 Burcham Drive, East Lansing, 

MI 48823. The public is welcome.   For cur-

rent information on meeting times and 

dates call (517) 337-7535. 

Why you should read this report! 

2020 Drinking Water Quality Report for  

The City of  East Lansing & Meridian Township 

THE  EAST LANSING—MERIDIAN WATER & SEWER 

AUTHORITY 

In This  Report 

Why you should read this report! 1 

Where does our water come from? 1 

Contaminants in groundwater 2 

Important notices about water quality 2 

Water quality data and test results 3 & 4 

Information on Lead and PFAS 5 

You Can Help Protect the Water Supply 6 

WHERE DOES OUR WATER COME FROM? 

The Authority was formed as a joint venture 

of the City and Township to address the 

water supply and quality needs for both 

communities. In 1972, the Water Condi-

tioning Plant was placed in service and has 

provided softened water to both systems 

since then. Each community owns and 

operates its separate water distribution 

utility. 

Groundwater is pumped to the conditioning 

plant from 28 wells that are approximately 

400 feet deep. Lime is added to the water 

to remove excess hardness, and Ferric 

Chloride is added to treat very fine particu-

lates. The water then passes through sand 

filters to remove any cloudiness that was 

not taken out during the chemical treat-

ment part of the process. Through this 

method, the excess hardness is removed 

and recycled for agricultural soil amend-

ment or other beneficent uses. It is not dis-

posed of into the sewer or drain as is com-

monly done with in-home water softeners. 

Although the source-water is very pure, we add 

Chloramine to ensure the water is thoroughly 

disinfected and stays fresh, as it is delivered 

to your home or business. We also add Fluo-

ride for the prevention of tooth decay, espe-

cially for children. 

In 2020, the Authority processed and pumped  

2.03 billion gallons of treated water to the two 

communities. In the water production process, 

our operators run numerous routine chemical 

analyses to ensure the water stays fresh and 

pleasant tasting. Other more sophisticated 

testing is performed by us using outside labs, 

for a wide range of regulated and unregulated 

contaminants. Through this testing we verify 

that the water consistently meets state and 

federal drinking water standards. 

The tables on pages 3 and 4 list some 

parameters that were detected, and show 

what the regulatory limits are. No contami-

nant concentration exceeds regulatory 

limits. 

Note: The Authority purchases water from 

the Lansing Board of Water and Light 

(LBWL) to supply the southern portion of 

Meridian Township. Water quality data for 

the LBWL is included in this report.  

Hidden Lakes    ■     Meridian Township 



 

2 

THE  EAST LANSING—MERIDIAN WATER & SEWER AUTHORITY 

Vulnerability of sub-populations: 

Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in drinking water than the general population.  Immuno-compromised persons such 

as persons with cancer undergoing chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ transplants, people with HIV/AIDS or other immune 

system disorders, some elderly, and infants can be particularly at risk from infections.  These people should seek advice about drinking wa-

ter from their health care providers. EPA/CDC (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention) guidelines on appropriate means to lessen the 

risk of infection by Cryptosporidium and other microbial contaminants are available from the 

EPA’s Safe Drinking Water Hotline (800-426-4791).  

Contaminants and their presence in water: 

Drinking water, including bottled water, may reasonably be expected to contain at least small amounts of some contaminants.  The pres-

ence of contaminants does not necessarily indicate that water poses a health risk.  More information about contaminants and potential 

health effects can be obtained by calling the EPA’s Safe Drinking Water Hotline (800-426-4791). 

Sources of drinking water: 

The sources of drinking water (both tap water and bottled water) include rivers, lakes, streams, ponds, reservoirs, springs, and wells.  As 

water travels over the surface of the land or through the ground, it dissolves naturally-occurring minerals and, in some cases, radioactive 

material, and can pick up substances resulting from the presence of animals or from human activity.  Contaminants that may be present in 

source water include: 

• Microbial Contaminants, such as viruses and bacteria, which may come from sewage treatment plants, septic systems, agricultural live-

stock operations and wildlife. 

• Inorganic Contaminants, such as salts and metals, which can be naturally occurring or result from urban storm runoff, industrial or do-

mestic wastewater discharges, oil and gas production, mining or farming. 

• Pesticides and Herbicides, which may come from a variety of sources such as farming, storm water runoff, residential or business. 

• Organic Chemical Contaminants, including synthetic and volatile organics, which are by-products of industrial processes and petroleum 

production, and can also come from gas stations, urban storm water runoff and septic systems. 

• Radioactive Contaminants, which can be naturally-occurring, or may be the result of oil and gas production and mining activities. 

 

In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink, EPA prescribes regulations which limit the amount of certain contaminants in water provid-

ed by public water systems.  The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) regulations establish limits for contaminants in bottled water which 

must provide the same protection for public health. 

DEFINITIONS 

Action Level (AL):  The concentration of a contaminant which, if exceeded, 

triggers treatment or other requirements which a water system must follow.  

Level 1 Assessment:  A study of the water supply to identify potential problems 

and determine (if possible) why total coliform bacteria have been found in our 

water system. 

Level 2 Assessment: A very detailed study of the water supply to identify poten-

tial problems and determine (if possible) why an E-coli MCL violation has oc-

curred and/or why  total coliform bacteria have been found in our water system 

on multiple occasions. 

Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL):  The highest level of a contaminant that is 

allowed in drinking water.  MCLs are set as close to the MCLGs as feasible 

using the best available treatment technology.   

Maximum Contaminant Level Goal (MCLG):  The level of a contaminant in 

drinking water below which there is no known or expected risk to health.  

MCLGs allow for a margin of safety. 

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL):  The highest level of disinfect-

ant allowed in drinking water. There is convincing evidence that addition of a 

disinfectant is necessary for control of microbial contaminants. 

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal (MRDLG):  The level of drinking 

water disinfectant below which there is no known or expected risk to health. 

MRDLG’s do not reflect the benefits of the use of disinfectants to control mi-

crobial contaminants. 

Treatment Technique (TT): A required process intended to reduce the level of a 

contaminant in drinking water. 

Note: There is a Key to terms or units used in the Table, located on Page 4 of 

this report. 

WATER QUALITY DATA 

The US EPA prescribes regulations which limit the amount of contami-

nants in water provided by public water systems. The tables on pages 

3 & 4 list all of the drinking water contaminants that we detected 

during the 2020 calendar year. Although we routinely test for more 

than 140 different contaminants, only those contaminants listed were 

found in your water. 

All sources of drinking water contain some naturally occurring contam-

inants. At low levels, these substances are generally not harmful in our 

drinking water. Removing all contaminants would be extremely expen-

sive, and in most cases, would not provide increased protection of 

public health. A few naturally occurring minerals may actually improve 

the taste of drinking water and have nutritional value at low levels. 

Unless otherwise noted, the data presented in these tables is from 

testing done January 1 - December 31, 2020. The EPA or the State 

allows us to monitor for certain contaminants less than once per year 

because the concentrations of these contaminants do not vary signifi-

cantly from year to year, or the system is not considered vulnerable to 

this type of contamination. As such, some of our data, though repre-

sentative, may be more than one year old. 

In these tables you will find terms and abbreviations that might not be 

familiar to you. To help you better understand the information, please 

refer to the definitions of terms used in the data tables. 



 

3 

THE  EAST LANSING—MERIDIAN WATER & SEWER AUTHORITY 

Water Quality Data and Test Results 

  Contaminants Last  

Tested 

Unit MCL , TT 

or MRDL  

MCLG or 
MRDLG 

Detected In 

Your Water 

Range 

(2020) 

Violation 

No/Yes 

Typical Source of Contamination 

 Disinfectants and Disinfection By-Products                

 Chloramines (as Cl2) -Plant tap 12/31/20 ppm MRDL = 4 MRDLG = 4 HRAA = 1.40 0.93—1.82 No 
Water additive used to control microbes  

 Chloramines (as Cl2) -Distribution 12/16/20 ppm MRDL = 4 MRDLG = 4 HRAA = 0.63 0.10 - 2.02 No 

 Chloramine was calculated using the highest quarterly running annual average (RAA), which includes data from 2019. The Range represents individual measurements 

taken during 2020.  There is convincing evidence that addition of a disinfectant is necessary for control of microbial contaminants. 

 
Haloacetic Acids (HAA5) 10/6/20 ppb 60 NA 

Highest LRAA = 

4.0 
ND - 5.0 No By-product of drinking water disinfection 

 
TTHMs [Total Trihalomethanes] 10/6/20 ppb 80 NA 

Highest LRAA = 

12.6 
6.8—14.7 No By-product of drinking water disinfection 

 The MCL for haloacetic acids is the sum of the concentrations of the individual haloacetic acids. 

The MCL for total trihalomethanes is the sum of the concentrations of the individual trihalomethanes. 

 Inorganic Contaminants         Highest Value Range      

 Barium                              ELMWSA 9/10/15 ppm 2 2 0.07 0.07 No 
Erosion of natural deposits   

                                           LBWL 7/25/12 ppm 2 2 0.022 0.015 - 0.022 No 

 Fluoride                            ELMWSA 12/31/20 ppm 4.0 4.0 0.77 0.49 - 0.77 No Erosion of natural deposits, water additive 

that promotes strong teeth                                             LBWL 7/9/20 ppm 4.0 4.0 0.61 0.54 - 0.61 No 

 The Authority strives to maintain an optimum Fluoride level of 0.6 - 0.7 ppm in the distribution system. 

  Radiological Contaminants         Value  Range    

 Radium 226 & 228       ELMWSA 9/1/20 pCi/L 5 0 2.01 + 0.77   No 

Erosion of natural deposits  
                                          LBWL 

 

7/7/16 pCi/L 5 0 1.95 + 0.44    0.84 + 0.51 to 

1.95 + 0.44  

No 

    Microbial Contaminants MCL or TT MCLG Highest % 

Detected 

Violation: 

No/Yes 

Typical Source of Contaminant 
Last Tested 

    Total Coliform Bacteria TT N/A 0 * No Naturally present in the environment 12/16/20 

    E. coli in the distribution system 

          (positive samples) 

0** 0 0 No Human and animal fecal waste 12/16/20 

*   Coliforms are bacteria that are naturally present in the environment and are used as an indicator that other, potentially harmful, waterborne pathogens may be present or that a 

potential pathway exists through which contamination may enter the drinking water distribution system. If the presence of coliforms are confirmed, it would indicate the need to 

look for potential problems in water treatment or distribution, in which case we are required to conduct assessment(s) to identify problems and to correct any problems that were 

found during these assessments. During 2020, we had no MCL exceedances and were not required to conduct any Level 1 or Level 2 assessments for our water system. 

 

** An E. coli violation occurs if: (1) routine or repeat samples are total coliform-positive and either is E. coli-positive, or (2) the system fails to take all required repeat samples follow-

ing an E. coli-positive routine sample, or (3) the system fails to analyze total coliform-positive repeat sample for E.coli. During 2020, no E. coli violation occurred on our system. 

 Turbidity Sample Date MCL MCLG Detected In Your Water Range Violation 

No/Yes 

Typical Source of Contaminant 

  

Turbidity  

12/31/20 TT = 1.0 NTU N/A 0.05 NTU 0.04 — 0.09 No 

Soil runoff, water softening process  12/31/20 TT = < 95% of sam-

ples 

below 0.3 NTU 

0 100% of samples 

below 0.3 NTU 

NA No 

 At least 95% of combined filter effluent turbidity samples taken each month must be below the Treatment Technique (TT) limit of 0.3 NTU. Also, any measurement in 

excess of 1.0 NTU would be a Treatment Technique violation. In 2020, 100% of the samples were below the Treatment Technique (TT) limit of 0.3 NTU. 

 Inorganics Subject to Action Levels 

(Values measured at customer’s taps) 

Unit AL MCLG Your 

Water 

Test Period # Samples 

Above AL  

Violation 

No/Yes 

Typical Source of Contamination Range of 

Results 

 Lead                    City of East Lansing ppb 15 0 0 Jan—Jun 

2020 

0 No 
Lead service lines*, corrosion of household plumbing includ-

ing fittings and fixtures; erosion of natural deposits  

0 — 2 

                             Meridian Township ppb 15 0 1 Jan—Jun 

2020 

0 No 0 — 12 

 Copper                City of East Lansing ppm 1.3 1.3 0.0 Jan—Jun 

2020 

0 No 
Corrosion of household plumbing systems; 

erosion of natural deposits  

0.0 — 0.1 

                             Meridian Township  ppm 1.3 1.3 0.0 Jan—Jun 

2020 

0 No 0.0 — 0.2 

 See information on Lead in drinking water and lead service line materials on page 5 of this report. 

-

--

-

I I I I 

I I I I I 

I I I I I I I I I 



 

4 

KEY  to Water Quality Table 

 

AL  = Action Level 

ELMWSA = East Lansing-Meridian Water & Sewer 

     Authority 

HRAA = Highest Running Annual Average 

    (Includes data from prior year) 

LBWL = Lansing Board of Water and Light 

LRAA = Locational Running Annual Average 

    (Includes data from prior year) 

MCL = Maximum Contaminant Level 

MCLG = Maximum Contaminant Level Goal 

MRDL = Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level 

MRDLG = Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal  

NA = Not Applicable 

ND = Not Detected 

NR = Not Regulated 

NTU = Nephelometric Turbidity Unit 

pCi/L = Picocuries per Liter 

ppb = parts per billion, or micrograms per liter 

(µg/L) 

ppm = parts per million, or milligrams per liter 

(mg/L) 

ppt = parts per trillion, or nanograms per liter 

(ng/L) 

RAA = Running Annual Average  

    (Includes data from prior year) 

TT = Treatment Technique 

Special Monitoring and Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring 

As part of an on-going evaluation program the EPA has required us to monitor some additional contami-

nants/chemicals. Information collected through the monitoring of these contaminants/chemicals will help to 

ensure that future decisions on drinking water standards are based on sound science. 

Unregulated Contaminant Last 

Tested  

Unit  Reported 

Level  

Range 

Low High 

The following unregulated contaminants were detected by ELMWSA 

Sodium (erosion of natural deposits) 9/22/20 ppm 23 23 23 

Chlorate 9/2/15 ppb 93 34 180 

Chromium (total chromium) 9/2/15 ppb 0.5 0.4 0.5 

Chromium—6 (hexavalent chromium) 9/2/15 ppb 0.33 0.24 0.38 

Molybdenum 9/2/15 ppb 5.3 4.6 5.8 

Strontium 9/2/15 ppb 436 190 513 

HAA5 7/8/20 ppb 4.20 1.94 6.35 

HAA6Br 7/8/20 ppb 2.95 0.84 4.60 

HAA9 7/8/20 ppb 6.64 2.78 9.43 

Manganese 7/7/20 ppb 1.16 1.04 1.27 

The following unregulated contaminants were detected by LBWL 

Sodium (erosion of natural deposits) 7/9/20 ppm 100 99 100 

Chlorate 8/2015 ppb 174 32 330 

Chromium (total chromium) 8/2015 ppb 0.2 0.2 0.3 

Chromium—6 (hexavalent chromium) 8/2015 ppb 0.2 0.14 0.24 

Molybdenum 8/2015 ppb 1.1 0 1.2 

Strontium 8/2015 ppb 166 120 210 

Vanadium 8/2015 ppb 0.3 0.2 0.4 

1,4-Dioxane 8/2015 ppb 0.14 0.14 0.14 

Manganese  8/2020 ppb 0.54 0.44 0.67 

HAA6  8/2020 ppb 0.31 0.00 0.46 

HAA9  8/2020 ppb 2.56 2.20 3.46 

THE  EAST LANSING—MERIDIAN WATER & SEWER AUTHORITY 

Monitoring and Reporting Requirements: The State and EPA require us to test our water on a regular basis to ensure its safety. We met all monitoring and reporting 

requirements for 2020. We will update this report annually and will keep you informed of any problems that may occur throughout the year, as they happen. This 

Drinking Water Quality Report (also referred to as a “Consumer Confidence Report”) will not  be sent to you unless you contact us and request one. Copies are availa-

ble at the Water Conditioning Plant, or by calling (517) 337-7535, or at https://www.cityofeastlansing.com/600/Annual-Water-Quality-Report. 

This is a general analysis of the water in the East Lansing and Meridian Township water distribution systems: 

Total Hardness.................................................................................................. 120 - 125 ppm 

Total Alkalinity ................................................................................................... 60 - 70 ppm 

Calcium Hardness.............................................................................................. 65 - 80 ppm 

Magnesium Hardness ....................................................................................... 50 - 60 ppm 

Total Chlorine Residual ..................................................................................... 1.0 - 1. 4 ppm* 

Sodium ............................................................................................................... 25 - 50 ppm 

Fluoride............................................................................................................... 0.6 – 0.7 ppm 

Nitrate ................................................................................................................ Not Detected 

pH........................................................................................................................ 8.9 - 9. 1 

Chloride............................................................................................................... 50 - 70 ppm 

Iron....................................................................................................................... 0.02 - 0.10 ppm 

Total Dissolved Solids ........................................................................................ 250 - 300 ppm 

Total Coliform ..................................................................................................... Not Detected 

*  Levels of Chlorine will vary in the distribution system depending on proximity to the Water Treatment Plant. Homes closer to the Water Treatment 

Plant would normally receive a higher concentration of chlorine in the tap water than a home that is located farther from the Treatment Plant. 

The maximum chlorine level in the distribution system is typically below 1.2 ppm. 

All hardness and alkalinity values are expressed as Calcium Carbonate equivalent.  



 

5 

INFORMATION ON PFAS IN DRINKING WATER 

The Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) had a statewide initiative to test drinking water from all schools 

that use well water and community water supplies. The test was looking for a group of manmade chemicals called per-and polyfluoroalkyl 

substances (PFAS). EGLE took this precautionary step of testing these drinking water sources to determine if public health actions were 

needed. 

The Authority’s tap water was tested by AECOM, EGLE’s contractor, on July 12, 2018. The test results can be found on the Michigan PFAS 

Action Response Team website, https://www.michigan.gov/pfasresponse/0,9038,7-365-86510_88061_92549_92526-495899--,00.html. 

The results show that of the PFOA and PFOS tested, no detectable levels were found in the water. 

In October 2019, on the recommendation of the Michigan PFAS Action Response Team (MPART), the Michigan Department of Environment, 

Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) provided a draft rule to Governor Whitmer for regulating PFAS in drinking water. The purpose of the rule is to 

establish maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) for seven PFAS compounds in approximately 2,700 water supplies in Michigan. In accord-

ance with the regulatory process, the rule was adopted and became effective on August 3, 2020. Following adoption of the PFAS Rule, addi-

tional samples were taken by the Authority on December 11, 2020 for 16 PFAS compounds, including the 7 newly regulated compounds. 

Again, no detectable levels were found in the water.  

The Authority is committed to providing our customers with quality drinking water. As your water supplier, we are working closely with EGLE 

to maintain the quality of your water. For health related questions, contact the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services 

(MDHHS) at 1-800-648-6942 or visit one of the websites below. 

FOR INFORMATION ON PFAS INCLUDING POSSIBLE HEALTH OUTCOMES, VISIT THESE WEBSITES 

State of Michigan PFAS Action Response Team (MPART) website, serving as the main resource for public information on PFAS contamination 

in Michigan:  www.michigan.gov/pfasresponse  

 

Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ASTDR) website, including health information, exposure, and links to additional re-

sources:  www.atsdr.cdc.gov/pfas 

 

United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) website, including basic information, U.S. EPA actions, and links to informational 

resources: www.epa.gov/pfas  

Information Regarding Lead in Drinking Water: 

 

If present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious health problems, especially for pregnant women and young children. Lead in drinking 

water is primarily from materials and components associated with service lines and home plumbing.  The Authority, the City of East Lansing 

and Meridian Township are responsible for providing high quality drinking water, but cannot control the variety of materials used in plumbing 

components. When your water has been sitting for several hours, you can minimize the potential for lead exposure by flushing your tap for 

30 seconds to 2 minutes before using water for drinking or cooking. If you have a lead service line, galvanized previously connected to lead, 

or unknown but likely to be lead, it is recommended that you run your water for at least 5 minutes to flush water from both your home 

plumbing and the lead service line. If you are concerned about lead in your water, you may wish to have your water tested. Information on 

lead in drinking water, testing methods, and steps you can take to minimize exposure is available from the 

Safe Drinking Water Hotline at 1-800-426-4791 or at http://www.epa.gov/safewater/lead. 

Infants and children who drink water containing lead could experience delays in their physical or mental development. Children could show 

slight deficits in attention span and learning abilities. Adults who drink water over many years could develop kidney problems or high blood 

pressure.  

This report includes information for the City of East Lansing’s and for Meridian Township’s water distribution systems. In our 2019 CCR, we 

inadvertently left off required information regarding how many service lines are present in the water distribution systems that contain lead 

or are of unknown material.  The following table shows the service line materials information for both East Lansing and for Meridian Town-

ship. 

 

 

 

 

 

* The City of East Lansing is seeking to identify the location of any lead components in it’s system. East Lansing customers can partici-

pate in a survey at  https://www.cityofeastlansing.com/watersurvey, to help identify these components. 

Water System Effective Date Number of known 

lead service lines 

Number of services 

of unknown material 

Total Number of Services 

City of East Lansing 12/31/2019 4 3443 * 7935 

Meridian Township 12/31/2019 0 0 11,852 



 

6 

Y 
ou Can Help Protect the Water Supply 

for Our Communities!  

Where Does Our Water Come From? 

Every day we turn on our faucets, showers, dishwashers, laundry machines, 

and countless other water-dependent conveniences without stopping to con-

sider: where does all that water come from?  

For the tri-county region of Clinton, Eaton, and Ingham counties, 100% of our 

water comes from below ground. Through a private well or a public utility, we 

all rely heavily on groundwater. This is the water that soaks into the ground 

as rain, melting snow, sprinkler spray, or from any other outlet. Thanks to 

gravity, water seeps through the different layers of soil and rock until it 

reaches a layer it can no longer pass through. From there, it will begin to pool 

and grow in size until it becomes an aquifer. 

An aquifer is an underground layer where all space between rocks and soil is 

filled by water. The top of the aquifer, where the water only fills some space 

between rocks and soil, is referred to as the water table. The water table 

level can change throughout the year, or over the course of many years, de-

pending on a variety of things like the demand for water pumped from wells, 

droughts, heavy rainfall, flooding events, or warm winters, just to name a 

few. 

The water source for our communities is entirely groundwater, and it is 

drawn from deep wells drilled several hundred feet into the local aquifer 

underlying the greater Lansing area. The aquifer is contained within a sand-

stone geologic formation known as the Saginaw Formation. Due to the ability 

of the formation to allow water to flow relatively freely to the wells, we main-

tain a plentiful supply of clean drinking water.  

In order to protect and manage this water supply, the City of East Lansing 

and Meridian Township both support the local Groundwater Management 

Board (GMB). The GMB provides a forum for the coordination of groundwater 

matters for all communities in the tri-county region, and reviews and com-

ments on land use and/or water development projects that may have a po-

tential impact on groundwater management. It is composed of representa-

tives from Michigan State University and governmental units from Clinton, 

Eaton, and Ingham counties, and was designated by the State of Michigan 

as the local Large Water Users Group. Should there be a water use dispute, 

the GMB acts as the organizing body for discussion and mediation. 

Protecting the Water Supply From Contamination 

In 2003, the Authority participated in a source water assessment performed 

by the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality to determine the aqui-

fer’s susceptibility to contamination.  The susceptibility rating is on a seven-

tiered scale from “very low” to “very high” based primarily on geologic sensi-

tivity, well construction, water chemistry and contamination sources.  The 

susceptibility rating of our source is “high” which means “substances may 

easily pass through the soil in groundwater recharge areas and contaminate 

our drinking water source”. 

To help protect this vital resource, the City of East Lansing and Meridian 

Township are participating in Michigan’s Wellhead Protection Program.  Well-

head protection is a set of activities and management practices to identify 

recharge areas and protect the public groundwater supplies from contamina-

tion. The City and Township have had an active State approved wellhead 

protection plan since 2000, most recently updated in September of 2018. 

The two communities have also been involved in undertaking a program to 

protect the groundwater in the area by identifying and properly sealing aban-

doned or unused private wells. If you would like to know more about the 

wellhead protection plan or protective methods for well abandonment, con-

tact Clyde Dugan at (517) 337-7535. 

Ultimately, the responsibility for protecting this vital resource 

of clean fresh water rests with all of us! 

? 
So, what can “I” do, that will actually make a dif-

ference: 

 

 

 Properly recycle or dispose of wastes and don’t let them 

get into the water, especially pharmaceuticals or liquids 

like solvents, oils or fuels. 

 Treat all land, lawns and flower beds as if they were 

your garden. Use only treatments that are essential, 

using them prudently and sparingly. Otherwise, they 

may enter your food or water supply. 

 Report all spills so they can be properly cleaned up be-

fore they enter lakes, streams or the groundwater. 

 Identify any abandoned wells so they can be removed 

and properly sealed. 

 Support community efforts in proper urban planning 

and development controls, so groundwater recharge 

areas are preserved and protected. 

 

For additional information, or for a paper copy of this 

Drinking Water Quality Report, contact Clyde Dugan or 

Mike Mulder at (517) 337-7535. 

Lake Lansing Park North 



From: Darci Marcum
To: Deborah Guthrie
Subject: Proposed Sparrow Health System Development
Date: Tuesday, June 1, 2021 8:07:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

To whom it may concern:
 
I am contacting you to support the proposed Sparrow Health System development off of Jolly
Road near Okemos Road.
 
The project would improve access to healthcare for residents of Meridian Township and
surrounding communities.  The innovative services Sparrow proposes would be a unique
addition to the Township and further enable Meridian as a Prime Community.  The Sparrow
development will be a influencing factor for people to choose Meridian Township, knowing
they will have nearby emergency care and other services.
 
Sparrow also has a history of top-notch developments that bring millions of dollars in new
investment to the Lansing-area economy, provide local jobs, and promote potential
employment growth. The proposed project meets the high standards set by other upscale
developments in the Jolly Road-Okemos Road corridor and fits with the long-term vision of
the area. As the region’s only community-based and community-governed health system, you
can be sure of Sparrow’s commitment to Meridian Township and the entire region.
 
For these reasons and others, I urge you to positively consider this project.
 
Sincerely,
Darci Marcum
Plant Director, GM Lansing Grand River Assy
682-209-6037

 

Nothing in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature unless a specific
statement to the contrary is included in this message. 

Confidentiality Note: This message is intended only for the person or entity to which it is
addressed. It may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, transmission,
dissemination or other use, or taking of any action in reliance upon this message by persons or
entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited and may be unlawful. If you received
this message in error, please contact the sender and delete it from your computer.

mailto:darci.marcum@gm.com
mailto:guthrie@meridian.mi.us

gm@

one





  SHARE:  

Join Our Email List

Issue #179

Green Gazette
June 2021

News you can reuse!

300 Trees Distributed!
Thank you to the Meridian Tree Team and all 
who adopted, planted, donated, and helped 
distribute red pine seedlings last month at 
the Marketplace on the Green!

Volunteers also helped distribute 
information about household hazardous 
waste collections, pollution prevention, 
wetland protection, and My Citizen's Climate

Commitment.

My Citizen's Climate 
Commitment

Consider the climate as you plan for future
vehicle, appliance, and tool purchases. View
more here and take the pledge.

https://s.rs6.net/t?e=l9IQVHiEsmc&c=1&r=1
https://s.rs6.net/t?e=l9IQVHiEsmc&c=3&r=1
https://s.rs6.net/t?e=l9IQVHiEsmc&c=5&r=1
https://visitor.constantcontact.com/d.jsp?m=1110129600896&p=oi
https://www.constantcontact.com/index.jsp?cc=DLviral10
https://www.meridian.mi.us/visitors/things-to-do/try-our-farmers-market
https://hd.ingham.org/forparents/healthyhomes/hazardoushouseholdwaste.aspx
https://www.mywatersheds.org/residents
https://files.constantcontact.com/08961e87201/218d20db-e953-4990-a735-89237c4050ad.pdf
https://www.meridian.mi.us/residents/township-services/recycle-go-green/energy-climate-initiatives
https://8b2ebd6d-8999-4afa-896b-27900685ae7b.filesusr.com/ugd/d33753_386cc36d0e9b4df0ab89277898387f9e.pdf
https://8b2ebd6d-8999-4afa-896b-27900685ae7b.filesusr.com/ugd/d33753_386cc36d0e9b4df0ab89277898387f9e.pdf
https://www.meridian.mi.us/residents/township-services/recycle-go-green/energy-climate-initiatives
https://www.lmb.org/share-a-bike/


and the rest with be refurbished or recycled
by MSU Bikes' staff and volunteers.

Stay tuned for future recycling and
educational events.

 An App for That
Plant identi�ication apps f or
smart phones have seen
signi�icant impr ovements
over the past several years,
offering the opportunity to
take a photo and get an
instant identi�ication in man y
cases. Learn More

Tune In To...
Environmental Commission meetings
on the 1st Wednesdays, 7pm on
Comcast Ch 21, homtv.net or on Zoom
(passcode 5151 if needed).

Green Dialogues Wednesday at 9am on
Zoom, Meeting #89458603363 PW:
"green" or 1-click here Tune in (or out)
as your morning allows and interests
dictate.

On Wednesday June 12th, there will be a presentation on home energy topics with members
of the Meridian Energy Team followed by dialogue. Tune in by clicking the link above after
8:55am.

Recycling Center News
The Meridian Recycling Center is now open an
hour longer six days a week through the summer
and fall. Check the website for updates, rates,
cardboard status and more.

M & F 2 pm. -6 pm.
T, W, & Th 10 am. - 6 pm.
Saturday 10 am. - 5 pm.

Over 100 bikes were donated by residents 
from around Greater Lansing with help from 
MSU Bikes and volunteers. About 40 
children's bikes went to Share-A-Bike 
Program for distribution to youth in need

100 Bikes Donated

LJ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
PictureThis PlantNet iNatun1list Seek Pl■ntSnap LeafSnap 

periwinkle/vinca + + + + + + 
coldenrod + + + +/- + 
yellow woodsorrel + + + +/ - +/- +/ -
bull thistle + + + +/- +/ -
common burdock + + + + + 
perennial sowthistle 

black medic 

aiant foxtail 

yellow nutsedce 

tall fescue 

c. l1mbsqu1rters .. " ""' 

purslane speedwell~11nc 

1dent1fieotlons are lndrked "+, .. those that were 1dentif1ed to the coffect genus, but not species or were listed as a 
secondary or greater identification are labeled "+/•" and those Incorrectly 1dent1f1ed are labeled"·." 

https://8b2ebd6d-8999-4afa-896b-27900685ae7b.filesusr.com/ugd/d33753_386cc36d0e9b4df0ab89277898387f9e.pdf
https://www.canr.msu.edu/news/plant-identification-theres-an-app-for-that-actually-several
http://www.homtv.net/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86739038953?pwd=Q3EyY0l6LzcyY1lDam9yaWk2RXhyQT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89458603363?pwd=QVEwN3g0RWZnV2JjeGIyWS9ibnJTZz09
http://www.reclaimedbydesign.com/


 Help achieve stewardship goals while
learning valuable skills. Consider joining
the...

Forest Watch
Clean-Up Crew
Trail Blazers
and/or Invasive Species Strike Team

Learn more here

Land Stewardship Coordinator, Emma Campbell
helps identify a plant in the roundabout.

Thank you Volunteers!
Thank you to several volunteers (Sara,
Emma, Madison, Alana, Cathy, and Ginger
who assisted with some recent weeding and
mulching in the "Hidden River Rain Garden"
(AKA Roundabout at Park Lake and
Burcham, near the Interurban Pathway).

If you'd like to join in another learning,
mulching, weeding outing, please contact
LeRoy at 517.853.4466. The next time will be
June 4 at noon.

Learn more here

 Curbside Tips...

View all as a PDF

• 
• 
• 
• MERIDIAN CONSERVATION CORP 

--------·---·----··---------·--·------··-
-------.. -_ ..... _ .. _______ , __ ,._ __ .. ___ ,.. _____ _ 

-------___ .__,, ____ _ 
----.. -· .. ·---------·---·---·-·-------------------

RECYCLING GUIDELINES 
- - -- . - . - - . . . . - - ... - -- - . ~-- ■ , ..... ==.··==:= ... --.!:::- . 

=:.":....:...-:.:-.=.-::::... 
... &-.,_ 

• a,i. =--====:,::.....:::.. a <4iJII-·-------· 
---- a.: -~ ·------· ,.., _________ ,.. 
-...--------------· -------•»>•---
... - .. -· .... ·-----­-.....-------·~---.:s=.:. ::::.-:.:.::=--------·-

:~- £.g~.:.;.=k:.~~ 
DIW ____ .,....~~--------•••--~-­:.-::.-::•"-------..-

https://www.meridian.mi.us/government/departments/meridian-conservation-corps
https://files.constantcontact.com/08961e87201/0c958686-6920-4d95-bb43-1ef74ce69a38.pdf
https://files.constantcontact.com/08961e87201/8a3c4ec0-e87d-4f8f-bee2-0ff073e487a9.pdf


Hazardous Waste...
collections continue through September!

Household hazardous waste is accepted
Tuesdays and Thursdays from 2-6pm
(weather permitting) through September
behind the Human Services Building near
Jolly and Cedar in Lansing. Click here or
view a brochure.

Save the Date 

Electronics Recycling 
Saturday Sep 18 9am-2pm 

Chippewa Middle School Parking Lot 

4000 Okemos Rd. Okemos, Ml 

in partnership with the 

State of Michigan, R2C2, 

Delta Dental, Granger. and YOU! 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 

T O W N S H I P•t4J1li 
~ 

UNACCEPTED ITEMS 

The following items have special disposal 
procedures. Visit our website for information 

on proper disposal options. 

Appliances 
Asbestos 
Asphalt 

Car Batteries 
Carbon Monoxide Detectors 
Cooking Oil 
Dry Wall Compound 

Electronics 
Explosives / Ammunition 
Latex Paint: proper disposal below 
Medication: www.takebackmeds.org 
Product in 55 Gallon Drums 
Propane Tanks: >1 pound 
Radioactive Material 
Smoke Detectors 

Waste Oil 

ACCEPTED ITEMS 

The following items must be generated from 
households within Ingham County. Small 
household businesses are unaccepted. 

Acids & Bases: pool chemicals, toilet 
bowl cleaners 

Aerosol Products 

Antifreeze 

Automotive Products: brake, steering, 
transmission fluid 

Cleaners & Polishes 

Flammables & Gasoline: be prepared to 
leave your gas container 
Fluorescent Lights & Ballasts: removed 
from fixture 

Fuel Oil 

Home Repair Products 

** Mercury Containing Devices: all 
devices must be sealed in a baggie 

Oil Based Paints & Paint Products: 
thinners. mineral spirits, stains 

Pesticides, Herbicides & Fungicides 

Photographic Chemicals 

Sharps: need les, lancets, epi nephrine 
pens 

Small Propane Tanks: 1 pound s ize Q!l[y 

Wood Preservatives 

Green Gazette Directory 

https://hd.ingham.org/ForParents/HealthyHomes/HazardousHouseholdWaste.aspx
https://files.constantcontact.com/08961e87201/b510067d-0141-4fa3-bd52-e76840bc0ac2.pdf
http://bit.ly/gg-directory


From: Flegler, Stanley
To: Board
Subject: Deer Management Program
Date: Tuesday, June 1, 2021 1:44:53 PM

Dear Members of Merdian Township Board:

We are writing to express our sincere appreciation for the 2020-21 Deer Management Program
that included participation by members of the Meridian Police Department.

We are forty plus year residents of the Indian Hills neighborhood. Our observations are that
for the first time, the 2020-21 deer harvest with police participation has finally made a
significant impact on the deer population in our neighborhood!

Deer have long been a problem in our neighborhood.  We’ve had thousands of dollars of
landscaping destroyed.  Two of our three children were involved in deer collisions.  Our next-
door neighbor had a lab confirmed case of Lyme disease.  

We hope the township board and the police department continue the program into the 2021-
2022 season.

If there is anything we can do to assist in this decision, please let us know.

Sincerely,

Stanley L. Flegler

mailto:flegler@msu.edu
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us


From: Piotr Lupa
To: Frank Walsh; Dan Opsommer; Ronald Styka; Courtney Wisinski; Kathy Ann Sundland; Patricia Herring Jackson;

Deborah Guthrie; Phil Deschaine
Subject: Re: Proposed Sparrow ER on Jolly Rd
Date: Tuesday, June 1, 2021 6:26:02 PM

Hello Board Members,

I would like to repeat my support for the proposed Sparrow project. I really feel that Sparrow
addressed concerns that were voiced by residents of Kansas Rd, and the project will benefit
those directly on Kansas Rd and beyond. I was initially against the project, but with the
proposed improvements (water, road access, buffer zone on North and West) this may be one
of major improvements to quality of life we have seen on Kansas Rd not seen in a long time. I
feel that most of the remaining negative opinions are now actually from people outside of
Kansas Rd, or have some other agenda. 

For me the prospect of tested municipality water is a winning factor. There are a number of
studies https://www.pnas.org/content/117/29/16898 showing impact on private wells with
growing urbanization and that is exactly the situation we are facing on Kansas rd. My water
samples came back from the Ingham Health Department with elevated levels of
contamination, and I'm required to install expensive reverse osmosis filtration that isn't a good
long term solution.

New medical facility will also be safer for children than current Midwest Power Equipment
where machines are stored outside next to the road often in a high pile.

Currently there is zero landscaping on the industrial or residential lots and Sparrow offers an
ample 70' green space buffer that I feel won't be matched by other potential developers, and
will make the neighborhood nicer.

Lastly, the two Single Residential lots have been vacant for a long time. In the current
situation they may not be most attractive for single family homes with Industrial Midwest
Power Equipment directly to the South and Elevation directly to the East without good buffer
zones, and no municipal water. There is still a lot of empty land North on Kansas Rd, and I
think that with future availability of municipal water and better street view appearance there
will be more residential development in future resulting in more families on Kansas Rd.
Without municipal water and Midwest Power Equipment being eye sore in current condition, 
it's less attractive to build family homes on the remaining vacant lots on Kansas road or
families to move on Kansas Rd to the existing homes. 

Thanks for your attention and leadership,
Peter Lupa

On Tue, May 18, 2021 at 9:07 PM Piotr Lupa <piotrkarollupa@gmail.com> wrote:
Hello Board Members,
I think Sparrow made significant progress with the new proposed conditions for the
proposed development. I'm the resident of 3575 Kansas Rd and now open to the project,
given the township can keep the investor accountable on all the points.
In particular, public water, removal of the Industrial zone lot, and removal of the access to
the business from the Kansas Rd, could benefit the neighborhood. The public water is of

mailto:piotrkarollupa@gmail.com
mailto:walsh@meridian.mi.us
mailto:opsommer@meridian.mi.us
mailto:styka@meridian.mi.us
mailto:wisinski@meridian.mi.us
mailto:sundland@meridian.mi.us
mailto:pjackson@meridian.mi.us
mailto:guthrie@meridian.mi.us
mailto:deschaine@meridian.mi.us
https://www.pnas.org/content/117/29/16898
mailto:piotrkarollupa@gmail.com


great need for health reasons, and cost prohibitive to be paid by residents of Kansas Rd, so
this being paid by investors can be a great benefit to the neighborhood. 
I also see the benefit to the Meridian Township as a whole to the additional access to
primary medical care.
Again as the resident, I would like to see the board keep the investor accountable on all the
proposed improvements to the development project.

Best Regards,
Peter Lupa
517 899-4864



 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 

  

 
 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
June 3, 2021 

 
CONTACT: Abby Tithof, Human Resources Director 

517.853.4210 | tithof@meridian.mi.us   

 

 

 

 

Township Lifts Temporary Building Access Restrictions  
Safety Procedures Remain In Place for Visitors and Employees 

 
Meridian Township, MI – Due to the recent changes regarding COVID-19 safety procedures, the 

Township is lifting the temporary access restrictions for all buildings.  

As of June 1, 2021, the Township Municipal Building (5151 Marsh Road, Okemos), the Public Safety 
Building lobby and the Service Center lobby (2100 Gaylord C. Smith Court, Haslett) are now fully 
accessible for in-person transactions. All members of the public must wear a mask to enter any 
Township building, unless they meet any of the exemptions provided in the Michigan Department of 
Health and Human Services (MDHHS) Gatherings and Face Mask Order listed below.  

 You are fully vaccinated 

 You are younger than 2 years of age 
 You cannot medically tolerate a mask 

 You are receiving medical or personal care where removal of the face mask is necessary 
 You need to communicate with someone who is deaf, deafblind or hard of hearing and whose 

ability to see the mouth is essential to communication 
 You are asked to remove your mask for identification purposes 

Members of the public are to stop at the Information Desk upon entering Township buildings, to control 
group numbers in certain areas to honor social distancing or other protocol if appropriate while waiting 
for service.  
 
“We’d like to express our sincere gratitude to our residents and employees.   Your patience, 
mindfulness and understanding have been paramount as we take these positive steps towards 
reconnecting in the workplace and in our community,” stated Meridian Township’s Human Resources 
Director Abby Tithof. “We thank you for your support.”  
 
Per Michigan Occupational Safety & Health Administration (MIOSHA) guidance, Township employees 

who turn in proper exemption documentation to Human Resources will be permitted to work 

without wearing a mask.  

Residents are encouraged to continue utilizing digital options for assistance, including the Township’s 
website, email, phone or the 24-Hour White Drop Boxes located outside the Municipal Building. 
Additional information, including a full Staff Directory is available on the Township website at 
www.meridian.mi.us/COVID-19.  
 

### 

A PRIME COMMUNITY 

meridian.mi.us -----

mailto:tithof@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/


From: Ceil Heller
To: Board
Subject: Food for thought before you vote on Sparrow ER
Date: Friday, June 4, 2021 8:52:37 AM

Please read the comments in the FB post that was posted by WILX and know whom you are
dealing with before you vote to have that ER built. 
That ER is not necessary. What is necessary is keeping their urgent cares open past 7 or 8 pm .
This will alleviate a lot of over crowding in the main ER. 
I have spoken to several employees that I used to work with in this ER and they are dismayed
that for years they have worked short handed and now this. 
They closed St Lawrence campus because they had no staff. 
These are red flags that need to be addressed . Besides Meridian Fire EMS are top notch and
can handle any emergency necessary.
Thank you Ceil Heller

https://www.facebook.com/139971542712997/posts/4167832569926854/?d=n

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:ceillpn28@gmail.com
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us
https://www.facebook.com/139971542712997/posts/4167832569926854/?d=n


From: Road Department
To: Roxann Graham; Road Department
Cc: Emily Stivers; Board
Subject: RE: Carlton Street RR Tracks
Date: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 11:44:37 AM

Hi Roxann,

I spoke with CN Railroad last week to inquire when they would be returning to repair this area.  We have had 3 or 4
complaints over the last 3-4 weeks.

CN does not have manpower or resources until mid to late July to finish what is needed.  CN did a temporary repair
earlier this year, and the permanent repair still needs to be performed. CN would like to close the crossing until
repairs are able to be completed. They are planning to close this as soon as possible.

Please let me know if I can assist you further.

Thank you,

Kellie

Kellie Knauff
Ingham County Road Department
Reception/Permits/Public Information Coordinator
301 Bush St
Mason MI  48854
Ph:  517.676.9722 x2300
Email:  kknauff@ingham.org

-----Original Message-----
From: Roxann Graham <roxieg1@icloud.com>
Sent: Monday, June 7, 2021 11:26 PM
To: Road Department <roads@ingham.org>
Cc: Emily Stivers <EStivers@ingham.org>; board@meridian.mi.us
Subject: Carlton Street RR Tracks

Despite one re-repair by CN Railroad, the tracks at Carlton and Lake Drive have once again become dangerous
unless driving at about 3 mph. I have lived on Hickory Island for 60+ years and can attest that the tracks are in the
worst condition ever. When I was a child the tracks were fairly stable with wood construction that was appropriate
for the amount of traffic that crosses the railroad headed to the lake. The new blacktop continues to sink and is a
danger to cars, bikes, and pedestrians.  CN needs to be held accountable for a permanent solution that protects the
public and vehicle safety with construction that is appropriate to the traffic volume and usage.

Roxann Graham
1390 Hickory Island

mailto:roads@ingham.org
mailto:roxieg1@icloud.com
mailto:roads@ingham.org
mailto:EStivers@ingham.org
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us


From: Frank Walsh
To: "ronstyka@gmail.com"
Subject: FW: Wolverine Pipe Line Co - Mowing Operations
Date: Wednesday, June 9, 2021 4:03:14 PM
Attachments: MOWING NOTICE LETTER - 2021.05.14.pdf

Wolverine Pipeline Mowing Operations ROW.pdf

From: Derek Perry <perry@meridian.mi.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 9, 2021 3:56 PM
To: Rob MacKenzie <mackenzie@meridian.mi.us>; Kati Adams <kadams@meridian.mi.us>; Brandie 
Yates <yates@meridian.mi.us>
Cc: Denise Green <green@meridian.mi.us>; LuAnn Maisner <maisner@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: Wolverine Pipe Line Co - Mowing Operations

We received word from Wolverine Pipeline that they will be performing their routine 
inspection and mowing work along their easement in the next few weeks. All property 
owners should have received the attached letter explaining the program.

GIS put together a map of the route using the supplied parcel numbers to identify the affected 
Township properties.

The easements are marked and frequently maintained, so the inspection and mowing should 
not be a surprise to those along the pipeline corridor.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Derek N. Perry
Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works & Engineering
perry@meridian.mi.us
W 517.853.4440 | F 517.853.4099
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864

mailto:walsh@meridian.mi.us
mailto:ronstyka@gmail.com
mailto:perry@meridian.mi.us



8075 CREEKSIDE DRIVE, SUITE 210 ▪ PORTAGE, MI 49024-6303 ▪ www.wolverinepipeline.com 
 


 


 
 


Jason Clark                                                                                        Email: jclark@orcolan.com 
Senior Right of Way Agent, ORC                                                       Phone: (231) 852-0505 
  


 
 


  
May 14, 2021 


 
 


 
Dear Landowner,  
 
  Wolverine Pipe Line Company (“Wolverine”) has contracted with Lanracorp, Inc. (“Lanracorp”) to 
perform necessary maintenance activities on the pipeline right of way (“ROW”) in your community. Please 
be advised that Lanracorp representatives will be present shortly on or near your property to inspect the 
surface conditions. Such inspection may involve necessary ingress and egress using equipment to traverse 
the ROW and catalog the work that must be completed to remain compliant with stringent federal 
regulations for the safe operation of our pipelines. 
 
 


Upon completion of the site visit, Lanracorp crews will subsequently visit those locations on our 
ROW where it was determined vegetation removal must occur. The removal of vegetation will facilitate 
the complete inspection of the ROW conditions by aircraft or ground inspection. Vegetation removal is 
done using mechanized equipment and hand tools designed for the clearing of the ROW. When such 
activity is occurring, we encourage you not to approach crews working for your safety. Please call to 
confirm receipt of this letter and to ask any questions you may have about our process.  
 
 
 In closing, thank you for your constant cooperation with Wolverine as we work to secure the 
safety of you and those in your community while we improve ROW conditions in your area.  Please do not 
hesitate to contact me if you wish to discuss this matter further.  
 
 


Best Regards, 


Jason Clark 
Senior Right of Way Agent, ORC 


Assigned to Wolverine Pipe Line Company 
 
 
 








Lake Lansing


Legend


Pipeline ROW Mowing Locations


Wolverine Pipeline


Water


Parcels


±


0 0.6 1.20.3 Miles


MERIDIAN
TOWNSHIP







From: Jason Clark <jclark@orcolan.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 9:52 AM
To: PW <dpw@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: Wolverine Pipe Line Co - Mowing Operations

Meridian Charter Twp.,
I am contacting with Wolverine Pipe Line Company, who are currently having some mowing
operations conducted on their pipeline right-of-way, which crosses several parcels owned by
Meridian Charter Township. I’ve attached a copy of the mowing notice letter I sent out, dated May
14, 2021, which you may have received in the mail. The attached letter describes the anticipated
work involved for conducting these subject mowing operations.

Below is a list of parcel numbers for lands that I show as being owned by Meridian Charter Township,
which are crossed by Wolverine’s pipeline right-of-way. Please let me know if there are any
questions about the proposed work, which I anticipate would be conducted in the next week or two.

Regards,
Jason Clark

33-02-02-06-127-027
33-02-02-06-201-004
33-02-02-06-251-026
33-02-02-06-251-034
33-02-02-06-251-044
33-02-02-16-100-014
33-02-02-16-400-027
33-02-02-16-400-028
33-02-02-21-226-011
33-02-02-22-376-004
33-02-02-27-401-002

Jason Clark, Agent 3
ORC | Real Estate Solutions for Infrastructure
34441 W. Eight Mile Road, Suite 103, Livonia, MI 48152
Mobile: 231-852-0505 | orcolan.com
Email | Twitter | LinkedIn | Careers | History of ORC Book

inspiring confidence in progress for 50 years…

mailto:jclark@orcolan.com
mailto:dpw@meridian.mi.us
http://orcolan.com/
maito:%20jclark@orcolan.com
https://twitter.com/OR_Colan
https://www.linkedin.com/company/o-r-colan-group-llc/
http://careers.orcolan.com/
https://www.amazon.com/Inspiring-Confidence-Progress-History-Associates/dp/0692790357


8075 CREEKSIDE DRIVE, SUITE 210 ▪ PORTAGE, MI 49024-6303 ▪ www.wolverinepipeline.com 
 

 

 
 

Jason Clark                                                                                        Email: jclark@orcolan.com 
Senior Right of Way Agent, ORC                                                       Phone: (231) 852-0505 
  

 
 

  
May 14, 2021 

 
 

 
Dear Landowner,  
 
  Wolverine Pipe Line Company (“Wolverine”) has contracted with Lanracorp, Inc. (“Lanracorp”) to 
perform necessary maintenance activities on the pipeline right of way (“ROW”) in your community. Please 
be advised that Lanracorp representatives will be present shortly on or near your property to inspect the 
surface conditions. Such inspection may involve necessary ingress and egress using equipment to traverse 
the ROW and catalog the work that must be completed to remain compliant with stringent federal 
regulations for the safe operation of our pipelines. 
 
 

Upon completion of the site visit, Lanracorp crews will subsequently visit those locations on our 
ROW where it was determined vegetation removal must occur. The removal of vegetation will facilitate 
the complete inspection of the ROW conditions by aircraft or ground inspection. Vegetation removal is 
done using mechanized equipment and hand tools designed for the clearing of the ROW. When such 
activity is occurring, we encourage you not to approach crews working for your safety. Please call to 
confirm receipt of this letter and to ask any questions you may have about our process.  
 
 
 In closing, thank you for your constant cooperation with Wolverine as we work to secure the 
safety of you and those in your community while we improve ROW conditions in your area.  Please do not 
hesitate to contact me if you wish to discuss this matter further.  
 
 

Best Regards, 

Jason Clark 
Senior Right of Way Agent, ORC 

Assigned to Wolverine Pipe Line Company 
 
 
 

lverine 
pipe line company 



Lake Lansing

Legend

Pipeline ROW Mowing Locations

Wolverine Pipeline

Water

Parcels

±

0 0.6 1.20.3 Miles

MERIDIAN
TOWNSHIP

D 
D 

D 

□ 

[7 



From: Meridian Township, MI
To: Board
Subject: Rezoning #21020 rezone six acres on the north side of Jolly Road and east of Kansas Road
Date: Wednesday, June 9, 2021 10:18:52 PM

Message submitted from the <Meridian Township, MI> website.

Site Visitor Name: Sondos Al-Hachim
Site Visitor Email: dralhachim@gmail.com 

Good evening members,

My name is Sondos Alhachim, I’m a healthcare administration consultant. I just moved to
3589 Kansas Road last year after a long search for a house that provided the good quality life
in a quiet neighborhood in Okemos. 

It saddens me to hear my neighbors getting frustrated regarding the zoning issue and feeling
unheard. I know there is no need for a healthcare building on this street knowing the number
of professional vacant buildings available.
I’m concerned about our neighborhood’s environment, the noise that comes with construction
and traffic, and the changes in the neighborhood that would come from having such a space
present so close to our homes. We have enjoyed the peace and privacy this neighborhood has
provided as well as the feeling of safety and security for ourselves and our children on our
wonderful street and wish to keep it this way.

We urge you to stand by us in maintaining these high standards and preventing the
construction of a commercial office space, which will undoubtedly disturb the home we have
created for ourselves and our families on Kansas St. 

Respectfully,
Dr. Sondos Alhachim

mailto:dralhachim@gmail.com
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us


From: Joell Ackerman
To: Board
Subject: ER on Kansas Rd, Okemos
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 11:04:05 PM

Dear Meridian Township Board,
1. I am still opposed to non residence use on Kansas Road, Okemos.

 
2.If Anyone else attempted to rezone the property it would be denied.
 
3.Apparently the planning commission which all recommended No is just
a formality.
 
4.Sparrow is concerned with revenue lost….goal to intervene and send people
to Sparrow preventing some of the business from going to the new hospital.
 
5.Perhaps there is some clout/prestige with having a free standing ER in Okemos.
 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10
 

mailto:joellackerman@hotmail.com
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


From: Meridian Township, MI
To: Board
Subject: Kansas road rezoning
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 10:54:03 PM

Message submitted from the <Meridian Township, MI> website.

Site Visitor Name: joell ackerman
Site Visitor Email: joellackerman@hotmail.com 

1. Anyone else who tried to rezone Kansas road would be denied.
2.Sparrow 's goal is to prevent loss of business by transferring back to Sparrow instead of
people going to the new hospital...Apparently it's a real threat to Sparrow.
3.Am not sure if it's Clout/pull/prestige for the board to want an ER...would that make
Okemos more marketable? Already there have been many apartments & hotels built, yet we
still don't have a nice downtown.

4.Light pollution, lack of privacy, noise pollution, safety issues-apparently these are not
important to the township....just buy people out with city water... Fresh air, clean food, clean
water, safety should be everyone's RIGHT!
This situation reminds me of the 50 's and 60's when cities ran expressways through poor & or
minority neighborhoods...Yes we are a small working class neighborhood...perhaps the
township would like to get rid of this small neighborhood???
5. This whole issue gives me concern as to the integrity of the Meridian Township Board.
6. Who does the Meridian Township Board work for/represent?
the residents of the township or Sparrow Hospital?
7. Two residents have been here about 40 yrs and had no intension of moving....
8. I continue to be opposed to the rezoning of Kansas Road for anything.
Joell Ackerman....

mailto:joellackerman@hotmail.com
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us


From: john david faichney
To: Board
Cc: john david faichney
Subject: Opposition to Kansas Rd Neighborhood Development
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 10:38:53 AM

Health Care Planning By Businessmen Without Residential Consent. 
 
By John David Faichney, MD, FACP  
23/24 persons oppose. 2 have received a buy out.  Your proposal is inappropriate. 
 
It has been only 3 months, and Sparrow Hospital has broken the rules of honesty 
with the residents of Kansas Rd  Neighborhood.  It demanded rezoning from  
residential to professional office building.  And afterward, added the coup de 
grace:  a free standing  emergency room.  Why was this fact hidden from us at the 
beginning?  Because it is this medical service which makes their proposal most 
incompatible with the Kansas Rd Neighborhood,  a place where above all  
residents desire peace, security and quiet.  All of which is broken by emergency  
services.  We are the taxpayers of Okemos.  We deserve a better  opinion! 
 
 
The Meridian Board is impressed with the concessions which Sparrow has given 
to the pitiful near-do-wells of Kansas Rd Neighborhood.  One Board member  
expressed to me, “I can’t understand why you are still opposed with all the  
concessions.”   After all,  you are being awarded with running, municipal water. 
We all have wells and anticipate that municipal water may be needed in the future,
so water is a good thing.  However, the odd syllogysm here is the following:  You
can have water, a gift really of God, but you will have to trade this water for quiet
at night and weekends and security at all times.   Persons in the Kansas Rd
Neighborhood are living there for the very qualities which Sparrow's development
is taking away:  Quiet at night and weekends and nil security threat at all times.
Persons in Kansas Rd Neighborhood are there because they have chosen not to live
in an urban environment.  Yet you deny us this choice.

 
The Planning Commission got the point and said, "no". This was not an appropriate
place. 
But is the service not unique?  No,  it is emergency care without immediate  hospital 
back up.  Is that Sparrow’s point?   We only deserve the elements of emergency care, 
not real emergency care. After all, we are told, there will be a board certified  
emergency physician there at all times.  That is fine, let this group of emergency 
docs open up their practice across the street, at 2445 Jolly. They don’t deserve to
dig up the Kansas Rd Neighborhood! 
 

mailto:jdfaichney@hotmail.com
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us
mailto:jdfaichney@hotmail.com


 
I am an endocrinologist, I desire to open a practice with my colleagues on  
Kansas Rd and I demand that you permit me and my associates to override 
zoning and take away  residential properties because I am a physican and I  
am working for a hospital.  What will you say?  Why don’t I have the same 
rights and privileges that these docs have?  I have worked for four major institutions 
including Henry Ford Hospital,  McLaren Hospital, Flint, St. Mary’s Hospital in  
Grand Rapids and Munson Health Care in Traverse City.  I can tell you none of 
these hospitals would behave in such a high-handed, unprofessional fashion. 
Why not Alaedin Township? Well, they just want to be with Okemos. Who cares? 
If they want to provide care to Okemos then  they can do it in Alaedin  Township if that is
expedient and will permit delivery of the care.  If they want to invest money 
then find appropriate property which will not destroy a neighborhood! 
 
 
 
 
Health Care Planning Without Residential Consent.     
 
                                                            -2- 
 
 
There are four health care professionals in the Kansas Rd. neighborhood. Two  
the MD, one the DO and one a Ph.D. , Public Health.  All of them oppose this
arrogant proposal by Sparrow.   None of them are working for Sparrow  and none of
them are working for or against Sparrow. We understand that health care planning is not
done this way.  We can see the state of art University Hospital only  8 minutes down the
road.  We can see the differential in the kind of care which will be given there,  where
specialty support is immediately available and procedures such as cardiac
catheterizations, state-of-art delivery of babies and surgery can 
be done immediately. This excellent emergency service will be from 8 to 15 
minutes to get to from any point in Okemos.  What will be the problem with emergency
access once this hospital is completed?  One of us, an emergency  
physician, has warned you about the security implications of emergency care 
and how that would adversely effect our neighborhood. 
 
 
All residents of Kansas Rd Neighborhood desire improved access to care and  
improved quality of care. However, health is the consequence of a balance between 
quality of life factors, age, genetics, experience and the like. By inflicting this  
mechanism upon Kansas Rd you, the Meridian Board, are taking responsibility 
for health care planning.  Which you are not qualified to do.  And you are taking 
the words of Sparrow Hospital, which has not demonstrated a vision of clarity  



and goodness for all in Okemos.  This is the least we can expect of them!   
 
 
Health delivery  decisions should not be made by MBAs and by individuals who are
trying to maximize profit margins.  Hospitals and emergency room placement
cannot be evaluated adequately by municipal boards which lack health care
expertise.   Health care facilities should not be built against the will of residents,
especially those who have the potential to know what is for the good.  People
should not be forced to accept urbanization because of a corporate
decision.  Please ask Sparrow to go elsewhere.   
 
 
John David Faichney, MD,
FACP                                                                                                             
Kansas Rd and Sheldrake, Okemos                        
jdfaichney@hotmail.com 
copyright 6/9/2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From: ronstyka@gmail.com
To: Frank Walsh; Board; Ken Plaga; William Fahey
Subject: Serial killer
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 9:35:21 PM

The State denied parole to Don Miller, as the Board & numerous others requested.
Thanks everyone.

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:ronstyka@gmail.com
mailto:walsh@meridian.mi.us
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us
mailto:plaga@meridian.mi.us
mailto:wfahey@fsbrlaw.com


From: Sharon Morrisett
To: Board
Subject: Sparrow Hospital ER on Jolly
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 8:16:11 PM

To the Meridian Board, 
I have called and shared my STRONG opposition to this 24 hour ER and rezoning. Now I'm
writing to all of you to PLEASE consider Us, the people that live here. 
Fact: if this was being asked east of Okemos Rd it would be a flat out NO! 
Fact: this is Not a necessity to our quality of life in Meridian Township.
Fact: it will take away more of the quality of mine and my families lives.
Yes, I understand Meridian Township has Light  Ordinances and I appreciate them. However,
where I live the lights on the side of Midwest power are quite bright against the white and red
building. The Dentist office on the corner of Jolly, Kansas and Indiana only has 1 light on the
west side of the building at night. The parking lot  lights go off at 11:00 pm. I can live with
that.. With the Sparrow building the parking lot lights will be on all night long. 
Noise is another issue.  Any time you take out trees we loose the buffer of sound they
provide. 
Across the street from this  site is another Sparrow building that has been vacant more than it
was ever occupied. 
I really don't understand why they can't use another site the doesn't need to be rezoned. We
have so many vacant sites,  bulldoze one of them and start over....
I truly believe the only reason Sparrow wants this on Jolly is to compete with  McLaren being
built on Collins Rd. That is not in our best interest.
Again, I ask you all to remember US,  the ones that live on Kansas and Indiana. Would any of
you want a 24 hour anything next door or across the street or in your back yard??? I know the
answer. I'm pretty sure your minds are made up but I had to give it one more try.
My husband and I are celebrating our fortieth wedding anniversary this August.  This has been
our home for 40 years and we were hoping our only home. We feel we'll have to leave if this
goes through.  Just letting you know your decisions have  consequences for everyday people.
I will be paying attention on Tuesday night.
 Thank you for listening, 
Sharon Morrisett 
3531 Indiana Rd, Okemos, MI 48864

mailto:sharonmorrisett@gmail.com
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us


From: SHEREEN TABRIZI
To: Board
Subject: # 21020
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 12:59:52 PM

June 10, 2021
Greetings, Meridian Board Members,
         Re: Rezoning #21020 (Martin Investment Properties, Inc.)/Sparrow
        The proposal submitted by Martin for Sparrow to rezone two residential parcels will
make many neighbors on Kansas, Indiana and Robin’s Way suffer. Spot rezoning the two
residential parcels is detrimental. It will destroy the wildlife, the tranquility and threaten safety
of children and the elderly. It will depreciate the value of our homes despite the proposed
green buffer and access to city water Sparrow is promising. Sparrow’s  revised proposal
includes 24/7 medical emergency services. This means light and sound pollution, strangers in
the neighborhood at all times, some of whom may be drug users. Who would want to live next
to such place? We are not agreeable to trade peace and safety for city water. Neighbors can
connect to municipal water on their own when they choose to do so.
      The vast majority of residents on Kansas and Indiana roads have spoken and they
vehemently oppose this proposal as reflected in our written petition as well as our calls into
your board meetings. When I purchased the property on 3566 Kansas Rd, Meridian Township
Master Plan was my guide. The plan  did not include rezoning those parcels. The proposed
change was not expected nor justified.
      If the real reason for this proposal is providing health services, then Sparrow needs to seek
another location that doesn’t disturb neighbors.  There are several commercial properties off
Jolly 1/4 mile west from Kansas at James Philips Street parallel to I 96 and others by Fountain
Pointe in the same location. There is also McLaren hospital being completed and is 8 minutes
away from Kansas Rd. Allowing a developer to buy exposure on the expense of our
neighborhood is a poor decision.  The free-standing emergency services facility  does not
need to be on Okemos property to serve Okemos residents!
      Once you grant the rezoning request, the parcels are fair game. The developer may use it in
any way they please. Think about the neighborhood children playing in their backyards,
walking to catch the school bus. Think of the disruption you’ll be causing to the neighbors and
their quiet and safe lives.  They need to be safe. They need to feel safe. They deserve to have
your protection!
      Instead of reducing Kansas street by two residential parcels, you should support increased
opportunities for building future houses and further develop it into a more attractive and
desired residential neighborhood. I urge you to put the welfare of Kansas Rd neighborhood
first regardless of the promises provided in this developer’s proposal. As an educator, may I
suggest that you initiate a meeting with the neighbors, hear their perspectives, listen to reasons
for their pride in their neighborhood as well as their grievances? We are all vaccinated, and I’ll
be glad to provide soft drinks or coffee in the backyard of 3566 Kansas. This way, you’ll be
able to familiarize yourselves with the nature of Kansas area and its pleasant and open-minded
residents!
Respectfully yours,
Shereen Tabrizi, Ph.D.
3566 Kansas Rd and 3917 Sheldrake Avenue
Okemos, MI 48864
Shereen-faith@comcast.net
248-444-6055

mailto:shereen-faith@comcast.net
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us
mailto:Shereen-faith@comcast.net


From: sfreeatbp
To: Board
Subject: Sparrow/Kansas Rd Opposition
Date: Thursday, June 10, 2021 5:25:14 PM

Dear board members.
My name is Steven Freemire and I live at 3622 Kansas Rd and have since 1994
i would like to emphasis ROAD
During all board meetings you constantly refer to it as Kansas Street. It is not a city street but a country
road.
If you look at the street sign it plainly states Kansas Rd.. Should we start calling Jolly Rd. Jolly Street??
Just one of my pet peeves:)

I am still opposed to the Emergency room being built at Kansas and Jolly roads..
It doesn't fit into OUR rural neighborhood. It is a 24/7 365 operation and we will never get any relief from
the noise, light pollution, traffic and our privacy.  It ill bring bad actors into our neighborhood and
jeopardize our safety and tranquility of life.

This location is not warranted. Plenty of room across the road at 2445 Jolly in Alaedin township. It is
already built, it is the approximate size of what they want to build and it is already painted Sparrows
colors. Ecologically it would keep materials out of land fills and lend itself toward recycle , reuse and
repurpose.
if not there further down the road at James Phillips is plenty of vacant land to build till their hearts content.
Even further down at Jolly and Hagadorn Roads are acres of land owned by MSU in which a joint venture
could be worked out with MSU.
With the new state of the art McClaren Hospital being built 8 miles away is there really a purpose to this
emergency room structure??
i may be dating myself but if any of you used to read Mad magazine there was a section called spy vs
spy. Or Sparrow vs McClaren
It seems like a marketing ploy to scoop up anybody on their way to McClaren. Let Sparrow do a little
triage at there facility and then ship them to the big hospital downtown. Take that McClaren!! Why is this
board buying into this???

I know some of you were on the board when the zoning for the Elevation project was being batted
around. Whoa were we handed a pack of BS. The township was promised that a grocery store was going
to be built so people would not have to drive to a store to buy groceries and that would hold traffic down.
Guess what no grocery store exists today and instead we got another Bar and Grill "Joes on Jolly "
Like the corners of Okemos and jolly Roads needs more alcohol to be served or another place to eat.
We were also promised a 'Community Center ' that would have a park  and all sorts of activities going on.
Elevation painted a picture of a community inside of a community. Guess what, no community center
either. Who is going to hold Sparrows feet to the fire for these concessions. you all pretty much stated
because of these concessions you are on board.. Your own planning commission was against this project
but you have now bought into these concessions that they were not privy to.
So the two concessions that flipped all of you is public water. I am not apposed to public water but i have
spent a lot of money to condition my well water to make it potable and I am fine with it. Plus i do not get 
monthly bill for my well water. What guarantees are you going to ask for to make sure this happens????
No exits or entrances off of Kansas ROAD. So once approved and it turns out that Sparrows plan B is not
going to work where are out guarantees that this wont happen??? you approve zoning and then the
developers do what they want and no stopping them.
Look what LaFontaine did clear cutting 300 tree's then saying oh we don't want to build our dealership
there????
The board keeps buying into these lies and has  no power after the vote is made.
i would suggest at a minimum that two escrow/trust accounts be set up for Kansas Rd residents. For the
water it should be at least $340,000. A couple of years ago i inquired about getting public water down our
road. I asked the township engineer Younes to do a study of the costs. At that time it was $15,000 
assessment for each resident. Additional costs to hook up to the city water per G A Hunt between $3-

mailto:sfreeatbp@yahoo.com
mailto:Board@meridian.mi.us


4,000 to connect and probably another $2,000 for a plumber to come in and go from the water meter to
hook up inside of our homes. ALL opf these costs should be considered into the escrow/trust account
If we do hook up, will we have to disable our wells???
The entrance/exit situation is a little trickier. how about another escrow/trust account with $100,000 put in
for each resident of Kansas Rd if the promise is broken for this promise. i know one person on the street
is having their property bought by Sparrow and i heard another was going to be bought out also. So what
is Sparrow planning for those properties. I want some guarantee's and not empty promises.
Crap on me once , twice ( Elevation, LaFontaine ) shame on me for the third one. Do you really want egg
on your face again???
I have a beautiful 5 bedroom 2.5 bath home Sparrow can buy it. It  could be used as a nice lure to get
some resident physician to move here and have a place to live .within walking distance to his/her job.
Sparrow is throwing around a lot of money to get THEIR way. WHY when so many other possibilities exist
and a much lesser cost. That is what this board needs to ask them selves.
Would you want this in YOUR neighborhood?? You know you would not, so why stick it in OUR
neighborhood.
Something is not right and Sparrow is not coming clean. PO zoning is normally 9-5 operations M-F THIS
is not your typical PO zoning.
This change of zoning is not in your own master plan. your own planning commission voted it down 3/0.
and at that point they were not told it was going to be a 24/7/365 operation.
Tell Sparrow to take a hike with your vote
Thank you for listening
Steven E Freemire
517-256-1861 and open to any questions, comments or concerns

 



BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

l>F,\UO:K Pl<:RRY 

Ct.eir 

SCOTT HOUSE 
Vice-Cluir 

CHllCK PETERSO:'11 
Secretary 

BRADLEY BROGREN 
Tru:st(':C 

JIM CLELAND 
Trustee 

JIMf.CKLUNI> 
Trustee 

JILL l'l:LDPAUSCH 
Tre11sun.:r 

CLYDE DUGAN 
Opera tor/ Manager 

EAST LANSING - MERIDIAN WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 
2470 BURCHAM DRJVE- EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN 48823 

I. 

2. 

,., 
.) . 

PHONE: 517-337-7535 - FAX 517-337-7240 

Agenda 

East Lansing-Meridian Water and Sewer Authority 

June 17, 2021 

11:00 AM. 

Roll call. 

Approval of minutes of the May 20, 2021 meeting. 
A Motion to approve. 

Communications. 

4. Public Comments. 

5. Treasurer's Report. 

6. Resolution 2021-6-1. 
A. Motion to Tentatively Award Construction Contractor 
for Filter Additions/Controls upgrade project. 
A. Motion to Award. 

7. SCADA Controls at remote Well sites. 
A. Motion to Authorize. 

8. Long Term Planning update. 

9. Manager's Report. 
A Expenditure list (Motion to acknowledge). 
B. ELMWSA July (a_nnual) meeting. 

IO. Other Business 
A Tuition Reimbursement for Operator Thomas Fish. 

11. Adjournment. 



EAST LANSING – MERIDIAN WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 
2470 BURCHAM DRIVE – EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN  48823 

PHONE: 517-337-7535   FAX 517-337-7240 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC AND TELEPHONIC MEETING 

Please take notice that the Board of Trustees of the East Lansing – Meridian Water and Sewer Authority 
(“Authority Board”) will hold a public meeting at 11:00 AM, on Thursday, June 17, 2021 by convening the 
Authority Board through remote electronic access as provided in this Notice. Proceedings conducted at 
this meeting are pursuant to the provisions of the Ingham County Local State of Emergency declaration, 
Res #21-261 and the Meridian Township Local State of Emergency declaration, dated February 2, 2021. 

1. The Authority Board is meeting electronically to address necessary business operations and allow
ongoing work to sustain and protect the lives of the residents of its constituent municipalities.

2. This meeting is being held electronically to comply with federal, state and local agency
recommendations to cease in-person public assemblies, self-quarantine, and help prohibit the spread
of COVID-19. The Authority Board recognizes its continuing responsibility for needed decision-making
and will conduct this meeting in a manner that effectuates as fully as possible the purposes of the
Open Meetings Act.

3. Individuals are encouraged to participate in the meeting electronically, including providing public
comment, either through prior e-mail correspondence, online audio-conferencing, and telephone
comments.

4. For those seeking to participate electronically through online video or audio-conferencing,
participants can access the electronic meeting through the following link:
https://zoom.us/s/572589791, Password 2470, or by calling 1 (646) 558-8656, Meeting ID 572 589
791, Password 2470. Participants may use any device that supports the video-conferencing app or
when prompted after clicking the link, choose to join the meeting through a default browser, if
applicable. For those who choose to access through the video-conference app, you will be prompted
to download the app to participate.

5. To participate in public comment during the virtual meeting, upon entering the meeting indicate you
wish to take part in public comment in the chat, or verbally if on the phone or audio-conferencing.
You’ll be called upon by the Chairperson during the Public Comment section or other appropriate
sections of the meeting. When directed by the Chairperson, please call (517) 349-1232 to make your
comments. Members of the public are allowed three minutes to speak. You can then return to the
meeting as before

6. Questions and comments may be submitted prior to the meeting by email to cdugan@elmwsa.com.
Emails to that address relevant to this meeting will be distributed to the Authority Board.

7. Further information and materials related to this meeting can be requested by contacting
cdugan@elmwsa.com or (517) 337-7535 Ext. 1.

8. Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in the meeting should
contact the Authority Manager at (517) 337-7535 Ext. 1 or through the Michigan Relay Center at 7-1-
1 (TDD) at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting to request visual, hearing,
technological, or other assistance.

9. If you are unable to access the meeting due to technical difficulties, please contact Director of IT,
Stephen Gebes; (517) 853-4222; gebes@meridian.mi.us. Every effort will be made to help you
participate in the meeting.



9B 

CONSENT AGENDA 
PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES 

JUNE 15, 2021 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

(1) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the the Virtual
Regular Meeting of May 18, 2021,and June 1, 2021, as submitted.

ALTERNATE MOTION: 

(1) Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the the Virtual
Regular Meeting of May 18, 2021  and June 1, 2021 
with the following amendment(s):

[insert amendments]



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING   -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.349.1232, Virtual Meeting via Zoom  
TUESDAY, MAY 18, 2021; 6:00 pm. 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski 
 
ABSENT: Treasurer Deschaine 
 
STAFF: Township Manager Walsh, Director of Public Works Perry, Fire Chief Hamel, Police 

Chief Plaga, Community Planning and Development Director Kieselbach, 
Information Technology Director Gebes, Finance Director Mattison, Human 
Resources Director Tithof, Economic Development and Neighborhoods Director 
Clark, Communications Manager Yates; incoming Community Planning and 
Development Director Tim Schmitt 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Supervisor Styka called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

Supervisor Styka led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. ROLL CALL 

Clerk Guthrie called the roll of the Board. 
  
The Board took a moment of silence in remembrance for Treasurer Deschaine’s daughter, 
Marianne Deschaine. 

 
4. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Xavier DeGroat Autism Foundation – Chief Plaga stated the Xavier DeGroat Autism 
Foundation’s offers autism awareness activities, proposes and supports state legislation to 
assist law enforcement with the driver’s with autism issues.  Xavier DeGroat, CEO, 
summarized the fundraising event on June 8 at the Meridian Mall.  

B. Capital Area District Libraries – Tom Warner, Head Librarian at the Haslett Branch and 
Betsy Hull, Head Librarian at the Okemos Branch offered their 2020 Annual Report and 
summarized upcoming open branch hours and activities. 

C. Tribute to Mark Kieselbach – Supervisor Styka read the resolution offering a Tribute to 
retiring Community Planning and Development Director Mark Kieselbach and designated 
May 25, 2021 as MARK KIESELBACH DAY.   

 
Director Kieselbach thanked the Board for the tribute and stated he learned a great deal at 
the Township and worked with wonderful staff, board and commission members and 
residents. 
 
Trustee Jackson moved to make the tribute an official resolution of the Township 
Board.  Seconded by Trustee Opsommer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, Trustees Jackson, 
   Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MAY 18, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 2   
 

 
NAYS: None 

 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
5.   CITIZENS ADDDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Supervisor Styka opened public remarks at 6:29 pm. 
 

Jody Bond, 1502 Jolly Road, Okemos, spoke in support of Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton 
Pointe LLC). 
 
Will Randle, 4409 Dobie Road, Okemos, spoke in support of Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton 
Pointe LLC). 
 
Bill Fahey, 6149 Cottage Drive, stated he has offices at 4151 Okemos Road, is currently the 
Township’s attorney and the legal contract is due to expire.  His law firm has enjoyed work with the 
Township, would like to continue the relation and is available for a meeting to discuss renewing the 
contract. 
 
Sharon and Jerry Morrisett 3531 Indiana Road, spoke in opposition to the change and has concerns 
with the current development. 
 
Jay Murthy, 2483 Robins Way, spoke in opposition to the Sparrow rezoning proposal. 
 
Shereen Tabrizi, 3566 Kansas Road and 3917 Sheldrake Avenue, spoke in opposition to Rezoning 
#21020. 
 
John Faichney, MD, 3917 Sheldrake Avenue, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #21020. 
 
Peter Lupa, 3575 Kansas Road, spoke in opposition to rezoning residential parcels to commercial 
uses. 
 

Supervisor Styka closed public remarks at 6:51 pm.  
 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 

Manager Walsh reported:  all rezoning request notifications follow State law; thanked Mark 
Kieselbach for his 40 years of service; continuing the building operations contract negotiations 
with the City of Mason; with the termination of the 11-year agreement to share assessing 
services with the City of East Lansing , the Township is searching for a Level 4 Assessor; staff 
attended meeting with Indian Hills Neighborhood Association; will be meeting with Consumers 
Energy regarding tree clearing; staff is working on the challenging issues at Lakeview 
Apartments and on the  Georgetown sewer payback issues that date back to 2013; Chief Plaga is 
working with Ingham County on a speed limit issue on Mt. Hope Road; HOMTV interns will be 
returning to the Township Building on May 24; reviewed the agenda items for the June 1 
Township Board meeting; received the payroll Public Health Public Safety Reimbursement 
payment from the federal government program for $915,000; congratulated Supervisor Styka 
and his wife Georgia on their 50th year anniversary;  introduced the new Community Planning 
and Development Director Tim Schmitt; invited everyone to the celebration for Mark 
Kieselbach on Tuesday, May 25 in the Central Park Pavilion 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MAY 18, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 3   
 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Clerk Guthrie: 
• Announced the Glendale Cemetery Memorial Day Ceremony on Monday, May 31 at 11 am  

 
Trustee Opsommer: 

• Land Preservation Advisory Board received a presentation on the proposed updates to the 
Pathway Master Plan from Deputy Manager Perry and the LPAB offered input on the Plan 

• Transportation Commission will be meeting Thursday and will also be discussing the Pathway 
Master Plan 
 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Supervisor Styka recommended moving Action Item #12C Community Survey Draft to Discussion 
Item #13E 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved to approve the agenda with the recommendation by Supervisor 
Styka to move item #12C to item #13E. Seconded by Trustee Jackson 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Trustees Sundland, Opsommer, Wisinski, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor 

 Styka, Trustee Jackson 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Supervisor Styka reviewed the consent agenda. 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Seconded by 
Trustee Wisinski 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Trustees Opsommer, Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor Styka, 

 Trustees Wisinski, Sundland 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 6-0  
   

A. Communications 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved that the communications not already assigned for disposition be 
referred to the Township Manager or Supervisor for follow-up. Seconded by Trustee 
Wisinski 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Trustees Opsommer, Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor Styka, 

 Trustees Wisinski, Sundland 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MAY 18, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 4   
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 
   

B. Approval of Minutes – April 20, 2021 Virtual Regular Meeting 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the April 20, 2021 Virtual 
Regular Meeting, as submitted. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Opsommer, Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor Styka, 

 Trustees Wisinski, Sundland  
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 
  

C. Bills 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved to approve that the Township Board approve the Manager’s Bills 
as follows:  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski 
 
  Common Cash       $     177,249.68 
  Public Works       $        32,954.09 
  Trust & Agency      $                          121.36 
      Total Checks   $                 210,325.13 
 
  Credit Card Transactions     $        10,878.57 
  04.15.2021 – 04.29.2021     
      Total Purchases  $                 221,203.70 
 
  ACH Payments      $     877,807.85 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Opsommer, Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor Styka, 

 Trustees Wisinski, Sundland 
  

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 
 

D. DNR Acquisition Grant for Property on Okemos Road 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved to request that the Township Board enter into a Project 
Agreement with the Michigan Department of Natural Resources for the purpose of acquiring 
a 1.85-acre parcel (Parcel #33-02-02-1-200-011) located at 5280 Okemos Road, Haslett, in 
the amount of $170,000 with 75% of the costs ($127,500) funded by the MNRTF Grant and 
committing $42,500 or 25% of costs from the Township’s Park Millage Fund.  This site, when 
acquired, will host a dedicated entrance to Nancy Moore Park and serve as a trailhead area 
for users of the Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway System. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MAY 18, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 5   
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Trustees Opsommer, Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor Styka, 
 Trustees Wisinski, Sundland 

 
NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 6-0 
 

 
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY – NONE  
 
11. HEARINGS   

A. Powell Road Public Road Improvement SAD #43 
 
Deputy Manager Perry outlined the 63 feet of the proposed improvements to grade, gravel and pave 
Powell Road and to have the owner of Silverstone Subdivision construct the improvements and to 
defray the cost by special assessment and to partially reimburse the owner of the Silverstone 
Subdivision  
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:06 pm. 
 
Kathy spoke on behalf of Helen Hong, 4714 Powell Road, spoke in opposition to the amount of her 
special assessment. 
 
The public hearing was closed at 7:10 pm 
 
12. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Powell Road Public Road Improvement SAD #43 – Resolution #5 
 
Deputy Manager Perry summarized the road costs, special assessment calculations, payment period 
of the special assessment, and the Ingham County Road Department will maintain future road 
maintenance because it will be a public road. 
 
Trustee Jackson moved to approve the Powell Road Public Road Improvements Special 
Assessment District No. 43 – Resolution 5, which approves the special assessment roll; 
designates the project as “Powell Road Improvements Special Assessment District No. 43, the 
assessment roll as the “Powell Road Public Road Improvements Special Assessment District 
No. 43 Special Assessment Roll”, and the district as the “Powell Road Public Road 
Improvements Special Assessment District No. 43”; adopts the amount of $504,269.71 as the 
final amount for the assessment roll; and the amount of $223,253.46 to be collected and 
reimbursed to the owner of the Silverstone Subdivision; and orders and directs the assessed 
parcels of the assessment roll to be paid and collected.  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Sundland, Opsommer, Wisinski, Jackson, Supervisor Styka, 

Clerk Guthrie 
   

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried:  6-0 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MAY 18, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 6   
 

B. Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton Pointe, LLC) request for an extension of the 
special use permit for the square footage of buildings at Newton Place, 6276 Newton 
Road 

 
Trustee Opsommer movedd to adopt the resolution to grant a one year (12 months) 
extension of Special Use Permit #18091 for Newton Place from April 9, 2021 to April 9, 2022.  
Seconded by Trustee Jackson 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, 

Sundland, Wisinski 
 

NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  6-0 
 

C. Community Survey Draft 
 
This item was moved to Discussion Item #13C 

 
D. Preliminary Plat #03012 Sierra Ridge Estates Extension 

 
Trustee Opsommer moved to adopt the resolution extending preliminary plat approval for 
the remaining 27 lots in Sierra Ridge to July 1, 2023.  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor Styka,  
  Trustees Sundland, Wisinski 
 

NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  6-0 
 

E. 2020 Downtown Development Authority Annual Report 
 

Trustee Jackson moved to approve the 2020 Annual Report and to submit to the State of 
Michigan, post on the Township Website and make available for the members of the public.  
Seconded by Trustee Opsommer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, 

Clerk Guthrie 
 

NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  6-0 
 

The Board took a ten minutes break 
 

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. Rezoning #21020 (Martin Investment Properties, Inc.) rezone approximately six 

acres on the north side of Jolly Road and east of Kansas Road from I (Industrial) and 
RA (Single Family-Medium Density) to PO (Professional Office) 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MAY 18, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 7   
 

Director Kieselbach outlined the proposed rezoning request and surrounding existing property 
uses  
 
Thomas Bres, Chief Administrative Officer for Sparrow Hospital, Dr. Karen Kent VanGorder, Chief 
Medical Officer, Stacy Bakkegard, Director of Facilities and John Shaski, Government Relations 
Officer, gave an overview of the project, the feedback received, the changes made to the facility 
from the feedback, and conditions being offered since the public hearing and hearing the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation for denial. 
 
Manager Walsh stated he will provide the requested property assessment information. 

Board consensus to place this item on the next Board meeting agenda. 

B. Okemos Drain 
 
Deputy Manager Perry outlined the Grand River Avenue drain and road improvement projects and 
the partnership with the Ingham County Drain Commissioners Office, the Michigan Department of 
Transportation and Ingham County Road Department. 
 
Deputy Drain Commissioner Carla Clos, Consulting Engineer Alan Boyer, and Drain Commissioner 
Douglas Kelly offered an update on the drain study of the Grettenberger, Okemos and Meijer Drains 
and their recommendation to combine the three drains into a single “Okemos Consolidated Drain”. 
 
Board consensus to place this item on the next Board meeting agenda. 

 
C. SmartZone Local Development Finance Authority 

 
Director Clark stated LEAP and members of the Lansing SmartZone approached the Township in 
2020 as a potential community to increase the financial strength of the SmartZone.  City of Lansing 
and City of East Lansing created the “SmartZone” district as the LDFA, a collaborative tax authority 
to create incentive to development industrial zoned parcels.  The purpose of the authority is to 
connect university and community with innovation, commercialization, good high tech jobs and 
entrepreneurship.  The LDPA focuses on assisting with startup and a recent success is High Caliber 
Karting.  Staff is recommending adding properties along Dawn Avenue and Towner Avenues to the 
LDFA. 
 
Public Sector Consultant Tim Dempsey outlined the process to join the Lansing Regional SmartZone 
and how the tax increment-financing plan will work for the Township. 
 
Board consensus to place this item for discussion on the next Board meeting agenda 
 
Trustee Opsommer moved to proceed with board discussion on agenda items #13D and 
#13E this evening.  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Supervisor Styka, Trustee Sundland, Clerk Guthrie, Trustees 
Opsommer, Wisinski, Jackson 

 
NAYS: None 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MAY 18, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 8   
 

     
Motion carried:  6-0 
 

D. Legal Counsel Contract & Continuing Legal Services 

Supervisor Styka summarized the expiration of the current contract with the legal counsel and 
asked if the members would like to renew the contract for another three years or send out an RFP. 

Board consensus to place this item on the next Board meeting agenda. 
 

E. Community Survey 
 
It was the consensus of the board members to send their questions and concerns to Director Clark 
and Deputy Manager Perry and then present a revised survey that will be presented at the June 15th  
board meeting. 
 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Supervisor Styka Opened Public Remarks at 10:34 pm. 
 

Jay Murthy, 2438 Robins Way, voiced concerns with the rezoning request. 
 
Shereen Tabrizi, co-owner of 3566 Kansas Road, spoke in opposition 
 

Supervisor Styka Closed Public Remarks at 7:39 pm. 
 
15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS -NONE 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Wisinski moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee Jackson  
 
VOICE/HAND VOTE:   Motion carried 6-0 
 
Supervisor Styka adjourned the meeting at 10:40 pm. 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________ 
                    RONALD J. STYKA, 

TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

 
______________________________ 

DEBORAH GUTHRIE, 
TOWNSHIP CLERK 

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING   -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.349.1232, Virtual Meeting via Zoom  
TUESDAY, JUNE 1, 2021; 6:00 pm. 
 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, 

Sundland, Wisinski 
 
ABSENT: None 
 
STAFF: Township Manager Walsh, Director of Public Works Perry, Fire Chief Hamel, 

Community Planning and Development Director Schmitt, Information Technology 
Director Gebes, Finance Director Mattison, Human Resources Director Tithof 
 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Supervisor Styka called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

Supervisor Styka led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. ROLL CALL 

Clerk Guthrie called the roll of the Board. 
  
The Township Board took a moment of silence in remembrance of the 100th year anniversary of the 
Tulsa Oklahoma Race Massacre 
  
4. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Introduction of New Police Officers – Lt Bart Crane introduced new police officers Bryant 
Martin, Taya Catherwood, Meghan Cole and Maggie Cole 

B. Introduction of Assessor Candidate – Supervisor Styka introduced Assessor Candidate 
Ashley Winstead 

C. 2020 Audit Presentation – Finance Director Mattison introduced Ali N. Barnes, CPA, Yeo & 
Yeo, who presented the findings of the virtual 2020 Township Audit 
 

5.   CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Supervisor Styka opened public remarks at 6:45 pm 
 
Jody Bond, 1502 Jolly Road, spoke in support of the rezoning request for the Sparrow facility 
 
Dr. Sherren Tabrizi, co-owner of 3566 Kansas Road and owner of 3917 Sheldrake Avenue, spoke in 
opposition to the Sparrow rezoning request 
 
John Faichney, 3566 Kansas, spoke in opposition to the Sparrow rezoning request 
 
Celene Tabrizi, 3566 Kansas, spoke in opposition to the Sparrow rezoning request 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 1, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 2   
 

 
Peter Lupa, 3575 Kansas, spoke in support the Sparrow rezoning project with conditions 
 
Aubrey Holmes, Smith/Packett Med-Com LLC, 34 Broadstreet, Charlestown, South Carolina, 
representing Okemos IL-AL Investors LLC, outlined the application to rezone two parcels from C-2 
(Commercial) to RA One Family, Medium Density Residential) 
 
Brent Felton, 2470 Robins Way, spoke in opposition to the Sparrow rezoning request 
 
Joell Ackerman, 3521 Indiana Road, spoke in opposition to the rezoning request 
 
Steve Freemire, 3622 Kansas Road, spoke in opposition to the rezoning request 
 
Sharon Morrisett, 3531 Indiana Road, spoke in opposition to the rezoning request 
 
Alex Amiri, 3566 Kansas Road, spoke in opposition to the rezoning request 
 

Supervisor Styka closed public remarks at 7:16 pm.  
 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 

Manager Walsh reported welcomed new Community Planning and Development Director Tim 
Schmitt; local road program has begun in Tacoma Hills; thanked Supervisor Styka for his work 
with Consumers Energy on the Briarwood area project; thank you for responding to the 
Community Survey and it will be on the June 15 agenda for discussion; thanked Clerk Guthrie 
for the Memorial Day Service; the Township is at full service, open to the public and the work 
from home program has been discontinued; the EDC meets this Thursday; induction of four 
new police officers by Lt Bart Crane and 75% of them being female; Road Safety Concerns for 
the Skyline Neighborhood have been referred to Ingham County Road Department and Road 
Director Conklin is in contact with Mr. Thompson on what can and cannot be done on Skyline 
 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Treasurer Deschaine: 
• Thanked staff, board, community members and friends for their support to the Deschaine 

family and contributions to the Meridian Cares Fund in the memory of his daughter, Marianne 
 
Trustee Wisinski 

• Environmental Commission meets on Wednesday; Green Grant for Rademoor Montessori is 
almost complete with the planting underway and installing water lines by the children; Tree 
Team volunteers and the Green Team have distributed over 300 trees in May at the Farmers 
Market; Green Team has also recycled 100 bikes with MSU Bike and Share a Bike Program 
volunteers; has been weeding and mulching at the Hidden River Garden; Green Neighbors 
Network is increasing in membership with over two dozen neighborhoods 

• Ground Water Management Board Meeting on Wednesday and submitted a letter of support to 
Senate Majority Leader Shirkey and Speaker of House Wentworth to appropriate funds to 
support the Water Use Advisory Council and update the Michigan geologic survey 

 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 1, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 3   
 

Trustee Opsommer: 
• The Transportation Commission met last month and had a second over-view and discussion on 

the Pathway Master Plan update.  With Deputy Manager Perry receiving updates from the other 
boards and commissions , this will be before the Township Board in the near future 
Trustee Jackson 

• On May 25 attended the Tri-County Regional Planning Commission Board meeting and the 
group is going through a federal certification process by the Federal Highway Administration 
and Federal Transit Administration.  There is an opportunity for input on an individual’s 
experiences on-line and could receive a gift card 

 
Clerk Guthrie 

• Thank you to the community members  for attending the Memorial Service with over 100-150 
attending; thanked the participants:  Meridian Community Band, Flags Over Meridian Program, 
benediction by Pastor Dave Davis; presentation by Retired Air Force Captain Tom Cooper, Scout 
Troops presented the flags, Meridian Fire Department personnel and bagpiper Terry Carroll   
 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Supervisor Styka recommended the addition of Action Item 12G Lesbian Gay, Bisexual, Transgender 
and Queer (LGBTQ) Pride Month Resolution 
 
Trustee Wisinski moved to approve the revised agenda as presented. Seconded by Trustee 
Jackson 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees  Opsommer, Jackson, Treasurer Deschaine Clerk Guthrie,  
  Supervisor Styka, Trustees Sundland, Wisinski 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Supervisor Styka reviewed the consent agenda. 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Seconded by 
Trustee Jackson 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, Trustees 

Wisinski, Sundland, Opsommer, Jackson 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0  
   

A. Communications 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved that the communications not already assigned for disposition 
be referred to the Township Manager or Supervisor for follow-up. Seconded by Trustee 
Jackson 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 1, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 4   
 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, Trustees 

 Wisinski, Sundland, Opsommer, Jackson 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 
   

B. Approval of Minutes – May 6, 2021 Virtual Regular Meeting 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the May 6, 2021 Virtual 
Regular Meeting, as submitted. Seconded by Trustee Jackson  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, Trustees 

Wisinski, Sundland, Opsommer, Jackson  
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 
  

C. Bills 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve that the Township Board approve the Manager’s 
Bills as follows:  Seconded by Trustee Jackson 
 
  Common Cash       $     212,542.28 
  Public Works       $        41,202.32 
  Trust & Agency      $                          120.80 
      Total Checks   $                 253,865.40 
 
  Credit Card Transactions     $           6,428.08 
  05.13.2021 – 05.26.2021     
      Total Purchases  $                 260,293.45 
 
  ACH Payments      $     518,736.98 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, Trustees 

Wisinski, Sundland, Opsommer, Jackson 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 
 

 
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY – NONE  
 
11. HEARINGS - NONE  

 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 1, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 5   
 

12. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Appointment of Assessor 
 
Trustee Jackson moved to support the Township Manager’s recommendation to appoint 
Ashley Winstead as Township Assessor with a starting date to be determined by the 
Administration.  Seconded by Trustee Opsommer 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Jackson, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Opsommer, Clerk 

Guthrie, Trustees Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka 
   

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried:  7-0 
 

B. Rezoning #21020 (Martin Investment Properties, Inc.) rezone approximately six acres 
located on the north side of Jolly Road and east of Kansas Road from I (Industrial) and 
RA (Single Family-Medium Density) to PO (Professional Office) 

 
Trustee Opsommer moved to adopt the resolution approving for introduction Rezoning 
#21020 (Martin Investment Properties, Inc.) to rezone approximately six acres of land  
located on the north side of Jolly Road and east of Kansas Road, from I (Industrial) and RA 
(Single Family-Medium Density) to PO (Professional Office) with conditions. Seconded by 
Clerk Guthrie 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Jackson, Treasurer Deschaine, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor  
  Styka, Trustee Wisinski, Sundland, Opsommer 
 

NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  7-0 
 

C. Okemos Drain 
 
Trustee Jackson moved to approve the Resolution Requesting the Relinquishment of the 
Okemos Drain to Township, Approve the Operation and Maintenance of Township Drain 
Agreement, Approve the Resolution to File a Drain Petition Pursuant to Chapter 8 and 19 of 
the Michigan Drain Code of 1956, as Amended and Approve and Submit the Petition For The 
Consolidation Of Drainage Districts and For Cleaning Out, Relocating, Widening, Deepening, 
Straightening, Tiling, Extending, Providing Structures, Adding Lands Not Within The Existing 
Drainage Districts, Adding Branches And Relief Drains, Relocating Along A Highway, Adding 
Structures And Mechanical Devices That Will Properly Purify or Improve The Flow, Adding 
Pumping Equipment Necessary to Assist Or Relieve The Flow And For The Consolidation Of 
Drains Pursuant To Chapters 8 And 19 Of The Michigan Drain Code Of 1956, as Amended and 
presented..  Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine 
 
Discussion: 
• Deputy Manager Perry summarized the consolidated drain proposal 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 1, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 6   
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Jackson, Supervisor Styka, 
Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine 

 
NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  7-0 
 

D. National Gun Violence 
 

Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the National Gun Violence Awareness Day 
Resolution.  Seconded by Clerk Guthrie 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Jackson, Treasurer Deschaine, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor 

Styka, Trustees Wisinski, Sundland, Opsommer 
 

NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  7-0 
 

E. Acceptance of 2020 Township Audit Findings 
 

Trustee Jackson moved to approve the 2020 Audited Financial Statements and the Single 
Audit as presented by Yeo & Yeo.  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Opsommer, Jackson, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees 

Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie 
 

NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  6-0 
 

F. Legal Counsel Contract & Continuing Legal Services 
 

Trustee Opsommer moved to approve the Renewal Engagement as Township Attorneys with 
Fahey, Schultz, Burzych and Rhodes for a term of three-years as presented, and authorize the 
Township Supervisor to sign the agreement on behalf of the Township.  Seconded by 
Treasurer Deschaine 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor Styka, Trustees 

Wisinski, Sundland, Opsommer, Jackson 
 

NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  7-0 
 

G. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer (LGBTQ) Pride Month Resolution 
 

Clerk Guthrie moved to approve the resolution Celebrating Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 
Transgender and Queer (LGBTQ) Pride Month.  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 1, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 7   
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Treasurer 
Deschaine Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor Styka 

 
NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  7-0 
 

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
A. Rezoning #21040 (Okemos IL-AL Investors, LLC) rezone approximately 9.07 acres 

located at 1510 and 1560 Grand River Avenue from C-2 (Commercial) to RA (Single 
Family-Medium Density) 

 
Community Planning and Development Director Schmitt outlined the proposed rezoning request 
 
Aubrey Holmes Senior Development Manager; Lynn Bishop Senior Vice President Development and 
Construction; and Michele Sons Development Manager, Smith/Packett Med-Com LLC, 34 
Broadstreet, Charlestown, South Carolina, representing Okemos IL-AL Investors LLC, outlined their 
aging in place senior facility. They plan to customize the building with many amenities to blend into 
the surrounding area such as walking paths, three gardens, three dining halls, etc.  There will be 
approximately 90-100 independent living units, 50-70 assisted living units and 35-40 memory care 
units. They plan to have everything approved for the project before closing on the property and 
financing is in place when they are ready to proceed with the purchase and construction 
 
Board members expressed the following concerns with the proposed plan:  density, preserving 
green space and the wetlands, reforesting the area, creating a rural residential atmosphere, 
potentially seeking an alternative location with at least 10 acres to develop on 
 
Board consensus to place this item on the next Board meeting agenda 
 
14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Supervisor Styka Opened Public Remarks at 9:07 pm. 
 

None 
 

Supervisor Styka Closed Public Remarks at 9:08 pm. 
 
15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
 
Supervisor Styka stated there is not a meeting schedule during the week of July 4th and the July 
meetings are the 13th and 20th.  It was suggested to move July 13th meeting to June 29th.  Trustee 
Opsommer stated he would not be available. 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski  
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, JUNE 1, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 8   
 

VOICE/HAND VOTE:   Motion carried 7-0 
 
Supervisor Styka adjourned the meeting at 9:10 pm. 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________ 
                    RONALD J. STYKA, 

TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

 
______________________________ 

DEBORAH GUTHRIE, 
TOWNSHIP CLERK 

 
 



























9. D.

To: Township Board Members 

From: Derek N. Perry, Deputy Township Manager 
Director of Public Works & Engineering 

Date: June 9, 2021 

Re: Pathway Master Plan 5-Year Update- Set Public Hearing 

As part of our 5-year review of the Pathway Master Plan, we have attended and solicited input 
from various Township Boards and Commissions over the past several months. In addition, we 
have also encouraged comments from various stakeholder groups and residents of the community. 

We are requesting that the Township Board set a public hearing for the July 13, 2021 meeting, so 
that all of the information that has been collected can be provided to the Township Board and the 
public for review and consideration. All comments regarding the Pathway Master Plan are 
welcome and encouraged at the public hearing. 

Upon completion of the public hearing and receipt of all the comments, we will develop a draft 
updated Pathway Master Plan for the Township Board to consider adopting at its July 20, 2021 
regularly scheduled meeting. 

Proposed motion: 

“Move to schedule a public hearing for the Township’s regularly scheduled meeting on July 
13, 2021 to review the draft Pathway Master Plan update and hear comments regarding 
additions and/or deletions from the plan.”  



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

9. G 

To:  Board Members 

From: Frank L. Walsh, Township Manager 

Date:  June 15, 2021 

Re: Charitable Gaming License-Ebersole Foundation 
 

 

The Township has received a request from the Ebersole Foundation for a gaming license to run a raffle.   
The Ebersole Foundation is a 501 (c) (3) non-profit organization under the IRS code. The organization is 
planning a raffle to be held on September 26, 2021.    

Under state lottery laws, a local governing body must approve the function through a vote of the Board.  
Attached is the resolution request by the Lottery Bureau along with the Ebersole Foundation IRS tax 
exempt letter.   

 
A motion is prepared for Board consideration:  
 

MOVE APPROVAL OF A REQUEST FROM THE EBERSOLE FOUNDATION OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, ASKING THAT THEY BE RECOGNIZED AS A NON-PROFIT 
ORGANIZATION OPERATING IN THE COMMUNITY FOR THE PURPOSES OF OBTAINING A 
GAMING LICENSE FOR APPROVAL, AND FURTHER THAT THE TOWNSHIP CLERK BE 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE THE RESOLUTION FROM THE STATE OF MICHIGAN. 

 
 
 
Attachments:  
 

1. Resolution for Charitable Gaming License 
2. IRS Tax Exempt Letter 

 
 



MICHIGAN LOTTERY 

CHARITABLE GAMING DIVISION 

101 E. HILLSDALE, BOX 30023 

LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 

(517) 335-5780 

www.michigan.gov/cg 

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY RESOLUTION FOR 

CHARITABLE GAMING LICENSES 

(Required by MCL.432.103(K)(ii)) 

 

RESOLUTION 

 

At a Regular meeting of the Charter Township of Meridian Board of Trustees called to order by 

Supervisor Styka on June 15, 2021 at 6:00 P.M. 

 

the following resolution was offered: 

 

 Moved by __________________ and supported by __________________. 

 

 That the request from The Ebersole Foundation of Meridian Township, County of Ingham, 

asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the 

purpose of obtaining a gaming license be considered for APPROVAL. 

 

 

 YEAS:  _____________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________ 

 NAYS:  _____________________________________________________ 

 ABSENT: _____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN) 

         ) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM) 

 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of resolution offered and 

adopted by the Township Board at a Regular meeting held on June 15, 2021. 

 

 

       

       ______________________________ 

       Deborah Guthrie 

       Meridian Township Clerk 

       5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864 

http://www.michigan.gov/cg


























 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

12. B 

To:  Board Members 

From: Ronald J. Styka, Township Supervisor 

Date:  June 11, 2021 

Re: Resolution in Recognition and Celebration of Juneteenth 

 

Juneteenth celebrates America’s commitment to liberty and equality in accordance with the 
Constitution of the United States, along with the Emancipation Declaration, issued by President 
Lincoln on September 22, 1862, and later became effective on January 1, 1863 and the 13th 
Amendment to the Constitution which abolished slavery, ratified by Congress on December 6, 
1865. 
 
A motion is prepared for Board consideration:  
 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE RESOLUTION IN RECOGNITION AND CELEBRATION OF 

JUNETEENTH. 

 
Attachment:  
 

1. Resolution in Recognition and Celebration of Juneteenth 
 

 



RESOLUTION IN RECOGNITION AND CELEBRATION OF JUNETEENTH 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 

Michigan, held on the 15th day of June, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. local time. 

PRESENT: ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENT:  _________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS,  Juneteenth is the oldest celebration of the emancipation of African-American 

slaves, and is so named for the June 19, 1866 adoption of Black Independence Day in Galveston, 

Texas; and, 

WHEREAS, Juneteenth celebrates America’s commitment to liberty and equality in 

accordance with the Constitution of the United States, along with the Emancipation Declaration, 

issued by President Lincoln on September 22, 1862, and later became effective on January 1, 1863 

and the 13th Amendment to the Constitution which abolished slavery, ratified by Congress on 

December 6, 1865; and,   

WHEREAS, the history of African-Americans is a study of resilience for the plight of slavery 

in our history, and today, for the over 45 million people in forced labor and other forms of human 

trafficking; and, 

WHEREAS, the Meridian Township Board encourages the entire community, region, state 

and country to celebrate Juneteenth; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, that the Meridian Township Board 

recognizes, adopts and proclaims this Resolution to underscore the freedom with dignity of every 

human being. As a governmental body, we oppose and reject any form of oppression and pledge to 

support our residents, churches and organizations working to achieve social justice, genuine 

equality and protect the human rights for all people of Meridian Township. 

ADOPTED: 

YEAS: ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS:   ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Resolution declared 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
   )SS: 
COUTNY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 

Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 

and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 15th 

day of June 2021. 

        _____________________________________ 
Deborah Guthrie 
Meridian Township Clerk 



12. C

To: Board Members 

From: Ken Plaga, Chief of Police 

Date: June 9, 2021 

Re: Resolution for a Traffic Speed Study 

There have been requests for a speed study on Mount Hope Road due to limited site distance and 
recent traffic crashes. 

The resolution will allow the Michigan State Police (MSP) and the Ingham County Roads Department 
to conduct a speed study and safety audit on Mount Hope Road in Okemos between Comanche Drive 
and Chippewa Drive.  Please be advised that MSP will conclude one of three outcomes: 

1 – Leave the speed limit the same on Mount Hope Road. 
2 – Reduce the speed limit on Mount Hope Road. 
3 – Increase the speed limit on Mount Hope Road. 

The following motion is proposed for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE MICHIGAN STATE POLICE (MSP) 
TO CONDUCT A SPEED STUDY AND SAFETY AUDIT ON MOUNT HOPE ROAD AND 
ADVISE THE BOARD OF THEIR RESULTS.  

 Attachment: 
1. Resolution to Authorize a Speed Study and Safety Audit

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 



RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE A SPEED STUDY AND SAFETY AUDIT 

 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 

Michigan, held on the 15th day of June, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. local time. 

PRESENT: ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENT:  _________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the current traffic speeds on Mount Hope Road from Comanche Dr. to Chippewa 

Dr. are believed to be hazardous to pedestrians, bicyclists and motorists; and, 

WHEREAS, limited roadway sight distances create an undue hazard to pedestrian, bicyclists 

and motorized vehicular traffic entering Mt. Hope Road or making turns onto side streets and 

drives from Mount Hope Road; and,   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, that the Meridian Township Board is 
formally requesting the Ingham County Road Department to conduct a traffic, engineering, and 

speed study on Mount Hope Rd from Comanche Drive to Chippewa Drive  It is understood that the 

Road Department in cooperation with Michigan State Police (MSP) will use the engineering data 

gathered in the study to make a decision which could raise the speed limit, lower the speed limit, or 

keep the speed limit as it is.  

It is further understood that Meridian Township will abide by the decision made by the Road 

Department and MSP as a result of this traffic, engineering, and speed study. 

ADOPTED: 

YEAS: ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:   ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Resolution declared 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
   )SS: 
COUTNY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 

Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 

and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 15th 

day of June 2021. 

 

        _____________________________________ 
Deborah Guthrie 
Meridian Township Clerk 



 
 

 
  

12. D. 

 

To:  Township Board Members 

From:  Derek N. Perry, Deputy Township Manager 
  Director of Public Works & Engineering 
 
  Younes Ishraidi, P.E., Chief Engineer 
 
Date:  June 10, 2021 

Re:  Lake Lansing Advisory Committee Appointment 
 

 

The Advisory Committee for the Lake Lansing Special Assessment District recently received a 
resignation of Tier 1 member Timothy McCarty, whose term would have expired on April 30, 2022.     
 
Subsequently, the advisory committee solicited interested property owners within Tier 1 to fill 
this vacancy for more than a month. Only one eligible Tier 1 resident applied.  During its June, 
regular meeting the advisory committee voted unanimously recommending to the Township 
Board the appointment of Mr. Roger Taylor to fill the Tier 1 vacancy.  Mr. Taylor has attended the 
last two meetings of the advisory committee.  His information and Public Service application are 
attached. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended motion: 
 
“Move to approve the appointment of Mr. Roger Taylor of 6089 E Lake Drive, Haslett, MI, as 
a Tier 1 representative to the Lake Lansing Advisory Committee for a term ending April 30 
2022.” 





















 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

12. F 

To:  Board Members 

From: Ronald J. Styka, Township Supervisor 

Date:  June 15, 2021 

Re: Amtrak Corridor Development Program Resolution 

 

Meridian Township would benefit greatly from Amtrak’s Connects US 2035 vision for more train 
frequencies on all three current Michigan routes and new corridor routes from Detroit to 
Cleveland & Toronto. 
 
A motion is prepared for Board consideration:  
 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE AMTRAK CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

RESOLUTION 

 
Attachment:  
 

1. Amtrak Corridor Development Program Resolution 
 

 



AMTRAK CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM RESOLUTION 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 

Michigan, held on the 15th day of June, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. local time. 

PRESENT: ________________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:  _________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS,  Meridian Township would benefit greatly from Amtrak’s Connects US 2035 

vision for more train frequencies on all three current Michigan routes and new corridor routes from 

Detroit to Cleveland & Toronto; and, 

WHEREAS, the additional service would help constituents visit family, attend business 

meetings, travel to college and travel to surrounding communities; and,   

WHEREAS, increasing service will expand economic opportunity for residents and 

businesses and provide climate friendly alternatives to driving and flying; and, 

WHEREAS, funding this program through Amtrak’s National Network grant, will allow 

Amtrak to make the initial capital investments necessary to get these new routes up and running, as 

well as cover the operating costs for the first several years so that new services can grow ridership 

and generate revenue; and, 

WHEREAS, Amtrak is committed to working in a collaborative manner with state and local 

partners to grow the national rail network; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, Meridian Township supports Amtrak’s 

reauthorization proposal to create a Corridor Development Program, which will help advance 

Amtrak’s planning, development, and implementation of new corridor routes. In addition to 

Amtrak’s National Network grant, the Township also supports increased funding for USDOT 

competitive grants, which can also support more passenger rail.                               

ADOPTED: 

YEAS: ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS:   ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Resolution declared 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
   )SS: 
COUTNY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 

Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 

and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 15th 

day of June 2021. 

        _____________________________________ 
Deborah Guthrie 
Meridian Township Clerk 









To: Meridian Township Board Members 

From: Downtown Development Authority Members 
& 

Neighborhoods & Economic Development Director Amber Clark 
Date: June 15, 2021 

RE: Downtown Development Authority Loan Forgiveness Letter 

In response to COVID-19 the Federal government established the American Rescue Plan with 
stimulus funding planned for each community. This federal support is for eligible projects that 
enhance the entire community and bridge gaps for our businesses and residents. As the 
community looks to proceed in recovery of COVID-19, the Downtown Development Authority 
(DDA) would like to take more progressive steps to enhance the financial strength of the DDA.  The 
proposed request is to forgive the remaining $124,500 of the current loan with the Meridian 
Charter Township. The current fund balance of the DDA is ($83,407.36) with total cash on hand of 
$57,320.01. 

A loan agreement was formed by the DDA and Meridian Township Board for $190,000 for 
streetlight installations throughout the DDA in 2010. 2012 the Township was notified of a tax 
appeal made by the DDA’s largest commercial operator. The tax appeal was approved with a 
reduction in tax value in 2010 for $1.2 million, 2011 for $1.5 million, and over $2 million in 2012. 
The DDA as the responsible tax authority then owed this establishment $84,078.41. At the time the 
cash on hand was $27,751. To pay back those taxes, the DDA had to borrow the additional funding 
in a loan from the Meridian Township general fund.  

Beginning in 2017 the DDA elected to make payments on the principal; last year was the first year 
that the DDA did not elect to pay down a large portion of the principal. With the newly established 
loan agreement written in 2013 the DDA was required to pay $10,000 with no requirement to pay 
on the principal of the loan until 2023.  In 2017 the DDA paid $50,000 down on the principal and 
additionally elected to pay $25,000 down on the principal in 2019.  Payments to the principal alter 
the repayment schedule with the current loan to be paid in full by 2027.  

Attached is a letter from the Downtown Development Authority to the Township board for 
discussion and concurrence to forgive the DDA of their remaining debt. 

Township Board Options: 
Township Board members have the option to suspend the rules at discussion and vote to move the 
item for “action” should the Township Board members feel it is appropriate. Board members can 
move to adopt the attached resolution to forgive the remaining debt of the Downtown 
Development Authority of Meridian Charter Township; authorize the Township Manager and staff 
to proceed with the loan forgiveness process. 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE GRANTING OF $124,500 TO THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY, AS FORGIVENESS OF THE LOAN TO THE GENERAL FUND. AUTHORIZE THE 
TERMINATION OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP AND 
THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY.  

13. B

~ 
MERIDIAN A 

~ 



Attachments:  
Support Letter from Downtown Development Authority 
2017 Loan Agreement  
Current Amortization Schedule of Loan  
Current Financial balance of DDA  
Drafted Loan Termination Agreement 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 

~ 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
'{ 0 ~~~.,, 

~ 
June 7, 2021 
To: Meridian Township Board 
From: Meridian Township Downtown Development Authority 
Re: Downtown Development Authority loan Forgiveness 

Members of the Township Board; 

The Downtown Development Authority (ODA), met at their regularly scheduled meeting June 7, 

2021 to submit our request to the Meridian Township board to forgive the remaining $124,500 

on the loan the DOA took out with the Township in 2013. Our request comes at a time when 

our nation has to creatively address economic development in a world with retraction of 

commercial spaces and availability of commercial lending. The steps to ensure financial health 

of the Downtown Development Authority are congruent with the current Economic 

Development plan of Meridian Township. We ask for this loan forgiveness to better propel the 
DDA's ability to assist future development. 

In 2010 the DDA purchased the streetlights that align Okemos Road and Hamilton Road through 

the roundabout onto Marsh Road for $190,000. This was a loan through the general fund of 
Meridian Township. The original agreement was for the purchase and installation of the units 

for 15 years. In 2012 a local business won tax appeal for 2010 tax year for $1.2 million, the 

2011 tax year for $1.5 million, and 2012 tax year for over $2 million. Reduction in tax value at 
the property required the DDA to pay back a total of $84,078.41 for these years in 2012. At the 

time the cash on hand was $27,751 and the DOA needed to take out another loan to cover the 

remaining $60,000 owed. In 2013 the DDA had a total debt of $250,000 for the streetlights and 

the tax appeal. The loan agreement required the DDA to pay $10,000 down on the principal up 

front and did not require principal payments until 2023. In our efforts to become financially 
sound, we have elected to each year to pay a large sum down on the principal. Beginning in 

2017 we paid $50,000 down and $25,000 in 2019 toward the principal. With the adoption of 

the DDA's Tax Increment Financing plan in 2017 the total remaining owed to Meridian 
Township at that time was $149,000. Since 2013 the DDA has paid over $80,000 on the 

principal and $40,000 in interest to the Township for the loan. 

With the oncoming improvements made by the Village of Okemos project, Okemos bridge 

reconstruction and future developments we respectfully request the Meridian Township Board 

to forgive the remaining debt of the DDA. This tax authority will be the anchor for funding 

sources for improvements in the DDA. We will be in much better standing to assist with these 

projects without a debt payment to continue to be made. These enhancements are equally 

enjoyed by all and redevelopment of Okemos is our priority. Another reason in support of 

eliminating the DDA' s debt is related to the accounting of the Township's overall finances. As 
the DDA is an entity of the Township, our account show the debt owed to the Township, 



~ 
MERIDIAN A 
\t O ~~~~.,, 
~ 

annually this must be explained. We are confident that soon the Downtown area will begin to 

resemble the former "downtown" feel it once did. We are actively reengaging the current 

businesses and meet regularly as a commission to ensure the path to redevelopment of the 

area. We will be stronger without the debt and appreciate your concurrence. For more 
information related to the history of the debt please review the included attachments. 

Sincerely, 
( 

I 
Renee Korre 
Downtown evelopment Authority Chair 
Charter Township of Meridian 



THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE LOAN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN AND THE MERIDIAN 

TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the 4th day of April , 2017 by and between the 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ("Township"}; a public body organized and existing pursuant 
to Act 359, Michigan Public Acts of 1947, and the MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ("DDA"), a public body corporate organized and existing pursuant to 
Act 1971 Michigan Public Acts of 1975. 

WHEREAS, the Township and the DDA had entered into an Inter-Fund Loan Agreement 
approved by the Meridian Township Board at their regular meeting on August 5, 2010 and by the 
DDA Board of Directors at a special meeting on August 2, 2010; and 

WHEREAS, the originally requested loan amount from the Township was $190,000; and 

WHEREAS, the DDA, pursuant to the DDA development program described in the DDA Plan, 
used the loan to purchase and install 21 LED lighting fixtures and street poles in downtown Okemos; 
and 

WHEREAS, the principal amount of the original loan was amended in 2011 from $190,000 to 
$160,000; and 

WHEREAS, the principal amount of the loan was amended in 2013 from $160,000 to 
$200,000; and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the loan agreement to adjust the repayment schedule 
of the principal payment from 2020 to 2027, to 2022 through 2027. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants of each other, the parties 
agree as follows: 

1. The DDA may prepay any portion of the Loan without penalty, Any additional payments 
shall be applied against interest and principal as the Township, in its sole discretion, 
decides, 

2. In the event the DDA defaults in the terms of this Agreement, or any other agreement 
between the parties, the entire Loan shall be immediately due and payable and the 
Township may take whatever action it deems necessary to collect the Loan, including 
(without limitation) offsetting any funds due to the DDA from the Township, bringing a 
suitto collect on the Loan Agreement (as amended), or any combination thereof. The DOA 
shall pay all of the costs incurred by the Township in connection with a default and/or 
collection, including reasonable attorney fees. 

3. Payment on the Loan shall be made in annual interest payments and annual principal 
payments (beginning in 2022), as depicted in the following table. Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary, the Loan is due in full on October 1, 2027, 



DDA Installment Loan due to General Fund 
....... ~-::·::. ·.: _· . --:· .::·::· ... ·_:-~ ~: ] _· ·:~ ·:_·~~:. ::.~ -~: . ·:: ............. ---··· -- _· :.:.~ __ · : ___ . . ... 

Year . _A.cldi!i~Ds_*_ -- ... P~yr,~nt~** . ~~i~dp_al (_~ue~/1)_ lnt~~:~tt~ J~~:e;;;:) Pa:%~n~ .. _o;~!~~~~ng 
iii3 ... 1 f .... iio,·oaa:oo -f - soo.ao· s· .. ·- .. : io,'9tjo:06 l . ·3'.oo.iI~"12_~.7.s i iti,923js· !!!~:~~~:~~-

.•• !1i• i.r.• .••. --i-·-1··_ ) ...•• _;-:= j•._•.······· .. ··- ··-· .. . .. .· .••..•• i~ .·1·1;;:;11 .• H;:; 1 n;mi . 

. _ i_·o_o'i_;_- .... 

1

1 . . _$. _ s_o,ogq:o.o _____ ·_$$ ____ · _______ . __ ~·P.O.~ tS.,.4.~~:90 $ ss,4s?,QO $~4~1.5-CJ!la,O_ 
-- ... ---- ..... . .. .. ---- .... .... .. _ .. _ ..?~99~ JA1~~._og _$_ 4.,4ss,1QQ J~49,SOO.,Ql} 

2_Q19 _ _$ . 3.00% $ 4,485.00 $ 4,4~5,'.Q.0 $149,500.00 
2020 $ ·-_ 3.00% $-4,4ss.oo 1 $ · __ 4!~??:o.o $14isoiao 

·: i.Q~i .:: . . ...... - .. .. JI .... ·-- ... . _· _____ : );qg½ }jA~j§o, Lf 4.i4.ss.90 _{i4~;?.SJ0.'.9.9. . 
. .. ?_q2.?. . . .. - ... ........... ... . .......... -· _$ ........ .2.?19~:.90. .. -· 3.00% $ _31922.50 . $ 28,922.50 $124,500.00. 

2023 $ . __ 2s,ooo.oo 3.00% $ 3,172.so $ 2s,112.so I $ 99,soo.oo 
. ·2024· -.. -- . .. . 1 · . - . . $ 2s,ooo.oo . 3.00% $ 2,422.so $ 27,422.so I $ 74,soo.oo 

: ;~: '.·.·•·· ····•·•·• · ·· -I ·••·•·•·····._·•···· rl ·.·.· ~t~~~ -· ·. i:~ -i ,,~~~~! •~: ~f i~:?i Ji~:~:H6 
TOTAL $ 60,000.00 $ 50,500.00 J $ 159 500.00 $58,100.00 $268,100.00 

T~;a·;~;ifoi.;·i~:!~ -~-;~~i{~-: :._:$:_-_'_ii~~i:~] :::: ::_:::_-~-~-:::·-::: ~-:· - .· ·: .. J.· --: . : -. .. -- .- : : . ~-. . .. ..- -......... -. 
4. Except as otherwise set forth above, all other terms and conditions of the August 5, 2010 

Loan Agreement, as modified by the Amendment dated July 26th, 2013, continue in full 
force and effect 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals on the date above first written. 

Brett Dreyfus, CMMC 
Township Clerk 



Year Additions* Payments**
Principal (Due 4/1)

Interest Rate 
(3%)

Interest (Due 
10/1)

Total Payment
Oustanding 

Balance
150,000.00$  

2013 60,000.00$          500.00$               10,000.00$                3.00% 4,423.75$    14,923.75$    199,500.00$  
2014 -$                            3.00% 5,985.00$    5,985.00$       199,500.00$  
2015 -$                            3.00% 5,985.00$    5,985.00$       199,500.00$  
2016 -$                            3.00% 5,985.00$    5,985.00$       199,500.00$  
2017 50,000.00$          -$                            3.00% 5,485.00$    55,485.00$    149,500.00$  
2018 -$                            3.00% 4,485.00$    4,485.00$       149,500.00$  
2019 25,000.00$          -$                            3.00% 4,485.00$    29,485.00$    124,500.00$  
2020 -$                            3.00% 3,735.00$    3,735.00$       124,500.00$  
2021 -$                            3.00% 3,735.00$    3,735.00$       124,500.00$  
2022 -$                            3.00% 3,735.00$    3,735.00$       124,500.00$  
2023 25,000.00$                3.00% 3,172.50$    28,172.50$    99,500.00$    
2024 25,000.00$                3.00% 2,422.50$    27,422.50$    74,500.00$    
2025 25,000.00$                3.00% 1,672.50$    26,672.50$    49,500.00$    
2026 25,000.00$                3.00% 922.50$       25,922.50$    24,500.00$    
2027 24,500.00$                3.00% 183.75$       24,683.75$    -$                

TOTAL 60,000.00$          75,500.00$          134,500.00$             56,412.50$ 266,412.50$  

Total  Principal Payments 210,000.00$       

*Addition of $60K in July 2013 
**Payment of $500 in Sept 2013 using money donated by board member to reduce the debt
Assuming $50,000 Payment will be made in May 2017

DDA Installment Loan due to General Fund



Meridian Twp DOA 
Preliminary Financial Statements 
Period Ending 4/30/2021 - UNAUDITED 

BALANCE SHEET 
ASSETS 

Cash 

Due from General Fund 

Taxes Receivable 

Accounts Receivable 

Prepaid Expense 

LIABILITIES 

Accrued Interest Payable 

Due to General Fund 

Unearned Revenue 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Deferred Inflows of Revenue 

LT Note Payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCE 
Fund Balance 12/31/20 

2021 YTD Net Income 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 

INCOME STATEMENT 
REVENUES 

Tax Capture 

PPT Reimbursement 

Grants 

DOA Downtown Events/Donations 

Other 

TOTAL REVENUE 

EXPENDITURES 
Operating Costs 

Professional Consultant/Contractual Services 

Community Projects 

Communications 

Conferences 

Special Events - Celebrate Expenses 

Tax Appeal Refunds 

Interest on Loan 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

2021 Net Income 

March 

$13,393.69 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$13,393.69 

$151.42 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$151.42 

$13,242.27 

April 

$2,461.59 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$2,461.59 

$228.44 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$228.44 

$2,233.15 

Year to Date 

$57,320.01 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$57,320.01 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$124,500.00 

$124,500.00 

($83,407.36) 

$16,227.37 

($67,179.99) 

$57,320.01 

Year to Date 

$15,752.29 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$15,752.29 

$458.92 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

($934.00) 

($475.08) 

$16,227.37 



~EPENDENT 

01698 

BANK 

PO Box 279 I Belding, Ml 48809 I lndependentBank.com 

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
5151 MARSH RD 
OKEMOS Ml 48164-1198 

1-1698 

Last statement: March 31, 2021 
This statement: April 30, 2021 
Total days in statement period: 30 

Page 1 of 2 
XXXXXX5474 
( 0) 

Direct inquiries to: 
800.355.0641 

Independent Bank 
2119 Hamilton RD 
Okemos Ml 48864 

INTRODUCING ONE WALLET, INDEPENDENT BANK'S NEW AND ENHANCED ONLINE 
AND MOBILE BANKING PLATFORM, LAUNCHING ON MONDAY, MAY 24! WITH ONE 
WALLET, YOU CAN BANK WHEN, WHERE, AND HOW YOU WANT-JUST ANOTHER 
WAY WE ARE HELPING YOU TO BE INDEPENDENT. TO BRING YOU THESE NEW 
ENHANCEMENTS, OUR CURRENT ONLINE AND MOBILE BANKING WILL BE 
UNAVAILABLE AS OF FRIDAY, MAY 21, AT 5 PM (ET). MEMBER FDIC. 

Business Freedom Checking 

DEBITS 

Account number 
Low balance 
Average balance 

Date Description 
04-15 ' POS Purchase 

XXXXXX5474 Beginning balance 
$55,086.86 Total additions 
$56,824.99 Total subtractions 

Ending balance 

MERCHANT PURCHASE TERMINAL 55432861 CONSUMERS ENERGY C 
0 800-477-5 Ml XXXXXXXXXXXX2615 SEQ # 200572995353 

04-30 ' POS Purchase 
MERCHANT PURCHASE TERMINAL 5543286 1 CONSUMERS ENERGY C 
0 800-477-5 Ml XXXXXXXXXXXX26 15 SEQ # 200698074474 

CREDITS 
Date Description 
04-09 ' Deposits 

$55,086.86 
2,461.59 

228.44 
$57 ,320.01 

Subtractions 
118.85 

109.59 

Additions 
2,461.59 

01698 



MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
April 30, 2021 

DAILY BALANCES 
Date Amount Date Amount Date 

Page 2 of 2 
XXXXXX5474 

Amount ---- -------
03-31 
04-09 

55 ,086 .86 _04_-_1_5 ____ 5_7_,4_2_9_.6_0 
57,548.45 _04_-_3_0 ____ 5----'7 ,c..._3_2_0 _.0_1 

Thank you for banking with Independent Bank 



05/28/2021 08 : 40 AM 
User : FAULKNER 

GL ACTIVITY REPORT FOR MERIDIAN TWP 

DB : Meridian 
FROM 900 - 000 . 000 - 001 . 000 TO 900 - 000 . 000 - 001 . 000 

TRANSACTIONS FROM 04/01/2021 TO 04/30/2021 
Date JNL Type Description 

Fund 900 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
ets 

rtment 
1/2021 

04/07/2021 
04/14/2021 
04/29/2021 
04/30/2021 

000 . 000 

GJ 
GJ 
GJ 

JE 
JE 
JE 

900-000 . 000-001.000 CASH 
DEPOSIT - WINTER OPP TAX COLLECTION 
COMSUMERS PMT (SERVICE 2 . 15 - 3 . 15) 
COMSUMERS PMT (SERVICE 3 . 16 - 4 . 14) 
900 - 000 . 000 - 001 . 000 

TOTAL FOR DEPARTMENT 000 . 000 

TOTAL Assets 

TOTAL FOR FUND 900 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Reference# 

61707 
62123 
62115 

END BALANCE 

Debits 

BEG . BALANCE 
2 , 461.59 

2 , 461.59 

2,461.59 

2 , 461.59 

2 , 461 . 59 

Page : 

Credits 

118 . 85 
109 . 59 
228 . 44 

228.44 

228 . 44 

228 . 44 

1/1 

Balance 

55 , 086 . 86 
57 , 548 . 45 
57 , 429 . 60 
57 , 320 . 01 
57 , 320 . 01 

57 , 320 . 01 

57 , 320 . 01 



05/28/2021 08 : 57 AM 
User: FAULKNER 
DB: Meridian 

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR MERIDIAN TWP 

PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2021 

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

Fund 900 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Revenues 
Dept 000.000 
900-000 .000-402.000 

Total Dept 000.000 

TOTAL REVENUES 

Expenditures 
Dept 000 . 000 
900-000 . 000-728.000 
900-000 . 000-995.000 

Total Dept 000 . 000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES 

OPERATING SUPPLIES 
DEBT SERVICE-INTEREST 

Fund 900 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 
TOTAL REVENUES 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 

2021 
AMENDED BUDGET 

6 ,500. 00 

6 , 500 . 00 

6 , 500 . 00 

3 ,000.00 
3 ,7 35 . 00 

6 ,7 35 .00 

6 , 735 . 00 

6 , 500 .00 
6 , 735.00 

(235 .00) 

YTD BALANCE 
04/30/2021 

15 , 752 . 29 

15 , 752 . 29 

15 , 752.29 

458.92 
(934.00) 

(475.08) 

(475 .08) 

ACTIVITY FOR 
MONTH 

04/30/2021 

2 , 461.59 

2 ,4 61.59 

2 , 461.59 

228 .44 
0.00 

228 .44 

228 . 44 

15,752.29 2 , 461.59 
(475 .0 8) 228 .44 ---------

16 , 227 . 37 2 , 233 .1 5 

Page : 1/1 

AVAILABLE 
BALANCE 

(9,252.29) 

(9 , 252 . 29) 

(9,252 . 29) 

2 , 541.08 
4,669.00 

7 , 210.08 

7 , 210 .0 8 

% BDGT 
USED 

242 . 34 

242 . 34 

242 . 34 

15.30 
(25 . 01) 

(7. 05) 

(7. 05) 

(9 , 252 . 29) 242 . 34 
7 , 210 . 08 7 . 05 ---------

(16 ,4 62 . 37) 6 , 905 . 26 



05/28/2021 08:57 AM 
User: FAULKNER 
DB: Meridian 

BALANCE SHEET FOR MERIDIAN TWP 

Period Ending 04/30/202 1 

Fund 900 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

GL Number Description 

***Assets*** 

RECEIVABLES - CUSTOMERS 
RECEIVABLES - TAXES 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Due From Other Funds 
Investments 
OTHER ASSETS 
Total Assets 

***Liabilities*** 

Accounts Payable 
ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES 
Deferred Revenue 
Due to Other Funds 
Long Term Liabilities 
Unclassified 
UNEARNED REVENUE 
Total Liabilities 

*** Fund Balance*** 

UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 
Total Fund Balance 

Beginning Fund Balance 

Net of Revenues VS Expenditures 
Ending Fund Balance 
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 

Balance 

0 . 00 
0.00 

57,320 . 01 
0 . 00 
0 . 00 
0 . 00 

57,320.01 

0 . 00 
0 . 00 
0 . 00 
0 . 00 

124,500.00 
0.00 
0.00 

124,500.00 

(83 , 407 . 36) 
(83,407.36) 

(83,407.36) 

16,227.37 
(67,179 . 99) 
57,320.01 

Page: 1/1 



Parcel Number              Class     Property Address                     Status       Homestead  DDA/LDFA                             Value  Value 2021       Value

                           Property                                                                                             Base Taxable     Taxable    Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page: 

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

1/11

33-02-02-21-254-016        402       4837 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       36,680      14,870     -21,810

33-02-02-21-254-017        202       OKEMOS RD                            Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       27,000      16,600     -10,400

33-02-02-21-254-018        202       4825 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       27,000      16,600     -10,400

33-02-02-21-254-030        201       4767 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      128,285     135,732       7,447

33-02-02-21-254-031        201       4787 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      120,621     127,623       7,002

33-02-02-21-254-032        201       4815 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      256,679     271,581      14,902

33-02-02-21-254-037        201       2131 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                    1,297,251   1,486,100      94,425*

33-02-02-21-276-003        201       2041 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      218,172     230,839      12,667

33-02-02-21-276-005        201       2037 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      196,417     207,821      11,404

33-02-02-21-276-006        201       2049 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      573,699     607,008      33,309

33-02-02-21-276-009        201       2045 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      537,816     585,469      47,653

33-02-02-21-276-011        201       2085 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      642,923   1,282,200     639,277

33-02-02-21-276-012        201       4800 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      547,266     579,041      31,775

33-02-02-21-276-014        201       2075 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      935,100     982,015      46,915

33-02-02-21-276-015        201       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                    4,001,605   4,198,900     197,295

33-02-02-21-277-001        201       4780 OKEMOS RD #1                    Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      184,554     195,269      10,715

33-02-02-21-277-002        201       4780 OKEMOS RD #2                    Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      132,589     152,400      19,811

33-02-02-21-277-003        201       4780 OKEMOS RD #3                    Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      184,554     195,269      10,715

33-02-02-21-277-004        201       4780 OKEMOS RD #4                    Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      135,109     142,952       7,843

33-02-02-21-402-007        202       METHODIST ST                         Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       20,250      21,078         828

33-02-02-21-402-008        202       4217 ARDMORE AVE                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       20,250      21,078         828

33-02-02-21-403-003        201       2154 METHODIST ST                    Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       50,836      53,787       2,951

33-02-02-21-403-004        202       METHODIST ST                         Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       20,250      21,078         828

33-02-02-21-403-007        201       4733 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       94,200      99,668       5,468

33-02-02-21-403-008        401       4731 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       44,016      46,570       2,554



Parcel Number              Class     Property Address                     Status       Homestead  DDA/LDFA                             Value  Value 2021       Value

                           Property                                                                                             Base Taxable     Taxable    Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page: 

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

2/11

33-02-02-21-403-009        401       4717 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       54,763      57,941       3,178

33-02-02-21-403-011        201       4747 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      120,069     127,040       6,971

33-02-02-21-404-001        401       2188 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       82,943      87,757         963*

33-02-02-21-404-002        401       4705 ARDMORE AVE                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       49,168      52,022       2,854

33-02-02-21-404-007        201       2160 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      149,372     117,800     -31,572

33-02-02-21-405-005        202       2148 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       72,937      77,171       4,234

33-02-02-21-405-008        201       4700 ARDMORE AVE                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      155,817     300,000     144,183

33-02-02-21-405-009        201       4695 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      197,676     209,152      11,476

33-02-02-21-405-010        201       2138 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      152,067     160,895       8,828

33-02-02-21-406-001        201       4708 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      134,899     142,730       7,831

33-02-02-21-406-002        201       4696 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       74,849      79,194       4,345

33-02-02-21-406-003        202       4703 MOORE ST                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       42,289      44,742       2,453

33-02-02-21-406-004        202       MOORE ST                             Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        5,240       5,542         302

33-02-02-21-406-005        201       4690 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      182,488     193,082      10,594

33-02-02-21-406-006        201       2114 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      154,626     163,603       8,977

33-02-02-21-408-001        201       2175 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      186,402     197,224      10,822

33-02-02-21-408-009        201       4663 ARDMORE AVE                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      436,090     461,410      25,320

33-02-02-21-409-001        201       2153 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       26,033      27,174       1,141

33-02-02-21-409-002        201       2149 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       74,115      87,310      13,195

33-02-02-21-409-003        201       2143 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       86,292      54,500     -31,792

33-02-02-21-409-004        201       2137 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       50,743      24,800     -25,943

33-02-02-21-409-006        202       2150 CLINTON ST                      Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       32,700      33,787       1,087

33-02-02-21-409-008        201       4661 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      124,051      75,200     -48,851

33-02-02-21-409-009        201       4675 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       75,656      82,557       6,901

33-02-02-21-410-007        201       4646 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      105,163     111,268       6,105



Parcel Number              Class     Property Address                     Status       Homestead  DDA/LDFA                             Value  Value 2021       Value

                           Property                                                                                             Base Taxable     Taxable    Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page: 

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

3/11

33-02-02-21-410-008        201       4659 MOORE ST                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      165,216     174,808       9,592

33-02-02-21-410-010        099       OKEMOS RD                            Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-21-410-012        201       2119 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      145,278     153,712       8,434

33-02-02-21-410-015        202       CLINTON ST                           Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       63,046      66,705       3,659

33-02-02-21-411-001        401       2177 CLINTON ST                      Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       14,523      15,365         842

33-02-02-21-411-002        201       2165 CLINTON ST                      Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       51,663      54,661       2,998

33-02-02-21-412-002        401       2149 CLINTON ST                      Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       38,716      40,963       2,247

33-02-02-21-412-003        401       4633 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       36,337      38,445       2,108

33-02-02-21-412-004        401       4625 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       46,909      49,631       2,722

33-02-02-21-412-005        401       4619 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       80,846      85,539       4,693

33-02-02-21-412-006        401       2155 CLINTON ST                      Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       78,607      83,170       4,563

33-02-02-21-413-001        401       2120 CLINTON ST                      Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       98,339     104,048       5,709

33-02-02-21-413-002        401       2122 CLINTON ST                      Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       92,898      98,291       5,393

33-02-02-21-413-003        401       2124 CLINTON ST                      Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       92,686      98,066       5,380

33-02-02-21-413-004        401       2126 CLINTON ST                      Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      101,218     107,094       5,876

33-02-02-21-413-100        402       CLINTON ST                           Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-21-426-001        201       4750 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      145,400     153,841       8,441

33-02-02-21-426-012        202       4649 MARSH RD                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       62,542      66,172       3,630

33-02-02-21-426-013        202       4657 MARSH RD                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       13,907      14,713         806

33-02-02-21-426-014        202       4663 MARSH RD                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       47,990      50,775       2,785

33-02-02-21-426-015        202       4669 MARSH RD                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       11,537      12,205         668

33-02-02-21-426-016        202       4675 MARSH RD                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       77,991      82,518       4,527

33-02-02-21-426-020        201       2110 METHODIST ST                    Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      118,102     124,958       6,856

33-02-02-21-426-021        301       4704 MOORE ST                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      238,072     251,893      13,821

33-02-02-21-426-022        201       2104 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      187,596     198,487      10,891



Parcel Number              Class     Property Address                     Status       Homestead  DDA/LDFA                             Value  Value 2021       Value

                           Property                                                                                             Base Taxable     Taxable    Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page: 

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

4/11

33-02-02-21-426-023        099       4734 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-21-427-001        201       4737 MARSH RD                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      308,000     194,300    -113,700

33-02-02-21-428-006        099       2086 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-21-429-003        201       4650 MOORE ST                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      118,206     136,200      17,994

33-02-02-21-429-004        202       2099 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       65,380      17,130     -48,250

33-02-02-21-429-005        202       2095 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       49,700      51,353       1,653

33-02-02-21-429-027        201       2109 HAMILTON RD                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      208,617     220,728      12,111

33-02-02-21-451-005        099       4555 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-21-452-001        201       2248 MT HOPE RD                      Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      350,741     421,000      70,259

33-02-02-21-452-002        099       OKEMOS R/W RD                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-21-453-005        099       OKEMOS RD                            Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0*

33-02-02-21-453-006        401       4622 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       46,261      48,946       2,685

33-02-02-21-453-007        401       4612 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       82,088      80,077      -2,011

33-02-02-21-453-008        201       4632 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      115,270     121,961       6,691

33-02-02-21-453-009        401       2123 CLINTON ST                      Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       54,288      57,439       3,151

33-02-02-21-454-002        301       CONSUMERS R.O.W.                     Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        5,211       5,513         302

33-02-02-21-454-007        401       4534 OKEMOS RD                       Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       41,349      43,749       2,400

33-02-02-22-152-001        201       4775 MARSH RD                        Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      235,703     249,387      13,684

33-02-02-22-152-002        301       MARSH RD                             Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        7,984       8,400         416

33-02-02-90-200-115        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-200-120        251       2110 HAMILTON RD                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-200-121        251       4750 OKEMOS RD #101                  Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-200-164        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-200-266        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-500-315        951       4787 OKEMOS RD #2                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0



Parcel Number              Class     Property Address                     Status       Homestead  DDA/LDFA                             Value  Value 2021       Value

                           Property                                                                                             Base Taxable     Taxable    Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page: 

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

5/11

33-02-02-90-501-800        251       4787 OKEMOS RD #1                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-502-350        951       2137 HAMILTON RD                     Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       14,800           0     -14,800

33-02-02-90-502-815        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-502-902        251       4780 OKEMOS RD #1                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       44,000      57,700      13,700

33-02-02-90-503-170        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-503-340        251       2154 METHODIST ST                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-504-305        251       4767 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        3,400           0      -3,400

33-02-02-90-505-620        951       4700 ARDMORE AVE #100                Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-506-700        251       4663 ARDMORE AVE                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       43,600           0     -43,600

33-02-02-90-510-705        251       4780 OKEMOS RD #4                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-510-800        251       2041 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-511-320        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-511-970        351       4704 MOORE ST                        Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-514-823        251       4646 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-514-900        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                    1,838,600   1,642,700    -195,900

33-02-02-90-515-000        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        1,700       1,600        -100

33-02-02-90-515-300        951       2160 HAMILTON RD #A                  Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        2,700           0      -2,700

33-02-02-90-515-504        251       VARIOUS LOCATIONS - DDA              Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-515-558        251       2128 HAMILTON RD                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        2,100       1,800        -300

33-02-02-90-517-700        251       4688 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-518-900        951       2143 HAMILTON RD                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-519-000        251       4775 MARSH RD                        Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        7,100      10,400       3,300

33-02-02-90-519-770        251       4775 MARSH RD                        Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        4,800       4,500        -300

33-02-02-90-522-020        951       4737 MARSH RD                        Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-523-190        951       4661 OKEMOS RD #3                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0



Parcel Number              Class     Property Address                     Status       Homestead  DDA/LDFA                             Value  Value 2021       Value

                           Property                                                                                             Base Taxable     Taxable    Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page: 

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

6/11

33-02-02-90-523-590        251       4780 OKEMOS RD #3                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-523-950        251       4747 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-524-676        251       2108 HAMILTON RD                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-525-333        251       2160 HAMILTON RD #100                Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                          500           0        -500

33-02-02-90-525-472        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                          800         500        -300

33-02-02-90-528-012        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-528-054        251       2109 HAMILTON RD #109                Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                          100         100           0

33-02-02-90-528-088        251       4692 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-528-176        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      104,400      80,300     -24,100

33-02-02-90-528-191        251       2160 HAMILTON RD #C                  Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-528-416        951       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-528-475        951       2112 HAMILTON RD                     Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-528-549        951       4650 MOORE ST                        Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-528-659        251       4632 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0      39,700      39,700

33-02-02-90-528-712        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        8,700           0      -8,700

33-02-02-90-528-736        251       4646 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-528-991        251       4700 ARDMORE AVE #106                Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-017        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-018        951       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-019        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-020        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-032        251       1841 NEWMAN RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       46,000     123,000      77,000

33-02-02-90-529-054        551       VARIOUS OKEMOS DDA                   Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      196,400     220,700      24,300

33-02-02-90-529-226        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-227        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0



Parcel Number              Class     Property Address                     Status       Homestead  DDA/LDFA                             Value  Value 2021       Value

                           Property                                                                                             Base Taxable     Taxable    Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page: 

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

7/11

33-02-02-90-529-241        951       2104 HAMILTON RD                     Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                          300           0        -300

33-02-02-90-529-309        251       2109 HAMILTON RD #100-C              Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-340        251       2193 ASSOCIATION DR 100              Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-344        951       2085 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-379        251       4750 OKEMOS RD #2                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-462        251       2045 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       83,900      88,300       4,400

33-02-02-90-529-463        951       VARIOUS LOCATIONS                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-466        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-467        951       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-468        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-523        251       4659 MOORE ST                        Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-576        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-578        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-579        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-614        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-638        951       2114 HAMILTON RD                     Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                          300           0        -300

33-02-02-90-529-663        951       2160 HAMILTON RD                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-797        251       2131 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      159,500     113,400     -23,050*

33-02-02-90-529-799        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0       1,000       1,000

33-02-02-90-529-806        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0         200         200

33-02-02-90-529-817        251       2112 HAMILTON RD                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-826        251       2110 METHODIST ST                    Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        1,200           0      -1,200

33-02-02-90-529-860        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE #B              Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-865        951       4708 OKEMOS RD                       Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        2,500           0      -2,500

33-02-02-90-529-866        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0



Parcel Number              Class     Property Address                     Status       Homestead  DDA/LDFA                             Value  Value 2021       Value

                           Property                                                                                             Base Taxable     Taxable    Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page: 

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

8/11

33-02-02-90-529-967        251       2109 HAMILTON RD #110                Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-529-997        951       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-011        251       4690 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-025        251       2104 HAMILTON RD                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-030        951       4646 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-113        951       2160 HAMILTON RD #C                  Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-133        251       4750 OKEMOS RD #108                  Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-152        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-153        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0         800         800

33-02-02-90-530-160        951       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-203        090       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE #C              Active          0.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-241        251       2049 GRAND RIVER AVE #A              Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       20,000      56,200      36,200

33-02-02-90-530-248        951       4800 OKEMOS RD                       Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                        1,500           0      -1,500

33-02-02-90-530-291        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT-DDA                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                       27,500           0     -27,500

33-02-02-90-530-333        251       4717 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-356        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-357        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-358        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0       1,000       1,000

33-02-02-90-530-359        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-360        251       2055 MEIJER                          Inactive      100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-361        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-363        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-391        251       2075 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                      249,200     187,600     -61,600

33-02-02-90-530-401        251       4733 OKEMOS RD                       Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-411        251       2109 HAMILTON RD 201                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0



Parcel Number              Class     Property Address                     Status       Homestead  DDA/LDFA                             Value  Value 2021       Value

                           Property                                                                                             Base Taxable     Taxable    Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page: 

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

9/11

33-02-02-90-530-413        251       2155 CLINTON ST                      Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-434        951       4700 ARDMORE AVE 104                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-436        951       4700 ARDMORE AVE 106                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-508        251       2160 HAMILTON RD C                   Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0       7,700       7,700

33-02-02-90-530-589        251       4750 OKEMOS RD #103                  Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-591        251       4750 OKEMOS RD #104                  Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-592        951       4750 OKEMOS RD #105                  Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-593        251       4750 OKEMOS RD #106                  Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-594        251       4750 OKEMOS RD #107                  Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-530-595        951       4750 OKEMOS RD #112                  Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-434        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-440        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-441        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-443        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-446        951       2075 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-449        251       2055 GRAND RIVER                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-450        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-453        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT-DDA                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0         500         500

33-02-02-90-532-455        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0         100         100

33-02-02-90-532-460        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-469        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-478        251       2055 GRAND RIVER AVE                 Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0       1,700       1,700

33-02-02-90-532-479        251       2055 GRAND RIVER - MEIJER            Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0       2,100       2,100

33-02-02-90-532-484        251       LEASED EQUIPMENT                     Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0           0           0

33-02-02-90-532-494        251       2037 GRAND RIVER AVE A               Active        100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS                            0       1,000       1,000



Parcel Number Class Property Address Status Homestead  DDA/LDFA Value  Value 2021 Value

Property Base Taxable Taxable Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page:

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

10/11

33-02-02-90-532-496 251 2055 GRAND RIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 1,500 1,500

33-02-02-90-532-515 251 4700 ARDMORE 100B Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-516 951 4700 ARDMORE 102 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-535 251 2109 HAMILTON RD 100 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-536 251 2109 HAMILTON RD 206 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-537 251 2109 HAMILTON RD 230 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-538 951 2109 HAMILTON RD 130C Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-539 951 2109 HAMILTON RD 210B Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-540 251 2109 HAMILTON RD 203 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-541 951 2109 HAMILTON RD Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-542 951 2109 HAMILTON RD 200 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-561 251 2055 GRAND RIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-562 251 2055 GRAND RIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 800 800

33-02-02-90-532-565 251 2055 GRAND RIIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 1,300 1,300

33-02-02-90-532-566 251 2055 GRAND RIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 500 500

33-02-02-90-532-567 951 2055 GRAND RIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-597 251 2055 GRAND RIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-598 251 2055 GRAND RIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 5,200 5,200

33-02-02-90-532-604 251 2055 GRAND RIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-663 951 4700 ARDMORE 103 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-664 951 4700 ARDMORE 104 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-683 251 2109 HAMILTON RD Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 500 500

33-02-02-90-532-684 251 2109 HAMILTON RD Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 500 500

33-02-02-90-532-686 251 2109 HAMILTON RD STE 207 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-687 251 2109 HAMILTON RD #215 Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0



Parcel Number Class Property Address Status Homestead  DDA/LDFA Value  Value 2021 Value

Property Base Taxable Taxable Captured

DDA Report - Prior Year

* denotes a partial capture

Page:

DB: Meridian Township 2022

04/08/2021

04:07 PM

11/11

33-02-02-90-532-688 951 2109 HAMILTON RD Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 500 500

33-02-02-90-532-689 251 2109 HAMILTON RD Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 500 500

33-02-02-90-532-709 951 2160 HAMILTON RD Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-710 251 2160 HAMILTON RD Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 500 500

33-02-02-90-532-913 251 2055 GRAND RIVER Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-532-928 251 LEASED EQUIPMENT Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 0 0

33-02-02-90-632-926 251 LEASED EQUIPMENT Active 100.0000  DDA #2-OKEMOS 0 5,400 5,400

DDA #2-OKEMOS 257 19,823,387 21,109,492 1,210,880

DDA/LDFA Count Value  Value 2021 Value

Base Taxable     Taxable Captured

*****   DDA/LDFA Totals *****



LOAN TERMINATION AGREEMENT 

(Charter Township of Meridian and the Meridian Township Downtown Development Authority) 

THIS LOAN TERMINATION AGREEMENT (this “Termination Agreement”), dated as of ______________ 
________, 2021 (the “Termination Date”), is entered into by and between CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
MERIDIAN (“Township”, “Lender”); a public body organized and existing pursuant to Act 359, 
Michigan Public Acts of 1947, and the MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY (“DDA”, “Borrower”); a public body corporate organized and existing pursuant to the 
Act 197, Michigan Public Acts of 1975. 

RECITALS 

A. The Downtown Development Authority and the Meridian Charter Township are parties to that
certain Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of April 4, 2017 (as amended or modified
from time to time, the “Loan Agreement”). Initially capitalized words or terms used but not defined
in this Termination Agreement shall have the meanings assigned to such words or terms in the
Loan Agreement.

B. In connection with the transactions contemplated by that certain Amended Loan Agreement
made effective as of April 4th, 2017, Borrower and Lender have agreed to terminate the Loan
Documents on the terms, and subject to the conditions, set forth herein.

C. This Termination Agreement is the Loan Termination Agreement (Charter Township of Meridian
and the Meridian Township Downtown Development Authority Loan Agreement).

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Termination of Loan Documents. As of the Termination Date, the Loan Documents are terminated
in their entirety, and shall be of no further force or effect. As of the Termination Date, Lender
releases, reconveys and otherwise terminates all liens encumbering the Collateral in favor of
Lender (collectively the “Liens”). Lender agrees to execute such documentation as is reasonably
requested by Borrower to evidence the termination of the Loan Documents and such release,
reconveyance and/or termination of the Liens.

2. Waiver and Release. Borrower and Lender waive and release the other party from any and all
claims, actions and causes of action, whether known or unknown and whether in law or in equity,
that the waiving and releasing party may have against the other party arising out of, or in
connection with, the Loan, the Loan Documents or the Collateral.

Initials of Authorized Borrower 
DDA Chair: _______________ 

Initials of Authorized Lender 
Township Supervisor: ______________ 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 

~ 



Initials of Authorized Lender 
Township Clerk: ______________ 

3. Governing Law. This Termination Agreement, and the rights of the parties hereto, shall be
governed by, and construed under, the laws of the State of Michigan.

4. Counterparts. This Termination Agreement may be executed in one or more duplicate
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one
and the same agreement.

5. Integration. This Termination Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties hereto
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes, in all respects, all other communications
between or among such parties, whether oral or written.

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank, signatures appear on following page) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Loan Termination Agreement is executed as of the day and year first 
above written. 

BORROWER: 
Downtown Development Authority 
Meridian Charter Township   
Authorized Title: DDA Chair 
Authorized signature: ___________________________________________ 

Renee Korrey 

LENDER: 
Meridian Charter Township 
Authorized Title: Township Supervisor  
Authorized Signature: ________________________________ 

Ron Styka 

Meridian Charter Township 
Authorized Title: Township Clerk 
Authorized Signature: ________________________________ 

Deborah Guthrie 

~ 
MERIDIAN A 

~ 



 
 
 
 
 

To: Board Members 

From: Amber Clark, Neighborhoods & Economic Development Director 
Derek Perry, Deputy Township Manager & Director of Public Works 

 
Date: June 15, 2021 

Re: Community Survey Draft 

13 C 

 
 

 

The Township Board elected to have comments sent to Manager Walsh for edits pertaining to 
the Draft Community Survey version 3 at the last Township Board meeting. Included with this 
memo is Draft 4 of the Meridian Township Community Survey. Taking comments from board 
members, questions were removed to create a concise survey that will take residents less time 
to complete. A rearranging of the questions from the last presentation has like questions 
positioned together. This drafted survey does include one question regarding recreational 
marihuana in Meridian Township. 

Next steps 

With approval, Meridian Township staff will provide Cobalt Community Research the voter 
registration list for a sample mailing group. To capture members of our audience that may not be 
registered voters, we will allow for members of the public to take the survey online. The analysis of 
the entire survey will not combine the two response groups; however will provide for an overall 
holistic view from the community. Of the approximate 43,318 Meridian Township residents, 
33,980 are registered to vote. 

Township Board Options 

Presented to you today are the current formatted questions, lay out and order of the survey 
questions. The Township Board may elect to suspend the rules and move to adopt the 
drafted survey with minor edits. 

 
Motion for Consideration: 

MOVE TO ADOPT THE DRAFTED SURVEY AND INSTRUCT MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 
STAFF TO PROCEED WITH COBALT COMMUNITY RESEARCH. 

 
Attachments: 

1. Draft Survey Cover Letters 
2. Draft Survey version 4 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 



REMINDER: 2021 MERIDIAN TWP 
FEEDBACK REQUESTED  
C/O Cobalt Community Research 
PO Box 416 | Charlotte, MI 48813 

You may complete this assessment online: 
www.CobaltCommunityResearch.org/MERIDIAN 

STUDY ID: [ID] 
NAME 
ADDRESS I 
ADDRESS II  Your response will be strictly 
CITY, STATE, ZIP confidential – your name will 

Not be released for any purpose 

DUE: Before 6/XX/21 
[SAL]: 

Please help improve the quality of life in Meridian Township. This short evaluation will help us 
understand how the Township can better meet your needs.   

We really want to know what we’re doing well and where we need to improve. It is very important that 
we hear from you. 

Enclosed is a short evaluation that takes fewer than 10 minutes to complete.  If there are individual 
questions not applicable to you or your household, select “Don’t Know” and then complete the rest of 
the evaluation. 

Please return the evaluation in the enclosed postage-paid envelope before June xx. 

Meridian Township is reaching out to citizens like you to help meet and exceed your expectations and 
to ensure your tax dollars are being spent wisely. Your responses will help shape policies and 
priorities for the Township now and in the future. 

This evaluation may be completed online by typing 
http://www.CobaltCommunityResearch.org/Meridian into your internet browser.  Once on the 
evaluation page, type in the STUDY ID number shown at the top of this letter.  The STUDY ID number 
helps us ensure we hear from you, but your response will be strictly confidential – your name will 
not be released or shared with the Township for any purpose without your permission. 

The Meridian Township and Cobalt Community Research are working together on this evaluation to 
ensure your responses are shared anonymously with the Township and to provide outside analysis.  
Cobalt is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization created to help governmental and non-profit organizations 
measure, benchmark, and manage their efforts through high-quality, affordable research.  

If you have any questions about this evaluation, please call the Township at (517) XXX-XXXX. 

Thank you for your cooperation and your insight. 



 
 

  

IMPORTANT: 2021 MERIDIAN TWP 
FEEDBACK REQUESTED  
C/O Cobalt Community Research 
PO Box 416 | Charlotte, MI 48813 

You may complete this assessment online:  
www.CobaltCommunityResearch.org/MERIDIAN 

 

STUDY ID: [ID] 
NAME 
ADDRESS I 
ADDRESS II        Your response will be strictly 
CITY, STATE, ZIP       confidential – your name will 

not be released for any purpose 
 

DUE: Before 6/XX/21 
[SAL]: 
 
Please help improve the quality of life in Meridian Township. This short evaluation will help us 
understand how the Township can better meet your needs.   
 
If you already have responded, thank you!  If not, we really want to know what we’re doing well and 
where we need to improve. It is very important that we hear from you. 
 
Enclosed is a short evaluation that takes fewer than 10 minutes to complete.  If there are individual 
questions not applicable to you or your household, select “Don’t Know” and then complete the rest of 
the evaluation. 
  
Please return the evaluation in the enclosed postage-paid envelope before June xx. 
 
Meridian Township is reaching out to citizens like you to help meet and exceed your expectations and 
to ensure your tax dollars are being spent wisely. Your responses will help shape policies and 
priorities for the Township now and in the future. 
 
This evaluation may be completed online by typing 
http://www.CobaltCommunityResearch.org/Meridian into your internet browser.  Once on the 
evaluation page, type in the STUDY ID number shown at the top of this letter.  The STUDY ID number 
helps us ensure we hear from you, but your response will be strictly confidential – your name will 
not be released or shared with the Township for any purpose without your permission. 
 
The Meridian Township and Cobalt Community Research are working together on this evaluation to 
ensure your responses are shared anonymously with the Township and to provide outside analysis.  
Cobalt is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization created to help governmental and non-profit organizations 
measure, benchmark, and manage their efforts through high-quality, affordable research.  
 
If you have any questions about this evaluation, please call the Township at (517) XXX-XXXX. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation and your insight. 
 
 



2021 Meridian Township Resident Engagement and Priority Study - DRAFT 5
Thank you for your participation in this study. All answers will remain completely anonymous - your name 

will not be released or linked with the results without your permission.
Public Safety

1. First, think about Meridian Township's fire and emergency medical services on the following attributes using a scale from 1 to 6, 
where 1 means "Poor" and 6 means "Excellent."  If you are not sure or have no opinion, please mark "Don't Know."

Fire protection for the community

Poor= 1 2 3 4 5 Excellent= 6 Don't Know

Engagement and educational opportunities

Response time to fires

Response time to medical emergencies

Respectful interaction with residents

2. Please rate Meridian Township's local law enforcement (police department) on the following attributes:

Respectful treatment of residents

Poor= 1 2 3 4 5 Excellent= 6 Don't Know

Fair and equitable enforcement

Safety education (DARE, Citizens' Academy, etc.)

Response time to emergencies

Engagement with the community

Transparency in sharing information

3. In the past year, how much contact have you had with the Meridian Township Police Department/Township police officers?

None Fewer than 3 times 3-5 times 6-10 times More than 10 times

Parks and Pathways
4. The Township has 30 parks and 70 miles of paved pathways. In the past year, how many times did you use Meridian Township's 

parks and pathways?

Never 1-5 times a year 6-10 times a year 11-20 times a year 20+ times a year

5. Next, rate Meridian Township's local parks and recreation facilities and programs on the following attributes:

Parks/facilities meet your needs

Poor= 1 2 3 4 5 Excellent= 6 Don't  Know

Parks/facility maintenance and cleanliness

Quality of recreational programs

Variety of recreational programs

Variety of park amenities

Quality of park amenities (trails, playgrounds, etc.)

Marketplace on the Green Farmers Market

Historical village

Harris Nature Center



(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study (c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research(c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research Page 2Page 2

Transportation and Public Works
6. Please think about the transportation infrastructure in Meridian Township and rate it on the following attributes:

Street surface maintenance/repair

Poor= 1 2 3 4 5 Excellent= 6 Don't Know

CATA/Redi-Ride

Pathway system for biking and walking

Street tree maintenance and care

7. Next, rate the Public Works services that you use on the following attributes:

Drinking water quality

Poor= 1 2 3 4 5 Excellent= 6 Don't Know

Response time to water/sewer emergencies

Storm water/drain maintenance

Ease of paying Township utility bills

Snow management on trails and pathways

Streetlight maintenance

Respectful treatment of residents/customer service

8. Please rate the maintenance of Meridian Township's facilities and grounds:

Meridian Township Hall (government offices)

Poor= 1 2 3 4 5 Excellent= 6 Don't Know

Okemos Library CADL Branch

Haslett Library CADL Branch

Glendale Cemetery

Recycling/transfer station

Community Development
9. Rate the economic health of Meridian Township on the following aspects:

Cost of living

Poor= 1 2 3 4 5 Excellent= 6 Don't   Know

Affordability of housing

Availability of quality jobs

Stability of property values

Strength of local economy

Access to general health care services

Access to mental health care services

10. Please rate your satisfaction with the following Township services:

Building, plumbing and electrical inspections

Poor= 1 2 3 4 5 Excellent= 6 Don't Know

Professionalism of code enforcement staff

Code enforcement/property maintenance in your neighborhood

Rental inspections

Ease of permitting services

Plan review



(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study (c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research(c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research Page 3Page 3

11. Do you own or operate a business in Meridian Township?

Yes No

12. What would make Meridian Township a better place for small businesses?

Overall
13. Consider your experiences in the last year with Meridian Township.  How satisfied are you?  Use a 6-point scale, where 1 means 

"Very Dissatisfied" and 6 means "Very Satisfied." 
Very Dissatisfied= 1 2 3 4 5 Very Satisfied= 6

14. On a scale where 1 means "Not Likely" and 6 means "Very Likely," how likely are you to take the following actions:

Be a community volunteer

Not  Likely= 1 2 3 4 5 Very Likely=6

Encourage someone to start a business here

Participate in community events and festivals

Remain living here five years from now

15. What barriers keep you from participating more in the areas above or remaining here five years from now?

16. On a scale where 1 is "Strongly Disagree" and 6 is "Strongly Agree," to what extent do you agree that Meridian Township is:

A safe place to live

Strongly 
Disagree= 1 2 3 4 5

Strongly 
Agree= 6 Don't Know

An enjoyable place for children

An enjoyable place for young adults (age 18-35)

An enjoyable place for older adults (age 62+)

An enjoyable place for people to visit

Physically attractive/great curb appeal

A great place to have a business

A community that is growing responsibly

A safe place to bike and walk

A safe place to bike and walk at night

A perfect community for me

A place that is inclusive and celebrates  diversity

17. What do you like most about living in Meridian Township?

18. What are the top improvements the Township should prioritize:



(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study (c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research(c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research Page 4Page 4

Communication Preference

19. How do you prefer to receive information from the Township (events, programs, updates, etc.)? (Mark all that apply.)

Email

Township website
Meridian Happenings Digital 
Newsletter

Prime Meridian Magazine

Utility bill insert

Township social media (Facebook, etc.)

NextDoor

Meridian Township YouTube channel

Text message

HOMTV Cable Channel

20. What types of information, updates or special topics would you like to receive from the Township?

Township news

Township projects

Township meetings

Community events

Budget information

Other (note below)

21. Which languages are spoken in your home?

22. The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) defines high-speed broadband as download speeds of up to 25 megabits per 
second and upload speeds of up to 3 megabits per second.  The Township has a goal to provide reliable broadband access 
throughout the Township.  Please note the type of internet service you have? (Mark all that apply.)

No access (skip to 30)

DSL (dial up)

Cable Modem

Fiber

Mobile/wireless

Satellite

Not sure

23. How do you and your household use the internet?  (Mark all that apply.)

Business

Education

K-12

Personal/general use

Streaming/gaming

Video conferencing (Zoom, Teams, 
FaceTime, etc)

Medical care appointments

24. Think about the internet and cell phone services available in Meridian Township using the scale where 1 means "Poor" and 6 means 
"Excellent." Please rate the community for providing:

Your ability to access high-speed broadband  

 Poor= 1 2 3 4 5 Excellent= 6 Don't Know

Speed of your internet connection for  your household needs

The reliability of your internet connection for  your household needs

Variety of providers available for internet access

Cell phone reception

25. What is your current download speed (if known)?
Fewer than 25 megabits per 
second

25 to 99 megabits per 
second

100+ megabits per second Don't know

26. What is your current upload speed (if known)?
Fewer than 3 megabits per 
second

3 to 99 megabits per second 100+ megabits per second Don't know

27. What Township services would you like to see available online?



(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study (c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research(c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research Page 5Page 5

Planning and Budget
28. Which six Township services, programs or amenities below are the most important to the people living in your household? 

(Mark up to 6.)

Fire and ambulance services

Building inspection
Code enforcement/property 
maintenance

Rental inspection

Permit services

Police Services

Township parks

Township Ice Center

Trails and pathways
Trash/recycling containers 
in parks

Economic development

Election and voting process
Storm water 
management/flooding 
prevention

Public water and sewer

Recycling services

Road maintenance

Recreation

29. Which of the following community amenities below would you like to see added or enhanced in the future? 
(Mark up to 6.)

Community Center
Community engagement 
opportunities

Dog parks

Green space

Indoor recreational space

New gateway signage
Outdoor athletic 
fields/courts

Outdoor performance space

Skateboard/bike park
Safe pedestrian/non- 
motorized railroad crossings

Outdoor seating spaces 
(around fire pit, fountain, 
game space)

Pickleball courts

Playgrounds, indoor

Playgrounds, outdoor

Pop up pedestrian spaces 
(streeteries, parklets, plazas)

Sidewalks

Sport shooting areas

Traffic enforcement

Walking/biking trails

30. Residents have shared many ideas for potential improvements throughout the Township.  Which of the following potential future 
community improvements should the Township pursue? (Mark all that apply.)

Improve broadband internet access to all areas of the 
Township
Improve broadband internet service to key business areas of 
the Township to encourage economic development

Support installation of 5G cellular services in the Township

Expand solar and other green initiatives

Expand/enhance trails and pathways

Expand/enhance pedestrian/non-motorized safety features at 
railroad crossing
Establish railroad quiet zones (crossings that eliminate need 
for safety horns to be sounded)
Invest in upgrading and modernizing our water and sewer 
facilities

None of these

31. What other community amenities would you like to see considered for the future? 

32. Meridian Township has an over-population of deer that has resulted in an increase of damage to landscaping, reports of 
vehicle/deer accidents, concern for public health, and a disruption to the ecological balance of our natural areas. In response, the 
Meridian Township Board directed staff to develop and implement a deer management plan that outlines measures for a highly-
managed program to harvest white-tailed deer in a number of selected township-owned properties. Do you support or oppose 
continuation of this program?

Support Oppose Not sure

33. In 2018 Michigan voters approved Proposal 1: the legalization of recreational use and possession of
Marihuana for persons 21 years of age or older in Michigan and enactment of tax on the sale of
Marihuana. Meridian Township Board approved licenses for medical marihuana only in 2019. Do you support the establishment 
of recreational Marihuana retail outlets in Meridian Township?

Support Oppose Not sure



(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study(2021007) Meridian Township Resident Study (c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research(c) 2021 Cobalt Community Research Page 6Page 6

Meridian Township is a welcoming community. The information below helps us improve services for all of 
our residents. These questions are for analysis only and will not be used in any way to identify you.  You may 

skip any questions that you are not comfortable answering. 
How long have you been living in Meridian Township?

One year or less 1-5 years 6-10 years More than 10 years

Do you own or rent/lease your residence?
Own Rent/Lease

Is your place of employment located in Meridian Township?
Yes No, a different community I am not currently employed I am retired

What is your age group?
18 to 24 25 to 34 35 to 44 45 to 54 55 to 64 65 or over

Which of the following categories best describes your level of education?
Some high school or 
less

High school graduate Some college College graduate Graduate degree(s)

Which of the following categories includes your total household income last year?
$25,000 or less $25,001 to $50,000 $50,001 to $100,000 $100,001-$175,000 More than $175,000

Please indicate your marital status:
Single Married/living with partner Widowed Separated/divorced

Mark the boxes that describe the people living in your house (other than yourself). Check all that apply.
Child(ren) age 12 or under

Child(ren) age 12-17

Adult child(ren) age 18+

Spouse/partner

Roommate

Parent age 65 or older

None of these

How do you identify (check all that apply)?
Male

Female

Non-binary

Prefer not to say

Prefer to self describe (note below)

To which group do you consider yourself to belong? Check all that apply.
Asian

White/Caucasian

Black/African American

Hispanic/Latinx

Indigenous American

Prefer not to say

Other

What is your ZIP Code?
48864 48823 48840 48895 Other (note below)

If you are interested in participating in potential future Township planning workshops, focus groups, or similar conversations, please 
enter your name, email, phone number, and address below. Your identity will not be linked with your other answers in this survey.

Thank you for your time.  Please return this assessment in the postage-paid envelope provided.


	06.15.21 Final Agenda amended 2
	4A1 MERS Board Presentation 06_15_21
	Slide Number 1
	MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP �FUNDING LEVEL HISTORY
	2020 THE HIGHEST % OF FUNDED RATIO SINCE 1999
	MONTHLY CONTRIBUTIONS�2021=$250,300�2022=$271,613
	100% FUNDING IN 10 YEARS?
	CAN WE RELY ON MERS 7.35 ROR?�NO.
	Retiree Health Care (OPEB)��December 31, 2020
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Meridian Employee �Pension Plan�December 31, 2020
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22

	4A MERS 2020 Valuation Reports-Presentation
	9A Communications
	comm cover
	June 15 2021 TB Communications.pdf
	3.23.21 Erin Mock - Railroad Quiet Zones
	3.23.21 Erin Mock - Railroad Quiet Zones.pdf
	November212017TownshipBoar (00000002).pdf
	November 9, 2017 Draft Minutes 1
	November 21,2017 Packet
	RR Quiet Zone Study-Phil Memo



	5.28.21 Water Quality Report
	6.1.21 Darci Marcum - Proposed Sparrow Health System Development
	6.1.21 Green Gazette June 2021
	6.1.21 Stanley L. Flegler - Deer Management Program
	6.2.21 Peter Lupa - Re_ Proposed Sparrow ER on Jolly Rd
	6.3.21 Township Lifts Temporary Building Access Restrictions Press Release
	6.4.21 Ceil Heller - Food for thought before you vote on Sparrow ER
	6.7 and 6.8.21 Roxann Graham and RR Response Carlton RR Tracks
	6.8.21 RE_ Carlton Street RR Tracks.pdf

	6.9.21 FW_ Wolverine Pipe Line Co - Mowing Operations
	6.9.21 FW_ Wolverine Pipe Line Co - Mowing Operations.pdf
	Binder4.pdf
	MOWING NOTICE LETTER - 2021.05.14.pdf
	Wolverine Pipeline Mowing Operations ROW.pdf


	6.10.21 Dr. Sondos Alhachim - Rezoning #21020 rezone six acres on the north side of Jolly Road and east of Kansas Road
	6.10.21 Joel Ackerman - ER on Kansas Rd, Okemos
	6.10.21 Joell Ackerman - Kansas road rezoning
	6.10.21 John David Faichney - Opposition to Kansas Rd Neighborhood Development
	6.10.21 Ron Styka - Serial killer
	6.10.21 Sharon Morrisett  - Sparrow Hospital ER on Jolly
	6.10.21 Shereen Tabrizi - # 21020
	6.10.21 Steven E Freemire - Sparrow_Kansas Rd Opposition
	6.17.21 ELMSWA Notice
	Agenda ELMWSA 6-17-21 (June) Mtg.pdf
	Notice_6-17-21 Remote Meeting_ELMWSA.pdf



	9B Minutes
	minutes cover
	Draft Minutes 05.182021 Virtual Bd Meeting
	Draft Minutes 06.01.2021 Virtual Bd Meeting

	9C Bills
	9D Set public hearing memo 06_09_21
	9G Charitable Gaming-Ebersole Foundation
	12A Rezoning #21020 Martin Investment Properties Inc (6.15.21 TB).pdf
	12B Resolution -Juneteenth
	12C Speed Study
	12D Tier 1 vacancy appointment june 10 2021Re-Appointment memo
	12E Investment Policy
	12F Amtrak Resolution
	13A Rezoning #21040 Okemos IL-AL Investors LLC (6.15.21 TB).pdf
	13B To TWP Board DDA Loan Forgiveness Item 13 B
	Current Amortization Schedule 2021.pdf
	Oct 2019

	Current DDA Finances.pdf
	June 7, 2021 Downtown Development Authority Packet 11.pdf
	June 7, 2021 Downtown Development Authority Packet 10.pdf
	June 7, 2021 Downtown Development Authority Packet 9.pdf
	June 7, 2021 Downtown Development Authority Packet 8.pdf
	June 7, 2021 Downtown Development Authority Packet 7.pdf
	June 7, 2021 Downtown Development Authority Packet 6.pdf

	Document--DDA #2 Report 04-08-2021.pdf
	Signed Amendment to the DDA Loan Repayment Schedule 2017.pdf
	Support Letter from DDA for Loan Forgiveness 2021.pdf
	Scan_0030.pdf
	Scan_0028.pdf

	To Twp DDA Loan Forgiveness Memo.pdf

	13C To TWP Board Community Survey Draft Review 5 Item 13 C
	To TWP Board Community Survey Draft Review 5 Item 13 C.pdf
	Next steps
	Township Board Options
	Motion for Consideration:
	Attachments:

	(2021007) Meridian Township Residential Study - DRAFT 5.pdf




